
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 1 of 311



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 2 of 311



COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 
2016 

Public Safety 

Utilities 

Chuck Owen, Chair 
Brenda Kinzer 
Germaine Komegay 

Judith Dunn Lee, Chair 
Julia Johnson 
Brenda Kinzer 

Finance & Personnel Rick Lemley, Chair 
Germaine Kornegay 
Judith Dunn Lee 

Parks & Recreation 

Planning 

Germaine Komegay, Chair 
Brenda Kinzer 
Brett Sandstrom 

Brett Sandstrom, Chair 
Rick Lemley 
Julia Johnson 

Business 
Development 	Julia Johnson, Chair 

Brett Sandstrom 
Chuck Owen 

Mayor Pro-tern 	Brenda Kinzer 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 3 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	I  

 

    

    

    

DATE: 	April 13, 2016 

Mayor Wagoner and City Council 

FROM: 	Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: 1) CALL TO ORDER; 2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; 3) CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

1. CALL TO ORDER - The Mayor will call the April 13, 2016 
Regular Meeting to Order. 	The Finance Director will note 
those in attendance and those absent. 

Ward 1 	Councilmember Judith Dunn Lee 

Ward 2 	Councilmember Germaine Kornegay 

Ward 3 	Councilmember Brenda Kinzer 

Ward 4 	Councilmember Julia Johnson 

Ward 5 	Councilmember Chuck Owen 

Ward 6 	Councilmember Rick Lemley 

At-Large Councilmember Brett Sandstrom 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - The Mayor will lead the City Council 
and citizens in the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States 
of America. 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR - Mayor will ask for Council approval of 
Consent Calendar items. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 4 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 	7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	4o  

Regular Meeting of the City Council 
March 23, 2016 — 7:00 P.M. — Council Chambers 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Wagoner: Councilmembers: Germaine Kornegay, Julia 
Johnson, Chuck Owen, Rick Lemley and Brett Sandstrom. Staff: Recorder Brue, Finance 
Director Nelson, City Supervisor/Attorney Berg, Public Works Director Freiberger, Planning 
Director Coleman and Police Sgt. Harris. 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 P.M. by Mayor Wagoner. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Council member Johnson moved to excuse Councilmember Dunn Lee and Councilmember 
Kinzer. Seconded by Councilmember Owen. Motion carried (5-0). 

Mayor Wagoner introduced a late material item. It is a replacement for Item G due to a typo in 
the original memo. 

Consent Calendar 

• Approval of Agenda 
• Minutes from Previous Meeting (Including March 14, 2016 Special Meeting —

Retreat) 
• Finance 

o Claim Checks #183436 to #183534 in the amount of $177.173.73 
o Payroll Checks #58862 to #58873 plus EFT's in the amount of $209,733.76 

• Employment Agreement — Bob Pyritz, Construction Manager 
• Request for Budget Amendment for Repairs of Museum Apartment Area & Task 

Order Authorization for 2016-PW-09-T0-01 
• Possible Bid Award — Agreement No. 2016 — PW — 16 Library Vestibule Damage 

Repair Contract — JM Construction & Drywall LLC 
• Possible Bid Awards — 2016 Wheeled Carts, 2016 Commercial Front Load 

Dumpsters & 2016 Roll-off Containers 
• Request for Out of State Travel — Police Department 

Councilmember Kornegay moved to approve the consent calendar items A through H including 
the late material on Item G. Seconded by Councilmember Sandstrom. Motion carried (5-0). 

Public Comment 

Mary Andersson — 928 Beachley, reviewed statistics on what communities spend on their 
libraries including Skagit County statistics. She addressed the Mayor's Library proposal, 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 5 of 311



building costs, funding and the Central Skagit Rural Library Attorney assessment regarding 
building ownership. 

Cole Verner — 1231 Warner St. expressed strong concerns regarding the Mayor's proposal and 
agreed with Andersson's comments. He stated he cannot find a simplified detail for the cost 
analysis for the proposal. As a consumer of the library it is one of the best in County and it is 
being put in jeopardy. He noted the Choir is singing loud and clear and urged the Council to 
consider what citizens are saying. 

Christine Johnson — 801 McLean Dr. spoke against giving the Library to the Central Skagit 
Rural Library District. She referenced District website information that gives a good background 
of the districts position. Her points included offloading the library, representation, funding, and 
the primary responsibility of the Council to safeguard city's assets. She requested to think 
carefully and give it the respect it deserves. 

Tony Tomasino — 704 Sauk Mountain Dr. — expressed concern that people don't know what is 
going on. He also addressed fiduciary responsibility and provided examples of fiduciary 
responsibility and encouraged Council think about their obligation. 

Margaret Miller — 1221 Independence -- expressed strong opposition on building a new library 
and encouraged to put the issue to a public vote. 

Gary Moody — 1035 Clifford — supports the library and would like to see a lot more information 
put out as to the bottom line. He agrees with others statements and thinks the cart is before the 
horse and would like to see a public vote. 

Debra Peterson — announced the upcoming City Works Day on April 19th  from 11:00 AM to 
2:00 PM. The event will allow a look at the equipment used within the city and staff will be on 
hand to demonstrate and talk about their duties. This is the second year and last year over 130 
kids and parents attended. She encouraged attendance to see STEM in action and the kick off of 
the Memorial Park Revitalization. 

Larry Stiles — 1227 Independence, questioned why we're going through this or what the end 
process is supposed to be. He also questioned why the county does not have a more integrated 
library system. He stated there is more horsepower in Sedro-Woolley and we should be 
bringing the County into our system. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Spray Park Update/Professional Services Agreement No. 2016-PS-19 for Professional Landscape 
Design Services — The Philbin Group. Landscape Architecture 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg presented a brief background on the revitalization of Memorial 
Park. The proposed agreement would provide a conceptual design by a Landscape Architect in 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 6 of 311



order to be able to apply for Recreational Conservation Organizational (RCO) grants. Berg 
noted that after reviewing all the current parks. Memorial Park was the only one to meet the 
minimum requirements for a spray park. A public open house will be held on April 19th  during 
the City Works Day to kick-off the revitalization of Memorial Park. Berg also addressed the 
scope of the project. 

Nathan Salseina Public Works Operations Lead addressed site selection stating that Memorial 
park scored the highest. It is also the last park in need of revitalization. 

Discussion ensued to include the park being a mixed use functionality; full blown design will 
come after an award of funds and estimated cost of $400,000. 

Councilmember Johnson requested to go on record regarding her concern on the cost and the 
need to consider if this is a prudent project. 

Further discussion took place to include the Recreation Conservation Organization (RCO) grant, 
maximum grant is 50%, with the remainder of funds coming from REET tax or park impact fee 
funds along with project partners, community groups and in kind work. 

Councilmember Sandstrom addressed the former Parks Board and a master plan that was created 
for the park. 

More discussion was held regarding the vandalism projection, resident caretaker, fencing and 
having an investment in the park will bring more use and vitality. There was also discussion on 
dedicated funds (funds that can only be used for certain things), an analogy of transportation 
project funding with giants was given as an example of the park project, quality of life issues and 
the project being one of the Council's 2016 fundamental priorities. 

Councilmember Owen noted there are several new councilmembers who are new to the topic. 
He stated he doesn't agree with the location due to increased traffic and noise and questioned the 
overall cost, upkeep and maintenance and wants to hear from other cities that have spray parks. 

Discussion continued regarding consultation with the Senior Center on the plans, location and 
providing intergenerational experiences. 

Councilmember Sandstrom moved to authorize Mayor Wagoner to execute the attached 
Professional Services Agreement No. 2015-PS-19 with the Philbin Group of Bow, WA to 
provide professional landscape design services to the Sedro-Woolley Public Works Department 
in an amount not to exceed $5,000. Seconded by Councilmember Kornegay. Motion carried (3-
2. Councilmembers Johnson and Owen opposed). 

NEW BUSINESS 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 7 of 311



COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS 
Written Reports to Council 
Informational Items 

Police Sgt. Harris — reported they are in the final stages of hiring another reserve officer which 
∎vill be an added bonus to the department. Officer Eddy has finished commercial vehicle school. 
This will allow him to conduct safety inspections on semis. Sgt. Harris noted Eddy is one of the 
most productive officers in traffic enforcement. Last year he conducted over 1000 traffic stops 
on his own. 

Planning Director Coleman — reported we have received 5 new building permit applications for 
the Sauk Mountain View Estates V that was approved at the last Council meeting. The Planning 
Commission held a public hearing on March 15th  on the Critical Areas Ordinance as well as 
updates to the Capital Facilities Element and others within the Comp Plan. Coleman presented 
an update on the City's UGA proposal sent to County in April. He announced the upcoming 
Schmooze Fair on April 14th, noting the City will have a booth. He will also be participating 
with a presentation at a planning conference on the Northern State area as the Center for 
Innovative Technology on the annexation process and the planned action process. 

Public Works Director Freiberger — reported on the pre bid meeting held for the Jameson Street 
Extension Project noting bids close March 3 1 s' with construction to begin in May. He also 
reported on the Ferry Street Overlay Project, Cascade Trail and design work for Fruitdale Road. 
The fence work at the Janicki Field Babe Ruth field will be starting soon. An open house for the 
Houser playfield will be held on Thursday, March 24th  beginning at 6:00 P.M. 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg — reported he has tickets for the Schmooze Fair should any 
Councilmember want one. 

Finance Director Nelson — noted if any Councilmembers have questions regarding the financial 
reports she is glad to review. Nelson also thanked the Police Department for work in her 
neighborhood with a nusicience matter. 

Councilmember Kornegay — announced the upcoming Wood Fest on April 2nd  and 3rd  at Cascade 
Middle School. She also announced the Wood Fest raffle of an arbor; tickets are available at the 
Chamber of Commerce. 

Councilmember Johnson — thanked the audience members for coming out and sharing their 
opinion. She also thanked Police Sgt. Mcllraith for the ride along stating she saw the city in a 
different light. 

Councilmember Owen — reported of his ride along with Officer Hull and said he continues to be 
impressed at how professional the Officer's are. 

Councilmember Lemley — commented on how nice it is to have an audience. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 8 of 311



Councilmember Johnson moved to adjourn. Seconded by Councilmember Lemley. Motion 
carried (5-0). 

The meeting adjourned at 7:58 P.M. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 9 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 1 3 2016 

 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

Council Worksession 
April 6, 2016— 7:00 P.M. — Council Chambers 

 

The worksession was called to order at 7:00 P.M. by Mayor Keith Wagoner. 

Flag Salute 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Keith Wagoner, Councilmembers: Judith Dunn Lee, 
Germaine Kornegay, Brenda Kinzer, Julia Johnson, Chuck Owen, Rick Lemley and Brett 
Sandstrom. Staff: City Supervisor/Attorney Berg and Librarian Debra Peterson, Public 
Works Director Freiberger (8:01 P.M.). 

Department Update — Library 

• Sedro-Woolley Public Librarian Debra Peterson continued her report on the 
library that was started at the Council's retreat with a detailed discussion of the 
summer reading program for 2016. The program is very popular with a 50°A 
retention rate. She discussed the structure of the program as well as the planned 
events for this summer. The program goal is 800 minutes of reading with 
weekly prizes, a half-way prize and end of program prizes including drawings 
for the grand prizes (Amazon gift cards and bicycles, etc). Peterson handed out 
materials on STEM education, girls and women in STEM and an invitation to 
the museum for the Carnegie Library exhibit on April 16th  from 1-4 P.M. for the 
tulip time tea. 

Peterson then talked about the new children's librarian and the changes to the 
library's kids' program which is currently "top secret", but super cool and will 
be STEM based. Story time is a weekly event as well as baby time which covers 
the birth to six and play and learn targets older kids, but the tween aged kids 
have been more challenging to engage. She talked about the need to more 
consistently engage the older kids with programs. Councilmember Sandstrom 
asked about the timing for these programs. Peterson responded that the 
Discovery Program will be happening this summer and would reach school aged 
kids. 

She then reviewed the 2015 statistics: over 100,000 print books in circulation, 
over 28.000 eBooks available with 36.000 eBooks in circulation. Downloadable 
audio books are running almost 11,000 last year. The library was one of the first 
to provide eBooks and in the past seven years, the Northwest Anytime Library 
partnership has expanded and been very successful for Sedro-Woolley. 

The Mayor asked about the staffing and hours of operation. The library is open 
40 hours per week. 12-8. M-Th and 12-4 on Fri. & Sat. The library is staffed with 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 10 of 311



two full time employees: Debra and Teresa Johnson (desk supervisor and 
cataloging) and five part-time employees who all work a variety of roles as 
needed, four desk clerks and one children's specialist. The staff have many years 
of experience and knowledge of the 67.000 books in the city's collection. Debra 
views the role of library staff as navigators: helping patrons find the right 
resources or the right books. Annual visits total 72,000 with as many as 400 on 
any given day. Check-outs range from 150-500 books per day. 

Councilmember Owen commented on the fact that the collection includes some of 
the older books that are hard to find in other libraries. Peterson talked about 
reciprocity and indicated that our most active reciprocal users are from Mount 
Vernon. Councilmember Sandstrom agreed that he also enjoys the older books. 
7.000 library cards are out 4,000 core users: 500 paid library cards (represented 
200-250 households mostly located around Sedro-Woolley). City 
Supervisor/Attorney Berg asked about a more efficient model for reciprocity. 
Peterson agreed that it makes sense, but indicated that the various libraries use 
four different software packages which makes it challenging. 

She then discussed grant support of the library indicating that the library has 
received about $100,000 in grants in the last decade. Her focus has been on early 
learning, but libraries are about lifelong learning and she has also emphasized 
older adult reading opportunities. Councilmember Kornegay asked about 
activities for tweens. specifically junior fiction. Peterson discussed the distinction 
between junior fiction and young adult fiction. 

Mayor Wagoner asked if the library has any immediate needs. Peterson noted she 
has a long list, but wants more support for STEM projects and tween 
opportunities. Councilmember Sandstrom asked about engaging parents and 
Peterson talked about a program in Kennewick that has been very successful. 

SR9 Speed Limit Change Ordinance 

• City Supervisor/Attorney Berg introduced the SR9 Speed Limit Change 
Ordinance explaining that this item is presented as a first reading because it is 
time sensitive relative to the SR 9/Jameson project. 

Miscellaneous 

• Councilmember Sandstrom asked about the County Commissioners' meeting 
regarding EMS from Tuesday regarding their EMS director. Discussion 
followed. 

• Mayor Wagoner announced ribbon cuttings that are upcoming: Woolley Market 
for the Outfitter and the Plumeria Breeze. He also reported that the legislature 
passed a proviso to the capital budget conferring authority on DES to transfer the 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 11 of 311



Northern State Hospital property to the Port of Skagit. The governor is expected 
to sign the capital budget the week of April 18th. 

Public Works Director Freiberger joined the meeting at 8:01 p.m. 

• Mayor Wagoner announced a closed session regarding collective bargaining 
(RCW 42.30.140) and an executive session for the purpose of litigation (RCW 
42.30.110(1)(i), for 20 minutes with no action requested beginning at 8:02 p.m. 

The worksession resumed at 8:35 p.m. 

• Public Works Director Freiberger gave a report on the SR 9/Jameson project 
noting bids were opened today; 7 bids were received and all bids were within 7% 
of the engineer's estimate with the apparent lowest bidder approximately 4% 
lower than the estimate. Mark will be bringing a bid award recommendation to 
the council in April. He also reported that the transportation element of the 
comprehensive plan is delayed pending details from the city's consultant. 

• Councilmember Dunn Lee asked about commercial truck enforcement, City 
Supervisor/Attorney Berg reported on Officer Eddy's status. 

• Councilmember Sandstrom asked about the strips on SR 9 at Clearlake; 
Freiberger has requested the same from WSDOT in Sedro-Woolley. 

• Councilmember Kornegay asked if any of the bidders were local. 

Councilmember Lemley moved to adjourn. Seconded by Councilmember Johnson. 
Motion carried (7-0). 

The worksession adjourned at 8:48 p.m. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 12 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

     

APR 1 3 2016 

    

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO, 	  

        

        

DATE: 	April 13, 2016 

Mayor Wagoner and City Council 

FROM: Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: FINANCE - CLAIMS 

Attached you will find the Claim Checks register proposed for 
payment for the period ending April 13, 2016. 

Motion to approve Claim Checks #183535 to #183639 in the amount of 
$296,405.23.  

to apprcvePayroll Checks #588`'9 to #58890 plus EFT's  'n 

a„, r,cerns, please conta,:t me 
w,-,rking day at 955-1E61. 	hi 	h >  

allLw me-  to look up the invoices that are stored in our office. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 13 of 311



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

03/25/2016 To: 04/13/2016 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	09:43:27 Date: 	04/08/2016 

	

Page: 	1 

Amount Memo 

2338 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183535 A WorkSAFE Service, Inc. 208.00 

001 - 521 20 41 001 - Professional Services 	 52.00 
105 - 572 20 41 000 - Professional Services 	 52.00 
101 - 576 80 49 020 - Misc-Dues/CDL/Background 	52.00 
101 - 576 80 49 020 - Misc-Dues/CDL/Background 	52.00 

2339 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183536 A-1 Mobile Lock & Key 84.09 

001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 	 84.09 

2340 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183537 ATV Signs 277.76 

001 - 595 10 31 001 - Address & Street Signs-Reiml 	34.72 
001 - 595 10 31 001 - Address & Street Signs-Reiml 	34.72 
001 - 595 10 31 001 - Address & Street Signs-Reiml 	208.32 

2341 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183538 Advanced Towing 217.00 

001 - 521 20 41 001 - Professional Services 	 217.00 

2342 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183539 	All-Phase Electric 2,106.72 

101 - 576 80 48 020 - Resource Conservation 	1,167.11 
401 - 594 35 64 401 - Machinery & Equip 	 939.61 

2343 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183540 Applied Industrial Tech 4,970.58 

401 - 535 50 48 050 - Maint Of General Equip 	4,970.58 

2344 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183541 Aramark Uniform Services 63.60 

401 - 535 80 49 000 - Laundry 	 8.22 
401 - 535 80 49 000 - Laundry 	 8.22 
401 - 535 80 49 000 - Laundry 	 8.22 
401 - 535 80 49 000 - Laundry 	 10.86 
102 - 536 20 49 030 - Misc-laundry 	 0.40 
102 - 536 20 49 030 - Misc-laundry 	 0.40 
102 - 536 20 49 030 - Misc-laundry 	 0.40 
103 - 542 30 49 000 - Misc-Laundry 	 6.72 
103 - 542 30 49 000 - Misc-Laundry 	 6.72 
103 - 542 30 49 000 - Misc-Laundry 	 6.72 
103 - 542 30 49 000 - Misc-Laundry 	 6.72 

2345 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183542 Assoc Petroleum Products 4,141.89 

001 - 518 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel 	 71.38 
001 - 518 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel 	 118.79 
001 - 521 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel 	 1,010.87 
001 - 522 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 468.37 
001 - 523 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel 	 19.24 
425 - 531 50 32 000 - Vehicle Fuel 	 87.28 
401 - 535 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 110.54 
401 - 535 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 51.01 
412 - 537 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 892.11 
412 - 537 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 976.76 
412 - 537 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 92.68 
412 - 537 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 -100.37 
103 - 542 30 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 167.47 
103 - 542 30 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 117.57 
103 - 542 30 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 58.19 

2346 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183543 Kaylyn Barnes 20.00 

304 - 317 60 00 000 - Vehicle Fees 	 -20.00 

2347 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183544 Bay City Supply 219.65 

101 - 576 80 31 006 - Operating Sup - City Hall 	204.46 
101 -576 80 31 006 - Operating Sup-City Hall 	 15.19 

2348 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183545 Dr, Paul Bergman 1,056.00 

001 - 521 20 27 000 - Retired Medical 	 830.00 
001 - 521 20 27 000 - Retired Medical 	 226.00 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 14 of 311



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

03/25/2016 To: 04/13/2016 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	09:43:27 Date: 	04/08/2016 

	

Page: 	2 

Amount Memo 

2349 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183546 Better Homes & Gardens 36.97 
105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 36.97 

2350 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183547 Blumenthal Uniform & Equip 409.14 
001 - 521 20 26 000 - Uniforms/Accessories 	 54.29 
001 - 522 20 26 000 - Uniforms 	 76.00 
001 - 522 20 26 000 - Uniforms 	 140.44 
001 - 522 20 26 000 - Uniforms 	 138.41 

2351 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183548 Boulder Park Inc 5,370.79 
401 - 535 80 35 020 - Solids Handling 	 5,370.79 

2352 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183549 Capital One Commercial 443.58 
001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/Operating Supplies 	96.78 
001 - 522 20 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 250.02 
001 - 522 45 43 000 - Travel & Meals 	 96.78 

2353 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183550 Carl's Towing Inc 194.22 
001 - 521 20 41 001 - Professional Services 	 194.22 

2354 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183551 	Cascade Natural Gas Corp 757.43 
401 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 134.66 
412 - 537 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 168.42 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 12.29 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 13.81 
105 - 572 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 93.30 
101 - 576 80 47 010 - Community Center 	 78.12 
101 - 576 80 47 020 - Senior Center 	 199.65 
101 - 576 80 47 050 - Hammer Square 	 24.94 
101 - 576 80 47 052 - Bingham Caretaker 	 32.24 

2355 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183552 	Corelogic Tax Service LLC 280.87 
001 - 316 49 35 000 - Utility Tax On Sewer 	 -25.20 
001 - 316 49 37 000 - Utility Tax On Solid Waste 	-2.30 
425 - 343 10 00 000 - Stormwater Fees 	 -4.98 
401 - 343 50 00 000 - Sewer Service Charges 	 -184.14 
412 - 343 70 00 000 - Garbage/Solid Waste Fees 	-24.30 
412 - 343 73 00 000 - Curbside Recycling Fee 	 -5.30 
412 - 343 75 00 000 - Fuel Surcharge 	 -1.00 
412 - 343 79 00 000 - Penalties On Accounts 	 -20.00 
412 - 361 40 00 412 - Interest On Accts 	 -13.65 

2356 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183553 Crowell Photography, LLC 607.60 
001 - 518 80 42 021 - Internet Services 	 607.60 

2357 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183554 Daily Journal Of Commerce 198.90 
104 - 595 10 63 040 - Eng-SR9 Jameson 	 198.90 

2358 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183555 Day Wireless Systems Inc 122.45 
001 - 594 21 64 000 - Machinery & Equipment 	122.45 

2359 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183556 Dept of Enterprise Services 93.33 
001 - 522 20 31 010 - Office Supplies 	 93.33 

2360 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183557 Drain Doctor 1,980.13 
401 - 594 35 63 010 - Other Improvements 	 1,980.13 

2361 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183558 Dwayne Lane's North Cascade 806.44 
Ford 

001 - 521 20 48 010 - Repair & Maint - Auto 	 474.43 
001 - 521 20 48 010 - Repair & Maint - Auto 	 210.71 
001 - 521 20 48 010 - Repair & Maint - Auto 	 11.88 
001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/Maint-Equip 	 109.42 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 15 of 311



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

03/25/2016 To: 04/13/2016 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	09:43:27 Date: 	04/08/2016 

	

Page: 	3 

Amount Memo 

2362 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183559 E & E Lumber 1,892.83 

401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 5.97 
102 - 536 20 48 030 - Repair/Maintenance-Land 18.64 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 29.10 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 10.33 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 16.30 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 82.55 
103 - 542 30 35 000 - Small Tools/Minor Equip 31.90 
103 - 542 30 35 000 - Small Tools/Minor Equip 99.38 
101 - 576 80 31 001 - Operating Sup - Riverfront 46.36 
101 - 576 80 31 003 - Operating Sup - Parks Shop 20.39 
101 - 576 80 31 003 - Operating Sup - Parks Shop 9.68 
101 - 576 80 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equip 45.87 
101 - 576 80 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equip 135.63 
101 - 576 80 48 006 - Memorial Park 20.62 
101 - 576 80 48 007 - Bingham Park 123.36 
101 - 594 76 31 000 - Buildings & Structures 54.75 
101 - 594 76 31 000 - Buildings & Structures 23.89 
101 - 594 76 31 000 - Buildings & Structures 44.78  
101 - 594 76 31 000 - Buildings & Structures 1,073.33 

2363 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183560 Eco-3 175.00 

103 - 542 30 49 030 - Misc-Tuition/Registration 175.00 

2364 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183561 	Edge Analytical Inc 49.00  

401 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 49.00 

2365 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183562 	Enterprise Office Systems 492.68 

001 - 512 50 31 000 - Supplies 	 39.04 
001 - 514 23 31 000 - Supplies 	 453.64 

2366 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183563 FEI-Seattle WW #1539 150.63  

425 - 531 50 48 000 - Repairs/Maintenance 150.63 

2367 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183564 FEI 366.25 

101 - 576 80 48 004 - Community Center 366.25 

2368 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183565 Fastenal Company 40.92 

103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 40.92 

2369 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183566 Federal Express Corp 19.45 

104 - 595 10 63 040 - Eng-SR9 Jameson 19.45 

2370 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183567 	Frontier Building Supply 66.36  

401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 66.36 

2371 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183568 	Frontier 907.36 

001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 69.04 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 59.77 
001 - 522 20 42 020 - Telephone 119.99 
401 - 535 80 42 020 - Telephone 211.22 
102 - 536 20 42 020 - Telephone 77.41 
412 - 537 80 42 020 - Telephone 59.90 
105 - 572 20 42 020 - Telephone 114.67 
101 - 576 80 47 010 - Community Center 57.28 
101 - 576 80 47 070 - City Hall 138.08 

2372 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183569 Gall's LLC 41.50  

001 - 521 20 26 000 - Uniforms/Accessories 41.50 

2373 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183570 Global Equip Company 640.52 

101 - 576 80 31 006 - Operating Sup - City Hall 640.52 

2374 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183571 	Great America Financial Svcs 125.69 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 16 of 311



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG 	0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

03/25/2016 To: 04/13/2016 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	09:43:27 Date: 	04/08/2016 

	

Page: 	4 

Amount Memo 

105 - 572 20 48 020 - Repair/Maintenance-Equip 	125.69 

2375 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183572 	Guardian Security 1,350.00 

001 - 521 20 41 001 - Professional Services 	 210.00 
001 - 522 50 49 050 - Fire/Theft Protection 	 165.00 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 210.00 
101 - 576 80 31 004 - Operating Sup - Comm Cente 	165.00 
101 - 576 80 31 005 - Operating Sup - Senior Ctr 	165.00 
101 - 576 80 31 006 - Operating Sup - City Hall 	270.00 
101 - 576 80 48 015 - Library 	 165.00 

2376 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183573 HB Jaeger Co LLC 1,377.28 

401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 	 1,377.28 

2377 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183574 Hanson Consulting LLC 2,950.00 

001 - 558 70 41 010 - Professional Services 	 2,950.00 

2378 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183575 Glenn Hoff 159.50 

001 - 515 93 41 000 - Indigent Defender 	 110.00 
001 - 515 93 41 000 - Indigent Defender 	 11.00 
001 - 515 93 41 000 - Indigent Defender 	 22.00 
001 - 515 93 41 001 - Indigent Defense Conflict Coi 	16.50 

2379 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183576 Home Depot Credit Services 4,059.60 

101 -576 80 48 016 - City Hall 	 259.32 
101 - 594 76 31 000 - Buildings & Structures 	 586.55 
101 - 594 76 31 000 - Buildings & Structures 	3,213.73 

2380 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183577 Elvin Ray Houser 10,000.00 

101 - 591 76 75 000 - Note Payable - Houser 	10,000.00 

2381 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183578 	Rosaria Ibanez 725.00 

101 - 362 40 00 000 - Community Center Rental 	-525.00 
101 - 362 40 02 000 - Community Center Cleaning 	-200.00 

2382 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183579 Ingram Library Services 274.67 

105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 31.67 
105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 219.49 
105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 23.51 

2383 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183580 JM Construction & Drywall, 
LLC 

5,695.25 

101 - 594 76 31 000 - Buildings & Structures 	5,695.25 

2384 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183581 	Language Exch Inc (The) 248.00 

001 - 512 50 41 040 - Language Interpreter 	 248.00 

2385 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183582 Rhonda Lasley 77.96 

001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/Operating Supplies 	50.96 
001 - 521 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel 	 27.00 

2386 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183583 Lochner 26,166.55 

104 - 595 10 63 010 - Eng Fruitdale 	 21,244.65 
104 - 595 10 63 040 - Eng-SR9 Jameson 	 4,921.90 

2387 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183584 Motor Trucks Inc 1,640.88 

412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 283.19 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 143.89 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 -78.95 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 756.20 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 430.18 
103 - 542 30 48 010 - Repair/Maintenance-Equip 	106.37 

2388 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183585 Mph Industries Inc 1,079.58 

001 - 594 21 64 000 - Machinery & Equipment 	1,079.58 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 17 of 311



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

03/25/2016 To: 04/13/2016 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	09:43:27 Date: 	04/08/2016 

	

Page: 	5 

Amount Memo 

2389 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183586 Municipal Emergency Services 72.70 
Inc 

001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/Maint-Equip 	 72.70 

2390 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183587 Municipal Reseearcb & Svc 120.00 
Center 

001 - 595 10 49 000 - Dues/Memberships 	 120.00 

2391 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183588 Nelson Petroleum 500.22 

001 - 522 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 500.22 

2392 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183589 Tony Niskanen 221.00 

001 - 524 20 43 000 - Travel/Meals 	 188.99 
001 - 524 20 43 000 - Travel/Meals 	 32.01 

2393 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183590 North Central Laboratories 107.74 

401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 107.74 

2394 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183591 	North Hill Resources Inc 467.42 

103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 467.42 

2395 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183592 Office Depot 113.03 

001 - 524 20 31 000 - Off/Oper Supps & Books 	 1.50 
001 - 558 60 31 000 - Supplies/Books 	 35.27 
001 - 595 10 31 000 - Supplies 	 76.26 

2396 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183593 Oliver-Hammer Clothes 162.73 

001 - 521 20 26 000 - Uniforms/Accessories 	 162.73 

2397 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183594 P & P Excavating LLC 5,537.44 

401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 	 5,537.44 

2398 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183595 	Pacific Style Lawn Maint. Inc. 1,302.00 

101 - 576 80 31 100 - Fertilizer/Herbicide 	 1,302.00 

2399 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183596 Petty Cash-Debra Peterson 85.20 

105 - 572 20 31 010 - Supplies 	 58.02 
105 - 572 20 34 001 - Early Literacy Program 	 26.00 
105 - 572 20 42 010 - Postage 	 1.18 

2400 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183597 Pigskin Uniforms 558.78 

001 - 521 20 26 000 - Uniforms/Accessories 	 558.78 

2401 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183598 	Platt 167.44 

401 - 535 50 48 050 - Maint Of General Equip 	 167.44 

2402 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183599 	Public Utility Dis Nol 103.54 

401 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 103.54 

2403 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183600 Puget Sound Energy 70,743.88 

001 - 521 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 141.52 
001 - 522 50 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 123.38 
425 - 531 50 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 166.48 
401 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 11,155.24 
102 - 536 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 58.35 
412 - 537 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 142.15 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 83.59 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 7.34 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 148.46 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 53,997.55 
108 - 557 30 41 000 - Advertising 	 20.38 
105 - 572 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 332.99 
101 - 576 80 47 000 - Riverfront 	 698.14 
101 - 576 80 47 010 - Community Center 	 169.29 
101 - 576 80 47 020 - Senior Center 	 394.47 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 18 of 311



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

03/25/2016 To: 04/13/2016 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	09:43:27 Date: 	04/08/2016 

	

Page: 	6 

Amount Memo 

101 - 576 
101 - 576 
101 - 576 
101 - 576 
101 - 576 
101 - 576 
101 - 576 

80 
80 
80 
80 
80 
80 
80 

47 
47 
47 
47 
47 
47 
47 

040 - Train 	 43.12 
050 - Hammer Square 	 167.31 
051 - Bingham / Memorial 	 205.88 
052 - Bingham Caretaker 	 120.91 
052 - Bingham Caretaker 	 17.13 
053 - Other Utilities 	 10.81 
070 - City Hall 	 2,539.39 

2404 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183601 Rene's World 32.55 

401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 32.55 

2405 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183602 Ricoh USA Inc 215.87 

001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 	 107.93 
001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/Maint-Equip 	 107.94 

2406 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183603 Right Way Plumbing 595.80 

412 - 537 50 48 010 - Repairs/Maint-Building 	595.80 

2407 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183604 Safety Meeting Outlines 122.00 

401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 41.00 
412 - 537 80 49 010 - Misc-Dues/Subs & Tuitn/Reg 	40.00 
103 - 542 30 35 010 - Safety Equipment 	 41.00 

2408 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183605 Saunderson Marketing Group 424.87 

001 - 558 70 41 010 - Professional Services 	 424.87 

2409 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183606 	Scientific Supply 225.58 

401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 225.58 

2410 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183607 Sedro-Woolley Auto Parts 619.37 

001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/Maint-Equip 	 14.28 
001 - 523 20 31 000 - Office/Operating Supplies 	 8.79 
401 - 535 50 48 050 	Maint Of General Equip 	 11.85 
401 - 535 50 48 050 - Maint Of General Equip 	 14.65 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 11.92 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maim-equip 	 111.97 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 98.21 
412 - 537 80 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 77.86 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 113.63 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 3.69 
103 - 542 30 48 010 - Repair/Maintenance-Equip 	60.35 
103 - 542 30 48 010 - Repair/Maintenance-Equip 	40.10 
501 - 548 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 52.07 

2411 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183608 Sedro-Woolley Riding Club 300.00 

001 - 513 10 42 000 	Communication 	 300.00 

2412 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183609 Sedro-Woolley Volunteer 15,419.00 

001 - 522 20 11 010 - Salaries-Volunteers 	 15,419.00 

2413 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183610 	Shred It 109.08 

001 - 512 50 31 000 - Supplies 	 22.39 
001 - 514 23 31 000 - Supplies 	 22.39 
001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/Operating Supplies 	44.78 
001 - 524 20 31 000 - OfflOper Supps & Books 	 6.51 
001 - 558 60 31 000 - Supplies/13ooks 	 6.51 
001 - 595 10 31 000 - Supplies 	 6.50 

2414 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183611 	Skagit Co Dist Court 1,950.00 

001 - 512 50 51 000 - Municipal Court Prob. 	1,950.00 

2415 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183612 	Skagit Co District Court 1,976.50 

001 - 512 50 51 001 - District Court Surcharge 	1,976.50 

2416 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183613 Skagit Co Public Works 41,976.88 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 19 of 311



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

03/25/2016 To: 04/13/2016 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	09:43:27 Date: 	04/08/2016 

	

Page: 	7 

Amount Memo 

412 - 537 60 47 000 - Solid Waste Disposal 	 41,976.88 

2417 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183614 Skagit County Auditor 12,347.03 

001 - 514 40 51 000 - Election Costs 	 2,728.72 
001 - 514 90 51 000 -Voter Registration Costs 	9,156.31 
401 - 535 80 49 040 - Misc-Filing Fees/Lien Exp 	231.00 
412 - 537 80 49 020 - Misc-Filing Fees/Lien Exp 	231.00 

2418 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183615 Skagit County Treasurer 30,130.85 

114 - 523 60 51 022 -Jail Sales Tax Pass Through 2 	29,981.23 
001 - 586 00 00 001 - Crime Victim & Witnss Prog 	149.62 

2419 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183616 Skagit Farmers Supply 596.91 

412 - 537 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 19.76 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 55.31 
103 - 542 30 31 010 - Operating Supplies-Propane 	19.76 
101 - 576 80 31 100 - Fertilizer/Herbicide 	 7.58 
101 - 576 80 31 100 - Fertilizer/Herbicide 	 494.50 

2420 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183617 	Skagit Fire Chiefs Assoc. 158.00 

001 - 522 20 49 010 - Misc-Dues 	 158.00 

2421 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183618 	Skagit Publishing 1,023.35 

001 - 511 60 31 001 - Legal Publications 	 52.75 
104 - 595 10 63 040 - Eng-SR9 Jameson 	 506.40 
104 - 595 10 63 040 - Eng-SR9 Jameson 	 464.20 

2422 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183619 	Skagit Surveyors & 1,377.50 

001 - 558 60 41 000 - Professional Services 	 1,377.50 

2423 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183620 	Heather Sorsdal-Hirotaka 126.00 

001 - 521 40 43 000 - Travel 	 126.00 

2424 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183621 	Sparkle Shop Laundries 72.17 

001 - 521 20 26 010 - Uniform Cleaning 	 11.94 
001 - 522 20 49 030 - Misc-Laundry 	 60.23 

2425 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183622 	Staples Business Advantage 311.69 

001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/Operating Supplies 	121.31 
001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/Operating Supplies 	57.70 
001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/Operating Supplies 	132.68 

2426 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183623 Sunwheel Design & 1,855.00 
Construction LLC 

401 - 594 35 63 010 - Other Improvements 	 1,855.00 

2427 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183624 Tacoma Screw Products Inc. 489.64 

412 - 537 80 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equip 	77.57 
412 - 537 80 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equip 	412.07 

2428 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183625 Treatment Equipment Co 902.72 

401 - 535 50 48 050 - Maint Of General Equip 	 902.72 

2429 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183626 Truck Toys Inc 114.91 

412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 114.91 

2430 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183627 True Value 247.47 

001 - 523 20 31 000 - Office/Operating Supplies 	34.25 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 9.21 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 26.56 
103 - 542 64 31 002 - Traffic Control Devices 	 25.48 
103 - 542 64 31 002 - Traffic Control Devices 	 16.26 
101 - 576 80 31 000 - Operating Sup - Tesarik Park 	70.49 
101 - 576 80 31 006 - Operating Sup - City Hall 	 13.01 
101 - 576 80 48 004 - Community Center 	 37.94 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 20 of 311



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

03/25/2016 To: 04/13/2016 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	09:43:27 Date: 	04/08/2016 

	

Page: 	8 

Amount Memo 

101 - 576 
101 - 594 

80 
76 

48 
31 

006 - Memorial Park 	 11.92 
000 - Buildings & Structures 	 2.35 

2431 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183628 USA Blue Book 138.93 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 138.93 

2432 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183629 USPS 950.21 
001 - 513 10 42 000 - Communication 	 950.21 

2433 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183630 United Laboratories 967.65 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 285.82 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 173.39 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 508.44 

2434 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183631 	Verizon Wireless 3,131.41 
001 - 513 10 42 020 - Telephone 	 35.81 
001 - 513 10 42 020 - Telephone 	 10.02 
001 - 514 23 42 020 	Telephone 	 55.43 
001 - 515 30 42 001 - Telephone 	 55.43 
001 - 515 30 42 001 - Telephone 	 10.02 
001 - 518 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 59.81 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 922.69 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 103.78 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 502.58 
001 - 522 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 73.32 
001 - 522 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 283.16 
001 - 524 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 55.43 
401 - 535 80 42 030 - Nextel Cell Phones 	 55.43 
401 - 535 80 42 030 - Nextel Cell Phones 	 146.64 
401 - 535 80 42 030 - Nextel Cell Phones 	 44.64 
102 - 536 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 55.43 
102 - 536 20 42 020 - Telephone 	 18.33 
412 - 537 80 42 025 - Nextel Cell Phones 	 221.72 
412 - 537 80 42 025 - Nextel Cell Phones 	 22.91 
412 - 537 80 42 025 - Nextel Cell Phones 	 10.02 
103 - 542 30 42 020 - Telephone 	 75.42 
101 - 576 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 110.86 
101 - 576 80 42 020 - Telephone 	 73.32 
001 - 595 10 42 025 - Cell Phones 	 110.86 
001 - 595 10 42 025 - Cell Phones 	 18.35 

2435 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183632 WA St Dept Of Prof Licen 345.00 
001 - 521 20 51 000 - Intergov Svc-Gun Permits 	111.00 
001 - 521 20 51 000 - Intergov Svc-Gun Permits 	234.00 

2436 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183633 WA St Dept Of Retirement 26.82 
001 - 521 20 22 001 - Social Security 	 26.82 

2437 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183634 WA St Dept Of Trans 264.59 

104 - 595 10 63 040 - Eng-SR9 Jameson 	 264.59 

2438 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183635 WA St Off Of Treasurer 8,994.22 
001 - 386 90 00 000 - State Remittances-Court 	-8,994.22 

2439 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183636 Washington State Patrol 570.00 
001 - 521 10 51 040 - Access Fees 	 534.00 
105 - 572 20 41 000 - Professional Services 	 12.00 
101 - 576 80 49 020 - Misc-Dues/CDL/Background 	24.00 

2440 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183637 Washington Tractor 295.08 

102 - 536 20 48 040 - Repair/Maint-Equip & Bldg 	28.97 
102 - 597 00 02 102 - Fleet M&O 	 266.11 

2441 04/13/2016 Claims 2 	183638 Widener And Associates 1,254.40 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 21 of 311



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 	 03/25/2016 To: 04/13/2016 

Trans Date 	Type 	Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	09:43:27 Date: 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

04/08/2016 
9 

104 - 595 10 63 040 - Eng-SR9 Jameson 	 627.20 
104 - 595 10 63 075 - Eng SR20 Cascade Trail Phas 	627.20 

2442 	04/13/2016 	Claims 	2 	183639 Wood's Logging Supply Inc 

102 - 536 20 35 000 - Small Tools/Minor Equip 	 6.31 
101 - 576 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 10.02 
101 - 576 80 48 021 - Equipment 	 27.13 

43.46 

001 Current Expense Fund 61,498.48 
101 Parks & Facilities Fund 32,422.92 
102 Cemetery Fund 530.75 
103 Street Fund 56,651.86 
104 Arterial Street Fund 28,874.49 
105 Library Fund 1,127.49 
108 Lodging Tax Fund 20.38 
114 Law Enforcement Sales Tax 29,981.23 
304 Transportation Benefit District 20.00 
401 Sewer Operations Fund 36,963.18 
412 Solid Waste Operations Fund 47,853.01 
425 Stormwater Operations 409.37 
501 Equipment Replacement Fund 52.07 

296,405.23 Claims: 
* Transaction Has Mixed Revenue And Expense Accounts 296,405.23 

CERTIFICATION: I, the undersigned do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that the materials have 
been furnished, the services rendered or the labor performed as described and that the claim is a due and 
unpaid obligation against the City of Sedro-Woolley and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify 
to said claim. 

Finance Director 	 Date 

Finance Committee Member 	 Date 

Finance Committee Member 	 Date 

Finance Committee Member 	 Date 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 22 of 311



CITY COUNCIL 
WORKSESSION 

APR 0 6 2016 

ENDA ITEM 	6  

 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

  

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

2ND READING 
	Director of Public Works 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Keith Wagoner 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 	 Proposed Ordinance 	-16 
Speed Limit Revision on SR9 from South City Limits to SR 20 

DATE: 	March 31, 2016 (for Council review April 6, 2016) 

ISSUE 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL _c_RAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	c4-  

Shall Council adopt Ordinance 	-16 replacing the first paragraph of SWMC Chapter 10.64.120 to 
revise the speed limit to 40 miles per hour from the south city limits at SR 9 mile post 55.45 to SR 9 mile 
post 55.89, the intersection of SR 9 and SR 20? 

BACKGROUND/RECOMMENDATION: 

Chapter 10.64 of the Municipal Code includes 10.64.120 setting speed limits on SR 9 within the city. The 
first paragraph sets the speed limit from the south city limits at SR 9 mile post 55.45 to the SR 9 - SR 20 
intersection at 35 miles per hour. WSDOT has jurisdiction on the state routes within the city, and has set 
speed limits of 50 mph from the south city limits to SR 9 MP 55.67, and 40 mph from MP 55.67 to the SR 
9 - SR 20 intersection at SR 9 MP 55.89. 

As part of the design for the Jameson project, the city requested a speed revision for the 50 mph zone to 
support the new roundabout intersection at MP 55.45. WSDOT has agreed to lower the speed limit from 
900 feet south of the city limits to MP 55.67, which will result in a consistent speed zone on SR 9 in this 
vicinity. The roundabout itself will be posted with an advisory speed limit of 20 mph, which is the design 
speed for the roundabout and the approaches. Combined with the 40 mph speed zone change, this will 
result in a much safer travel speed in this high accident vicinity. 

The attached Ordinance 	-16 revises the first paragraph of SWMC Chapter 10.64.120 to revise the 
speed limit from the south city limits to SR 20 (which includes the section to MP 55.67) to 40 mph. 

MOTION 

Move to adopt Ordinance 	-16 replacing the first paragraph of SWMC Chapter 10.64.120 to 
revise the speed limit to 40 miles per hour from the south city limits at SR 9 mile post 55.45 to SR 
9 mile post 55.89, the intersection of SR 9 and SR 20. 

2016-4-6 Proposed Ordinance - SR9 Speed Change r (2).doc 	 3/31/2016 12:23:25 PM Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 23 of 311



Ordinance No. XXXX-16 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SWMC 10.64.120, CLARIFING THE SPEED LIMITS FOR 
WASHINGTON STATE ROUTE NINE (SR-9) FROM THE SOUTH CITY LIMITS OF THE 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY TO WASHINGTON STATE ROUTE NINE (SR-9) MILE 
POST 55.67. 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) sets and controls 
speed limits on State Routes within the city limits; and 

WHEREAS, the speed limit on Washington State Route Nine (SR-9) between the south city 
limits at SR- mile post 55.45 and SR-9 Milepost 55.67 has been maintained by WSDOT at 50 
miles per hour; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley has requested that the speed limit be lowered from 50 
miles per hour to 40 miles per hour on this section of SR-9, and WSDOT has consented to that 
change. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Sectionl. 	Speed Limit Changed. SWMC 10.64.120, paragraph one is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

10.64.120 	Washington State Route Nine. 

On Washington State Route Nine, (SR-9), from the south city limits (SR-9 mile post 55.45) to 
the intersection of Washington State Route Twenty (SR-20  mile post 64.81) and Washington 
State Route Nine (SR-9  mile post 55.89), the speed limit shall be forty miles per hour. 

Section 2. Severability. If any provision, section, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to 
be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 
whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective five (5) days after its passage 
and publication and upon approval by the Washington State Department of Transportation as 
required by law. 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY THIS 13TH  DAY OF 
APRIL, 2016 AND SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION OF ITS PASSAGE THIS 13TH  DAY OF 
APRIL 2016. 

MAYOR 
Attest: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 24 of 311



City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 25 of 311



On Washington State Route Nine (SR-9) from the intersection of Washington State Route 
Twenty (SR-20), and Washington State Route Nine (SR-9) at Township and Moore Street, north 
along SR-9 to the intersection with MeGarigle Road (SR-9 mile post 57.43), the speed limit shall 
be twenty-five miles per hour, except when otherwise posted as a school zone. 

On Washington State Route Nine (SR-9) from the intersection with McGarigle Road, (SR-9 mile 
post 57.43) to the north city limits (SR-9 mile post 58.24) along SR-9, the speed limit shall be 
thirty-five miles per hour. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 26 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 9 82 84 
Phone (360) 855-0771 

Fax (360) 855-0733 

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

Director of Public Works 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Keith Wagoner 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 	 Possible Bid Award 
Public Works Agreement No. 2016-PW-17 — 2016 Annual On-Call Plumbing Services 

DATE: 
	

March 28, 2016 (for Council action April 13, 2016) 

ISSUE 
Should Mayor Wagoner execute the attached Public Works Agreement No. 2016-PW-17 - 2016 Annual Plumbing On-
Call Services? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
The city closed bids on March 22, 2016 under the MRSC Small Works Roster process for the following contract: 

• 	2016 Annual Plumbing On-Call Services 

Our bid tabulation is attached. 

This contract will provide labor, materials and equipment for miscellaneous on-call type repairs to city facilities for 
plumbing services. The basis for bid comparison was a typical one day service call based on contractor proposed 
hourly rates. Staff also considered the ability of the contractor to respond, available equipment and references in the 
determination of the low bidder. 

Contract 	Contractor 	 Not-to-Exceed Total 
2016-PW-17 	Blythe Plumbing & Heating Inc. of Bellingham, WA 	 $10,000.00 

FINANCE 
The work will be generally funded as follows: 
521.20.48.000.001 - Repairs & Maintenance — Police Evidence Room $6,000 
522.20.48.000.001 - Repairs & Maintenance — Equipment - $35,000 
522.50.48.030.001 - Repairs & Maintenance — Station 2 - $3,500 
576.80.48.009.101 - Repairs & Maintenance — Hammer Square - $5,500 
576.80.48.016.101 - Repairs & Maintenance — City Hall - $22,500 
535.50.48.000.401 - Maintenance Contracts - $34,000 

The individual contract is issued as not to exceed the amount as shown. Individual Task Orders will be issued for 
work as needed, and will include negotiated lump sum or not to exceed estimates. Actual amounts will vary 
depending on repairs and quantities needed. 

MOTION: 

Move to authorize Mayor Wagoner to execute the attached Public Works Agreement No. 2016-PW-17 for 2016 
Annual Plumbing On-Call Services as detailed above. 

2016-04-13 2016-PW-17 annual plumbing on-call.doc 	1 of 1 	 4 8 2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 27 of 311



CITY  OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY  

BID OPENING:  March 22,  2016,  2:00PM 

O
 

C
oi 

O
 

Ln 
a) 
>- 

Co

O
  

CB 

 
(
DE

 
E

 

C O
 2

 
 
O
 

C
  

Co 
a_ 

C] 
0
  C

 
2

 
>

, 0
 

 
as 	

a
.

---  
77 

• 
a) a) 

coO 
,L)  

to 
E

 
2̀13  

E CL) 

CO 
- 

• 
I.- a

j 

C13  
• 

°
 

(./.) 
(1) 	

•
 

Co 
C

.) 	
ILI 

2
 c

 
cf) 
f
Y

 
0

 
o

 
2

 
Z

 
r
 
3

 

in 
C
 

O
 

Co O
 

a) 
-o

 
Co 

(r) 
C
 

O
 

U.
 

 

Cll 
C
 

0
 

Ct_ 

D
 
C
 

-1
7
  

0
 

C
 

0
 

Co 
N

 

0
 

O
 

a) 
0
 

Co O
   

N
 

0
 

2
 

a) 

O
 

Ln 

a
) 

0
 

. _ 
1.E 

0
 

a) 

C
 

O
  

N
 

O
 

E
 

-o 
a)  C 
O
 

.N
 

0
 

O
 

unless  agreed  to  otherwise.  

2016 On-Call Plumbing  BIds.xls  

CPI Plumbing  & Heating  

Mount  Vernon,  WA 

TOTAL 

O
 

O
 

c\i 

340.00 

0
 

C
 

139.00 100'009  

125.00 
2,216.00  

188.36  w
 

ce) 
•ct: 
o

  

N
 

RATE 

O
 

0
 

CA 
C

O
 

1—
 

o
 

C
D

 
6

 
r"-- 
1—

 
. 	. 
C

.) 
C

 c) 
0
 . 

cs) 
C

O
 

T
.  c) 
0
 . 

a
 

0
 

L
n

 

0.25 

Blythe  Plumbing  &  Heating  Inc.  

	 Bellingham,  WA 

TOTAL  

0
 

0
 

O
 

0
) 

352.50  

L
i 

c
 

d
 

c
 

500.00  

cZ
) 

a
 

Lc) 
1-- 

C
o

 
ID

 
(Ni 
•rr 
cr) 
,
 165.11  

r
 

C
D

 
r-: 
0

 
T- 
c
i 

I—
 

<
 

ae 

O
 

Lc) 
r--: 
..,—. 

	 176.25  1 

(..5 
c
 

_ _ 
Li 
c
  

500.00  
	0.30 I 

t.----  
Contractor  Name:   

UNIT  
Hours   
Hours   
Hours   _] ci) _1 0

 
_1 0 

QUANTITY  
8.00  co 

C
D

 
C

V
 

10.00  00'1,  

c) 
C

D
 . 

N--  

0
 

0
 . 

C
D

 
C

D
 

LC) 

ITEM  
Journeyman  Plumber,  Straight  Time   
Journeyman  Plumber,  Overtime   
Service  Truck with Tools   
Mobilization/Demobilization  (if not  incl in  hourly  rate)   
Materials  (bid allowance)   
Markup  on  Materials  at Contractor  rate   
SUBTOTAL 1 
WASHINGTON  STATE  SALES  TAX AT 8.5%  
TOTAL  —1 

 

O
 

z
 

U
) 

a) 
>- 

 
 

 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 28 of 311



PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 2016-PW-17 

Project Name: 2016 Annual Plumbing On-Call Services 

The City of Sedro-Woolley, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington (hereinafter the 
"City"); and Blythe Plumbing & Heating Inc., 2201 Humbolt Street, Bellingham, WA 98225, 
(hereinafter the "Contractor") hereby agree as follows: 

I. THE PROJECT: The Contractor agrees to complete the following project, utilizing the 
best available materials and labor, and in accordance with bid specifications and contractor's 
proposal (if any), project plans and technical specifications: 

Project description: To provide for the repair and maintenance of plumbing systems for the 
City of Sedro-Woolley per the "Invitation to Bid" 

II. GENERAL CONDITIONS: The General Conditions of this agreement are the 
Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction, Current Edition, issued by 
the State of Washington and the APWA, modified as follows: 

A. Definitions and Terms: 
1. Whenever the terms "Washington State Transportation Commission", -State 

Department of Transportation", or variations of same are used in the Standard specifications, 
they shall be construed to mean "City of Sedro-Woolley-  or "Owner-. 

2. Where references are made to the "State Treasurer-, the term shall be 
construed to mean the City's "Finance Director-. 

3. Where the term "Secretary of Transportation" or "District Administrator' are 
used, the terms shall be construed to mean the duly authorized representative of the City. 

B. Project Manager: The term "engineer-  is understood to be the City's Project 
Manager, who is the City's representative to the Contractor for all purposes under this 
agreement. The City designates Nathan Salseina, Public Works Operations Lead as its 
Project Manager. Contractor designates 	  as its Project 
Manager. 

C. Business License: A City Business License is required, and Contractor and Sub-
Contractors are responsible for payment of the taxes imposed thereunder. 

D. Taxes: Contractor is responsible for payment of all applicable taxes, including state 
sales tax on those projects subject to it. Taxes are deemed to be included in the amounts 
invoiced to the City. 

E. Bonding Requirements: The City requires the following bonds; combination 
documents, cash deposits, or assigned savings accounts are acceptable alternatives: 

1. Bid Bond: 5%, if the work is subject to bid procedures; 
2. Contract bond in the form made a part of this agreement. In lieu thereof for 

projects of $35,000 or less, at the contractor's option, retainage of 50% will be held until 
releasable under RCW 39.08.010. 

F. Insurance: The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under 
automobile and vehicle liability insurance covering claims for injuries to members of the 
public and/or damages to property of others arising from use of motor vehicles, including onsite 
and offsite operations, and owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles, and general comprehensive 
liability insurance covering the work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and with 
policy limits in such amounts ($1 Million minimum) as are acceptable to the City. 
2016-PW-17 Blythe Plumbing & Heating Inc PW Agreement.doe 	1 61'8 	 4 82016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 29 of 311



The Contractor agrees to name the City as an additional insured when obtaining liability 
insurance and to provide a Certificate of Insurance to this effect. 

G. Traffic Control: The Contractor shall furnish all flagging and maintain all 
temporary traffic control signs and devices necessary to control traffic during construction 
operations at all locations. Traffic control plans and traffic control signs and devices shall 
conform to the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices as adopted by the State of 
Washington, and shall be approved in advance by the City. Unless provided for specifically in 
the contract, no additional compensation will be made for traffic control. 

III. PAYMENT 
A. The maximum payable hereunder is $10,000.00 
B. Individual Task Orders will specify the method of compensation, which will be on a 

Time & Expense Not to Exceed basis per rates established in Exhibit A, Labor and Equipment 
Rate Sheet, or agreed Lump Sum Price. 

C. The Contractor will be paid on the basis of invoices for work satisfactorily 
completed. Invoices are submitted to the Project Manager for approval prior to payment. No 
final payment shall be made until the project is accepted by the City. 

D. Prior to any payment hereunder, contractor is responsible for complying with 
applicable Department of Labor and Industries and Department of Revenue requirements and 
procedures. (General conditions section 1-07.9. If Federal Funds, Davis-Bacon Act and U. S. 
Department of Labor requirements.) This includes obtaining and timely filing of Intent to Pay 
Prevailing Wages, Affidavit of Wages paid, Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract, and 
any other required documents. 

E. Retainage will be administered in accordance with RCW 60.28.011. 

IV. SCOPE OF PROJECT, TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND CONDITIONS OF 
WORK: 

A. Term of contract: contractor shall begin work as soon as is practicable and will 
complete work on or before February 28, 2017 

B. To the extent not inconsistent with this agreement, this contract includes the 
Invitation to Bid and Proposal, and contract plans and specifications, all incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

C. Scope of project: To provide for the repair and maintenance of plumbing systems 
for the City of Sedro-Woolley per the "Invitation to Bid" dated March 8, 2016. 

D. Joinder in Arbitration Proceedings. If the City and any third party agree to binding 
arbitration as the method of dispute resolution between them and their claims or any of them 
arise out of or are related to Contractor's services, Contractor agrees to be joined in such 
arbitration proceeding as a party and that the Arbitrator(s) decision therein shall be final and 
binding on Contractor and judgment may be entered upon it in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

E. Indemnification. 
1. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from and 

against any claim, damages, losses, liability or expense arising out of its breach of contract or 
negligence. 

2. Contractor's duty to indemnify City shall not apply to liability for damages 
arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage caused to property caused by or resulting from 
the sole negligence of City or City's agents or employees. 

3. Contractor's duty to indemnify City for liability for damages arising out of 
bodily injury or damage to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of (a) 
City or City's agents or employees. (b) Contractor and Contractor's agents or employees, or (c) 

2016-PW-17 Blythe Plumbing S.: Heating Inc PW Agreement.doc 	2 of 8 	 4'8 2016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 30 of 311



any third parties shall apply only to the extent of negligence of Contractor or Contractor's agents 
or employees. 

4. Contractor specifically and expressly waives any immunity that may be granted 
it under the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act, Title 51 RCW. Further, the 
indemnification obligation under this AGREEMENT shall not be limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable to or for any 
third party under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit 
acts; provided Contractor's waiver of immunity by the provisions of this paragraph extends only 
to claims against Contractor by City, and not include, or extend to, any claims by Contractor's 
employees directly against Contractor. 

5. Contractor's duty to defend, indemnify, and hold City harmless shall include, 
as to all claims, demands, losses, and liabilities to which it applies City's personnel-related costs, 
attorneys' fees, and all other costs whether or not taxable by statute or court rule. 

F. Attorneys Fees. The prevailing party in any litigation of any dispute arising out of 
this agreement shall be entitled to its actual attorneys fees incurred and all costs of such litigation 
(including expert witness fees) in addition to any costs otherwise taxable by statute or court rule. 

G. MRSC Roster Registration. If required, the Contractor shall register or maintain 
registration on the MRSC Small Works Contractor Roster. 

H. Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. Have you retired under 
the 2008 early retirement factors? Yes 	No 	N/A 

I. Debarment. Contractor represents and agrees that it is not listed on any state or 
federal debarment list and further agrees that none of its sub-contractors are listed on any state or 
federal debarment list. 

EXECUTED, this the 	day of 	 , 201_ , for the 
Contractor, 	  

, Contractor 

EXECUTED, this the 	day of 	 , 201 	, for the 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY: 

Keith Wagoner, Mayor 
Attest: 

Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 

2016-PW-17 Blythe Plumbing & Heating Inc PW Agreement.doc 	3 of 8 	 4'812016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 31 of 311



RETAINAGE INVESTMENT OPTION 

CONTRACTOR: 	 

PROJECT NAME: 

DATE: 

Pursuant to Chapter 60.28 RCW, you may choose how your retainage under this contract will be 
held and invested. Please complete and sign this form indicating your preference. If you fail to 
do so, the City of Sedro-Woolley (City) will hold your retainage as described in "Current 
Expense", option 1 below. 

1. Current Expense: The City will retain your money in its Current Expense Fund 
Account until thirty days following final acceptance of the improvement or work 
as completed. You will not receive interest earned on this money. 

2. Interest Bearing Account: The City will deposit retainage checks in an interest-
bearing account in a bank, mutual savings bank, or savings and loan association, 
not subject to withdrawal until after the final acceptance of the improvement or 
work as completed or until agreed to by both parties. Interest on the account will 
be paid to you. 

3. Escrow / Investments: The City will place the retainage checks in escrow with a 
bank or trust company until thirty days following the final acceptance of the 
improvement or work as completed. When the monies reserved are to be placed 
in escrow, the City will issue a check representing the sum of the monies reserve 
payable to the bank or trust company and you jointly. This check will be 
converted into bonds and securities chosen by you and approved by the City and 
these bonds and securities will be held in escrow. Interest on these bonds and 
securities will be paid to you as interest accrues. Selection of this option requires 
an escrow agreement to be completed by the contractor. The City of Sedro-
Woolley will provide the form for use by the contractor. If the contractor elects to 
use the Escrow Investment option, please complete attached Escrow Agreement. 

2016-PW-17 Blythe Pluinhing S.: Heating lnc PW Agreernent.doc 	4 of 8 	 4 8 2016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 32 of 311



BONDS AND SECURITIES ACCEPTABLE BY THE CITY OF SEDRO-
WOOLLEY:  

I . 	Bills, certificates, notes or bonds of the United States. 
2. Other obligations of the United States or its agencies. 
3. Indebtedness of the Federal national Mortgage Association. 
4. Time Deposits in commercial banks. 

Designate below the type of investment selected: 

	4. 	Bond-in-Lieu:  With the consent of the City, the contractor may submit a bond for 
all or any portion of the amount of funds retained by the City in a form acceptable 
to the City and from a bonding company meeting standards established by the 
City, if any. Unless otherwise indicated, the contractor elects to submit a bond for 
the entire 5% retainage amount. Such bond and any proceeds there from shall be 
made subject to all claims and liens and in the same manner and priority as set 
forth for retained percentages in Chapter 60.28 RCW. Whenever the City accepts 
a bond-in-lieu of retained funds from a contractor, the contractor shall accept like 
bonds from any subcontractors or suppliers from which the contractor has 
retained funds. The contractor shall then release the funds retained from the 
subcontractor or supplier, to the subcontractor or supplier, within thirty days of 
the contractor's receipt of the retained funds from the City. 

Retainage is normally released 30 - 45 days after final acceptance of work by the City, or 
following receipt of Labor and Industries / Department of Revenue clearance, whichever takes 
longer. 

(Contractor's Signature) 	 Date 

Title 

2016-PW-17 Blythe Plumbing & Heating Inc PW Agreement.doc 	5 of 8 	 4,8,2016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 33 of 311



RETAINAGE ACCOUNT 

CITY 

ESCROW AGREEMENT / INTEREST BEARING ACCOUNT 

TO: 
Bank or Trust Company 

Branch 

Attn: 

Street Address 

City, State, Zip 

The undersigned 	 hereinafter 
referred to as the Contractor, has directed the City of Sedro-Woolley, hereinafter referred to as the City, to 
deliver to you its warrants or checks which shall be payable to you and the Contractor jointly. Such 
warrants or checks are to be held and disposed of by you in accordance with the following instructions 
and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

INSTRUCTIONS 

1. The City shall deliver to you from time to time warrants or checks payable jointly to you and the 
Contractor. You are hereby authorized by the Contractor to endorse in the Contractor's name any such 
warrant or check so that you may receive the proceeds thereof and invest the same. The power of 
endorsement hereby granted to you by the Contractor shall be deemed a power coupled with an interest 
and shall be irrevocable during the term of this escrow / interest bearing account. Although you may be a 
payee named in such warrants or checks as shall be delivered to you, your duties and responsibilities with 
respect to the same shall be only those duties and responsibilities which a depository bank would have 
pursuant to Article 4 of the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of Washington for an item deposited 
with it for collection as of the date such warrant or check shall be delivered to you. The proceeds from 
collections shall be used by you to purchase, as directed by the Contractor, bonds or other securities 
chosen by the Contractor and approved by you, and the City. For the purpose of each such purchase, you 
may follow the last written direction received by you from the Contractor, provided such direction 
otherwise conforms with the restrictions on investments recited herein. A list of such bonds, or other 
securities approved by the City are indicated on the Retainage Investment Option form. No further 
approval is necessary if any of these bonds or securities are selected by the Contractor. Other bonds or 
securities, except stocks, may be selected by the Contractor, subject to express written approval of you 
and the City. Purchase of such bonds or other securities shall be in a form which shall allow you alone to 
reconvert such bonds or other securities into money if you are required to do so by the City as provided in 
Paragraph 4 of the Escrow Agreement. 

The investments selected by the Contractor, approved by the City and purchased by you must mature on 
or prior to the date set for the completion of the contract, including extensions thereof or thirty days 
following the final acceptance of said improvement or work. 
2016-PW-17 Blythe Plumbing & Heating Inc PW Agreement.doc 	6 of 8 	 4/8,2016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 34 of 311



2. When and as interest on the securities held by you pursuant to this agreement accrues and is paid, you 
shall collect such interest and forward it to the Contractor at its address designated below unless with your 
written consent you are otherwise directed in writing by the Contractor. 

3. You are not authorized to deliver to the Contractor all or any part of the securities held by you pursuant 
to this agreement (or any monies derived from the sale of such securities, or the negotiation of the City's 
warrants or checks) except in accordance with written instructions from the City. The City shall inform 
you and keep you informed in writing of the name of the person or persons with authority to give you 
such written instructions. Compliance with such instruction shall relieve you of any further liability 
related thereto. The estimated completion date on the contract underlying this Escrow / Interest Bearing 
Account Agreement is 	 . Upon request by you, the City shall advise you in 
writing of any change in the estimated completion date. If the estimated completion date is changed, you 
are authorized to reinvest the monies held hereunder in accordance with the new estimated completion 
date. 

4. In the event the City orders you to do so in writing, and notwithstanding any other provisions of this 
agreement you shall, within thirty-five (35) days of receipt of such order, reconvert into money the 
securities held by you pursuant to this agreement and return such money together with any other monies, 
including accrued interest on such securities, held by you hereunder, to the City. 

5. The Contractor agrees to pay you as compensation for your services hereunder as follows: 

Payment of all fees shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor and shall not be deducted from any 
property placed with you pursuant to this agreement until and unless the City directs the release to the 
Contractor of the securities and monies held hereunder whereupon you shall be granted a first lien upon 
such property released and shall be entitled to reimburse yourself from such property for the entire 
amount of your fees and any amounts which might be owing as provided for herein. In the event that you 
are made a party to any litigation with respect to the property held by you hereunder, or in the event that 
the conditions of this escrow are not promptly fulfilled or that you are required to render any services not 
provided for in these instructions, or that there is any assignment of the interest of this escrow or any 
modifications hereof, you shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for such extraordinary services 
from the Contractor and reimbursement from the Contractor for all costs and expenses, including attorney 
fees occasioned by such default, delay, controversy or litigations. 

6. Should you at any time and for any reason desire to be relieved of your obligations as escrow or 
interest bearing account holder hereunder, you shall give written notice to the City and Contractor. The 
City and Contractor shall, within 20 days of the receipt of such notice, jointly appoint a successor escrow 
holder and instruct you to deliver all securities and funds held hereunder to said successor. If you are not 
notified of the appointment of the successor escrow holder within 20 days, you may return the subject 
matter hereof to the City and upon doing, it absolves you from all further charges and obligations in 
connection with this escrow or interest bearing account. 

7. This agreement shall not be binding until executed by the Contractor and City and accepted by you. 

8. This instrument contains the entire agreement between you, the Contractor and the City with respect to 
this escrow and you are not a party to nor bound by any instrument or agreement other than this; you shall 
not be required to take notice if any default or any other matter, not bound by nor required to give notice 
or demand, nor required to take any action whatever except as herein expressly provided; you shall not be 
liable for any loss or damage not caused by your own negligence or willful misconduct. 

9. The foregoing provisions shall be binding upon the assigns, successors, personal representatives and 
heirs of the parties hereto. 

2016-PW-17 Blythe Plumbing & Heating Inc PW Agreement.doc 	7 of 8 	 4i8,2016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 35 of 311



The undersigned have read and hereby approve the instructions as given above governing the 
administration of this escrow or interest bearing account and do hereby execute this agreement on this 
	 day of 	 , 20 

  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

   

Contractor 	 City 

BY: 	 BY: 	  
Signature & Title 	 Authorized Signature & Title 

Address Address 

City 
	

State 	Zip 	 City 	 State 	Zip 

ATTESTED BY: 

City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 

The above escrow instructions received and accepted this 

 

day of 	 , 20 

 

  

Bank or Trust Company 

    

By: 	  

   

2016-PW-17 Blythe Plumbing & Heating Inc PW Agreement.doc 	8 of 8 	 4'8:2016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 36 of 311



EXHIBIT A 
4 3/22/2016 CITY OF SEDRO:WOOLLEY 

20160N-CALL PLUMBING SERVICES 
LABOR AND EQUIPMENT RATE SHEET  

_Contractor:  Blythe Plumbing  & Heating, Inc 

	 2201 Humboldt St 	 

Bellingham, Wa 98225 

Labor Rates Base Hourly Rate Overtime Hourly Rate 

Journeyman Plumber $117.50 per hour 	$176.25  per hour 

Materials Markup Rate 30% markup  on non-stock items  I 

Standard retail pricing on all inventory items 

Estimated Mobilization/Demobilization Blythe is a time and materials shop, this is included in 

our  hourly service rates  

F 
Equipment Rates 30% on equipment rentals from  vendors 

Standard Blythe owned equipment  rental rates 

Service Truck with tools Not applicable with standard service calls 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 37 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
GENDA NO 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Keith Wagoner 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE  66_ 
RE: 	 Possible Bid Award 

Public Works Agreement No. 2016-PW-18 
2016-2017 Annual Portable Fire Extinguisher and Kitchen Hood Service and Inspection 

DATE: 	March 29, 2016 (for Council action April 13, 2016) 

ISSUE 
Shall council move to award and authorize Mayor Wagoner to execute the attached Public Works Agreement No. 
2016-PW-18 for 2016-2017 Annual Portable Fire Extinguisher and Kitchen Hood Service and Inspection with 
Commercial Fire Protection Inc. of Mount Vernon, WA, in the amount not to exceed $7,000.00? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
The city closed bids on March 18, 2016 under the MRSC Small Works Roster process for the following contract: 

• 	2016-2017 Annual Portable Fire Extinguisher and Kitchen Hood Service and Inspection 

Our Final Bid Comparison is attached. 

This contract will provide an annual service and inspection of portable fire extinguishers and kitchen fire suppression 
systems located throughout the City. The basis for bid comparison was a unit price comparison on known quantities 
of equipment located throughout the City. Staff also considered the ability of the contractor to respond, available 
equipment and references in the determination of the low bidder. 

Contract 	Contractor 	 Not-to-Exceed Total 
2016-PW-18 	Commercial Fire Protection Inc. of Mount Vernon, WA 	 $7,000.00 

FINANCE 
The work will be generally funded as follows: 
522.50.48.030.001 — Fire Station No. 2 - $3,500 
576.80.31. 003.101 — Parks Department - $1,000 
576.80.48.004.101 — Community Center - $2,300 
576.80.48.005.101 — Senior Center - $2,300 
576.80.48.006.101 — City Hall - $8,900 
576.80.48.007.101 — Library - $2,000 
536.20.48.040.102 — Cemetery - $1,000 
542.30.48.010.103 — Street - $24,000 
535.50.48.000.401 — Sewer - $34,000 
537.80.48.000.412 — Solid Waste - $2,000 

The contract is issued as not to exceed" the amount as shown. The actual amount will vary depending on the 
inspection, service, and any necessary repairs or replacements as needed. 

MOTION: 

Move to award and authorize Mayor Wagoner to execute the attached Public Works Agreement No. 2016-PW-
18, 2016-2017 Annual Portable Fire Extinguisher and Kitchen Hood Service and Inspection with Commercial 
Fire Protection Inc. of Mount Vernon, WA, in the amount not to exceed $7,000.00. 

2016-04-13 2016-PW-18 annual fire ext insp.doe 	 3 28 2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 38 of 311



CRT OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 

legaratit. 
City of Sedro-Woolley 
FINAL - BID PROPOSAL COMPARISON 
2016-2017 Annual Portable Fire Extinguisher and Kitchen Hood Service and Inspection 
BID OPENING : MARCH 18, 2018 2:00PM 	1 	 1 

Bidder Name: Commercial Fire Protection Inc. 	Alpine Fire & Safety 

Mount Vernon, WA 	 Burlington, WA 

item Descripticin/FAtIngulsher Class 
Annual 

Maintenance 
5 or 5-Year 

Maintenance 

Hydrostatic Test 
& 5 year art,- 

Year 
Maintenance Recharge 

Estimated 
Annual Quantity Unit Pries Tote] Unit Price Total 

1 2.5# ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 18 5 	 6.95 5 	 125.10 S 	 5.00 5 	 90.00 

2 2.54 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 2 5 	 13.44 5 	 26.88 $ 	 17.45 5 	 34.90 

3 2.54 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher X 4 $ 	 25.58 $ 	 107.52 S 	 31.40 5 	 125.60 

4 2.541 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 1 S 	 13.44 5 	 1344 5 	 17.45 $ 	 17.45 

5 2.5G WP Extinguisher x 2 $ 	 6.95 $ 	 13.90 $ 	 7.95 $ 	 15.90 

6 25G WP Extinguisher X 1 S 	 6.40 $ 	 8.40 $ 	 13.45 5 	 1345 

7 2.5G WP Extinguisher x 1 S 	 23.40 5 	 23.40 $ 	 40.60 5 	 40.60 

8 2.5GWP Ethgulsher X 1 5 	 8.40 $ 	 8.40 5 	 1345 5 	 13.45 

9 2.59 Clean Guard Extinguisher x 2 5 	 6.95 S 	 13.90 $ 	 5.00 3 	 10.00 

10 2.56 Clean Guard Extinguisher x 1 5 	 13.44 $ 	 13.44 5 	 17.45 S 	 17.45 

11 2.5# Clean Guard Extinguisher x 1 5 	 26.88 5 	 26.88 5 	 31.40 5 	 31.40 

12 2.5# Clean Guard Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 13.44 0 	 13.44 5 	 17.45 5 	 17.45 

13 _ 6# ABC Dry Chemical EdinguLeher x 78 5 	 6.95 3 	 542.10 S 	 5.00 $ 	 390.00 

14 5# ABC Dry Chemleal Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 13.44 $ 	 13.44 $ 	 17.45 5 	 17.45 

15 5# ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 13 $ 	 26.88 $ 	 349.44 5 	 31.40 5 	 40820 

16 _ 5it ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 1 S 	 13.44 $ 	 13.44 $ 	 17.45 5 	 1145 

17 5.51E BC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 2 it 	 6.95 5 	 13.90 S 	 5.00 5 	 10.00 

18 5.54 BC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 13.44 $ 	 13.44 $ 	 18.95 5 	 19.95 

19 5.59 BC Dry Chemical Extinguisher a 1 $ 	 2618 S 	 28.88 5 	 34.90 5 	 34.80 

20 5.59 BC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 1 5 	 13.44 5 	 13.44 $ 	 18.95 5 	 18.95 

21 BO ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 4 5 	 695 $ 	 27.80 5 	 5.00 5 	 20.00 

22 6# ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 2 $ 	 13.44 $ 	 26.88 $ 	 13.95 $ 	 27.90 

23 69 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 1 S 	 26.88 5 	 28.88 $ 	 37,90 5 	 37.90 

24 8* ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher 	, a 1 $ 	 13.44 $ 	 13.44 $ 	 13.95 5 	 13.95 

25 1010 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher 4 45 $ 	 6.95 S 	 312.75 S 	 5.00 $ 	 225.00 

28 100 ABC ON Chemical Extinguisher x 1 s 	 14.64 $ 	 14.84 $ 	 2245 5 	 22,45 

27 104 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 1 0 	 2165 5 	 29.68 9 	 38.40 $ 	 38.40 

28 104 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 14.84 5 	 14.84 5 	 22.45 S 	 22.45 

29 204 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 8 S 	 8.96 $ 	 55.60 S 	 5.00 5 	 40.00 

90 200 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher 4 1 5 	 19.04 $ 	 19.04 $ 	 27.45 S 	 27.45 

31 204 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher 4 1 $ 	 38.12 $ 	 98.12 5 	 46.90 $ 	 46.90 

32 204 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 1904 it 	 19.04 5 	 27.45 5 	 27,45 

33 1510 CO2 Extinguisher x 2 $ 	 6.95 5 	 13.90 5 	 5.00 $ 	 10.00 

34 15# CO2 Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 26.25 $ 	 26.25 $ 	 25,70 $ 	 25.70 

35 15# CO2 Extinguisher x 1 S 	 54.50 9 	 54.60 $ 	 60.75 3 	 60.76 

36 15# CO2 Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 2525 $ 	 26.25 5 	 25.70 $ 	 25.70 

37 2.54 Melon Extinguisher x 1 5 	 8.95 $ 	 6.95 $ 	 5.00 5 	 5.00 

38 2.541 Halm Extinguisher x 1 5 	 2722 $ 	 27.27 3 	 33.00 5 	 33.00 

39 2.54 Haim Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 35.50 $ 	 38.50 $ 	 43.45 $ 	 43,45 

40 2.5# Melon Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 30.24 $ 	 3024 5 	 33.00 $ 	 33.00 

41 54 Halos Extinguisher a 5 $ 	 6.95 it 	 34.76 $ 	 5.00 $ 	 25.00 

42 54 Melon Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 3024 5 	 30.24 5 	 38.05 $ 	 55.00 

43 5# Melon Extinguisher x 1 5 	 39.90 5 	 39.90 3 	 47.58 $ 	 47.55 

44 54 Halon Edhguisher 1 $ 	 30.24 $ 	 30.24 $ 	 38.00 $ 	 36.00 

45 134 Malan Extinguisher x 1 $ 	 6.95 $ 	 6.95 5 	 5.00 5 	 6.00 

48 139 Melon Extinguisher a I S 	 41.87 5 	 41.87 $ 	 49.85 $ 	 4985 

47 13# Hokin Extinguisher x 1 S 	 54.39 $ 	 54.39 $ 	 84.75 S 	 64.75 

48 13# Melon Extinguisher x 1 5 	 41.87 5 	 41.87 5 	 49.85 it 	 49.85 

49 

Community Center - Design Magic 
Suppression System w/i0dde Aqua Blue 
Model WHDR-250 Kitchen Hood System 4 1 $ 	 95.00 	$ 	 95.00 	5 	 141.00 	5 	 141.00 

50 
Senior Center - Range Guard Model 4G5 
Kkchen Hood System x 1 $ 	 95.90 	1 	 05,00 	S 	 151.00 	5 	 151.20 

51 lifinhium Service Charge tiappl. 1 5 	 30.00 S 	 30.00 INC 0 

52 Hazardous Materials Charge if appl. 1 N/A 0 INC 0 

53 Fuel Surcharge 0 applicable 1 N/A 0 INC 0 

54 Temper Seal per each if not inctuded 1 INC 0 INC 2 

SUBTOTAL S 	 2,701.86 S 	 2,736.00 

Sales Tex at 8.5% S 	 229.66 $ 	 232.56 

ESTPAATED TOTAL $ 	 7.931.52 9 	 2,968.56 

NOTES: 
1 include any materials in recharge kern. 
2 Contractor must be certified to maxims iced. and Range Guard hood units 
3 barns 51 through 54 are Y applicable' Please indicate 'NA' or 'INC-  If these charges are not applicable or included in base unit prices or otherwise clarify how these apply. 
4 An Excel version of this Bid Proposal Forrn is avalable an request. 

MSC: 

CorrectionstNotes: 
I 

1 

BI 25, 31, a 38 math corrections. BI 49 8 50 add 
518.75 to each for TEGRIS report 5149 8 50 add 025 00 10 each for TEGRIS report 

-- 1 1 1 	 1 

2016-2017 Pre Est Bal Proposal Cornpanson.xls 
	

3/202016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 39 of 311



PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 2016-PW-18 

Project Name: 

2016-2017 Annual Portable Fire Extinguisher and Kitchen Hood Service and Inspection 

The City of Sedro-Woolley, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington (hereinafter the 
"City"); and Commercial Fire Protection Inc., 17199 Bennett Road, Mount Vernon, WA 
98273 (hereinafter the "Contractor") hereby agree as follows: 

I. THE PROJECT: The Contractor agrees to complete the following project, utilizing the 
best available materials and labor, and in accordance with bid specifications and contractor's 
proposal (if any), project plans and technical specifications: 

Project description: Contractor shall provide portable fire extinguisher and kitchen hood 
service and inspections to various City of Sedro-Woolley sites as stated in Invitation to Bid 
dated March 4, 2016, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

II. GENERAL CONDITIONS: The General Conditions of this agreement are the 
Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction, Current Edition, issued by 
the State of Washington and the APWA, modified as follows: 

A. Definitions and Terms: 
1. Whenever the terms "Washington State Transportation Commission", "State 

Department of Transportation", or variations of same are used in the Standard specifications, 
they shall be construed to mean "City of Sedro-Woolley" or "Owner". 

2. Where references are made to the "State Treasurer", the term shall be 
construed to mean the City's "Finance Director". 

3. Where the term "Secretary of Transportation" or "District Administrator" are 
used, the terms shall be construed to mean the duly authorized representative of the City. 

B. Project Manager: The term "engineer" is understood to be the City's Project 
Manager, who is the City's representative to the Contractor for all purposes under this 
agreement. The City designates Nathan Salseina, Public Works Operations Supervisor, 
Phone: 360-661-6492 as its Project Manager. Contractor designates 	 as its 
Project Manager. 

C. Business License: A City Business License is required, and Contractor and Sub-
Contractors are responsible for payment of the taxes imposed thereunder. 

D. Taxes: Contractor is responsible for payment of all applicable taxes, including state 
sales tax on those projects subject to it. Taxes are deemed to be included in the amounts 
invoiced to the City. 

E. Bonding Requirements: Not required. 
F. Insurance: The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under 

automobile and vehicle liability insurance covering claims for injuries to members of the 
public and/or damages to property of others arising from use of motor vehicles, including onsite 
and offsite operations, and owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles, and general comprehensive 
liability insurance covering the work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and with 
policy limits in such amounts ($1 Million minimum) as are acceptable to the City. 

The Contractor agrees to name the City as an additional insured when obtaining liability 
insurance and to provide a Certificate of Insurance to this effect. 

2016-PW-18 Commmercial Fire Protection Inc. PW Agreement.doc 	 1 of 8 
3/29/2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 40 of 311



G. Traffic Control: Not required. 

III. PAYMENT 
A. Unit prices will be paid as per Exhibit B, Commercial Fire Protection Inc. Bid 

Proposal Form attached hereto. The maximum payable hereunder is $7,000.00 for the two 
year period 2016-2017. 

B. The Contractor will be paid on the basis of invoices for work satisfactorily 
completed. Invoices are submitted to the Project Manager for approval prior to payment. No 
final payment shall be made until the project is accepted by the City. 

C. Prior to any payment hereunder, contractor is responsible for complying with 
applicable Depai 	luient of Labor and Industries and Department of Revenue requirements and 
procedures. 

IV. SCOPE OF PROJECT, TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND CONDITIONS OF 
WORK: 

A. Term of contract: contractor shall begin work as soon as is practicable and will 
complete work on or before December 31, 2017. 

B. To the extent not inconsistent with this agreement, this contract includes the 
Invitation to Bid and Proposal, and contract plans and specifications, all incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

C. Scope of project: Contractor shall provide portable fire extinguisher and 
kitchen hood service and inspections to various City of Sedro-Woolley sites as stated in the 
Invitation to Bid dated March 4, 2016. 

D. Joinder in Arbitration Proceedings. If the City and any third party agree to binding 
arbitration as the method of dispute resolution between them and their claims or any of them 
arise out of or are related to Contractor's services, Contractor agrees to be joined in such 
arbitration proceeding as a party and that the Arbitrator(s) decision therein shall be final and 
binding on Contractor and judgment may be entered upon it in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

E. Indemnification. 
I. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from and 

against any claim, damages, losses, liability or expense arising out of its breach of contract or 
negligence. 

2. Contractor's duty to indemnify City shall not apply to liability for damages 
arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage caused to property caused by or resulting from 
the sole negligence of City or City's agents or employees. 

3. Contractor's duty to indemnify City for liability for damages arising out of 
bodily injury or damage to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of (a) 
City or City's agents or employees, (b) Contractor and Contractor's agents or employees, or (c) 
any third parties shall apply only to the extent of negligence of Contractor or Contractor's agents 
or employees. 

4. Contractor specifically and expressly waives any immunity that may be granted 
it under the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act, Title 51 RCW. Further, the 
indemnification obligation under this AGREEMENT shall not be limited in any way by any 
limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable to or for any 
third party under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit 
acts; provided Contractor's waiver of immunity by the provisions of this paragraph extends only 
to claims against Contractor by City, and not include, or extend to, any claims by Contractor's 
employees directly against Contractor. 

5. Contractor's duty to defend, indemnify, and hold City harmless shall include, 

2016-PW-18 Corranrnercial Fire Protection Inc. PW Agreement.doc 	 2 of 8 
3/29/2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 41 of 311



as to all claims, demands, losses, and liabilities to which it applies City's personnel-related costs, 
attorneys' fees, and all other costs whether or not taxable by statute or court rule. 

F. Attorneys Fees. The prevailing party in any litigation of any dispute arising out of 
this agreement shall be entitled to its actual attorneys fees incurred and all costs of such litigation 
(including expert witness fees) in addition to any costs otherwise taxable by statute or court rule. 

G. MRSC Roster Registration. If required, the Contractor shall register or maintain 
registration on the MRSC Small Works Contractor Roster. 

H. Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. Have you retired under 
the 2008 early retirement factors? Yes 	No 	N/A 

I. Debarment. Contractor represents and agrees that it is not listed on any state or 
federal debarment list and further agrees that none of its sub-contractors are listed on any state or 
federal debarment list. 

EXECUTED, this the 	day of 	 , 201 	, for the 
Contractor, 	  

, Contractor 

EXECUTED, this the 	day of 	 , 201 	, for the 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY: 

Keith Wagoner, Mayor 
Attest: 

Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 

2016-PW-I8 Commercial Fire Protection Inc. PW Agreement.doc 	 3 of 8 
3/29/2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 42 of 311



RETAINAGE INVESTMENT OPTION 

CONTRACTOR: 	 

PROJECT NAME: 

DATE: 

Pursuant to Chapter 60.28 RCW, you may choose how your retainage under this contract will be 
held and invested. Please complete and sign this form indicating your preference. If you fail to 
do so, the City of Sedro-Woolley (City) will hold your retainage as described in "Current 
Expense", option 1 below. 

	

1. 	Current Expense:  The City will retain your money in its Current Expense Fund 
Account until thirty days following final acceptance of the improvement or work 
as completed. You will not receive interest earned on this money. 

	2. 	Interest Bearing Account:  The City will deposit retainage checks in an interest- 
bearing account in a bank, mutual savings bank, or savings and loan association, 
not subject to withdrawal until after the final acceptance of the improvement or 
work as completed or until agreed to by both parties. Interest on the account will 
be paid to you. 

	

3. 	Escrow / Investments:  The City will place the retainage checks in escrow with a 
bank or trust company until thirty days following the final acceptance of the 
improvement or work as completed. When the monies reserved are to be placed 
in escrow, the City will issue a check representing the sum of the monies reserve 
payable to the bank or trust company and you jointly. This check will be 
converted into bonds and securities chosen by you and approved by the City and 
these bonds and securities will be held in escrow. Interest on these bonds and 
securities will be paid to you as interest accrues. Selection of this option requires 
an escrow agreement to be completed by the contractor. The City of Sedro-
Woolley will provide the form for use by the contractor. If the contractor elects to 
use the Escrow Investment option, please complete attached Escrow Agreement. 

BONDS AND SECURITIES ACCEPTABLE BY THE CITY OF SEDRO-
WOOLLEY:  

1. Bills, certificates, notes or bonds of the United States. 
2. Other obligations of the United States or its agencies. 
3. Indebtedness of the Federal national Mortgage Association. 
4. Time Deposits in commercial banks. 

Designate below the type of investment selected: 

	4. 	Bond-in-Lieu:  With the consent of the City, the contractor may submit a bond for 
all or any portion of the amount of funds retained by the City in a form acceptable 
to the City and from a bonding company meeting standards established by the 
City, if any. Unless otherwise indicated, the contractor elects to submit a bond for 

2016-PW-18 Commmercial Fire Protection Inc. PW Agreement doc 	 4 of 8 
3/29/2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 43 of 311



the entire 5% retainage amount. Such bond and any proceeds there from shall be 
made subject to all claims and liens and in the same manner and priority as set 
forth for retained percentages in Chapter 60.28 RCW. Whenever the City accepts 
a bond-in-lieu of retained funds from a contractor, the contractor shall accept like 
bonds from any subcontractors or suppliers from which the contractor has 
retained funds. The contractor shall then release the funds retained from the 
subcontractor or supplier, to the subcontractor or supplier, within thirty days of 
the contractor's receipt of the retained funds from the City. 

Retainage is normally released 30 - 45 days after final acceptance of work by the City, or 
following receipt of Labor and Industries / Department of Revenue clearance, whichever takes 
longer. 

(Contractor's Signature) 	 Date 

Title 

2016-PW-18 Commmercial Fire Protection Inc. PW Agreement.doc 	 5 of 8 
3/29/2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 44 of 311



RETAINAGE ACCOUNT 

CITY 

ESCROW AGREEMENT / INTEREST BEARING ACCOUNT 

TO: 
Bank or Trust Company 

Branch 

Attn: 

Street Address 

City, State, Zip 

The undersigned 	 hereinafter 
referred to as the Contractor, has directed the City of Sedro-Woolley, hereinafter referred to as the City, to 
deliver to you its warrants or checks which shall be payable to you and the Contractor jointly. Such 
warrants or checks are to be held and disposed of by you in accordance with the following instructions 
and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

INSTRUCTIONS 

1. The City shall deliver to you from time to time warrants or checks payable jointly to you and the 
Contractor. You are hereby authorized by the Contractor to endorse in the Contractor's name any such 
warrant or check so that you may receive the proceeds thereof and invest the same. The power of 
endorsement hereby granted to you by the Contractor shall be deemed a power coupled with an interest 
and shall be irrevocable during the term of this escrow / interest bearing account. Although you may be a 
payee named in such warrants or checks as shall be delivered to you, your duties and responsibilities with 
respect to the same shall be only those duties and responsibilities which a depository bank would have 
pursuant to Article 4 of the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of Washington for an item deposited 
with it for collection as of the date such warrant or check shall be delivered to you. The proceeds from 
collections shall be used by you to purchase, as directed by the Contractor, bonds or other securities 
chosen by the Contractor and approved by you, and the City. For the purpose of each such purchase, you 
may follow the last written direction received by you from the Contractor, provided such direction 
otherwise conforms with the restrictions on investments recited herein. A list of such bonds, or other 
securities approved by the City are indicated on the Retainage Investment Option form. No further 
approval is necessary if any of these bonds or securities are selected by the Contractor. Other bonds or 
securities, except stocks, may be selected by the Contractor, subject to express written approval of you 
and the City. Purchase of such bonds or other securities shall be in a form which shall allow you alone to 
reconvert such bonds or other securities into money if you are required to do so by the City as provided in 
Paragraph 4 of the Escrow Agreement. 

The investments selected by the Contractor, approved by the City and purchased by you must mature on 
or prior to the date set for the completion of the contract, including extensions thereof or thirty days 
following the final acceptance of said improvement or work. 
2016-PW-18 Conunmercial Fire Protection Inc. PW Agreernentdoc 

	
6 of 8 

3/29/2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 45 of 311



2. When and as interest on the securities held by you pursuant to this agreement accrues and is paid, you 
shall collect such interest and forward it to the Contractor at its address designated below unless with your 
written consent you are otherwise directed in writing by the Contractor. 

3. You are not authorized to deliver to the Contractor all or any part of the securities held by you pursuant 
to this agreement (or any monies derived from the sale of such securities, or the negotiation of the City's 
warrants or checks) except in accordance with written instructions from the City. The City shall inform 
you and keep you informed in writing of the name of the person or persons with authority to give you 
such written instructions. Compliance with such instruction shall relieve you of any further liability 
related thereto. The estimated completion date on the contract underlying this Escrow / Interest Bearing 
Account Agreement is 	 . Upon request by you, the City shall advise you in 
writing of any change in the estimated completion date. If the estimated completion date is changed, you 
are authorized to reinvest the monies held hereunder in accordance with the new estimated completion 
date. 

4. In the event the City orders you to do so in writing, and notwithstanding any other provisions of this 
agreement you shall, within thirty-five (35) days of receipt of such order, reconvert into money the 
securities held by you pursuant to this agreement and return such money together with any other monies, 
including accrued interest on such securities, held by you hereunder, to the City. 

5. The Contractor agrees to pay you as compensation for your services hereunder as follows: 

Payment of all fees shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor and shall not be deducted from any 
property placed with you pursuant to this agreement until and unless the City directs the release to the 
Contractor of the securities and monies held hereunder whereupon you shall be granted a first lien upon 
such property released and shall be entitled to reimburse yourself from such property for the entire 
amount of your fees and any amounts which might be owing as provided for herein. In the event that you 
are made a party to any litigation with respect to the property held by you hereunder, or in the event that 
the conditions of this escrow are not promptly fulfilled or that you are required to render any services not 
provided for in these instructions, or that there is any assignment of the interest of this escrow or any 
modifications hereof, you shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for such extraordinary services 
from the Contractor and reimbursement from the Contractor for all costs and expenses, including attorney 
fees occasioned by such default, delay, controversy or litigations. 

6. Should you at any time and for any reason desire to be relieved of your obligations as escrow or 
interest bearing account holder hereunder, you shall give written notice to the City and Contractor. The 
City and Contractor shall, within 20 days of the receipt of such notice, jointly appoint a successor escrow 
holder and instruct you to deliver all securities and funds held hereunder to said successor. If you are not 
notified of the appointment of the successor escrow holder within 20 days, you may return the subject 
matter hereof to the City and upon doing, it absolves you from all further charges and obligations in 
connection with this escrow or interest bearing account. 

7. This agreement shall not be binding until executed by the Contractor and City and accepted by you. 

8. This instrument contains the entire agreement between you, the Contractor and the City with respect to 
this escrow and you are not a party to nor bound by any instrument or agreement other than this; you shall 
not be required to take notice if any default or any other matter, not bound by nor required to give notice 
or demand, nor required to take any action whatever except as herein expressly provided; you shall not be 
liable for any loss or damage not caused by your own negligence or willful misconduct. 

9. The foregoing provisions shall be binding upon the assigns, successors, personal representatives and 
heirs of the parties hereto. 

2016-PW-18 Cornmmercial Fire Protection Inc. PW Agreement.doc 	 7 of 8 
3/29/2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 46 of 311



The undersigned have read and hereby approve the instructions as given above governing the 
administration of this escrow or interest bearing account and do hereby execute this agreement on this 
	 day of 	 , 20 	 

  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

   

Contractor 	 City 

BY: 	 BY: 	  
Signature & Title 	 Authorized Signature & Title 

Address Address 

City 
	

State 	Zip 	 City 	 State 	Zip 

ATTESTED BY: 

City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 

The above escrow instructions received and accepted this 	day of 	 , 20 	 

Bank or Trust Company 

By: 	  

2016-PW-18 Cornnunercial Fire Protection Inc. PW Ageement.doe 	 8 of 8 
3/29/2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 47 of 311



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY WASHINGTON 

1 EXHIBIT B'  WEGrElrvir7 
bib 	

 
BID 	- PROPOSAL FORM 	 , 	 1 

2016-2017 Annual Portable Fire Extinguisher and Kitchen Hood Service and Inspection 

Bidder Name: C.ZirAlen t t  (_,,-- G__Q 	r`e_-- 	k-e-t--16- CY) a--le‘&,..„, 
, 

 

Hydrostatic 
I 	 , 8 5 year or 6- 

Annual 	I 5 or 6-Year 	Year 	 1 	Estlma 
Item 	Description/Extinguisher Class 	Maintenance I Maintenance 	Maintenance 	Recharge 	Annual Qua 

1 	2.54 ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher 	 x 

	

2 	'2.5# ABC 	Dry Chemical Extinguisher 	 x 

	

_ 3 	2.5# ABC .12/  Chemical Extinguisher 	 x
1 	

4 	26.88 , 	 107.52 

	

4 	2.5# ABC 	Chemical  Extinguisher 	
4 	 4 	

t 	
x 	 1 	 1344'    13.44 

	

5 	2.5G WP Extinguisher    x 	;  2 	 6.95,   13.9 - 

	

6 	,2.50 WP Extinguisher   	, 	x 	 i 1 	 ---8.4-7-- 	 8.4 4 	 ----I 

	

7 	2.5G WP Extinguisher    x 	 1 _ 23.4 	 23.4  
x   1 	 8Aj   	8A 

x 	, 	 • 	 2 	 6.951 	 13.9 
. 	 t 

	   x 	 i 	 13.44; 	13.44 

	

_ 11 	2.5# Clean Guard Extinguisher 	 x   1  	26.88 ,    26.88 

	

13 	5# ABC p_q Chemical Extinguisher 	x 	-i 	
, 	

6641 

	

12 	2.5#  Clean Guard Extinguisher 	 I 	 x 	 1 	. 

	

, 	 13.44 

78 

13:4
,  

	

14 	5# ABC Duerr Chemical Extinguisher  	  , 	x 	 1 	 13.44 	 13.44 

	

_ 15 	:5# ABC  Dry Chemical Extinguisher    	 x 	• 	 13   26.88    34944 

	

16 	5# ABC Dry Chemical Exlinguisher  	 1 	 13.44    13.44 
-4,- " 

	

..._ 17 	5.5# BC Dry Chemical Extinguisher  	  x 	
I 	

, 	 

	

, 	 2 	 6.951 	 13.9 

	

Chemical Extinguisher 	 x 

	

19 	:5.5# BC D Chemical Extinguisher 
1 	 _ 	 x 	 1 	

1236:45451 

	

18 	;,.5.5# BC D

ry  

ry 	 1 	 13,44 
; 

	

20 	5.5# BC Dry Chemical Extinguisher 	 I 	 x 	 1 	 13.44 '     1844 

	

21 	6# ABC Dry Chemical 	Extingyisher  	x 	 
	I 	

4 	 6.95 	 27.8 

	

22 _ :84$ ABC 0D,  Chemical Extinguisher 	 ; 	x  

	

. 	 2 

	

23 	.6# ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher  
 4-- 

1 	 x 
	 

i 	---1 
2163.81 	

26.88 

	 44- 	 11 	 - 
	 1344 	

26.88 

- - - -,-, 

	

24 	I6# ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher 	 . 	x 	 1 	1 	 13.44 4 

	

25 	10#  ABC Dry  Chemical Extinguisher 	 x 	1   	I 	 45 	 .--...95. - - -- ---- 499.57.  -304-  
, 

_ - 

	

26 	ON ABC Dry Chemical  Extinguisher 	
r 	

, 	
x 	 14.841 	 14.84  .4 

	

27 	10# 	ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher 	I 	 , 	x 	 29.681 	 29.68 

	

28 	1,10# ABC Dry C.hernical Extinguisher 	1 
 ; 	 -i--- 	--I- 

X 	 1 	 14.84 I 

	

29 	;20# ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher  
	 1  

 4 	-4 	1-• 	 - 	 14.84 
- x 	___I_ 	 ; 	 I 	 8 	 6.951 

	

. 30 	20# ABC Dry Chemical Extinguisher 	 x   1 	, 

	

31 	.200 ABC Dry Chemical  Extinguisher   x 	__..1 
-,- 

1 ---1- 	 38.12 ,  

19.041  	3192..1024 
t3K, 

7- 	 i 	 I  

	

. ._ 32 	:20# ABC_ Chemical Extinguisher 
---i- 	 i 	  

	

: 	
x 	 1   19.04' 	 

	 191;301.9 

	

33 	'15# CO2 ExtiNuisher 	 x 	 2 	 6.95  

	

34 	15# CO2 Extinguisher I, 	
x 	 1 	: 

	

1 	 26.25    26.25 
.' 	 1 	 4. 	 ..4 

f 	I- 

	

35 	15# CO2 Extinguisher   1  	x 	 1 	 54.61
} 	

54.5 

36 
-I

.15# CO2 Extinguisher   I 	
! 
	x 	 1 	 i 

26.251   	26.25 	 --i- 

	

38 	2.5# Halon  Extinguisher 	 , 

+-- 
x ____4 

	

. 	 1 	

1 	 

i 	 27.27 	 2361:'379.2:A  gift; 

	

37 	;2.5#  Halon Extinguisher 	 . 	x  	 1 	 6.95 	 

	

39 	,2.5# Halon Extinguisher 	 , 	 I 	x 	i 	 1     36 5 	 -4. 	   

	

_ 40 __12.5# Halon Extinguisher 	 i x 	
1

4  	
: 

	

. 	
1 	 30.24 	 30.24 

	

41 	5# Halon Extinguisher   	x 	i 	 -I 
	 ___1___ 5 

-4-- 	
6.95    34., 

	

42 	.5# Haton Extinguisher 	 x 	 1 	I   	 30.241  

	

43 	, 511 Halon Extinguisher  	 x 	 1 	--7 	

30.24  

39.9  	3Int 

_.„.. 	 _1 

	

44 	'5# Melon Extinguisher  x 	 1 

430. 5  28947 	

30.24  

	

45 	,13# Halon Extinguisher 	 x 
1 	

. 	 1 

61 	 	 461.'9857 

	

46 	'13# 	Malan Extinguisher  	 : 	x 	 i 

	

47 	13# Hahn Extinguisher    x  1 	 54.39   	54.39 

IMM11.111 

18 • 
2 

6.95 

2  13.44 ; 	 26.88 88 

8 	;2.50 WP Extinguisher 

9 	.2.5# Clean Guard Extinguisher 

10 	.2.5# Clean Guard Extinguisher  

48 	13# Halm Extinguisher  
Community Center - Design Magic 
Suppression System w/Kidde Aqua Blue 

49 

	

	Model WHDR-250 Kitchen Hood System  
;Senior Center - Range Guard Model 405 

50 	'Kitchen Hood  System 	  

51 	Minimum Service Charge if app!. 

:Hazardous Materials Charge if !pp!. 

53 	Fuel Surcharge if applicable  

54 	'Tamper Seal per each if not included 

SUBTOTAL  	 

!Sales Tax  at 8.5% 

ESTIMATED  TOTAL 

Comments: 

x 	 1     41,87  	41.87 

1 	 95 	._. 	____ 

1 	 95: 	___ 

1 	 30
1 

1 	NIA    1N/A 

1 	N/A 	 i N/A 	 

1 	;INC 	 INC 

2.874.13 •:1712,.1. 

244.3 , 

3,118.43 

95 

95 

30 

L_ 

542.1 

26.88 

	

1 	j_qmportant - Please note that any  refill agent (dry chemical, halon, CO2, etc.) is not shown as part  of line item cost since volume will vary depending on exthrgusher size and how much was used. 
--Iti, ifilTeTris49-4;nd-515(Fitchen hood systems) reritiire test repixTentryirtheFre-bepartments TEGRIStracking systerrThere is a charge-8i $18.75 for each report entered. This charge is not 

	

2 	!included in the  annual testing fee noted  above. 
•  

NOTES: 	 4 	 I 	 - -. -- -- -- ---. 

1_ __IInclude any materials in recharge item.  

	

1   I 
' 

	

- -2 	Contractor must be certified to service Kidde and Range Guard hood units 	' 	 _ 	 1 	 - 	_ _ _ _ - . 	4. -- 	. . .. _ . 	• - 	. 	. - 

	

3 	Items 51 through 54 are 'if applicable.' Please  indicate "NA"  or 'INC'  if these charges are not applicable or included  In base.  unit prices or otherwise clan/ how these apply. 

	

4 	An Excel version of this Bid Proposal Form is available on request. 	 , 	 T"'  

3/16f2016 City of Sedro Woolley 2016-2017 FIRE EXT BID PROPOSAL FORM.xls Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 48 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 1 3 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL flAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

  

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Keith Wagoner 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE  Oti‘ 

RE: 	 Land Pride 14' Pull Type, Towable Mower Award 
Purchase Order No. 2016-PO-09 

DATE: 	March 29, 2016 (for Council review April 13, 2016) 

ISSUE 

Shall City Council authorize the Public Works Director to issue the attached Purchase Order No. 2016-
P0-09 for the purchase of a Land Pride 14' Pull Type Towable Mower in the bid amount of $13,994.56 
from Washington Tractor Inc. of Mount Vernon, WA? 

BACKGROUND/RECOMMENDATION: 

On March 8, 2016 we advertised for proposals for (1 each) 14' and (1 each) 16' Pull Type, Towable 
Mower. We dosed bids on March 22, 2016 with four bids received. 

Attached is the final bid tabulation. 

The 2016 Equipment Replacement and Repair Fund (ERR) budgeted $14,100 for replacement towable 
mowers. After examining the bids it appears we will only be able to purchase one towable mower this 
year. 

Due to the age and current condition of our towable mowers the public works department decided to 
replace the smaller of the two mowers. 

The ERR Fund will support the proposed purchase. 

MOTION 

City Council shall authorize the Public Works Director to issue the attached Purchase Order No. 
2016-P0-09 for the purchase of a Land Pride 14' Pull Type Towable Mower in the bid amount of 
$13,994.56 from Washington Tractor Inc. of Mount Vernon, WA. 

2016-04-13 Purchase of new 14 ft Towable Mower.doc Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 49 of 311



Technology  International Inc.  
Lake  Mary,  Florida  

Base  Unit 
Price  (minimum  1 each)  

+Xi 
•cr 
CO

 
tri 
e
-- 

6
, 0

 
0
) 

0
 

N
 

to
" 

0
0

0
0

 
0

0
0

1
0

 

r
 f--: 6

 
•cl- 	

0
) 

0
) 

C,1
 

r,i
 

tn
 

6
9
. fa

 

43,342.50  1 

Brim  Tractor  
Mount Vernon,  WA 

Base  Unit  
Price  (minimum  1 each)  

16,223.00 

0
 

0
 

(0
 

to
 

0
 

C
] 

to
 

34,279.00  
2,913/2 

37,192.72  

Substituted  15' and  17' 

RMT Equipment 
Chehalis,  WA 

Base  Unit  
Price  (minimum  1 each)  

12,995.00 o
 

a
 

(0
 

0
) 

a
 

-4--  

ta
. 

27,490.00  
2,336.65 

in
 

cri 
l
i
 

N
 

O
s 

cri 
C

i 

4
4

 

Mount Vernon,  WA 
Base  Unit 

Price  (minimum  1 each)   

r
 

N
 

cci 
cs, 
oo 
csi 
r
 

E
9
 

14,445.88  
27,344.09  
2,324.25  

•c
t 

C
I 

fb
 

to
 

to
 

e
i 

N
 

4
"
 

Estimated Ctuanity   

City  of Sedro-Woolley   

	 By:   Mark Freiberger  

Type   
I  (1 each)  14' Pull Type,  Towable  Mower   
I 	 (1 each116' Pull Type,  Towable  Mower   

SUBTOTAL  
WSST AT 8.5%  
TOTAL  

NOTES:  

2016 BIDS Towable  Mowers.xls  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 50 of 311



PURCHASE ORDER 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

Purchase Order No. 

Product 

Vendor Name 

Vendor Address 

Delivering Dealer 

2016-P0-09 

Land Pride AFM4214 14' Flex Wing, Pull Type, Towable Mower 

Washington Tractor Inc. 

4220 Old Hwy 99 S., Mount Vernon, WA 98273 

Washington Tractor Inc. 

  

Delivering Dealer 	4220 Old Hwy 99 So. 
Address 	 Mount Vernon, WA 98273 

rostrom@washinotontractor. 
Vendor Contact 	Ryan Ostrom 	 Phone 360-202-2800 Email  com.   

Ship To 	 City of Sedro-Woolley, 409 Alexander Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284  

Bill To 	 City of Sedro-Woolley, 325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284  
ljacobs@ci.sedro- 

City Contact 	 Leo Jacobs 	Phone 360-661-6449 	Email woolley.wa.us  

City Department 	ERR 	Budget (BARS) No. 501  

DESCRIPTION OF PRODUCT 
[E] 	Per Attached Bid Proposal (Quote Id: 12724012) dated: March 22, 2016 

COMPENSATION 
Z QUANTITY AND UNIT PRICE — Compensation for the product will be on a Quantity and Unit Price basis, 

not to exceed 	$ 13,994.56 includes WSST 	without written authorization. 

Equipment and Selling Price Summary: 

Qty: 1 — Land Pride AFM4214 14' Flex Wing Towable Mower 

Mowers Extended Price: 	$12,898.21 
Sales Tax (8.5%): 	 $ 1,096.35 
Total: 	 $13,994.56 

SCHEDULE The Vendor shall deliver the product and services as described above: 

CE By 40 days  

❑ In accordance with the attached schedule. 

APPROVED 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

By: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE, Director of Public Works 

Signature 	  

Date 

Purchase Order 2016-PO-09.doc 	 3/29/2016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 51 of 311



Towable Mowers 

(1 each) 14' & (1 each) 16' Pull Type, Towable Mower 

BID PROPOSAL 

Bids due by 2 pm, March 22, 2016 

Bids may be submitted in person or by U.S. Mail, facsimile or email to: City of Sedro-Woolley, 325 
Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284, (360) 855-0771, facsimile 360-855-0733, email 
jrosarioci.sedro-wooilev.wa.us.  

We, the undersigned, hereby agree to furnish the following per the specifications, F.O.B. City of 
Sedro Woolley: (1 each) 14' & (1 each) 16' Pull Type, Towable Mower 

(1 each) 14' Pull Type, Towable Mower — Lump Sum: 	$   11, 0 i0 -11 

(1 each) 16' Pull Type, Towable Mower — Lump Sum: 	$   I 4 	fir   
Sales Tax 8.5°/0: 	 $ 	4);3 5-9.   

TOTAL: 	 $  	1/48,  311   

Prices include freight, all licenses, permits, fees etc. not otherwise specifically mentioned. Attach any 
clarifications or terms as appropriate. 

BIDDER COMPANY NAME: 	(A) as 11,N,i5 )4,-) t"ct dor- ,P4 e. 

ih-a-d Old #4dy 47 
ve,r40,-)  4/4 lez73 

366- a_d2-- 2kda  
r 0 1`/`U ?4'7 CAW ets t-04,5  t.  iflet 01-v✓; r — OP 

a7-/477V‘3  
Ya 	OthIde-n  

ADDRESS: 

TELEPHONE: 

EMAIL: 

LICENSE NO. 

CONTACT: 

SIGNATURE: 

Prompt Payment Discount (if applicable)   1/4  	days, net 30. 

Delivery   it 0   calendar days from receipt of purchase order at prices quoted. 

2016 Towable Mowers BID SHEET.doc 	 3/10/2016 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 52 of 311



MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

It is the intent of these specifications to guide Bidders in submitting competitive Bids on the following: 

(1 each) 14' & (1 each) 16' Pull Type, Towable Mower 

14 foot wide 	 16 foot wide 

Horsepower 
Hitch 
Working Width (cm) 
Overall Width 
Transport Width 
Positive Tongue Wt - lb 
Weight - lb (kg) (w/15" tires) 
Cutting Height 
Wing Cylinders 
Rear Deck Cylinder 
Gearbox 
Decks: 3 each 
Deck Thickness 
Deck Overlap 
Deck Spindle Housing 
Blade Size 
Blade Overlap 
Blade Tip Speed 
Blade Bearings 
Blade Spindles 
Blade Spindle RPM 
Drive Train 
Discharge 
Deck Tires - 
Deck Wheel Spindles 
Transport Tires and Bearing 
Anti-Scalp Roller 
Input Driveline 
Deck Driveline 
Mowing capacity @2mph 
Mowing capacity @4mph 
Mowing capacity @6mph 
Flex-Wings 
Flex Center 

40-70 HP 
Pull-Type, Adjustable Clevis & Safety Tow Chain 
14' (427) 
14' 3" 
6' 8" 
540 
3000 (1361) 
3/4" - 5-1/4" in 1/4" incr. 
2-1/2" x 12" 
2-1/2" x 8" 
540 RPM, 3 Wing, 1 Splitter 
60" 
3/16" 
6" 
Cast Iron Greaseable Hubs 
5/16" x 2-1/2" x 20-29/32" 
1-1/4" 
18,396 fpm 
Greaseable Ball Bearings 
1-3/8" Stressproofe Shaft 
3,362 RPM 
540 RPM B-section V Belt 
Rear 
10 total 15 x 6.6 Air Tire, Sealant or 18 x 9.5 Air 
1-1/4" w/Nylon Bushings 
23 x 10.5, Sealant Tapered Bearings 
Front Center and Outside Deck Corners 
Cat. 4 CV 
Cat. 2 w/ or w/o Slip-Clutch 
3.39 Acres/hr 
6.78 Acres/hr 
10.17 Acres/hr 
23° L-R, 22° F-B 
10° L-R, 22° F-B 

40-70 HP 
(Both sizes) 
16' 8" (508) 
16' 10" 
8' 10" 
580 
3315 (1504) 
(Both sizes) 
(Both sizes) 
(Both sizes) 
(Both sizes) 
72" 
3/16" 
8" 
(Both sizes) 
5/16" x 2-1/2" x 25" 
(Both sizes) 
18,340 fpm 
(Both sizes) 
Both sizes) 
2,802 RPM 
(Both sizes) 
(Both sizes) 
Tire, Sealant 
(Both sizes) 
(Both sizes) 
(Both sizes) 
(Both sizes) 
(Both sizes) 
4.0 Acres/hr 
8.1 Acres/hr 
12.1 Acres/hr 
(Both sizes) 
(Both sizes) 

The City of Sedro-Woolley (City) may choose to award none, one or both mowers to one Vendor for the 
year of 2016. Additionally, the City may elect to award to multiple vendors as best suits the needs of the 
City. The selection may be based upon criteria other than lowest price, such as, maintenance costs, 
compatibility with existing equipment, financial ability of the Vendor to support equipment of this size, 
experience of the Vendor in supplying this type of equipment and location of factory authorized service 
dealer or distributor. 

Minor deviations from these specifications may be considered, provided the manufacturer or dealer 
submits, in writing, a description in detail of each variation with reference made to each item to which the 
variation will apply. These variations must be submitted with and made a part of this Bid. Without any 

2016_minimum_specifications_pulitype towable_mower.doc 	 Page 1 of 2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 53 of 311



statement of deviation, the City will assume that the specifications will be met as written and the Bidder 
must comply as such. 

This equipment is described with a combination of integral or integrated design and construction in 
sufficient detail to secure Bids on comparable equipment. All parts not specifically mentioned which are 
necessary shall be included in the Bid. 

The units shall be complete with all standard equipment as advertised and include all additional 
equipment and accessories included in City specifications. The unit bid shall not be of a make or model, 
which has been or is foreseen in the near future to be a discontinued model of a company that regularly 
manufactures such equipment. If so desired, the City reserves the right to require any or all Bidders to 
verify, in writing, that the units Bid are not a manufacturer's discontinued or brand new models. New 
models and prototypes, experimental or one of a kind models, are not acceptable. 

Products must have been in full production for a minimum of two (2) years. 

The selling dealer shall be able to provide parts and service facilities to service the equipment and all its 
components and assure their performance. In order to provide on-location service at a reasonable fee in 
Sedro-Woolley, Washington, the Bidders are to be established dealers located in the State of 
Washington. Replacement parts must be delivered to the Solid Waste Division within 10 working days 
(Monday through Friday) of placement of order. 

The City reserves the right to reject any Bid that does not meet the specifications as written, does not 
meet or exceed SAE standards, does not include the equipment called for in the specifications and/or 
the dealer does not have the parts and services. 

Delivery will be accepted by the City of Sedro Woolley, FOB City Shop Complex, 315 Sterling Street, 
Sedro Woolley, Washington, 98284, between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 2:30 p.m. Monday through 
Friday. 

The items to be provided at the time of delivery are as follows: 

1. "Signed Price Invoice" 
2. Pre-Delivery Inspection Report 
3. Warranty Books 
4. Parts, Service and Operator's Manuals (as per specifications) 

20 16_minimumspecifications_pull_type_towable_mowendoc 	 Page 2 of 2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 54 of 311



Low deck pivot allows for greater side to 
side flotation on the wing decks. 

Anti-scalp rollers on nose and trailing edges 
of decks protect the deck as well as the turf. 

7 

Optional Hydraulic Wing Unlock 
allows user to unlock the wings 
from the tractor seat. 

See dealer for complete warranty information. 

Color  Options:01KM" 

Over center release easily takes tension off 
the drive belts during extended off time, or 
for belt replacement. 

40-70 	Pull-Type AFIVI42  ALL-FLEX MOWERS 

Get the results you deserve! 
The AFM is perfect for golf course maintenance, large estates, city recreation 
areas and sports fields. Sleek enough to get under trees and agile enough to 
turn on a dime, the AFM Series is just right for all around maintenance. And 
the quality of cut is the best feature of all. 

• Wings automatically lock for safe transport, release with pull rope or optional hydraulics 

• Single B-section belt per deck with spring-loaded belt tensioner 

• Rear discharge without chains. Chains collect moist grass and drop it 
in unsightly clumps 

• Wing decks discharge clippings away from the rear deck 

• Wing deck rear wheels are non-castering; helps hold mower on slopes 

• Single beam hitch and generous deck overlap virtually eliminate skipping 
in "zero-turn" situations 

AFPA4214 AFM4216 

Horsepower 40-70 HP 

Hitch Pull-Type, Adjustable Clevis 
& Safety Tow Chain 

Working Width (cm) 14' (427) 16' 8' (508) 

Overall Width 14' 3' 16' 10' 

Transport Width 6' 8' 8' 10' 

Positive Tongue Wt-lb 540 580 

Weight - lb (kg) 
(w/15' fires) 

3000 (1361) 3315 (1504) 

Cutting Height 3/4' - 5-1X in 1/4' incr. 

Wing Cylinders 2-1/2' x 12' 

Rear Deck Cylinder 2-1/2' x 8' 

Gearbox 540 RPM, 3 Wing, 1 Splitter 

Decks: 3 each 60' 72' 

Deck Thickness 3/16' 

Deck Overlap 6' 8' 

Deck Spindle Housing Cast Iron Greaseable Hubs 

Blade Site 5/16' x 2-1/2' 
x 20-29/32' 

5/16' x 2-1/2' 
x 25' 

Blade Overlap 1-1/4' 

Blade Tip Speed 18.396 fpm 18,340 fpm 

Blade Bearings Greaseable Ball Bearings 

Blade Spindles 1-3/8' Stressproofe Shaft 

Blade Spindle RPM 3,362 RPM 2,802 RPM 

Drive Train 540 RPM B-section V Belt 

Discharge Rear 

Deck Tires -10 total 15 x 6.6 Air Tire, Sealant or 
18 x 9.5 Air Tire, Sealant 

Deck Wheel Spindles 1-1/4' w/Nylon Bushings 

Transport Tires 
and Bearing 

23 x 10.5, Sealant 
Tapered Bearings 

Anti-Scalp Roller Front Center 
and Outside Deck Corners 

Input Driveline Cat. 4 CV 

Deck Driveline Cat. 2 w/ or w/o Slip-Clutch 

Mowing capacity 
@2mph 

3.39 Acres/hr 4.0 Acres/hr 

@4mph 6.78 Acres/hr 8.1 Acres/hr 

@5mph 10.17 Acres/hr 12.1 Acres/hr 

Flex-Wings 23° L-R, 22° F-B 

Flex Center 10° L-R, 22° F-B 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 55 of 311



JOHN DEERE Washington 
TRACTOR14), 

Quote Id: 12724012 

Prepared For: 

City Of Sedro Woolley 

Prepared By: Ryan Ostrom 

Washington Tractor, Inc. 
4220 Old Highway 99 So 
Mount Vernon, WA 98273 

Tel: 360-424-7995 
Fax: 360-424-0403 
Email: rostrom@washingtontractor.com  

Date: 01 February 2016 	 Offer Expires: 01 March 2016 

Confidential 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 56 of 311



0 JOHN DEERE Washington 
TRACTOR 

Quote Summary 

Prepared For: 
City Of Sedro Woolley 
405 Alexander St 
Sedro Woolley, WA 98284 
Business: 206-855-1661 

Prepared By: 

Ryan Ostrom 
Washington Tractor, Inc. 
4220 Old Highway 99 So 

Mount Vernon, WA 98273 
Phone: 360-424-7995 

rostrom@washingtontractor.com  

Includes: 
1. "Signed Price Invoice" 
2. Pre-Delivery Inspection Report 
3. Warranty Books 
4. Parts, Service and Operator's Manuals (as per 
specifications) 

Quote Id: 
Created On: 

Last Modified On: 
Expiration Date: 

12724012 
01 February 2016 

15 March 2016 
01 March 2016 

Equipment Summary 	 Selling Price 	Qty 

LANDPRIDE AFM4214 	 $ 12,898.21 	X 	1 

LANDPRIDE AFM4216 	 $ 14,445.88 X 	1 

Equipment Total 

Extended 

= 	$ 12,898.21 

= 	$ 14,445.88 

$ 27,344.09 

Quote Summary 

Equipment Total $ 27,344.09 

SubTotal $ 27,344.09 

Sales Tax - (8.50%) $ 2,324.25 

Total $ 29,668.34 

Down Payment (0.00) 

Rental Applied (0.00) 

Balance Due $ 29,668.34 

Salesperson : X 	 Accepted By : X 	  

Confidential Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 57 of 311



JOHN DEERE 
Selling Equipment 

Washington 
TRACTOR 

Quote Id: 12724012 	Customer: CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY 

LANDPRIDE AFM4214 

Hours: 0 
Stock Number: 

Code 	Description 	 Qty 
IMP 	14' FLEXWING MOWER 	 1 

Unit 

$ 17,668.00 

Selling Price 

$ 12,898.21 
Extended 

$ 17,668.00 

- 	. 	Other Charges 
' 	 . 

Setup 	 1 $ 200.00 $ 200.00 
Other Charges Total $ 200.00 

Suggested Price $ 17,868.00 

 Customer Discounts 
Customer Discounts Total $ -4,969.79 $ -4,969.79 

Total Selling Price $ 12,898.21 

LANDPRIDE AFM4216 

Hours: 0 
Stock Number: 

Selling Price 
$ 14,445.88 

Code 	Description 	 Qty Unit Extended 

IMP 	16'8" FLEX WING MOWER 	 1 $ 19,788.00 $ 19,788.00 
Other Charges s..aliep, lfgAtem 

Setup 	 1 $ 200.00 $ 200.00 

Other Charges Total $ 200.00 

Suggested Price $ 19,988.00 

wir=1;40:. ; 	 Customer  Discounts 
Customer Discounts Total $ -5,542.12 $ -5,542.12 

Total Selling Price $ 14,445.88 

Confidential Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 58 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL 	 ClAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Keith Wagoner 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 	 Utility Relocation Agreement — Puget Sound Energy 
Jameson Arterial Extension to SR9 Project 

DATE: 	March 30, 2016 (for Council action April 13, 2016) 

ISSUE 

Should council authorize Mayor Wagoner to execute the attached Utility Relocation Agreement with 
Puget Sound Energy in the amount of $22,074.44 for utility relocation work for the Jameson Arterial 
Extension to SR9 Project? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

The Jameson Arterial Extension to SR9 Project requires PSE to relocate overhead facilities located within 
the right of way in the vicinity of Batey Street under the Franchise Agreement at their expense. There is 
however one service pole and transformer located on private property just south of Jameson that requires 
relocation in order to obtain clear zone requirements from the proposed curb & gutter for the new street 
alignment. Utility relocations outside of the right of way require reimbursement of the utility. 

PSE has prepared the attached Utility Relocation Agreement to remove the existing pole, transformer and 
service, and install a replacement facility north of Jameson. 

I have reviewed the proposed relocation plan and PSE's cost estimate, and have given verbal approval to 
proceed in order to keep the relocation work on schedule. PSE started relocation work on Monday, 
March 28, 2016. 

FINANCE 

The estimated cost of the work is $22,074.44. Project funds from TIB and local match are available for the 
relocation work from the Construction Other portion of the project funding. 

MOTION: 

Move to authorize Mayor Wagoner to execute the attached Utility Relocation Agreement with 
Puget Sound Energy in the amount of $22,074.44 for utility relocation work for the Jameson 
Arterial Extension to SR9 Project. 

2016-03-30 PSE Utility Relocation Agreement Jameson.doc 3/30/2016 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 59 of 311



Mark Freiberger 

From: 	 Major, Jane <jane.major@pse.com > 

Sent: 	 Wednesday, March 30, 2016 10:08 AM 

To: 	 Mark Freiberger; David Lee 

Cc: 	 Schroyer, Michael P - Transmission 

Subject: 	 Utility Relocation Agreement for Jameson Roundabout Reimbursable portion of Project 

Attachments: 	 Relocation Agreement.doc (2).doc 

Hi Mark and David, 

Attached is the Utility Relocation Agreement for Jameson Roundabout Reimbursable portion of the project. Note that 

the reimbursable cost estimate amount has been adjusted due to adding cost to install conduit for lighting as requested. 

For new amount please refer to section 5 — 5.1 of agreement. Please also keep in mind that we are running this 

reimbursable work through our Buy America process which could affect the estimate slightly for the American made 

materials as well. 

Please review agreement and if acceptable just let me know. I will then bring down 2 copies today for signing (one for 

City files and one for PSE files) and will also bring 2 copies of the work sketch attachment with the reimbursable portion 

clearly pointed out (the dwg was too big to email). The line crew will be finishing up the relocation work next week so 

the sooner we can get this done the better. 

Thank you so much! 

Jane 

Jane Major SR/WA 
Associate Project Manager/Public Improvement 
Puget Sound Energy 

2131 Nevada St 
Bellingham, WA 98229 

Cell: 360-791-2748 
Bellingham Office: 360-715-7221 

iane.malor@pse.com  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 60 of 311



FACILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, dated as of March 30, 2016, is made and entered into by and 
between Puget Sound Energy, Inc., a Washington corporation ("PSE"), and Project Owner, 
the City of SedroWoolley. PSE and the City of Sedro Woolley are sometimes referred to 
herein individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

A. PSE owns and operates certain utility systems and facilities necessary and 
convenient to the transmission and distribution of electricity ("Facilities") that are located on 
or in relation to certain operating rights ("Existing Operating Rights"). The Facilities and 
Existing Operating Rights are more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

B. The Project Owner plans to construct road improvements on Jameson Road at 
the intersection of Batey Road including west and east of said intersection and including 
installing a roundabout at the intersection of Jameson Road and SR 9, all within in the city of 
Sedro Woolley ("Improvements"). 

C. In connection with the Improvements, the Project Owner has requested that 
PSE perform certain engineering design work and certain construction work relating to 
modification or relocation of its Facilities (the "Relocation Work"), all in accordance with 
and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and any applicable tariff on file 
with the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (the "WUTC"). 

D. The Project Owner has provided to PSE a written plan for the Improvements 
(the "Improvement Plan") which includes, among other things, (a) plans and specifications 
sufficient in detail, as reasonably determined by PSE, for PSE to design and perform the 
Relocation Work, including reasonably detailed drawings showing the planned 
Improvements, (b) a list of the key milestone dates for the Improvements, and (c) information 
concerning possible conflicts between PSE's Facilities and other utilities or facilities. 

The Parties, therefore, agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

Section I. Relocation Work 

1.1 	Relocation Work. The Relocation Work is described in Exhibit B attached to 
this Agreement. 

1.2 	Performance of Relocation Work. Subject to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement and any applicable tariffs on file with the WUTC, PSE shall use reasonable 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 61 of 311



efforts to perform the Relocation Work. PSE shall perform the Relocation Work in 
accordance with reasonable diligence in the ordinary course of its business and in light of any 
operational issues as to the remainder of its utility systems that may be influenced by the 
Relocation Work. PSE shall have no liability to the Project Owner or any third party, nor 
shall the Project Owner be relieved or released from its obligations hereunder, in the event of 
any delay in the performance of the Relocation Work due to any (a) repair, maintenance, 
improvement, renewal or replacement work on PSE's utility systems, which work is 
necessary or prudent as determined by PSE in its sole discretion; or (b) actions taken by PSE 
which are necessary or consistent with prudent utility practices to protect the performance, 
integrity, reliability or stability of PSE's utility systems or any systems to which such systems 
are connected. 

	

1.3 	Adjustments to the Relocation Work. PSE shall notify the Project Owner in 
writing of any reasonably anticipated adjustments to the Relocation Work (including the 
Relocation Schedule and/or Relocation Cost Estimate) that result from (a) the revision or 
modification of any Improvements in a manner that requires PSE to revise its plans and 
specifications for the Relocation Work; (b) delays in PSE's performance of the Relocation 
Work caused by the Project Owner (or its agents, servants, employees, contractors, 
subcontractors, or representatives); or (c) conditions or circumstances otherwise beyond the 
control of PSE. The Parties acknowledge that additional requirements not contemplated by 
the Parties may arise during the performance of the Relocation Work. In the event such 
additional requirements arise, the Parties shall provide written notice thereof and shall use 
good faith reasonable effbrts to appropriately respond to such requirements in a prompt and 
efficient manner, including appropriate adjustments to the Relocation Schedule and/or the 
Relocation Cost Estimate. 

	

1.4 	Performance by Project Owner. In the event the Project Owner is unable to 
perform its obligations under Sections 2 and 3 below to PSE's reasonable satisfaction, and 
absent written waiver by PSE of such obligations, the Parties shall use reasonable efforts to 
adjust the Relocation Schedule to allow additional time for the Project Owner to perform 
such obligations; provided, that if the Parties cannot reasonably agree upon such schedule 
adjustment, PSE may, at its option, thereafter terminate this Agreement by giving written 
notice to the Project Owner, and the Project Owner shall promptly pay PSE the amounts 
payable to PSE in connection with such termination under Section 5.5. PSE's determination 
as to the satisfaction or waiver of any such condition under this Agreement shall not be 
deemed to be a determination of satisfaction or waiver of any other condition arising under 
this Agreement. 

	

1.5 	Notice to Proceed with Construction Work. At least fifteen business days 
prior to the date specified in the Relocation Schedule for commencement of construction for 
the Relocation Work, the Project Owner shall either (a) provide to PSE a written notice to 
proceed with such construction work, or (b) terminate this Agreement by written notice to 
PSE. In the event of such termination, the Project Owner shall promptly pay PSE the 
amounts payable to PSE in connection with termination under Section 5.5. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 62 of 311



Section 2. Operating Rights. 

Unless otherwise provided for in Exhibit B, the Project Owner shall be solely 
responsible for any costs related to acquisition of any and all operating rights for the Facilities 
that are necessary or appropriate, in addition to or as replacement for the Existing Operating 
Rights, for completion of the Relocation Work ("New Operating Rights"). Such New 
Operating Rights shall be in PSE's name, shall be of equivalent quality and kind as the 
Existing Operating Rights and shall be provided in a form acceptable to PSE, all as 
determined by PSE in its sole discretion. The New Operating Rights shall be provided with 
sufficient title information demonstrating to PSE's satisfaction that PSE shall obtain clear, 
good and sufficient title to such rights, if applicable. PSE shall not be obligated to commence 
the RelocationWork, or otherwise in any way change, limit, curtail, impair or otherwise affect 
the normal and reliable operation of the Facilities as located upon or relative to the Existing 
Operating Rights, unless and until PSE is in possession of the New Operating Rights. 

	

Section 3. 	Permits. 

The Project Owner shall be solely responsible for any costs related to acquisition of 
any and all permits, licenses, certificates, inspections, reviews, impact statements, 
determinations, authorizations, exemptions or any other form of review or approval given, 
made, done, issued or provided by any one or more governmental authorities with jurisdiction 
necessary or convenient for the Relocation Work (collectively, "Permits"). The Permits shall 
be on such terms and conditions as PSE shall, in its sole discretion, determine to be 
appropriate to its needs. PSE shall not be obligated to commence construction for the 
Relocation Work, or otherwise in any way change, limit, curtail, impair or otherwise affect 
the normal and reliable operation of the Facilities, unless and until PSE is in possession of all 
Permits necessary for the Relocation Work and all rights of appeal with respect to the Permits 
shall have been exhausted. The Project Ownder shall be responsible for performance of and 
any costs associated with any mitigation required by the Permits. 

	

Section 4. 	Materials and Ownership 

Unless specifically agreed otherwise in writing by the Parties, PSE shall provide all 
necessary materials, equipment and labor required to perform the Relocation Work. All 
materials, information, property and other items provided for, used or incorporated into the 
Relocation Work (including but not limited to the Facilities) shall be and remain the property of 
PSE. 

	

Section 5. 	Relocation Costs 

	

5.1 	Estimate. PSE's good faith estimate of the costs to perform the Relocation 
Work (the "Relocation Cost Estimate") is twenty-two thousand and seventy four dollars and 
forty four cents ($22,074.44). The Parties agree that the Relocation Cost Estimate is an 
estimate only and PSE shall be entitled to reimbursement of all actual costs incurred in or 
allocable to the performance of the Relocation Work. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 63 of 311



	

5.2 	Costs in Excess of Estimate. PSE shall use reasonable efforts to monitor its 
actual costs incurred during the performance of the Relocation Work, and in the event PSE 
determines that such costs are likely to exceed the Relocation Cost Estimate by more than 
twenty percent (20%), PSE shall so notify the Project Owner in writing. In such event PSE 
may, at its discretion, suspend performance of the Relocation Work and PSE shall not be 
obligated to continue with performance of any Relocation Work unless and until PSE 
receives the Project Owner's written acceptance of PSE's revised Relocation Cost Estimate 
and written notice to proceed with the Relocation Work. In the event PSE does not receive 
such acceptance and notice from the Project Owner within ten (10) working days from the 
date of PSE's notice, then PSE may, at its discretion, terminate this Agreement. In the event 
of such termination, the Project Owner shall promptly pay PSE the amounts payable to PSE 
in connection with termination under Section 5.5. 

	

5.3 	Relocation Costs. The Project Owner shall be responsible for, and shall 
reimburse PSE for, all costs and expenses incurred by PSE in connection with the 
performance of the Relocation Work (the "Relocation Costs"). For purposes of this 
Agreement, the Relocation Costs shall include, without limitation, any and all direct and 
indirect costs incurred by PSE in connection with the performance of the Relocation Work, 
including, but not limited to, labor, personnel, supplies, materials, overheads, contractors, 
consultants, attorneys and other professionals, administration and general expenses and taxes. 

	

5.4 	Statement of Costs - Invoice. Within one hundered and twenty (120) days of 
the completion of the Relocation Work, PSE shall provide the Project Owner with a 
statement and invoice of the actual Relocation Costs incurred by PSE. PSE shall provide, 
within a reasonable period after receipt of any written request from the Project Owner, such 
documentation and information as the Project Owner may reasonably request to verify any 
such invoice. 

	

5.5 	Costs upon Termination of Agreement. In the event either Party terminates 
this Agreement, the Project Owner shall promptly pay PSE, the following: 

(a) all costs and expenses incurred by PSE in connection with the 
Relocation Work (including, without limitation, all Relocation Costs incurred through 
the date of termination and such additional costs as PSE may incur in connection with 
its suspension or curtailment of the Relocation Work and the orderly termination of 
the Relocation Work); and 

(b) all costs and expenses incurred by PSE in returning and restoring the 
Facilities to normal and reliable commercial operations. 

	

5.6 	Payment. The Project Owner shall, within thirty (30) days after the receipt of 
an invoice for costs payable under this Agreement, remit to PSE payment for the full amount 
of the invoice. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 64 of 311



	

Section 6. 	Indemnification 

	

6.1 	Indemnification. The Project Owner releases and shall defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless PSE from all claims, losses, harm, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses 
(including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees) caused by or arising out of any 
negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of the Project Owner in its performance 
under this Agreement. PSE releases and shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
Project Owner from all claims, losses, harm, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses 
(including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees) caused by or arising out of any 
negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of PSE in its performance under this 
Agreement. During the performance of such activities employees or contractors of each Party 
shall at all times remain employees or contractors, respectively, that Party and shall not be, or 
be construed to be, employees or contractors, respectively, of the other Party. 

	

6.2 	Title 51 Waiver. Solely for purposes of enforcing the indemnification 
obligations of a Party under this Section 6, each Party expressly waives its immunity under 
Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, the Industrial Insurance Act, and agrees that the 
obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless provided for in this Section 6 extends to 
any such claim brought against the indemnified Party by or on behalf of any employee of the 
indemnifying Party. The foregoing waiver shall not in any way preclude the indemnifying 
Party from raising such immunity as a defense against any claim brought against the 
indemnifying Party by any of its employees. 

	

Section 7. 	Disclaimers and Limitation of Liability 

	

7.1 	Disclaimer. PSE makes no representations or warranties of any kind, express 
or implied, with respect to the Relocation Work or other items or services provided under this 
Agreement including, but not limited to, any implied warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for a particular purpose or implied warranty arising out of course of performance, course of 
dealing or usage of trade. 

	

7.2 	Limitation of Liability. In no event shall PSE be liable, whether in contract, 
warranty, tort or otherwise, to any other party or to any other person for any indirect, 
incidental, special or consequential damages arising out of the performance or 
nonperformance of the Relocation Work or this Agreement. 

	

Section 8. 	Miscellaneous 

	

8.1 	Tariffs Control. This Agreement is in all respects subject to all applicable 
tariffs of PSE now or hereafter in effect and on file with the WUTC. In the event of any 
conflict or inconsistency between any provision of this Agreement and any such tariff, the 
terms of the tariff shall govern and control. 

	

8.2 	Survival. Sections 2, and 4 through 8 shall survive any termination of this 
Agreement. Subject to the foregoing, and except as otherwise provided herein, upon and 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 65 of 311



following termination of this Agreement neither Party shall have any further obligations 
arising under this Agreement and this Agreement shall be of no further force or effect. 

8.3 	Waiver. The failure of any Party to enforce or insist upon strict performance 
of any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of 
any such provision or any other provision in that or any other instance; rather, the same shall 
be and remain in full force and effect. 

8.4 	Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including any exhibits hereto, sets forth 
the complete and integrated agreement of the Parties. This Agreement cannot be amended or 
changed except by written instrument signed by the Party to be bound thereby. 

85 	Force Majeure. In the event that either Party is prevented or delayed in the 
performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement by reason beyond its reasonable 
control (a "Force Majeure Event"), then that Party's performance shall be excused during the 
Force Majeure Event. Force Majeure Events shall include, without limitation, war; civil 
disturbance; storm, flood, earthquake or other Act of God; storm, earthquake or other 
condition which necessitates the mobilization of the personnel of a Party or its contractors to 
restore utility service to customers; laws, regulations, rules or orders of any governmental 
agency; sabotage; strikes or similar labor disputes involving personnel of a Party, its 
contractors or a third party; or any failure or delay in the performance by the other Party, or a 
third party who is not an employee, agent or contractor of the Party claiming a force Majeure 
Event, in connection with the Relocation Work or this Agreement. Upon removal or 
termination of the Force Majeure Event, the Party claiming a Force Majeure Event shall 
promptly perform the affected obligation in an orderly and expedited manner under this 
Agreement or procure a substitute for such obligation. The Parties shall use all commercially 
reasonable efforts to eliminate or minimize any delay cause by a Force Majeure Event. 

8.6 	Enforceability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this 
Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and this Agreement shall be construed 
in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provisions were omitted. 

8.7 	Notice. Any notice, request, approval, consent, order, instruction, direction or 
other communication under this Agreement given by either Party to the other Party shall be in 
writing and shall be delivered in person to an authorized representative or mailed, properly 
addressed and stamped with the required postage, to the intended recipient at the address and 
to the attention of the person specified below the Parties' respective signatures on this 
Agreement. Either Party may from time to time change such address by giving the other 
Party notice of such change in accordance with this section. 

8.8 	Governing Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and 
enforced in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. This 
Agreement shall be fully binding upon the Parties and their respective successors, assigns and 
legal representatives. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 66 of 311



In witness whereof, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth above. 
PSE: 	 Project Owner: 

Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 	 City of Sedro Woolley 

By 
	

By 	  

Its Public Improvement Project Manager 
	

Its Mayor 

Address: 2131 Nevada St. 	 Address: 325 Metcalf St. 

Bellingham WA 98229 	 Sedro Woolley WA 98284 

Attn: Jane Major 	 Attn: Mark Freiberger 

Date: 	 Date: 

PSE Project Order # 101096510 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 67 of 311



EXHIBIT A 

FACILITIES AND OPERATING RIGHTS 

The existing PSE electrical facilities in the vicinity of the Requesting Party's 
Jameson Roundabout Project pursuant to valid franchise rights granted under 
applicable Sedro Woolley City ordinance no. 1119 and managed by the City of Sedro 
Woolley 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 68 of 311



EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT B 

RELOCATION WORK 

Relocation of 1(one) PSE Distribution Pole, including its anchor and attached transformer and 
removal and/or transferring of PSE primary and secondary lines associated with said pole to 
accommodate the City of Sedro Woolley Jameson Roundabout Project. 

No addition PSE operating rights are required in order to perform this relocation work. 

Construction of the PSE Electrical facility relocation will occur on a schedule coordinated in 
conjunction with the City of Sedro Woolley construction slated to begin in May 2016. 

See attached project plan which includes further project scope and details. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 69 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	73 i  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Keith Wagoner 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 	 Possible Sole Source Resolution for Wastewater Treatment Plant Rotor #4 
Replacement Parts - Rotor Replacement Parts-Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC 
Purchase Order 2016-PO-13 

DATE: 	April 6, 2016 (for Council review April 13, 2016) 

ISSUE 

Should council move to approve Resolution 	 authorizing Mark Freiberger, Public Works 
Director, to issue the attached Purchase Order 2016-PO-13 for Rotor Replacement Parts from Evoqua 
Water Technologies, LLC of Thomasville, GA in the amount of $25,247 plus sales tax as per Quotation # 
13129-R1? 

BACKGROUND/RECOMMENDATION: 

The attached bid includes replacement parts that will be installed on the rotor body recently fabricated at 
Sound Ocean Metal Fabricators. Once assembled, the new rotor will be installed via crane into the rotor 
#4 position and will complete replacement of all rotors originally installed in 1999. Per the attached letter, 
this equipment is proprietary with parts only being available for purchase from Evoqua Water 
Technologies. 

Funding for the attached purchase will come from the 401 Sewer Fund, BARS #535.50.48.050, 
Maintenance of General Equipment. 

MOTION 

Approve Resolution 	 authorizing Mark Freiberger, Public Works Director, to issue the 
attached Purchase Order 2016-PO-13 for Rotor Replacement Parts from Evoqua Water 
Technologies, LLC of Thomasville, GA in the amount of $25,247 plus sales tax as per Quotation # 
13129-RI. 

2016-4-13 Purchase Order 2016-P0-13 WWTF Rotor Replacement Parts.doc Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 70 of 311



Resolution No. 	-16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, 
WASHINGTON, WAIVING COMPETITIVE BIDDING REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 

PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT PARTS FOR ROTOR BODY #4, MANUFACTURED 
BY EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC, FOR THE PURPOSE OF REPLACING 

WORN EQUPMENT AT THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT. 

WHEREAS, in Smith v. Seattle, 192 Wn.2d 64, 72 P.2d 588 (1937)„  the Washington Supreme 
Court held that cities have the right to specify a particular brand of article for purchase by public 
contract, even where such article is held in a monopoly by a single supplier; and 

WHEREAS, the Sedro-Woolley Wastewater Treatment Department has requested that the City 
Council authorize the purchase of replacement parts manufactured by Evoqua Water 
Technologies, to replace worn equipment for Oxidation Ditch Rotor Body #4 at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant; and 

WHEREAS, the existing Rotor Body #4, including parts manufactured by Evoqua Water 
Technologies, as installed in the Oxidation Ditch at the Wastewater Treatment Plant, is worn and 
requires replacement, and 

WHEREAS, there is only one source of supply for the replacement parts for this equipment, 
from Evoqua Water Technologies of Thomasville, Georgia; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.23.352(9), as amended by chapter 120, laws of 1987, authorizes the City 
Council to waive competitive bidding requirements for purchasing when the purchase is clearly 
and legitimately limited to a single source of supply in the near vicinity 

NOW, THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, 
WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I.  Based upon the preceding legislative findings, the City Council hereby declares that 
the purchase of the Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC replacement equipment is clearly and 
legitimately limited to a single source of supply and that the sole source of supply is Evoqua 
Water Technologies, LLC of Thomasville, Georgia. 

Section 2.  Based upon the preceding legislative findings, the competitive bidding requirements 
for the City of Sedro-Woolley are hereby waived and the Sedro-Woolley Wastewater 
Department is authorized to purchase the Rotor Body #4 replacement parts manufactured by 
Evoqua Water Technologies. 

Section 3.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 71 of 311



RESOLVED this 13th day of April, 2016 and signed in authentication of its passage this 14th day of 
April, 2016 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

FINANCE DIRECTOR 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 72 of 311



QTY UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

480 
1 
1 
2 

12 

Rotor Blades Stainless Steel 
Inboard Shaft #5300-5301-59 
Outboard Shaft #5300-5302-14 
End Shield #5300-6880-01 
Angle End Shield #5300-5036-09 
Quote Number: 13129-R1 (Attached for Reference) — Evoqua Water Tech 

Each 
Each 
Each 
Each 
Each 

30.00 
4,200.00 
3,900.00 
1,100.00 

672.00 

$14,400.00 
$4,200.00 
$3,900.00 
$1,100.00 

$672.00 

SUBTOTAL 

DISCOUNT 

SHIPPING & HANDLING 

SALES TAX 8.5% 

OTHER 

TOTAL 

$24,272.00 

0.00 

$975.00 

$2146.00 

N/A 

$27,393.00 

City of Sedro-Woolley 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 855-0771 Fax (360) 855-0707 

The following number must appear on all related 
correspondence, shipping papers, and invoices: PURCHASE ORDER 
P.O. NUMBER: 2016-PO-13 

VENDOR: 
Evoqua Water Technologies LLC 
Fergus Robinson 
1828 Metcalf Avenue 
Thomasville, GA 31792 
Tel: 229-227-8705 

Fax: 229-228-0312 

SHIP TO: 
Debbie Allen 
City of Sedro-Woolley 
401 Alexander Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Tel: (360) 661-6448 
Fax: (360) 856-5269 

P.O. DATE REQUISITIONER SHIPPED VIA F.O.B. POINT TERMS 

4/14/2016 Debbie Allen NET 30 

1. Please send two copies of your invoice. 

2. Enter this order in accordance with the prices, terms, delivery 
method, and specifications listed above. 

3. Please notify us immediately if you are unable to ship as 
specified. 

4. Send all correspondence to: 

Accounts Payable 
City of Sedro-Woolley 
325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 855-1661 Fax (360) 855-0707 

535.50.48.050.401 	$27,393.00 

  

 

Authorized by 	 Date 

 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 73 of 311



evoQUA 
WATER TM-N(7n OGIFS 

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC 
1828 Metcalf Avenue 

Quote # 13129-R1 	 Thomasville, GA 31792 

Date: 	3/3/2016 	 Sales Quote 
To: 	Debbie Allen/ City of Sedro-Woolley, WA 

Phone: 360-856-1100 
Fax: 
	

360-856-5269 
From: Fergus Robinson 
email: 
	

Replacement parts for Evoqua 

Validity: 30 days 

Freight PPD & Add 
Returns: There is a 25% restocking fee 

on all returned parts. 

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC is pleased to offer the following quotation for your consideration 

Item # Quantity Part # Part Description Unit Price UM Total Price Lead Time 
1 480 Rotor Blades Stainless Steel $30.00 EA $14,400.00 5-6 Weeks 
2 I Inboard Shaft #5300-5301-59 $4,200.00 EA $4,200.00 
3 1 Outboard ShaIlit 5300--5302-14 $3,900.00 EA $3,900.00 
4 2 End Shield #5300-6880-01 $550.00 EA $1,100.00 
5 12 Angle End Shield #5300-5036-09 $56.00 EA $672.00 

Freight $975.00 

Total Sale 
Price $25,247.00 

Please D'rect Questions or Comments to: 

Evoqua Water Tech LLC. Aftermarket Sales; Fergus Robinson 
Phone: (229) 227-8705 
Fax: 	(229) 228-0312 
Email Ferous.Robinsonaevoqua.com   

We now accept Visa, Mastercard, & American Express for your convenience 

THIS TRANSMISSION CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION INTENDED FOR USE ONLY BY THE ABOVE 
NAMED RECIPIENT. READING, DISCUSSING, OR COPYING OF THIS MESSAGE IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED BY 
ANYONE OTHER THAN THE NAMED RECIPIENT OR HIS ORDER EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS. IF YOU HAVE 

RECEIVED THIS FAX IN ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY US BY TELEPHONE (COLLECT) AND 
RETURN THE ORIGINAL MESSAGE TO US AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS VIA THE US POSTAL SERVICE. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 74 of 311



EVOOTIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC 

Standard Terms of Sale 

1. Applicable Terms.  These terms govern the purchase and sale of equipment, products, related services, leased products, and media goods if 
any (collectively herein "Work"), referred to in Seller's proposal ("Seller's Documentation"). Whether these terms are included in an offer or an 
acceptance by Seller, such offer or acceptance is expressly conditioned on Buyer's assent to these terms. Seller rejects all additional or different terms 
in any of Buyer's forms or documents. 

2. Payment.  Buyer shall pay Seller the full purchase price as set forth in Seller's Documentation, Unless Seller's Documentation specifically 
provides otherwise, freight, storage, insurance and all taxes, levies, duties, tariffs, permits or license fees or other governmental charges relating to the 
Work or any incremental increases thereto shall be paid by Buyer. If Seller is required to pay any such charges, Buyer shall immediately reimburse 
Seller. If Buyer claims a tax or other exemption or direct payment permit, it shall provide Seller with a valid exemption certificate or permit and 
indemnify, defend and hold Seller harmless from any taxes, costs and penalties arising out of same. All payments are due within 30 days after receipt 
of invoice. Buyer shall he charged the lower of 1 th% interest per month or the maximum legal rate on all amounts not received by the due date and 
shall pay all of Seller's reasonable costs (including attorneys' fees) of collecting amounts due but unpaid. All orders are subject to credit approval by 
Seller. Back charges without Seller's prior written approval shall not be accepted. 

3. Delivery.  Delivery of the Work shall be in material compliance with the schedule in Seller's Documentation. Unless Seller's Documentation 
provides otherwise, delivery terms are ExWorks Seller's factory (Incoterms 2010). Title to all Work shall pass upon receipt of payment for the Work 
under the respective invoice. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Seller, shipping dates are approximate only and Seller shall not be liable for any 
loss or expense (consequential or otherwise) incurred by Buyer or Buyer's customer if Seller fails to meet the specified delivery schedule. 

4. Ownership of Materials and Licenses.  All devices, designs (including drawings, plans and specifications), estimates, prices, notes, 
electronic data, software and other documents or information prepared or disclosed by Seller, and all related intellectual property rights, shall remain 
Seller's property. Seller grants Buyer a non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use any such material solely for Buyer's use of the Work. Buyer 
shall not disclose any such material to third parties without Seller's prior written consent Buyer grants Seller a non-exclusive, non-transferable license 
to use Buyer's name and logo for marketing purposes, including but not limited to, press releases, marketing and promotional materials, and web site 
content. 

5. Changes.  Neither party shall implement any changes in the scope of Work described in Seller's Documentation without a mutually agreed 
upon change order, Any change to the scope of the Work, delivery schedule for the Work, any Force Majeure Event, any law, rule, regulation, order, 
code, standard or requirement which requires any change hereunder shall entitle Seller to an equitable adjustment in the price and time of performance. 

6. Force MR j eure Event.  Neither Buyer nor Seller shall have any liability for any breach or delay (except for breach of payment obligations) 
caused by a Force Majeure Event. If a Force Majeure Event exceeds six (6) months in duration, the Seller shall have the right to terminate the 
Agreement without liability, upon fifteen (15) days written notice to Buyer, and shall be entitled to payment for work performed prior to the date of 
termination. "Force Majeure Event"  shall mean events or circumstances that are beyond the affected party's control and could not reasonably have 
been easily avoided or overcome by the affected party and are not substantially attributable to the other party. Force Majeure Event may include, but 
is not limited to, the following circumstances or events: war, act of foreign enemies, terrorism, riot, strike, or lockout by persons other than by Seller 
or its sub-suppliers, natural catastrophes or (with respect to on-site work), unusual weather conditions. 

7. Warranty,  Subject to the following sentence, Seller warrants to Buyer that the (i) Work shall materially conform to the description in 
Seller's Documentation and shall be free from defects in material and workmanship and (ii) the Services shall be performed in a timely and workmanlike 
manner. Determination of suitability of treated water for any use by Buyer shall be the sole and exclusive responsibility of Buyer. The foregoing 
warranty shall not apply to any Work that is specified or otherwise demanded by Buyer and is not manufactured or selected by Seller, as to which (i) 
Seller hereby assigns to Buyer, to the extent assignable, any warranties made to Seller and (ii) Seller shall have no other liability to Buyer under 
warranty, tort or any other legal theory. The Seller warrants the Work, or any components thereof, through the earlier of (I) eighteen (18) months from 
delivery of the Work or (ii) twelve (12) months from initial operation of the Work or ninety (90) days from the performance of services (the "Warranty 
Period"), If Buyer gives Seller prompt written notice of breach of this warranty within the Warranty Period, Seller shall, at its sole option and as 
Buyer's sole and exclusive remedy, repair or replace the subject parts, re-perform the Service or refund the purchase price. Unless otherwise agreed 
to in writing by Seller, (i) Buyer shall be responsible for any labor required to gain access to the Work so that Seller can assess the available remedies 
and (ii) Buyer shall be responsible for all costs of installation of repaired or replaced Work, If Seller determines that any claimed breach is not, in fact, 
covered by this warranty, Buyer shall pay Seller its then customary charges for any repair or replacement made by Seller. Seller's warranty is 
conditioned an Buyer's (a) operating and maintaining the Work in accordance with Seller's instructions, (b) not making any unauthorized repairs or 
alterations, and (c) not being in default of any payment obligation to Seller. Seller's warranty does not cover (i) damage caused by chemical action or 
abrasive material, misuse or improper installation (unless installed by Seller) and (ii) media goods (such as, but not limited to, resin, membranes, or 
granular activated carbon media) once media goods are installed. THE WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 7 ARE THE SELLER'S 
SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE WARRANTIES AND ARE SUBJECT TO =LIMITATION OF LIABILITY PROVISION BELOW. SELLER MAKES 
NO OTHER WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR PURPOSE. 

8. Indemnity.  Seller shall indemnify, defend and hold Buyer harmless from any claim, cause of action or liability incurred by Buyer as a result 
of third party claims for personal injury, death or damage to tangible property, to the extent caused by Seller's negligence. Seller shall have the sole 
authority to direct the defense of and settle any indemnified claim. Seller's indemnification is conditioned on Buyer (a) promptly, within the Warranty 
Period, notifying Seller of any claim, and (b) providing reasonable cooperation in the defense of any claim. 

(May 2015) 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 75 of 311



9. Assignment.  Neither party may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, nor any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written 
consent of the other party; provided, however, the Seller may assign its rights and obligations under these terms to its affiliates or in connection with 
the sale or transfer of the Seller's business and Seller may grant a security interest in the Agreement and/or assign proceeds of the agreement without 
Buyer's consent. 

10. Termination.  Either party may terminate this agreement, upon issuance of a written notice of breach and a thirty (30) day cure period, for a 
material breach (including but not limited to, filing of bankruptcy, or failure to fulfill the material obligations of this agreement). If Buyer suspends an 
order without a change order for ninety (90) or more days, Seller may thereafter terminate this Agreement without liability, upon fifteen (15) days 
written notice to Buyer, and shall be entitled to payment for work performed, whether delivered or undelivered, prior to the date of termination. 

11. Dispute Resolution.  Seller and Buyer shall negotiate in good faith to resolve any dispute relating hereto. If, despite good faith efforts, the 
parties are unable to resolve a dispute or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or its breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or 
validity, the parties will first seek to agree on a forum for mediation to be held in a mutually agreeable site. If the parties are unable to resolve the 
dispute through mediation, then any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, 
interpretation or validity thereof, including the determination of the scope or applicability of this agreement to arbitrate, shall be determined by 
arbitration in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania before three arbitrators who are lawyers experienced in the discipline that is the subject of the dispute and shall 
be jointly selected by Seller and Buyer. The arbitration shall be administered by JAMS pursuant to its Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures. 
The Arbitrators shall issue a reasoned decision of a majority of the arbitrators, which shall be the decision of the panel. Judgment may be entered upon 
the arbitrators' decision in any court of competent jurisdiction. The substantially prevailing party as determined by the arbitrators shall be reimbursed 
by the other party for all costs, expenses and charges, including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by the prevailing party in 
connection with the arbitration. For any order shipped outside of the United States, any dispute shall be referred to and finally determined by the 
International Center for Dispute Resolution in accordance with the provisions of its International Arbitration Rules, enforceable under the New York 
Convention (Convention on the Recognition and Enforcement of Foreign Arbitral Awards) and the governing language shall be English. 

12. Export Compliance.  Buyer acknowledges that Seller is required to comply with applicable export laws and regulations relating to the sale, 
exportation, transfer, assignment, disposal and usage of the Work provided under this Agreement, including any export license requirements. Buyer 
agrees that such Work shall not at any time directly or indirectly be used, exported, sold, transferred, assigned or otherwise disposed of in a manner 
which will result in non-compliance with such applicable export laws and regulations. It shall be a condition of the continuing performance by Seller 
of its obligations hereunder that compliance with such export laws and regulations be maintained at all times. BUYER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY 
AND HOLD SELLER HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL COSTS, LIABILI fIES, PENALTIES, SANCTIONS AND FINES RELATED TO NON-
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE EXPORT LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 

13. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING ELSE TO THE CONTRARY, SELLER SHALL NOT BE 
LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR OTHER INDIRECT DAMAGES, AND SELLER'S TOTAL 
LIABILITY ARISING AT ANY TIME FROM THE SALE OR USE OF THE WORK, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY LIABILITY 
FOR ALL WARRANTY CLAIMS OR FOR ANY BREACH OR FAILURE TO PERFORM ANY OBLIGATION UNDER THE CONTRACT, 
SHALL NOT EXCEED THE PURCHASE PRICE PAID FOR THE WORK. THESE LIMITATIONS APPLY WHETHER THE LIABILITY IS 
BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER THEORY. 

14. Rental Eduipment / Services.  Any leased or rented equipment ("Leased Equipment") provided by Seller shall at all times be the property 
of Seller with the exception of certain miscellaneous installation materials purchased by the Buyer, and no right or property interest is transferred to 
the Buyer, except the right to use any such Leased Equipment as provided herein. Buyer agrees that it shall not pledge, lend, or create a security interest 
in, part with possession of, or relocate the Leased Equipment. Buyer shall be responsible to maintain the Leased Equipment in good and efficient 
working order. At the end of the initial term specified in the order, the terms shall automatically renew for the identical period unless canceled in writing 
by Buyer or Seller not sooner than three (3) months nor later than one (1) month from termination of the initial order or any renewal terms. Upon any 
renewal, Seller shall have the right to issue notice of increased pricing which shall be effective for any renewed terms unless Buyer objects in writing 
within fifteen (15) days of issuance of said notice. If Buyer timely cancels service in writing prior to the end of the initial or any renewal term this shall 
not relieve Buyer of its obligations under the order for the monthly rental service charge which shall continue to be due and owing. Upon the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement, Buyer shall promptly make any Leased Equipment available to Seller for removal. Buyer hereby agrees that it shall 
grant Seller access to the Leased Equipment location and shall permit Seller to take possession of and remove the Leased Equipment without resort to 
legal process and hereby releases Seller from any claim or right of action for trespass or damages caused by reason of such entry and removal. 

15. Miscellaneous.  These terms, together with any Contract Documents issued or signed by the Seller, comprise the complete and exclusive 
statement of the agreement between the parties (the "Agreement") and supersede any terms contained in Buyer's documents, unless separately signed 
by Seller. No part of the Agreement may be changed or cancelled except by a written document signed by Seller and Buyer. No course of dealing or 
performance, usage of trade or failure to enforce any term shall be used to modify the Agreement. To the extent the Agreement is considered a 
subcontract under Buyer's prime contract with an agency of the United States government, in case of Federal Acquisition Regulations (FARs) flow 
down terms, Seller will be in compliance with SeCtion 44.403 of the FAR relating to commercial items and those additional clauses as specifically 
listed in 52244-6, Subcontracts for Commercial Items (OCT 2014). If any of these terms is unenforceable, such term shall be limited only to the extent 
necessary to make it enforceable, and all other terms shall remain in full force and effect. The Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania without regard to its conflict of laws provisions. Both Buyer and Seller reject the applicability of the United Nations 
Convention on Contracts for the international sales of goods to the relationship between the parties and to all transactions arising from said relationship. 

(May 2015) 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 76 of 311



eVOQUA 
WATER TECHNOLOGIES 

QUOTE AND ORDER FORM 

NOTE: Any order resulting from this quote is subject to the terms and conditions 
attached and acceptance by Evoqua. Purchaser's acceptance of this offer is 
expressly limited to such terms and conditions without change or addition. 

Accepted by Buyer: 

Signed 

Acknowledged by Seller: Evoqua Water 
Technologies, LLC 

Signed 

Printed Name 	 Printed Name 

Title 

Date 

Title 

Date 

CONTRACTOR NOTE:  This Quote by Evoqua Water Technologies LLC (Evoqua) is 
further contingent upon such things as: (i) resolution of mutually acceptable payment 
terms; (ii) Evoqua's satisfactory completion of an anti-corruption due diligence review; 
and (iii) written agreement specifically acknowledging acceptance of terms and conditions 
mutually agreed upon by parties. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 77 of 311



evoQUA 
WATER TECHNOLOGIES 

March 16, 2016 

Debbie Allen 
City of Sedro-Woolley, WWTP 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 

ATTN: Debbie Allen 

RE: Components for 5300 Mammoth Rotor 

This letter is to confirm that the 5300 Mammoth Rotor is a proprietary item for Evoqua Water 
Technologies LLC. We are the O.E.M. for the Stainless Steel Rotor Blades, Inboard Shaft, Outboard 
Shaft, End Shield, & Angle End Shield used on this equipment. If you have any questions, please feel 
free to give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

Fergus Robinson 
Aftermarket Sales 

1828 Metcalf Avenue 
Thomasville, GA 31792 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 78 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL k{AMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley. WA 98284 

Phone (3601855-9922 
Fax (3601855-9923 

Eron M. Berg 
City SupervisorlAttorney 

MEMO TO: 
	

City Council 
FROM: 
	

Eron Berg 
RE: 
	

Interlocal for possible drainage projects 
FOR MEETING: 
	

April 13. 2016 

ISSUE: 	Should the Council approve the attached interlocal agreement between Skagit 
County and the city for possible shared funding for drainage projects? 

BACKGROUND: 	Sedro-Woolley and Skagit County are parties to an agreement regarding 
the annexation of the northeast addition to the city, including Carter, Caulkin, Wedmore, 
McGarigle, and Fruitdale streets. In that annexation agreement. Skagit County agreed to assist 
the city with funding for Fruitdale and McGarigle Roads (funded and complete) as well as 
funding for drainage improvements on Carter. Wedmore and Caulkin. The annexation 
agreement expired at the end of 2014, shortly after the city asked the county to fund additional 
drainage improvements. The county provided the attached interlocal agreement which will allow 
for the possible funding of up to $100,000 in drainage improvements on those streets. 

POSSIBLE MOTION: 	Motion to approve the attached interlocal agreement with Skagit 
County and authorize the mayor to sign the agreement. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 79 of 311



SKAGIT COUNTY 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

1800 Continental Place, Mount Vernon, WA 98273-5625 
(360) 416-1400 FAX (360) 336-9478 

September 16, 2015 

Mr. Eron M. Berg, City Supervisor/City Attorney 
Mr. Mark A. Freiberger, Director of Public Works 
City of Sedro-Woolley 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 
325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Re: 	Recent Discussion Regarding Annexation Interlocal Agreement 

Dear Mr. Berg and Mr. Freiberger: 

This letter further responds to our positive and productive meeting on April 10, 2015, in which 
we discussed the preparation of a new interlocal agreement to help facilitate further discussion of 
possible cooperation between the County and the City regarding future drainage work in the 
vicinity of Carter Road, Caulkins Place, and Wedmore Place. 

In this regard, please see the enclosed proposed draft interlocal agreement. If this meets with the 
City's approval, please return an executed original copy to my attention so that it may be 
presented to the Board of Commissioners for consideration. 

As we discussed, the enclosed new interlocal also formally acknowledges the termination and 
satisfaction of the previous expired annexation interlocal agreement. 

We look forward continuing to work with you on this important matter, and I look forward to 
hearing from you soon. 

Sincerely, 

Dan Berentson 
Public Works Director 

Encls. 

Cc: 	Lisa Janicki, Skagit County Commissioner (District 3) 
Kenneth A. Dahlstedt, Skagit County Commissioner (District 2) 
Ron Wesen, Skagit County Commissioner (District 1) 
Tim Holloran, County Administrator 
Paul A. Randall-Grutter, P.E., County Engineer 
Melinda Miller, Chief Civil Deputy 
Stephen R. Fallquist, Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 80 of 311



After Recording Return to: 

SKAGIT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
1800 CONTINENTAL PLACE, STE. 100 
MOUNT VERNON, WA 98273 • 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

AND 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

THIS AGREEMENT (herein "Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Sedro-Woolley, a Washington municipal corporation ("City") and Skagit County, a political 
subdivision of the State of Washington ("County") pursuant to the authority granted by Chapter 
39.34 RCW, INTERLOCAL COOPERATION ACT, The City and the County may be individually 
referred to herein as a "party", and may be collectively referred to herein as the "parties." 

WHEREAS, the parties previously entered into an interlocal agreement dated December 
13, 2004 (Skagit County Contract # C20040498) concerning the annexation of certain property 
into the City limits and matters related thereto (herein the "Annexation Interlocal"); and 

WHEREAS, the Annexation Interlocal expired by its own terms on December 13, 2014, 
and the parties hereby fully recognize and agree that both the County and the City have fully 
satisfied each party's respective duties and obligations pursuant to the terms Annexation 
Interlocal; and 

WHEREAS, although the Annexation Interlocal has expired, and although the parties 
have fully satisfied the terms of the Annexation Interlocal, the parties still desire to create a 
framework for potential cooperation by and between the parties for additional drainage work at 
and in the vicinity of Carter Road, Wedmore Place, and Caulkins Place (as described pursuant 
to Section 1., below). 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein, 
THE PARTIES HERETO DO HEREBY AGREE as follows: 

1. 	PURPOSE: The County and City shall work together and cooperate in good faith to 
potentially design and develop additional drainage facilities (to be constructed, owned, and 
operated by the City) at and in the vicinity of Carter Road, Wedmore Place, and Caulkins Place 
(herein the "Project"). The parties mutually agree that the local Skagit County community may 
be benefited by the possible future design and development of the Project, pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement. But for the mutual recognition by the parties that the Annexation 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Page 1 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 81 of 311



Interlocal (defined above) has expired by its own terms, and the mutual recognition by the 
parties that both parties have fully satisfied their respective duties and obligations concerning 
the Annexation Interlocal, the parties would not have entered into this Agreement. The parties 
agree that the mutual benefit provided by the terms of this Agreement are adequate 
consideration for this Agreement. 

2. RESPONSIBILITIES: The parties to this Agreement mutually agree as follows: 

2.1 	The County shall perform the following duties and obligations pursuant to the terms of 
this Agreement (upon and subject to the following conditions): 

2.1.1 Subsequent to the mutual execution of this Agreement, the County shall engage the City 
in ongoing good faith discussions and negotiations regarding possible contributions that 
may be made by the County to the City for the possible design and construction of the 
potential drainage Project (as described in Section 1.). 

2.1.2 The County is not otherwise obligated to provide any funds, or perform or provide any 
other services, duties, or responsibilities pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

2.2 	The City shall perform the following duties and obligations pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement (upon and subject to the following conditions): 

2.2.1 Subsequent to the mutual execution of this Agreement, the City shall engage the County 
in ongoing good faith discussions and negotiations regarding possible contributions that 
may be made by the City to the County for the possible design and construction of the 
potential drainage Project (as described in Section 1.). 

2.2.2 The City is not otherwise obligated to provide any funds, or perform or provide any other 
services, duties, or responsibilities pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

3. TERM OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall commence upon the date of mutual 
execution, and shall continue for a period of five (5) years, unless this Agreement is sooner 
terminated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

4. MANNER OF FINANCING: Unless this Agreement is subsequently duly amended 
(pursuant to the terms of Section 10.) to provide for potential project funding, no funds will be 
provided by the County to the City (or by the City to the County) pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement. As described per the terms of Section 1. (above), the initial purpose of this 
Agreement is solely to provide a framework for discussions and negotiations by and between 
the parties regarding the potential future design and development of the Project. In the event 
that this Agreement is subsequently amended by duly executed written agreement of the parties 
to allow for potential Project funding to be provided by the County to the City, any such funding 
shall paid be from the County Drainage utility in a total amount not to exceed One Hundred 
Thousand dollars ($100,000). 

5. ADMINISTRATION: The following individuals are designated as representatives of the 
respective parties. 	The representatives shall be responsible for administration of this 
Agreement and for coordinating and monitoring performance under this Agreement. In the 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Page 2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 82 of 311



event such representatives are changed, the party making the change shall notify the other 
party. 

5.1 	The County's representative shall be the County Public Works Director, or his 
designee. 

5.2 	City's representative shall be the City Public Works Director, or his designee. 

6. INDEMNIFICATION: Except as is otherwise set forth per the terms of this Agreement, 
each party agrees to be responsible and assume liability for its own wrongful and/or negligent 
acts or omissions or those of their officials, officers, agents, or employees to the fullest extent 
required by law, and further agrees to save, indemnify, defend, and hold the other party 
harmless from any such liability. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the County 
or City by reason of entering into this contract except as expressly provided herein. 

7. TREATMENT OF ASSETS AND PROPERTY: No fixed assets or personal or real 
property will be jointly or cooperatively held or used pursuant to this Agreement. Upon 
completion of any potential future Project, the City shall be and remain solely and separately 
liable and responsible for the use, maintenance, repair, replacement, and operation of any 
potential future Project drainage facilities (and for any other City facilities or infrastructure at or 
in the vicinity of the Project). 

8. TERMINATION: Either party hereto may terminate this Agreement upon providing thirty 
(30) days' notice in writing either personally delivered or mailed postage-prepaid by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the party's last known address for the purposes of giving 
notice under this paragraph. If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable 
only for performance rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 

9. NEUTRAL AUTHORSHIP: Each of the terms and provisions of this Agreement have been 
reviewed and negotiated, and represents the combined work product of the parties hereto. No 
presumption or other rules of construction which would interpret the provisions of this Agreement in 
favor of or against the party preparing the same shall be applicable in connection with the 
construction or interpretation of any of the provisions of this Agreement. The parties represent that 
they have had a full and fair opportunity to seek legal advice with respect to the terms of this 
Agreement and have either done so, or have voluntarily chosen not to do so. The parties 
represent and warrant that they have fully read this Agreement, that they understand its meaning 
and effect, and that they enter into this Agreement with full knowledge of its terms. The parties 
have entered into this Agreement without duress or undue influence. 

10. CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS, & WAIVERS: This Agreement may be 
changed, modified, amended or waived only by subsequent written agreement duly executed by 
the parties hereto. Waiver or breach of any term or condition of this Agreement shall not be 
considered a waiver of any prior or subsequent breach. 

11. SEVERABIL1TY: In the event any term or condition of this Agreement or application 
thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 
terms, conditions or applications of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid 
term, condition, or application. To this end the terms and conditions of this Agreement are 
declared severable. 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Page 3 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 83 of 311



12. VENUE AND CHOICE OF LAW: In the event that any litigation should arise concerning 
the construction or interpretation of any of the terms of this Agreement, the venue of such action of 
litigation shall be in the Superior Court of the State of Washington in and for the County of Skagit. 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington. 

13. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: This Agreement is not intended to nor does it 
create any third party beneficiary or other rights in any third person or party, including, but not 
limited to, property owners, tenants, and/or residents located at or in the vicinity of the Project, 
or any agent, contractor, subcontractor, consultant, employee, volunteer, or other representative 
of either party. 

14. NO PARTNERSHIP OR JOINT VENTURE: No partnership and/or joint venture exists 
between the City and the County, and no partnership and/or joint venture is created by and 
between the City and the County by virtue of this Agreement. No agent, employee, contractor, 
subcontractor, consultant, volunteer, and/or other representative of the parties shall be deemed 
an agent, employee, contractor, subcontractor, consultant, volunteer, or other representative of 
the other party. 

15. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING: Unless otherwise expressly provided 
herein, no portion of this Agreement may be assigned, contracted, and/or subcontracted by 
either party t o any other individual, firm, company, and/or other entity without the express 
and prior written approval of the other party. 

16. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, PERMITS, & GRANTS: The parties to this Agreement shall 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations in carrying out the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. If applicable, compliance with laws shall specifically 
include, but not be limited to, compliance with laws pertaining to the payment of prevailing 
wage on public works (including, but not necessarily limited to RCW 39.12). If applicable, 
compliance with laws shall also specifically include, but not be limited to, compliance with laws 
for the procurement of contracts for architectural and engineering services (including, but not 
necessarily limited to RCW 39.80). If necessary, the parties shall obtain and comply with all 
necessary permits and approvals from all applicable jurisdictions prior to commencing any work 
related to this Agreement, and individually each party shall be solely and separately responsible 
and liable for compliance with all terms and conditions of any permit(s) and/or grant(s) obtained 
or procured in such party's name. 

17. USE OF DOCUMENTS AND MATERIALS PRODUCED: Both parties shall have the 
right to use and distribute any and all documents, writings, programs, data, public records or other 
materials prepared by any party (and/or any party's contractors, consultants, and/or 
subcontractors), in connection with performance of this Agreement: The parties recognize and 
agree that any documents and/or materials arising from and/or related to this Agreement may be 
subject to public disclosure pursuant to applicable law (including RCW 42.56). 

18. STATUS OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement is in addition to, and is not intended to 
replace, substitute, modify, or otherwise amend any other agreements by and between the 
parties. Any other agreements by and between the parties shall continue in full force and effect. 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Page 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 84 of 311



19. CAPTIONS & COUNTERPARTS: The captions in this agreement are for convenience 
and reference only and do not define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of this Agreement. 
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and each such counterpart 
hereof shall be deemed to be an original instrument, but all such counterparts together shall 
constitute but one Agreement. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed 
upon by the parties. All items incorporated herein by reference are attached. No other 
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY: 

DATED this 

 

day of 	 , 2015 

  

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

Approved as to Form: 

Eron Berg, City Attorney 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Page 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 85 of 311



DATED this 	day of 	 , 2015. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

Kenneth A. Dahlstedt, Chair 

Lisa Janicki, Commissioner 

Attest: 	 Ron Wesen, Commissioner 

Clerk of the Board 
For contracts under $5,000: 
Authorization per Resolution R20030146 

Recommended: 	 County Administrator 

Department Head 

Approved as to form: 

Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

Approved as to indemnification: 

Risk Manager 

Approved as to budget: 

Budget & Finance Director 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Page 6 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 86 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 
7:00 P.M. COUNCIL_CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley. WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-1661 
Fax (360) 855-0707 

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Anderson 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 	 Possible Contract Award 
Contract 2016-PW-01, Jameson Arterial Extension to SR9 Project 
SRV Construction, Inc. 

DATE: 	April 7, 2016 (for Council action April 13, 2016) 

ISSUE: 
Shall council move to approve Resolution 	-16 awarding the Jameson Arterial Extension Project 
contract 2016-PW-01 to SRV Construction, Inc., of Oak Harbor, WA, for the Base Bid and Schedule A, in 
the amount of $1,883,882.00 (including sales tax), subject to concurrence to award from the Washington 
State Department of Transportation and the Transportation Improvement Board? 

BACKGROUND! DISCUSSION: 
Bids closed on April 6, 2016 with seven bids received. The bid tabulation is attached. The low bid was 
from SRV Construction, Inc. of Oak Harbor, WA with a total bid of $1,883,882.00 for the Base Bid and 
Schedule A. The low bid was 4.0% under the $1,962,055.00 engineer's estimate for this project. The 
second bid was 0,8% higher than the low bid. All seven bids fell within a range of 6.7%. The basis for 
award was the total of the Base Bid plus Schedule A. 

SRV is well known to city staff, having completed several recent projects satisfactorily. They are well 
staffed, and well managed. Staff checked several references with other agencies for projects of similar 
size and scope performed recently by SRV. Responses were generally in conformity with staff 
experience. The proposed superintendent for the project is a well-respected construction professional. 

The project includes federal funding, which brought the requirement for an 18% mandatory 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise goal. SRV's bid includes DBE participation of 19.8%, exceeding the 
goal. 

We plan to expedite award and execution of the contract in order to maximize the construction window for 
this 120 working day project. Assuming council approval on April 13, and concurrence to award by that 
date, the contract work should start during the third week of May 2016, with all work to be completed by 
mid-November 2016. 

Design work for this contract was performed by Lochner. Construction management will be performed by 
the Public Works Department, with the Director acting as Project Manager and Bob Pyritz as Construction 
Manager. Wally Hoyt will provide construction inspection and support. Lochner will be retained to 
provide engineering support, including record drawings. We are contracting separately for construction 
surveying and materials testing. Selection of these two firms is in progress. 

FINANCIAL: 
Base Bid — TIB Funded Street Project 
Revenue: 
TIB Urban Arterial Program Funds Base Bid plus Schedule A $1,724,974 
Federal STPUS funds - Schedule A $ 	656,750 
Sedro Woolley School District - Schedule B $ 	6,000 
Account 104 Transportation Benefit District funds $ 	55,507 (see notes below) 
TOTAL REVENUE $2,443,231 

2016-4-13 Award 2016-PW-01 SRV Construction doe 
	

4 7/2016 2 58. 28 PM 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 87 of 311



Estimated Cost: 
Construction Contract—SRV 	 $1,883,882 
Construction Other — PSE Intolight, PSE 	 $ 160,000 
Lochner — Engineering Support 	 $ 20,000 
Surveying — award pending 	 $ 39,000 
Testing - award pending 	 $ 	19,000 
City Staff Construction Management & Inspection 	 $ 211,520 
TOTAL BASE BID PLUS SCH A EXPENDITURES 	 $2,333,402 

ANALYSIS: 
The Jameson Arterial Extension to SR 9 Project estimated construction phase cost is shown above. The 
design work cost is still in flux, but we are currently estimating that we will be under the estimated budget 
of $317,316. Any remaining federal funds will be available for the construction phase if needed. 

TIB funds will fund the largest part of the project. The Award funds authorization will be submitted to TIB 
in the next few days. We anticipate that the award amount will decrease slightly to reflect the actual bid 
amount. 

The estimated city match for the construction phase is $55,507. The local match will be made up of 
salaries totaling $44,957 and $10,550 in cash, proposed from the Transportation Benefit District. The 
TBD Annual Report presented on January 13, 2016 proposed $11,992 for this project in 2016 for this 
purpose. 

There are sufficient funds available as noted above to award the project. 

A budget amendment will be required to confirm the funding for the project; this will be brought to council 
at a subsequent meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The low bid has been checked for accuracy and found to be complete and acceptable. The low bidder is 
a well known area contractor and has the capacity and the experience to complete the work. Staff 
recommends award of the contract to SRV Construction Inc. of Oak Harbor, WA. 

MOTION: 

Move to approve Resolution 	awarding the Jameson Arterial Extension Project contract 
2016-PW-01 to SRV Construction, Inc., of Oak Harbor, WA, for the Base Bid and Schedule A, in the 
amount of $1,883,882.00 (including sales tax), subject to concurrence to award from the 
Washington State Department of Transportation and the Transportation Improvement Board. 

2016-4-13 Award 2016-PW-D1 SRV Construction doc 	 4 7/2016 2 58 28 PM 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 88 of 311



RESOLUTION NO. -16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, 
AWARDING THE JAMESON ARTERIAL EXTENSION TO SR9 PROJECT, IDENTIFYING THE 

PROJECT MANAGER, AND DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDERS 

WHEREAS, bids were opened on April 6, 2016 and the Public Works Director reported 
to the City Council the apparent low bidder; 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director has recommended awarding the bid to SRV 
Construction, Inc. of Oak Harbor, Washington; and 

WHEREAS, before the contractor mobilizes, the City Council desires to identify the 
project manager and delegate authority to the City's Public Works Director to authorize change 
orders with certain limitations; and 

WHEREAS, the City's Public Works Director is the project manager for the project; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires the construction of that project with a process that both 
includes the City Council in critical decision-making and allows for rapid decision-making when 
required by site conditions and project circumstances; and 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: The bid for the Jameson Arterial Extension to SR9 Project is awarded to SRV 
Construction, Inc. of Oak Harbor, Washington in the amount of $1,883,882.00 (including sales 
tax), and, the Mayor is authorized to enter into a contract with that contractor to construct the 
project. 

Section 2: The Public Works Director is hereby authorized to enter into Change Orders with the 
contractor provided that the following conditions are met: 

A. Any individual Change Order does not exceed the amount of 
twenty five thousand Dollars ($25,000.00). 

B. The aggregate total of all Change Orders approved under this 
Resolution shall not exceed the project's contingency budget. 

C. Following the approval of any Change Order under this 
Resolution, the Public Works Director shall provide an information 
report to the Council with the details. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR ON THIS 
13 1̀1  day of April, 2016. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 89 of 311



MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

FINANCE DIRECTOR 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 90 of 311



1 T.1 

,i 

UNIT TOTAL 
_PRICE AMOUNT P

E
E

P
E

S
E

E
E

E
M

P
E

P
E

E
E

S
E

F
E

E
E

E
S

E
P

O
S

E
P

E
E

E
S

S
E

E
P

E
E

S
E

E
S

E
S

$
K

S
P

S
S

E
E

S
P

E
E

P
E

E
E

E
P

E
E

X
E

 
M

g
M

W
-M

g
F

.E
§
E

g
E

g
ilg

iZ
IM

U
M

IIn
g
,0

1
1
5
E

H
F

E
E

M
E

m
l§

p
a
illi?

”
5
1
1
1
9
5
i6

 
E 	

2
4
5
5
2
f4

"
2
4
2
:.:"

2
a
P

;:6
°
 .. p

P
. . 2

5
'2

2
-
-
 	
.
"
-
 
	

K
E
-

p 	
.
 	

—
 	

...- 	
. 	

a
5
-
 	
-
'P

'-
2
5

7
a
"
 	

"
 	

-
 

E
P

P
E

S
E

P
E

P
P

:S
P

E
S

E
E

p
S

5
8
8
/E

E
P

2
2
E

2
2
S

5
P

P
!$

$
£
P

IP
E

F
8
E

!!S
E

S
IS

8
E

S
E

P
S

E
E

E
S

E
2
2
2
E

S
P

E
P

R
P

2
 

gg
-F*11E

—
F

"
R

g
g
--7-*

".. -xt--ggggEF-.7
F
—
'
-

gF
2-, '5.55.--"

"
g
g
ig

g
g
g
'E

g
i-
-
-
  

? 	
R

;15 	
P 	

.
,
 	

.
.
 	

,
 

ig
 

1
2

 

C
,a 

ii 

6  
I MIT  TOTAL 

PRICE AMOUNT 5
8
8
2
5
2
5
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
E

8
5
2
2
8
2
2
2
8
P

P
IE

S
S

F
$
8
8
8
5
5
5
5
2
2
2
1
8
2
5
P

2
2
2
2
2
1
2
2
2
2
E

S
S

F
IE

R
IP

E
E

P
H

E
E

S
P

E
E

 
M

€
?.8

liE
ln

§
liiE

H
E

iu
m

m
u

lifig
M

5
€

5
1

g
1

g
§

rag
iF

H
E

R
.E

§
E

ilm
g

5
€€lig

g
g

v
1

^a 
P 	

P
a
g
x
"
..2

."
5
2
;P

.P
.P

P
g
p
P

r
"
P

:.-
..4

$
"
X

"
 	
"
-
"
-
' 	

2
2
-
5
'"

 	
P

.P
P

.E
.. 	

• 

e
tttS

E
S

E
P

a
R

E
S

IP
S

P
E

P
P

H
S

E
P

P
E

E
S

P
E

E
E

E
E

S
E

E
P

E
S

E
M

P
E

E
P

F
E

S
S

E
P

E
S

E
S

E
E

S
P

E
E

R
E

P
2
2
2
2
a
!M

2
 

Vi
-
P
I
E
g
i.
—
§
a
P
P
,
M

-
5

—
E

4
-

P
f-.̂

"
I
I
M
U
I
P
P
:
l
a
 
.
 	

-
Z
P
5
2
5
.
:
E
P
P
R
S
a
a
5
5
1
W
m
P
H
E
- 	

..= 

F il
2 

i
t
 

i 

E
E

E
S

E
E

E
E

E
S

E
S

E
S

P
E

S
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

S
E

P
E

E
E

S
S

E
E

E
E

E
S

E
E

E
E

S
S

8
S

P
8

8
2

E
.E

S
S

2
8

2
2

E
IS

P
P

E
E

E
F

E
S

E
S

E
E

S
E

S
S

 
,I 

M
iliM

iiii§
1

1
1

1
;E

rn
g

lim
M

iiiiM
M

IIM
E

m
i§

E
F

F
Ig

H
U

M
U

n
g

?
1

1
:E

5
g

1
 

;
-

.,
;:z

p
*
K

-
-2

1
5
-
-*

-
-

1
7
-
"
2
..E

-
2
2

-
g

 -
-
-
-
-
 -

-
-
 	

*
:-...-

k
-
g

-
,.t

"
 - p2-"2,.ga-.

-"
:
-
-

R
.E

X
' 	
.
 	

.
 

'
 
2
2
2
€
5
2
5
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
M

E
S

E
P

L
E

E
S

E
E

E
P

2
8
£
5
5
2
2
2
2
2
P

S
E

S
E

S
E

2
8
5
2
2
5
1
5
2
8
E

2
2
5
8
£
5
2
8
8
2
8
5
2
2
2
6
2
 

5
W

-.7711g
—

g
=

"4
1
E

-"
;
-
t

-tg
g

"
?
e
g

g
g

ig
"
E

Z
?
"
 	
-!')=

2;cF5
5
5
K*4

g
g
tg

!g
g
.n

.g
1
°.'"

"
 

2 .;- 	
VhR 	

:
 
	

-
,
 

• 1 
 1
!
 

a
'
 

l
'
 

2
2

5
2

5
5

2
5

8
M

P
E

S
S

E
E

S
E

S
2

8
6

2
2

5
F

2
2

2
a
S

E
P

P
E

E
E

S
E

E
E

S
E

E
E

S
E

S
E

S
E

S
E

E
8

€
E

S
E

E
E

S
S

E
E

S
S

E
S

S
E

P
P

E
E

E
 

4
=
M
R
E
U
i
r
i
l
M
1
6
§
§
=1

B
U

iZ
E

E
E

ig
g

I
g

n
g

2
§
M

ilig
g
ig

ig
g
g
r
iM

g
E

g
g
§
M

,§
g
g
lig

g
i

'M
 

0
x
=
1
P
i
x
.
7
-
2
-
^
R
 	

'P
a
P

P
:i"

"
p

2
.2

a
^
5

.1
 	
-
^
"
"
 	7.2-

A.P"!..5".:P.2c'a; --- ';', -- P.2pP". 	
.
 

'
 

' 
2

2
2

°
.2

2
5

5
2

5
5

2
2

5
2

2
2

2
2

.1
2

2
2

S
E

E
E

S
.E

.E
M

E
S

P
2

2
2

2
2

2
5

2
2

2
2

2,
2

2
2

2
2

P
B

E
F

E
$

S
E

E
E

P
E

E
E

S
E

E
IP

E
P

E
E

 
.
 

i
g
g
r
a
q
g
,!

"
-
"
§
P
=
P
E
P
E
-
iggii - e

itim
m

e
x
w

----g
2
ts

=
.2

'7 . 2
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
m

E
2
.1

g
tig

g
 

.
.
a
 	

a
' 	

'- 	
. 	

.
 

P li,
 

 1
1
 

 a
 

]
g

  

"
 	'
 

a
M

M
§
iF

E
E

E
§
g
lig

I
g
g
g
g
ig

iliP
lU

g
g
ig

]
M

g
@

M
g
g
ig

g
ig

r
n
ig

U
g
ig

?
I
g
g
g
g
H

§
g
g
g
f
ig

n
g
 

g
g
e
t
z
K
g
S
P
I
=.

2
#
4.
-
P.P.

5
'
0
2
 

1
gg

-4
=
i
]
E
P
 

P
2
5
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
5
5
5
S

P
E

P
S

E
S

E
E

S
E

S
8
2
2
8
8
2
2
2
2
2
5
2
2
2
5
2
5
/2

5
5
2
2
2
5
2
2
5
E

M
E

E
E

IE
M

E
E

E
S

E
E

S
E

S
E

E
E

S
 

-
-
-
 
a
z
"
P
P
"
X
"
P
 
-
-
-
-
 	.... 	

p
.
x
"
.
.
.
.
-
p
p
p
p
-
p
a
-
.
^
.
.
-
-
p
-
p
p
.
 	- 	

- 

F
P-  U

P
E

E
E

P
€
E

E
E

!E
S

E
E

E
P

E
O

P
S

E
S

E
E

!P
E

P
S

E
E

E
8
E

E
E

E
S

S
S

E
E

S
E

S
P

E
P

p
E

E
S

S
P

 E
S

S
S

E
E

M
E

E
P

E
4
E

S
S

E
 

	

'.§
1
 	

--s
1

-
7

g
!-

-
D

tim
§

=
§

g
-
-
-

ig
$

&
P

c
 	
'
-
-
-
-
-

A
-
g

:
lv

t
§

:
m

"
-
-
-
  E

 

2
2

2
 	

2 	
t
.
 

 

2 
 ]
%
 

g
tI
 

 
I
-
 

:
 

o.7 
-
1
- 
 

-
 g

W
M

:iiiiH
g
g
ilg

g
ig

g
-tg

g
g
iV

itig
g
lig

ig
g
g
p
k
g
ig

R
E

g
g
g
iE

F
E

-1
0

-
 

i
'
t
i
t
2
 

fP
;S

S
£
P

a
P

P
E

P
P

E
E

S
S

IS
P

E
E

P
E

S
S

P
S

F
E

F
2
a
$
P

a
tP

a
2
1
2
2
2
5
5
6
2
2
5
5
$
5
5
/5

5
5
!E

P
E

!P
;1

5
:1

8
2
2
P

E
S

S
IP

E
 

^tEig.q01iggEg 
L
'O

F
=

1
.

.,;
.

1
5
,Y
.
"
5

"
5

p
:
:
:
!
.
"
g

V
”
,
.
.
5

2
"

.'2
' 	

."
-
 	

2
." 	

P 	
.5

 	
"
"
.4

.
-
:7

2
5

2
"
 	

-
 	

^ 

P
;2

2
2

P
a
S

a
'a

a
P

r.p
p

tE
p

p
a
v

a
p

a
;:lp

 	
g

a
5

g
;:p

.a
m

la
p

.s
a
m

a
p

a
P

.a
z
5

5
2

;2
2

a
P

2
2

2
1

5
2

2
!E

! 
2 	

5
.-

-
2

2
H

-
R

trtE
-
'2

2
5

'i
l
l
i
v

:
;
2

F
i
a
"
-
-

E
F

4
ra

c
k

5
2

5
:
1

5
;
1

:
l
r
n

i
g

E
5

..t
"
'' 

.
 

11 
'
O
 

1   

L".1C_E_ffTO
TAL  

_  
 

_AMOUNT__  5
2
5
5
2
6
2
2
2
8
5
5
5
8
2
2
P

E
2
8
2
P

E
P

E
S

E
S

P
E

P
E

2
8
2
0
2
5
2
5
5
5
2
2
2
2
8
5
2
2
5
2
2
2
2
2
8
F

R
E

E
E

S
P

E
E

F
E

E
S

E
S

S
E

E
8
2
8
 

g
g

lI
g

1
M

g
I
g

H
g

g
H

g
g

H
E

§
I
g

g
E

F
,g

I
I :

g
g

&
M

Ilg
ig

g
g

g
Ig

g
g

g
,H

ig
,g

R
E

F
S
"
"

g
i
"
P

i
i
g
E

1
4
 

s
2

e
z
$

2
5
-

5
-

2
-

rit
-
t
-
-
$
7
7
1

-
"
t
t
-

e
..

—
o

,  -
-
-
.
.
-
-
 
5
5
-
5
"
5
' .5

2
.
-

5
t=

"
; - K

S
 ---- g

^
-
.7

^
7
2
t"

 

2
5

5
2

2
8

2
2

2
2

:5
2

2
3

2
2
2
2
5
5
£
5
2
2
2
2
5
8
2
2
2
2
2
E

S
K

E
E

E
P

E
P

,:a
E

E
P

E
R

4
E

E
E

E
S

E
E

E
E

P
3
S

E
S

!P
S

E
S

 
E

l-
P

;L
ig

-
-
"
F

:,!
ir

.7
7
.s

g
-
s
g
p
z
E

m
ilp

f
.-

p
P

i. 	
g..=

".,':4
55

"
----O

ffig
t=

::ii --- "
 

$ 	
5
.
 	̂

 	
■•= 	

-- 	
.. 

1 u 
6, 1.5 
d
i
 

i
.
;
 

g 3 

uun TOTAL _I 
PRICE  AMOUNT S

E
P

P
E

E
P

E
P

8
O

P
E

E
S

E
S

E
E

M
E

S
E

E
E

S
E

P
E

S
E

S
S

S
E

S
E

M
S

E
E

E
E

E
E

*
S

E
E

E
E

E
S

S
E

E
E

S
S

E
E

S
E

E
E

S
S

E
V

E
E

E
S

2
 

ig
§
g
g
illZ

g
g
l]

g
g
lig

ig
g
g
ig

in
g
g
g
H

ig
g
]
g
g
in

g
illliii§

ig
ig

ig
H

g
lg

g
ig

g
ig

g
g
g
g
iU

g
g
ig

 
.
 	̂

"
.
.
"
.
"
2

5
5

'.
"
-

"
'R

.
'"

a
.

2
7
.
P

."
 -

-
 . -

 ' 	
P

.-
p
'2

.2
.2

"
P

_
 	

..... 	
--- 2

 - 	
p

 ..2
.P

-
-
 

 
2 	

_ 	
-^2a -,-. 	

P 

2
5

2
E

5
5

8
2

5
2

2
8

5
2

5
5

2
5

2
2

8
2

2
5

 	
E

P
E

E
P

E
E

P
E

E
E

S
E

E
S

E
E

!2
!2

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
!€

2
2
2
”
2
2
8
5
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
5
2
!5

2
!2

 
§g

-
s4i

i
i===

@
""§

@
": "

54
5§

f"
M

iig
i5=

W
 -- §

!
"

-`
"
"

2
"
'4

"T
h

U
g

g
=
§
W

s 
 
"
-
!
 

x 

Base  Bid 

„
g

g
 	

'g
' g

§
s
k

 -E
iW

x
p

v
-

Eg 	
 

	

,-
-
-
:.:-

, 	
- 	

- 	
F

.... 	
• 	
'
'
:
:
 	

-
 	

g
g
R

''!
!
g
n
g

s
g
g
!f

e
lig

!
g
5
1

—
"
g

 -- ! - 2
-
!
U

g
;
1

 
-. 

2 	
.
w
s
l
i
.
c
.
.
.
»
.
a
k
t
k
k
e
t
v
4
P
 	
c
 	

'i: 
	

-
5
,
c
 
 
-
-
 
	

,
q
i
i
g
:
t
l
i
:
 
-
-
-
-
-
 	
"
"
-
.1
,1
-:

■ !
'
"
"
'
"
7
/
 

-
-
i
s
 	

—
.
.
.
C
O
R
A
M
—
C
L
C
C
■

■
1a. - gg -- ,..W 

ii 

11 	
.
 

il 	
g 

0
 	

11 	
id 	

1 

	

t 	,
 	II 	

.'01  
 
I
f
 	

licsA 	
iih

i 	
i 	II 	

Ii 
5, 	

W
i
l
l
i
 
M
I
 	

g
 	

i 

	

ill 	li 	
1! 	

1 	Ilirl 	
1 	I 	

i 	
2 

:
 	

-2 	
t v 	

!4 	
!
P
T
I
I
I
P
l
l
 

lili
p
a
 	
Y

111 1 	,:' 1:011 	
it li, i 	

1 	El 	
i
=
0
;
i
i
m
P
l
i
,
 	ill 	 1- 

	

pwitl_Ept.1.11:1111101 	)11 	i
l
 	b
 	I 	ill- 	

"g,A 	 -.,..-- I ii!„). 	 _0.. 0
 

Iidt!IIW 	
ililil

,,V. %::11111Atiiii illYilliMillAMIplliiiillv 
1---117 	

.1WIII"IIII --- T.11"1-- 1 	
ii "Er-ill 	 IIIIIIII ,

 	rt 	
rut -1 

Iglim
i
i111111, 	

1 	,ilt 	
foil

i111
1
1
-
i
t
 	,/ 	..i5.,,IA,/[1,,11.1..IIII;11 

.
4
4
.4
.
"
4
4
;
P
M
W
5
;
q
5
5
1
!
”
4
4
4
4
4

t2
4

4
4

4
;;4

5
'4

1
4

4
1

;4
4

4
4

M
4
.1.7

”
;
;
9
!
!
5
5
5
5
.
n
!
i
  

i
 

:
 
	

2
-"
"
R
a
*
2
F
;
P
.
P
7
P
g
a
P
P
P
4
4
:
2 .
'
-'m2222255a:52P25^525E2POP2Zcz4P:=P 

 &O TOW  ARON  Aa  
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 91 of 311



1
 

S 

4  
8
8
 = 

assssgo 
*5

5
8
5
8
E

5
5
2
5
*R

 

o 	
,§H.F.q-JeeeE1,E 
-
-
"
-
 
-
-
-
,
.
,
-
 

of 

E
S

S
!S

E
S

 

S
8
8
2
8
2
8
 

t
E
e
!..
!
n
 

8
2
8
8
8
5
5
8
8
8
2
5
8
 

n
-
S

lg
S

$
/A

.1
8

 

8
2

5
8

E
8

2
2

E
8

2
2

2
 

@
M
E
,
5
g
i
E
Z
 

S
S
E
S
8
8
8
 

E
F

E
E

E
S

S
E

S
E

S
S

I 
§
§
-814,1-2

S
”
S

 

S
 S
 

2
2
E

2
2
8
8
1
8
2
2
2
2
 

g
g
g
g
e
M
g
g
e
.ie 

S
S
I
S
S
2
S
 

Eigeggg 
ai 

of 
S

 
S
 

 
S 

wrto_ett_im  zop.els.ns  I  

15 
saassea 
2 e
.
"
t
 

M
1

2
8

8
E

8
E

8
8

8
 

gk
-
S

W
E

E
F
.
  

4 S
 
S

 

1.1  
C1 E 

8
8
8
S
8
8
8
 

3k3Eiin 
S

8
2
E

8
2
8
8
8
8
2
8
8
 

a
g
 

5
8

2
2

5
E

8
5

5
2

8
2

5
 

gE
-
;fti E 
	

 
S
S
S
S
s
s
s
 

S 
1
 

re= 
P .8 

V
s-2 

ad 

Y
x
 

p
i 

1e 
it " 
`1 

ug 

S S
 

11;  

8
2
5
8
5
8
8
 

H
U
M
 

-
-
-
-
 

S
E

E
S

S
IS

 
P

S
S

S
-
.

§
 

2
E

8
8
E

2
2
E

8
E

8
E

S
 

M
g
5
M
I
I
V
A
 

S
8

E
2

8
8

8
2

E
2

8
2

2
 

gr75 84P.P.'"s 

s7its5/S.2$28“ 
:-eW.i:F6:171

M
E
 

5
5

8
2

5
8

t.e
5

*
8

5
2

 
R

i-t
IE

**.Se
.s

tl 

S
 z 

p
i 

S
 

 

5
5
5
5
5
5
2
 

EEEEEEE 
M

8
2
E

8
2
E

2
8
2
2
2
 

ig;ieW.EFIU 
e ----- 

8 2 

p
23!1; 

S
 

assssis 

2
8
E

4
8
E

5
5
E

8
E

5
8
 

U
-s!iSS1.1.52 

F.. 	
* 

2
8
8
E
8
8
8
E
8
E
2
2
8
 

§
W
.
M
n
i
g
t
,
t
 

2
E

5
2

8
E

5
2

2
E

2
8

2
 

E8
-
P
W
S
S
.
S
.
4 

8
 

S 

2
3
 

S S
 

S 

S S
 

S
 

S
 

1
 

!
 

LI !
 	

. 	
!
I
 

i
M
i
c
i
c
.
 
Klcbc 

E 
i
M
,
 

E 8 
2
  

8
■

 
2
 

2
  

', 
§
g
 

0
.
x
x
 

X
X
K
X
X
 
K
U
X
X
X
X
5
 

 8
 

E 

8
 

1
 

8
 

1
 

- 

8
 

1
 

- 

5
 

4
.
 

E
s
 ' 

I
 

2
 

2
 

2
 

es 

Aa 
8 e 

8
 

e 
2 g 

8
 

2
g
 

2
.
"
 

8
 	

aa
,1

8
.g
lts

tll 

S
 

8
 

I
 	

S 

857.2822 

e,
s
g

g
g
. 

0
 '''' 

„lifiill 

.".,s i E i 

.1 
.
.
 

;f. 
E - 

=
 	
t
I
t
i
 

i
5
;
W
 

t
I
f
 

'--I
t
a

-1 1
0
 

i=rt
fill,-, 

O
Z

 
2
tiiy

 

yi 
t _ 	

1;
 

El 
t
q
 

'1-.f 
T
E
t
t
 

I
r
n
 

t'tZ .
 

 

.,..J-" 
titlIrpisiii 

 

1
4
-
M
 

 

2.1
V

1 
 

i 1 
.
 

1 ? 

x 
-
 

9-,
 

 1
 

I
A
 

Vey 
7.1 '
l
e
i
 

-
 

.S. t,
 

 i ,., i ,
 

_i. 

'
 -
 

%
 

i i , 

!
 

S f, 
'
 -
 

2
 

2-.. i J i , 

1 i 

'
 

5
5

 
ri 
'1' 
.0

 ;
 

=I; 
M
 

fl 
.17 

lit. 

13. 
23's 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 92 of 311



APR 13 2016 
CITY OF 

4,01pogo2;19asetbizt; 	 7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CIAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMENT 

Name: 
Address: 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

Name: 
Address 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 93 of 311



APR 1 3 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL ?AMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-9922 
Fax (360) 855-9923 

Eron M. Berg 
City Supervisor/Attorney 

MEMO TO: 	City Council 
FROM: 	 Eron Berg 
RE: 	 Retreat follow-up: downtown liquor establishments 
FOR MEETING: 	April 13, 2016 

ISSUE: 	Does the Council desire to reconsider business license fees for businesses, clubs 
or societies selling or serving alcohol and/or take any other follow up action regarding liquor 
establishments? 

BACKGROUND: 	The Council discussed downtown revitalization at the retreat and 
specifically talked about the impact bars and liquor establishments have on the downtown 
business climate. 

In 2001, the city council increased business license fees on bars to $250.00: 

SWMC 5.04.030 B. I. Businesses, clubs or societies selling or serving beer, wine and/or spirits, 

operating under license or authority of the Washington State Liquor Control Board, an annual license 

fee of two hundred fifty dollars. 

At the time, the recommendation was to increase the annual fee to $1,000.00 under the theory 
that these types of establishments demanded more services from the city and that the cost of 
services exceeds tax revenue raised. 

An updated review of alcohol related calls for police service downtown is attached. Detective 
Sorsdal looked at the time period 1-1-2015 to 3-17-2016 and included only the four downtown 
bars. The report does not include calls at other locations that began at the bars (i.e., broken 
windows at the Woolley Market). The report also breaks down the calls by time (before or after 
midnight). It is interesting to note that from midnight to 4:00 A.M. 6.7% of all calls are to those 
four addresses (in contrast to the other approximately 4,200 addresses in the city). 

POSSIBLE MOTION: 	Please provide direction to staff. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 94 of 311



MEMO 

To: Eron Berg 

From: Detective Heather Sorsdal 

To determine the impact of late night alcohol service on the city of Sedro-Woolley, 1 
have compiled information on calls for service related to downtown bars. 

Methods 

The bars considered for this report are The Overflow, G's Castle, The Bullpen, and Old 
Timer's Inn. Only Law enforcement calls related to property damage or loss, alcohol 
problems, or violent acts or the potential for violence have been considered. Fire and 
Aid responses were not tabulated. 

Property complaints include thefts and malicious mischief calls. Alcohol complaints 
include DUIs, public indecency, and alcohol problems. Violence complaints include 
assaults, fights, removals, domestics, disorderly subjects, and 911 hang ups. 

Findings 

Between 1/1/15-3/17/16, Sedro-Woolley Police Department was dispatched to a total of 
120 calls for service to the 4 downtown bars. 45 calls occurred between 8PM and 
midnight, 58 calls occurred between midnight and 4AM, and 17 calls occurred between 
4AM and 8PM 

Calls for service by hour 

r 	- 

ALL OTHER 
14% 

8PM TO MIDNIGHT 
38% 

MIDNIGHT TO 4AM 48imoi 
% 

• 

 

-■7 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 95 of 311



During that same time period, Sedro-Woolley officers were dispatched to a total 862 
calls for service between the hours of midnight at 4AM with 58 of those calls, or 6.7%, 
coming only from the 4 downtown bars. 

Origin of calls for service 
Midnight to 4AM 

fil  
Downtown bars 

7% 

Between the hours of 8PM and midnight, officers were dispatched to 2 property calls, 11 
alcohol calls, 18 violence calls, and 10 other calls. Between the hours of midnight and 
4AM, officers responded to 4 property calls, 17 alcohol calls, 29 violence calls, and 8 
other calls. 

Nature of calls by hour m  8pm to Midnight  0  Midnight to 4am 

29 

17 

100A1111 
4 

2 

18 

 

I 

 

  

PROPERTY 	ALCOHOL 	VIOLENCE 	OTHER 
DAMAGE 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 96 of 311



Limitations 

There are obvious impediments to proper representation of calls for service. Often, 
calls reported between the hours of 4AM and 8PM relate to incidents that occurred on a 
previous night, and may not accurately the actual time of the incident. 

Due to the exhaustive amount of research required, this report also does not include 
calls where the root of the incident occurred at a downtown bar, but was reported at 
some other address in the city. Common examples of this would be DUI drivers who 
drive away from the downtown area, domestic disturbances that begin at a bar but are 

called in by a neighbor after the parties reach their residence, businesses who suffer 
property damage from patrons of a nearby bar, or calls about loud and intoxicated 
subjects walking home from the bar. Given those considerations, the number of calls 
originating from the downtown bars is likely underrepresented. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 97 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woollev Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-9922 
Fax (360) 855-9923 

Eron M. Berg 
City Supervisor/City Attorney 

MEMO TO: 	City Council 
FROM: 	 Eron Berg 
RE: 	 Spray Park 
FOR MEETING ON: April 13, 2016 

ISSUE: 	This item is an update and includes information presented to the City Council 
Parks Committee. 

BACKGROUND: 	The Parks Committee of the City Council met and discussed the Memorial 
Park master plan and spray park addition on March 29th  at Memorial Park. The committee 
received the report from The Otos Group regarding site selection (report attached) and reviewed 
very early preliminary design ideas from The Philbin Group (attached are three site plans, one 
current condition and two concepts). Also, attached is the master plan concept site plan from 
February of 2012 for background reference. The committee discussed elements of each concept 
and provided direction to The Philbin Group for a third draft which will be presented at the open 
house on April 19th. 

To-date the council has authorized staff to contract with The Otos Group and The Philbin Group 
for the design of a spray park and grant application to the Washington State Recreation & 
Conservation Office. This project is one of the city council's 2016 strategic goals. Our timeline 
is tight and is driven by the RCO grant application deadline. The process is as follows: 

Now: 	The Philbin Group is working on a revised concept draft, taking the 
committee's recommendations into account; staff is developing cost 
estimates; The Otos Group is completing the RCO application and 
working on the PowerPoint Presentation; 

April 19(1': 	Public open house to hear from the community on the draft plan: The 
Philbin Group will incorporate comments into a revised concept that is 
ready for the RCO grant technical review; 

April 27th: 	City council review of the revised concept plan and authorization to apply 
to RCO for funding; 
Application Deadline to RCO for review; 

May 16-19th: RCO technical review; 
July 8th: Technical completion deadline: 
Aug. 8-11 Eh: RCO presentation and evaluation; 
Sept. 1st: 	RCO ranking; 
May 1st, 2017: Certification of match; 

May 2nd: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 98 of 311



July. 2017: 	Possible funding; 
Summer 2017: Final design of Memorial Park master plan: 
Fall 2017: 	Complete fundraising for local match; 
Spring 2018: Construction of renovated park; 
June 2018: 	Ribbon cutting/park reopens to the public. 

The budget for this project is still in development but is likely in the range of $400,000 to 
$600.000 depending upon the scope. The spray park and associated redevelopment of the master 
plan without the addition of significant new surfacing is around $400,000. Once more 
information is known. the council will need to narrow the scope on the project and/or develop a 
fundraising plan. For every dollar spent by the city or raised by the city, we have the possibility 
of an equal amount from RCO meaning that the city budget for this project is likely $200.000 to 
$300.000. The city portion will be funded using park impact fees, some REET dollars and 
community donations/in-kind work. 

RECOMMENDATION: 	No action requested tonight; please mark your calendars for the 
April 19.2016 City Works Day at Memorial Park and Memorial Park master plan open house 
(11:00 A.M.-2:00 P.M.). 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 99 of 311



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 100 of 311



WATER PARK RECOMMENDATIONS 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

We visited five sites within the City limits to look for the best location for a Water Park. There 
are several considerations when placing an attraction like this. 

• Ample Parking 
• Water, Sewer, Power 
• Access to restrooms 
• Access to a control room 
• Site visibility 
• Local assess (generally central location to the population) 
• Surrounding structures (Neighbors, Sr. Centers, Community Centers, Nursing Homes, 

and Arterial Streets). 
• Availability of Space 
• Other site amenities. 

SITE ONE: 

METCALF PARK 2.2 Acres 

The service clubs have done a great job on adding amenities to this site of the old high school 
baseball field. Currently the site consist of: 

• 200 foot Little League ball field with dugouts (Eric Teseric Memorial Field) 
• Restrooms 
• Skate park 
• Half court basketball 
• Open space 

This site has good site visibility to the public and police department. It has adequate water, 
power and sewer access. Along with restrooms and other amenities. 

The constraints with this site is not enough room a Water Park. Also with the park full of other 
activities there is limited parking. To locate it in the only open space on the site would have to 
be placed outside the outfield fence. This possess a risk management issue. By placing a Water 
Park with the possibility of home run balls hitting in the activity area is a problem. Therefore, 
this site is not ideal for a Water Park placement. 

W
A

T
E

R
 P

A
R

K
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
 I  
3/

7/
2

0
16

 

0 Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 101 of 311



SITE TWO: 

RIVERFRONT PARK: 20 Acres Developed 48 Acers Undeveloped 

Riverfront Park has some great amenities for the community and camping for locals and 
visitors. Currently the site consist of: 

• Group picnicking sites (covered/uncovered) 
• Volleyball 
• Ample parking 
• River access (some restricted/fenced) 
• Caretaker residence 
• Restrooms 
• 27 RV spaces (power/water hook-ups) 

This site has ample open space, parking and picnicking areas that are good amenities to go along 
with a Water Park. Also there is a care taker to help monitor the site and handle the extra 
garbage that will be associated with the Water Park. 

The constraints of the site are that it is at the edge of town and not centrally located. There is 
also a landfill that could not be excavated for the Water Park. Water, Power and Sewer are 
marginal. Another constraint is placing it next to a visiting RV park. This could boast well for 
rental spaces. However, there could be conflict between local users and tourists. 

SITE THREE: 

MARKET PLACE: 

The abandoned building and large parking lot in the downtown area are centrally located. If this 
site was being renovated with a new library in the time frame that the Water Park would be 
funded and built this might be a possibility. However, since that proposal is planned for the 
future we didn't spend a lot of time trying to configure a Water Park in this location. 

SITE FOUR: 

BINGHAM PARK: 2.6 Acres 

This site has a lot of visibility with major arterials going alongside the park. If the city wanted to 
show off the Water Park amenity this would be the site. Currently the site consists of: 

• Group picnic shelter 
• Care Taker 
• Restroom (single) 
• Open space 
• Single picnic tables 
• 5 RV camp sites W
A

T
E

R
  P

A
R

K
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
 I

  
3/

7
/2

0
1
6
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 102 of 311



This site is a nice location for a park. As visitors come and go to the Cascades they drive by 
this park. It is a signature piece for the city. It offers a place for RV users to stop and hook 
up for a rest. The park has large trees for shade and plenty of open space which could be 
used for a disc golf course in the future. 

The constraints of this site is that the site has very limited parking and restroom facilities are 
lacking. During peak times of the day the Water Park could create traffic congestion, as 
families are trying to get in and out of the park. Parking could interfere with the RV users 
(parking in and around) and again Riverfront Park could be a conflict with tourists and 
locals. Again, this could boost RV rentals with this amenity. The other conflict is with the 
trees. Shade in a Water Park creates chilly conditions even on the warmest days. Along with 
debris falling (leafs, needles etc.). This is difficult for maintenance with the filters and 
grates. 

SITE FIVE: 

MEMORIAL PARK: 3 Acres 

Has a lot of open space and area for redevelopment. It is surrounded by a number of other 
community facilities and amenities. Currently the site consists of: 

• Playground 
• Restrooms 
• Memorial marking 
• Flag pole 
• Care Taker 

After looking at all the possible sites in the city this site (although this has some constraints) 
is the best of all the sites we visited. It is centrally located. Has men and women restroom 
facilities. Large Playground, open space and is in the hub of the Sr. Center, Library and 
Community Center. Since there are no active recreation areas (other than the playground) 
this site could lend itself to be a hub of activity. 

There is open space in the central area. However, the playground could be relocated and 
updated and the Water Park could be placed in that area or spread out between that area and 
the playground with an upgrade. There are existing bathrooms for men and women and an 
area for a control room in the pipe chase. Water, power and sewer are available with 
construction. 

However, there are some constraints with this site. At peak times there could be a parking 
issues. Limited parking especially assigned parking for the Sr. Center, Community Center 
and Library could be compromised. There are also residences to the South and West side of 
the property that could be impacted by the noise of children and families playing. 

W
A

T
E

R
  P

A R
K

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S

 I  
3/

7/
20

16
 

0 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 103 of 311



-J 

-1-1
V

E
1

 

a 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 104 of 311



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 105 of 311



i
 

7//7777 

	

m
a
i 	

 

	

..E
n

ta
a
m

m
e
rg

ia
m

lIN
W

IN
 lit 	

-k-mmemars.,, 
_
g

tim
m

u
tim

s
_
v
_
w

o
lu

ira
 

a
l 

r III 

111 ■
 

 
1 

in 

II 

is 

i
 

i 
1

t  
%111 

m
ium

baism
 IN. -Ii:.4:,,-31ism

aw
.6.--4, 

011iremA
llO

 N
ig

 
Im

i___••••• •■
 
	
■

 
11 

inum
m

ilm
ausaim

um
ulft., 

IN
IN

U
M

1
1

1
1

1
m

u
rm

ilerap,  
--v

.- 

	

.- 	
11•11■

- 
R

N
 

N
E

 
N

E
 

a
ir

111111E 
1111•

111111E
1
1
1
•1

1
M

IE
s
s
E

N
N

E
IN

U
S

i 

11,44,1k. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 106 of 311



N
I C

3
1
V

0
0
1
 

SIN
3113A

01:1c1111 
N

EIVd 1V11:10143IN
 

'3
1

1
1

1
1

0
2

rO
ld

d
 

1
3

A
E

L
1

5
 d

1
V

9
1

3
W

 S
ze 

1
d

3
0
 S

N
E

llfd
 

A
31100A

A
-01:1035 JO

 A
113 

1
N

3
1

1
0

1
0

3
1

0
1

.1
.1

 

2
 
O

. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 107 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 1 3 2016 

7;00 EM. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

Planning Department 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

MEMO: 

To: 
	

Sedro-Woolley City Council 
Mayor Wagoner 

From: 
	

John Coleman, AICP 
Planning Director 

Date: 
	

April 13, 2016 

Subject: 2014 Comprehensive Plan Docket (15t  read) 

ISSUES  
1. Should the City Council adopt the proposed updates to the Comprehensive Plan? 
2. Should the City Council adopt the proposed updates to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 
regarding fire impact fees and school impact fees associated with the 2014 Comprehensive Plan 
amendments? 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION I HISTORY 
The City of Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan is a guiding policy for how the city will manage 
and/or address issues associated with growth and development in Sedro-Woolley. The 
Comprehensive Plan may be updated only once per year, and all of the changes must be made at 
one time. The items included in this review cycle are collectively called the Docket. 

Per the Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA), Sedro-Woolley is required to update the 
entire Comprehensive Plan by June of 2016. In order to meet this mandate, the City Council 
requested that the Planning Commission review and update the Capital Facilities Element as part of 
the 2014 Docket. (the 2015 Docket is part of a separate review that will be ready for the Council to 
review in April or May). The Capital Facilities Plan update was assigned file #CPA-1-14.The 
Planning Commission held six public meetings and two public hearings on the Capital Facilities 
Element update. The attached Planning Commission Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
(Findings) includes the procedural history of the Capital Facilities Element update process. 

Upon completing its review of the existing Capital Facilities Plan, the Sedro-Woolley School 
District's updated Capital Facility Plan and hearing public testimony, the Planning Commission 
recommended draft amendments to the Capital Facilities Element and Chapters 15.60 and 15.64 
SW MC to update fire and school impact fees amounts. Those draft amendments are found in 
Attachments and B of the Planning Commission Findings. The new impact fee values are based on 
updated calculations that are found in the Capital Facilities Element. The Planning Commission did 
not propose the updated values, the proposed impact fee values come directly out of the formulas 
presented by the Fire Department and School District. 

The fire impact fee is proposed at $0.28 per square foot of structure for both new residential and 
new non-residential buildings. This is an increase of $0.09 per square foot for residential structures 
and $0.08 for commercial. For example, a new 2000 square foot residence currently pays a fire 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 108 of 311



impact fee of $380; the new rate would result in a fire impact fee of $560. The Council has the 
option to reduce the amount of the fire impact fee. 

The School District CFP is the basis for the school impact fees collected by the city for all new 
residential dwelling units constructed in city limits. The School District CFP proposes that the school 
impact fees be lowered from $2,649 (for lots with less than 5 units per lot) to $1,678. The proposed 
school impact fee for multi-family units is reduced from $1,398 to $847 per unit. 

EXHIBITS 

Exhibit 1 - Ordinance 	-16 to adopt amendments to the Capital Facilities Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan 

Exhibit 2 - Ordinance 	-16 to adopt amendments to the Chapters 15.60 and 15.64 SWMC 
regarding fire and school impact fee values 

Exhibit 3 - Planning Commission's Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendations 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION OPTIONS  

The City Council may decide whether the proposed amendments should be approved, approved 
with modifications, or rejected. Specifically, the Council may: 

1. Adopt an ordinance that includes the amendments to the Municipal Code  as recommended by 
the Planning Commission; AND adopt an ordinance that includes amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan  as recommended by the Planning Commission. 

2. Refer the documents back to the Planning Commission for further review and modification of 
their recommendation. 

3. Adopt the ordinance and resolution with additional changes made by the City Council. 

4. Reject the proposed changes. 

RECOMMENDATION 

No action requested at this time (1st  read). 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 109 of 311



Ordinance No. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON ADOPTING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO REVISE AND 

INCORPORATE UPDATED INFORMATION AS REVIEWED AS PART OF THE 2014 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DOCKET. 

WHEREAS, applications for amendments to the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan 
were received by the published deadline of January 17, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley established an on-going public participation 
process in 2016 in accordance with RCW 36.70A.130(2) including the regular Planning 
Commission meetings, joint City Council and Planning Commission workshop(s), and Public 
Meetings to discuss proposed changes to the Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, public hearings were conducted before the Sedro-Woolley Planning 
Commission on various dates; and 

WHEREAS, environmental review of the updated Comprehensive Plan has been 
completed and a Determination of Non-Significance was issued February 26, 2015, and that 
document is adopted by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan have been submitted 
to the Washington State Department of Community, Trade and Economic Development (CTED) 
and the required 60-day review period has passed; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the proposed updates to the Capital 
Facilities Element of the Comprehensive Plan including the adoption of a revised Sedro-Woolley 
School District Capital Facilities Plan as contained in this ordinance and made a 
recommendation to adopt the updated Comprehensive Plan; 

WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act gives authority to Sedro-Woolley to update its 
Comprehensive Plan once per year in such a manner that all proposed amendments are 
considered by the governing body concurrently such that the governing body may evaluate their 
cumulative effect; and 

NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-
WOOLLEY DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The City Council hereby adopts the Planning Commission's Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions and Recommendations, which were certified by the Planning Commission Chair on 
April 7, 2016 as the City Council's Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendations. 

Section 2.  The Capital Facilities Plan of the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan is hereby 
amended to read as set forth on the attached Exhibit A, which is adopted by reference. 

EXHIBIT,..,-1--„...,. 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 110 of 311



Section 3.  This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after the approval by the City Council 
and publication as provided by law. 

Section 4.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should be held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council this 
th 

	 day of April, 2016, and signed in authentication of its passage this 	th  day 

of April, 2016. 

By: 
KEITH L. WAGONER, Mayor 

Attest: 
PATSY NELSON, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

ERON BERG, City Attorney 

Published: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 111 of 311



Exhibit A 
To Ordinance No. 2016 	- 

Updated Capital Facilities Element 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 112 of 311



Chapter 7 

CAPITAL FACILITIES ELEMENT 

	

7.04 	Introduction 

	

7.08 	Sewers/Sanitary Capital Facilities 

	

7.12 	Schools 

	

7.14 	Library  

	

7.16 	Fire Protection 

	

7.20 	Police Protection 

	

7.24 	Storm Water Management 

	

7.28 	Solid Waste Management 

	

7.32 	Capital Facilities Financing 

	

7.36 	Capital Facilities Goals and Policies 

	

Appendix A 	Sedro-Woolley Fire Department 

	

Appendix B 	Skagit County Planning Policies  

Appendix CB 	Fire Equipment Replacement Schedule 

Appendix DC 	Police Staff Estimates and Capital 
Outlay Costs 

Appendix ED 	Police Mitigation Fee Analysis and 
Proposal 

	

Appendix FE 	Sedro-Woolley School District #101 
Capital Facilities Plan 

177 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 113 of 311



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 114 of 311



7.04 

INTRODUCTION 

PURPOSE OF THE CAPITAL FACILITIES 
PLAN (CFP) 

The capital facilities plan (CFP) element is re-
quired under the Growth Management Act (RCW 
36.70A080 (3)) and is an important part of the city of 
Sedro-Woolley's comprehensive plan. According to 
Chapter 365-196 WAC (Growth Management Act—
Procedural Criteria), the CFP element should contain 
at least the following features: 

• An inventory of existing capital facilities, also 
referred to as "public facilities," showing the 
locations and capacities of the capital facilities 

• A forecast of the future needs for capital facili-
ties  based on the Land Use Element  

• Proposed locations and sizes capacities  of ex 
panded or new capital facilities 

• At least a six-year plan that will finance such 
capital facilities within projected funding ca-
pacities and clearly identifies sources of public 
money for such purposes  A six year plan that 
will finance capital facil4ies 

• A requirement to reassess the land use element  
if probable funding falls short of meeting exist-
ing needs and to ensure that the land use ele-
ment, capital facilities plan element, and fi-
nancing plan within the capital facilities plan 
element are coordinated and consistent. Park 
and recreation facilities shall be included in the 
capital facilities plan elements requirement to 
reassess the land use element  if funding falls 
short  of meeting capital facilities needs as well 
as ensure-consistency between the  land use  el  
ement and the capital facilities clement and as 
seeiated financing plan. 

A capital facilities plan is an important planning 
tool. It demonstrates that the city has made a realistic 
review of the capital facilities that it provides (sew-
er/sanitary, transportation, parks and recreation, solid 
waste, police, fire protection, schools, water, and 
storm water) and determined the level of service that 
it can provide its existing and future residents. It 
identifies needed capital improvements and a reason-
able financial plan to pay for them. 

The capital facilities plan is also important for 
seeking state funding. An approved capital facilities 
plan is required by the department of community de 
velopmentWashington State Department of Com-
merce,  for instance, to be eligible for the Public 
Works Trust Fund program. 

City of Sedro-Woolley Location 
The city of Sedro-Woolley is located in Skagit 

County in northwestern Washington  (Figure CF 1). 
The city is about seven miles east of Interstate 5 and 
about a mile and a half east of  adjacent to the city of 
Burlington. Main access routes to Sedro-Woolley are 
SR 20 and Cook Road from the west and SR 9 from 
the north and south. Access from Eastern Washing-
ton is seasonal as State Route 20 is open only from 
late spring to early fall. 

Figure CF-1 also-shows the urban growth area 
(UGA) that surrounds Sedro-Woolley. The UGA is 
defined by the city  county  as the area within which it 
the city of Sedro-Woolley  plans to provide public 
services over a twenty (20) year planning horizon. 
Figure CF-2 shows Sedro-Woolley's location in  
Skagit County.  

179 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 115 of 311



Figure T
 3C

F-1 V
icin

ity
  S

ed
ro

-W
o
o
lley

 C
ity

 L
im

its and U
G

A
 M

ap 

180 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 116 of 311



I 	
I 

r
 

,e
1
.1

  

^
 

a
 

<
 

c
o
 2

 

F
-

z
 

c7) Z 
it

 0
 

181 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 117 of 311



Figure C
F-2 Skagit C

ounty and Sedro-W
oolley V

icini 

1 

• • 	
- 

''. -". 	
4._,-." . • 	

C., 	
\
 

I
. 4  , -, '' 

	
...,3,- 

?-1  -.: 

	

r 	
, 

i 	
. 	

. 

•' -.","-;'' • 	
- 	

••• ' 
.1 	

, 	
• 	

-- 
• ' ^, 

'• 	
I 	

• 
. 	

- 	
• 	

_ 	''-.1 

y
• - 	

j---  - 	
!,,::: ---'• i 

.. 	
I 	

• 	
• 	

It 
_.1. 	

- 	;.-......-.----, 	
• 	

_ 

	

„_
•-A

,7
•

-"
' 	

1
-, 	

,- 
:, 	

I: 	
• 	

.i 	
\-; 	

rp 
1

 	
1 

.,. • 
' 	

I, 
. 

, 	
. 

. " 	
' 

- 1
 

.4 

, • 

.r.--- -. 	.• 
......, 

' 
-
-
 

l' . 	
:,; 

' 	
' 	

! ..f.-,.> 
.1-- 	

.1.  

 1
"."''''\ 

.,-" 	'''''. 
'' 	

' 

- 	
_ 	

•,...-„1/4;,
.
.
.
,
.
.

,-,............ 

.,--- 
f. 

,- 

- , „...--- i, 

	

-.,1-; 	Nn. 
1... 	

., 

1 	
. 	

•••,, 

•;•-,
1
' : 	

r;
 

el ; 
,... - 

.....• 

• 2 	i 
,.' • 

• ...-..,;,....?..A._ 

:--_
,.." 

'.--:
.•k-  

" 
-- 

. J 	. --- 
1 . `• 

, 

j 

, 	. 

' 	
,-," 
..,- .....- 

-•:, 
r , 
I

-  

'1
 	. 

i
'-.- 

.—
`1,1 

r..., 	.. 

,-,. • : 
-- 

- 

• 
,..1 ... ; . 1 "
 I 1 , 

-',. 1. 

1,-,
••:r-; 

1r,  
.  .  .  4,  [Bast  Map  of Skagit  countp  4 71,,  

' i 

. ! 

, 	
.- 

.i.. 	
,
i.,• 	

-... 	
.•-. 

"..; 	
1,-"1

.--,.' 	
If' 	

• . 

1-...........0" 	
4

0, 	
:. 	

,... ..• 
 

, 
"1- 	

..- 	
. 	

...• 
5! . 	

I 	
- -4!•--. 	

.--T 	
, - 	

'").," 
. 	

. 	
-.1  :. 	

.' C
I'  

1 	
"
.,. I s

 .: 	
-• 	

"kl. 
r
  , c 	

, rc-r-L 	
„
-
 

,
 	

..;-,:',-- 
' 	1 	

:-. 	
i 	

. 	
,
 	

'+
' 	

• 	
- 	'L

. 
, 1i, 	, 	

''I
i'.' 	I

 
1 	

• 	• ,, 	
,. • 

• 
• 	

a
il  
	

',; 	
,- _

 
. 	

, 

• 
I 	

1 	
. 

• '' 	
. 	

I 

. 	1-1
 	

. 
4- 	

. k
„ 	

, ,, r.. 

, 	
' 	

'...! . 	
'' ' 	

''.. 	
i'

: 	̀
-'si: 	1,--;_

: 

, ••. 	
..1. 	-:". 

...,- 	
, 

7
1

 i''' 
"-4 	

+ 	
...," 

.,.. 	l 
.
-
-
-
 
-
 r
iLz-rie

"  

...... 

, 	
• 	

r....", 

1
 r

 
- 	

r 
‘r• 	

\ \ 't 
-,...., 	

„
..1- 	.4",_i  

'
 	

.,... 
(
 , 

• ..; .. 	
,- 	

' 

• 
. • 

-.,, 	
• -;;.r-z,...t+':•-j-e

-•:--2,'„L:. 
__ 	

_ 

' ----- - ,? 7ri-T-- 
.,„ 

,' 	' 	. 
. 	' _

r.,2:' 

. 	i!
 	
-
 ' 	

1; 

. -1 ' 	
6

_
 

.. 

. 

_.). ,
 

,.. l• 

i•-- 

. 
.., '2

.4
 ,• 

' 	
i i 	̂

 ".--/ 	
• 	

;e1
 

I , 	
• 	

e'' 	
( 

..., 	
_ 	

' • . 	
•,,..,:.. 	

.-7
. 	

(
 	

S
e
 d

 1-0
 -

 

, 	
,
.
.
 

.,, 	
,._. 	

,
 	

'' 	
W

o
o
lley

  
• 

... 

• 

- 	
r-4....... 

.... 

1
"  • , 	

. 	
1

 	
f 	f' 	

' '' 	
'.. 	

- ' -Y".4  ' -. 	
•• 

• : 	
..., 	

1--
"-'1'34....1,L,,,_ 	

,:....1-7:1- .
..is.„, 	.- 	

.,--;:-....;),- 
-"'''' 
	
"
.
 	• :541.1,. 	

I:7
 

1
 	

I 	
. 	

' -7:.-'5:
-̀-s.:'''0'• 	'4

, 	• 	
' 	 . 

' ' ,•,.. i.•74,-4-1.-1
:-..'•=,'15.1"-. 	

. 	
"v 

.- 	,
 	• •-..(.2.-,...-..;..,----.--:--: 	• , ...,.::.$-..i-... 

., 	
.,.. 	. . 	, , 	

-A..-....i.,• -, 	...,;--ti- ,.. 	31:- 
•./ 	

, 	
• 	

, 
: 	
-
 	i ••_- 	

. 	
„........,,-;. - g  

-':-- 	
' 	

i• 	
, • -:..:..- ,.)...r; 

.:1-'-'e  •
 	

- ' 	
'-
.
 	

‘
 

;„
. 

i 	
-
 	

: 	
4
,- 

- --1 

f 	
'-• 

• 
! 

- 	
• 

-
-
 -

-
-
-
 -

-
 -

 

I. 	
. 	

! • 	..„. 
' 	

• 	
' 	

. 	
:::- 	

!..."1 
- 	

• 

, 	
. 

—
 	

•
1

 
•
 	

3,-"F 
-t: 

- 	
.".:. • !--,;::-.,.. 

- • 	
-
"

,..,•-•4,k1-i 
. 	

A... 	
J-2•• 

,. 	
i
 	

1 	:--7.-7.-----• • 
; - - 	

• -:- 	,...lf 
/ T

 	
,-!t1:0:4'.' • 

1,...,,..,. 	
. 	

v
.,. 

,--, 	
. 

 .—
.-..: 	

, 
 
•
 	. 

•-, 

_. 	
.. 	

. 

—
 - ' 

1
8

2
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 118 of 311



OVERALL APPROACH TO THE CFP 
The This section describes the process for prepar-

ing the CFP is outlined in Figure CF 2 and illustrates 
the significant CFP steps as well as the major CFP 
requirements outlined in the Growth Management 

• Establishes that concurrency is maintained 

• Identifies the financing method (required for 
the six year period 1995 to 20042014-2020) 

volves2005 CEP. This process involved developing 
and evaluating a benchmark and a preferred alterna-
tive for each public facility based on land use alterna-
tives defined by the city.  The 2014 update process 
built on the exiting CFP and included updates to the 
previous data.  

The process includesincluded analyzing the public 
facilities that support existing residential and com-
mercial development and identifying future public 
infrastructure needs. Sedro-Woolley's land use alter-
natives and population projections presented in the 
overall comprehensive plan arc were  used to identify 
these future needs. 

The results of identifying current and future infra-
structure requirements arewere  combined to prepare 
individual capital improvement plans for each public 
facility. These individual sections are then combined 
into a final CFP. This CFP documents in one plan all 
capital improvement requirements, excluding trans-
portation capital improvements which are identified 
in the transportation element of the city's compre-
hensive plan, and which is incorporated into the capi  
tal facilities element by reference. It also identifies 
the sources and level of financial commitment and 
revenues necessary to meet the concurrency require-
ments of the Growth Management Act (GMA). As 
defined in RCW 36.70A.020the GMA, concurrency 
is the requirement that the city ensure that adequate 
public facilities and services be provided to service 
development at the time it is available for occupancy, 
without decreasing current service levels below lo-
cally established minimum standards. In summary, 
the CFP meets the following GMA requirements: 
Identifies existing public infrastructure needs for two 
time periods-years 1995 to 20012014 to 2020 and 
years 2002 to 20152021 to 2027. 

FUTURE GROWTH MODELLING 

To help determine where future growth can be 
expected and to set policies to manage that future 
growth, the city has developed a "preferred-  land use 
development plan. The preferred plan was reviewed 
in comparison to the "benchmark-  or "no-action-
alternative. These two growth scenarios offer a dis-
tinct vision of how land will be developed over the 
next twenty years. The benchmark land use alterna-
tive is the exiting growth pattern and policies.  

The central business district alternative is pro 

rent patterns. Each of these two growth scenarios 
offers a distinct vision of how land will be developed 
over the next twenty years. The preferred alternative 
reflects an orderly growth pattern that groups togeth 
er compatible land. 

New zoning classifications which have been al-
ready been  adopted, would bewere required to im-
plement the preferred alternative. The benchmark 
alternative continued the city's historical patterns of 
land use. Under the benchmark scenario, previous 
zoning would have continued to guide and regulate 
future land use administration and decision-making. 

Preferred Land Use Alternative 
The preferred alternative (Figure CF 3)  is typical 

of a traditional urban growth pattern consisting of a 
concentrated downtown business center surrounded 
by residential land uses of decreasing density with 
distance from the city center. The central business 
district remains the location for most business and 
urban activity. At its edge, urban activities give way 
to large open spaces and agricultural uses. Heavy 
industrial  Industrial  land uses also exist immediately 

183 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 119 of 311



adjacent to the central business district and next to 
major highways that run through the area. Auto-
oriented commercial development along the SR 20 
corridor is limited to nodes of existing development 
interspersed with light industrial uses. Historical are-
as of growth that continue in the midst of surround-
ing rural land use densities include the United Gen-
eral Hospital area at the extreme west end of town 
and the Northern State Campus in the northeastern 
portion of the urban growth area. Agriculture, recrea-
tion, and similar activities are encouraged in the 
southern border areas of the city, which cannot sup-
port urban development due to periodic flooding by 
the Skagit River.  The preferred alternative reflects an 
orderly growth pattern that groups together compati-
ble land.  

Future urban growth area (UGA) expansion is ex-
pected to occur north of city limits as necessary.  
Farmland and wetlands prevent UGA expansion to 
the east and west. The Skagit River and its floodplain 
prevent further urban development south of city lim-
its.  

Benchmark Land Use Alternative 
The benchmark or "no-action" alternative (Figure 

CF 1)  represented a continuation of historical land 
use development. There was less emphasis on the 
downtown core as the heart of the city and continued 
spreading out of non-residential activities. While the 
downtown area still contained most of the city's pri-
vate business activity, there was a pattern of busi-
nesses locating outside the urban core. This scenario 
could result in incompatible land uses being juxta-
posed (e.g., heavy industry next to low-density resi-
dential land). Areas that have environmental con-
straints, such as flood hazard areas, could also be 
subject to incompatible land uses. 

Analysis of Existing Facilities 
Data collection involved compiling and analyzing 

existing reports, records, and documents as well as 
field verification and supplemental data collection. 
While a significant amount of data collection, analy-
sis, and capital improvement planning work was ac- 

complished by the city, there was a need to obtain 
more information. Additional data were collected 
from meetings with officials and City staff, public 
meetings, site visits, Skagit County Agencies (Public 
Works Department, Planning Department, Assessors 
Office, etc.), the Skagit Council of Governments, and 
State agencies (Department of Community Develop-
ment, Office of Financial Management, Department 
of Employment Security, Department of Transporta-
tion, etc.). 

Level of Service (LOS) standards for public infra-
structure were subsequently defined. These standards 
represent the minimum acceptable level of service for 
a particular type of public infrastructure (sewer/ sani-
tary system, transportation system, solid waste dis-
posal, recreation/parks/open space, storm-
water/drainage, emergency services, etc.). These 
standards were used to determine deficiencies in ex-
isting infrastructure that need correcting and to iden-
tify future public infrastructure needs. 

LOS standards help define a balanced approach 
between the city's desire to provide the highest 
standards of service that are reasonably affordable 
and its goals for economic growth and development. 
LOS standards are also consistent with the city's 
planning goals and policy objectives to have existing 
and future residents pay their fair share of the costs 
of providing each public service. 

184 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 120 of 311



Figure  C
F

 2
 

W
in

d
 

3A
IS

N
3H

313c111400 

A
ellooM

-0-IPOS 40  '!O
 c
r
y
 

=
 	

•••=C
 

••=
C

 <
-7

 
■=

,- 

a 

, - ' o
: ..->

•.- 11-  4
 . 7

" 7
' • 

.. 
,
 

• 
•-•- 

, 	
Az. 

,—
. :1

--:-.„ 

:
:
:
 

 
LA

 
a 

	

3.1-g 	
•f; 5 5E 

g
-i -',' ,..',

.. —
- 

• :. l ig i
 	

..F. 	
-.1. 1

,i1
 

, a‘s 	
 
I
 

g.E 
1
-.-  °

 . ---wr•77:,-,  
,
 

	

;
 	

.' 
, - 

4
 

 

; A 
	

--tf-',. • ' 	
.
 
	

.,-i .,  

	

...., „
45...[ 	

",:,.., ...  
,.- 	

- g:-,-..., 	
, .p

. 	
..: 

: • ., 	
a..A  4:.....--._ , 	

1 i-1 	
*.•-:- 

•-. 1...-± ,_,),...i,-.7.--J 1,-.7g 
,,--.,.. 

7.17,-', =
 

 
 

 
 

S
 

E
 ° 

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

185 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 121 of 311



Figure C
F

 3
 

Preferred L
and U

se A
lternative 

7 
.  •  

\ ----1.  .  
< \ . ! 

1 LEGEND 

/ 
I :,..... .‘  

. —1  
I  

Urban  Growth Area  (VGA)  Boundary  

.  Land  

LAND use  sATecouies  

F—Th 

„  
I

I ".6  
 ,.̀:,‘\\,\< 

t  ........  
IMIN COO (Cantrat  Businass  DISInCI)  

VOn.  '  AC (ALArr E1  ne  Ned cornrnaraa0 Z'.  /  

\ . .," 
11 Mt NI (Nam/  inausinal)  

i","...  N.  \:;:....•,,    - ...,... .\\  N., 
 " A \ "44 . , '' 	  \Loo ua' -.....-.-.  '''' . S.  

1 .  .  .  \\,,  .   :.;  X r0  •  \    '..     Lum  Li  fLopi  Inunwau0thca  Fmk]  1:4,  

N : \\\\\   ' 
z.,,  ' N:  ..;  .' A,  ‹,;-iiiiiti„5.  - ,..... ...  .8  (05COnSPasel 

0.- 4••••••:•.:•:•: .• ___  .] PiPubLc USel ..,\ \ ' \ \ ‘̀:, -  • - • • 's •  ••• • • • • _  -;•*:•:•:•:•0  '' 
•

:•:•■:••■••Nt;•ra; 24:::::;::::4,*:  Ve,....n.7.0" k  i  t  1  1  4.41.inkrarniy,  up  la  ;S unit.Vacrat  
•

:.:=4.4...4: .... $  111111  re  ...............we.A....74  PA* 4:: •••• %  .  ,.. 
MIMI IAF 2 i'Muni.lerruly.  >•P  :aOil urataimil "iia ,  iM__.01(  \ •  \  i  ?...  ?.  !Xl<2.i/  SFt  (s/n411.1amily.S.7 onnS aue9 3::(:•:•7 ill  Ziti::::,  .'_.7,::ii:  kk  ;;ZI:::gg .' 11 .1:i:i3.,ii:i:E■iliii? :::E:::  as  m  s  F  2  ,  S 1  n  g  I  a  •  I  a  m  I  I  y  ,  3.5 units/acre/.  

1; - -::igiIillliiiif§ .•!..t........- ••••■._ir  .  kr„,,,,,....• • ■•;:::::iii:•:•• .ittk.s...\\ • 4  ---•=r4  n•li I  I ic,,,r7"....- .:,..:4,..::Kik:i:;:4::: .. ' . ...,&'''''' 
11111111-  ‘L if......-.=.1f.Siiii!.:11:i1116..**IliIi'ililiiii ,•_?&.:'IN.  

N 

---E -,?)---  

.,-4,  "1"."E ' 1  ̀ammi-x,.-xtreivii.x.:9;•:•.::  .,1.%  

a  ■R  ......  

, :%':7:,,:....,:.;,- :,'.-,...;:•:,:.•-••.:.,  -- I  

•

,:_cs':::,..,:,:,::,:::::,:,,x,:::-:-::: I 
,:-.1:-:,:,:,:-:,  .;`;`;`:.:/"..•*/,' Nal  Sbucel  

EIZI: 
. .......„  ... .,  ,  ... ..,  „  ,  

	

( 
 

	

KOK City  of Sadro•Woolfey  Fc ture  CF-3.  
CAPITAL  FACILITIES PLAN PREFERRED  LAND USE  ALTERNATIVE 

k.e7rnek....  SeAdA.  W.s.vrA  Sr 0 r  

s 
g • • of 

I 

186 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 122 of 311



F
ig

u
re C

F
 4 

O
 

0 

?5129*N9 SFt  (Singlo.lamiy.  S7 unls  acro) 

5F2 S unisiacrep  

1,1 1,1 I (Intlusloal)  

1 87 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 123 of 311



Analysis of Future Needs 
The same LOS standards were applied to two fu-

ture growth alternatives (the benchmark and the pre-
ferred alternatives) described in the comprehensive 
plan land use element. The city identified deficien-
cies for each alternative for the years 1995 to 2001 
and years 2002 to 2015. This analysis led to the de-
velopment of a capital facility improvements list that 
would correct the identified deficiencies. The costs 
associated with the future projects were also calculat-
ed. 

Financing Capital Facility Improvements 
Capital improvement projects and associated 

costs-were evaluated with regard to the city's financ-
ing capability. Under the GMA, the city is required to 
show how it will pay for necessary capital improve-
ments. This requirement is to ensure the city main-
tains concurrency. Capital facilities improvements 
must be implemented concurrently with growth and 
development so that both existing and new residents 
and businesses are provided vital public services at 
the city's selected LOS standards. 

A six-year financial plan (2014 to 20201995 to 
200-1-) that identifies funding levels and sources for 
each set of capital facilities must be included in the 
capital facilities plan. Requirements for demonstrat-
ing funding capability for the years 2002 to 
20-1-52021-2027  are not as stringent as for the six-
year period because of the difficulty of revenue fore-
casting and funding source identification, and be-
cause the GMA requires the city to review its capital 
facilities plan every two years, at a minimum. The 
city has proposed a more rigorous, annual review 
schedule for updating the capital facilities plan and 
financial section. 

If the city determines in its financial review that it 
cannot fund the capital improvements identified in 
the six-year period, the city must make adjustments. 
The GMA suggests several methods to adjust the 
capital facilities plan so that the city can pay for the 
improvements. These methods include making finan-
cial adjustments such as incorporating new sources of  

funds (impact fees, state grants and loans, excise tax-
es, creation of utility districts, etc.), adjusting the al-
ternative land use classifications, and lowering LOS 
standards so that fewer capital improvement projects 
are identified. The city was compelled to make such 
adjustments after an initial funding review for several 
of the capital facilities studied. LOS standards for 
transportation system improvements were changed 
because of the very high costs identified in the initial 
analysis. 

CFP ORGANIZATION 
This CFP is organized around each of the public 

services provided by the city of Sedro-Woolley and 
the school system for which capital facility planning 
is required to accommodate future growth. The dis-
cussion of each public facility begins by covering the 
existing conditions for the facilities. Next, the level 
of service (LOS) standards developed for the facili-
ties are subsequently covered, along with the results 
of applying LOS standards to define current capital 
facility deficiencies and recommendations for future 
improvements. Finally, a listing of applicable goals 
and policies that have been developed to guide plan-
ning for that particular service are presented. 

The Growth Management Act requires that the 
capital facilities element of the comprehensive plan 
be prepared setting forth guidelines for the purposes 
of comprehensive planning and coordination. Levels 
of services described in the following narratives are 
the estimates of the separate capital facilities. The 
following areas were identified as capital facilities 
for Sedro-Woolley: 

1. Transportation  (Ch. 3 of Comprehensive Plan) 
2. Parks and Recreation  (Ch. 6 of Comp Plan)  
3. Sanitary Sewer (Section 7.08)  
4. Schools  (Section 7.12) 
5. Libraries (Section 7.14)  
56. Fire  (Section 7.16)  
67. Police  (Section 7.20) 
78. Storm Water  (Section 7.24)  
89. Solid Waste  (Section 7.28) 

188 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 124 of 311



Each of these items shall be addressed in the capi-
tal facilities element under a separate discussion. Wa-
ter was not addressed in the capital facilities element 
since it is provided to Sedro-Woolley and the urban 
growth area by PUD #1 and is discussed further in 
the utilities element of the comprehensive plan. For 
purposes ef this discussion the areas of transportation 
(which is addressed as a separate clement) and sani 
tary sewer were developed under contact with KCM. 
Minor changes may have occurred in the data in 
these section as a result of changes in the land uses 
and population forecasts following acceptance of 
KCM's final draft, however, the proposed projects 
are anticipated to be the same given the fact that the 
changes in density average out in the long run. Our 
ing an annual update of the comprehensive plan, this 
data will be-amended. The city also chose to contract 
its parks and recreation element to Ian Munce, which 

cussion of schools, fire, police, stonnwater manage 

Woolley city planner. It should be noted that some of 
the improvements listed in the comprehensive plan in 
the areas of transportation and sewer have already 
been implemented or are in the process of impleinen 
tat ion. 

• 	• '1 '  

The CH incorporates the following goals and pol  
icies from the 1994 comprehensive plan Goals and 
Policies section.  

range financial planning, to conserve fiscal resources 
available to implement the capital facilities plan. 

tics . 

Policy CF2.1: The city of Sedro Woolley shall allow 
only "concurrent development" to occur within the 

complete a concurrency review provided by the city 
planning department. 

defined as development which can be provided trans 
portation services by the city of Sedro W-oolley with  

; 	 " • 	 " " 	 ; • • 

capital facilities necessary to meet the concurrency 
requirement are not provided in the six y -ar capital 
facilities plan, the developer shall provide the facili  
tics at his/her own expense to meet the concurrency 
requirement. 

Policy CF2.3: Ensure that future development bears a 
fair share of capital improvement costs necessitated 

- - 

to collect mitigation impact fees from new develop 
ment in order to achieve and maintain adopted level 
of service standards. The city will be responsible for 
its fair share of capital improvement costs for exist 
ing deficiencies. 

   

anent regulations identify and allow for the siting of 

Policy CF1.1: Provide capital improvements to cor 
rect existing deficiencies, to replace worn out-er ob  
solete facilities and to accommodate -desired future 
growth, according to the Six Year Financing Plan 
contained in the capital facilities plan. 

Growth Management Act. Work cooperatively with 
Skagit County and neighboring jurisdictions in the 
siting-of public facilities of regional importance. 

 

Coal CF3: Te finance the city's needed capital 

Policy CF1.2: Coordinate land use and public works 
planning activities with an ongoing program of long  

 

in-a-nner—as-pes-sible. 

  

189 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 125 of 311



plan annually prior to the city budget process. All 

perficipate in the annual review. 

pr-evements should be borne by the primary benefi 
ciaries of new facilities. 

entire community. 

Policy CF3.4: Work with citizens at a neighborhood 
level to establish local improvement districts (LIDs), 

: - - 

nei-ghborhood facilities. 

Policy CF3.5: Long tenn borrowing for capital facili 
ties is an appropriate method to finance large facili  
tics which benefit multiple generations. 

Policy CF3.6: Pursue funding from state and federal 
agencies as described in the six year capital facilities 
plan. 

Policy C173.7: Fulfillment of development eoneurren 
cy requirements shall not be based upon potential 
city income from state and federal agencies. Concur 
rency can only be met by existing financial capacity 
and awarded government funding. 

Policy CF3.8: Wherever possible, self supporting 
bonds will be used instead of tax supported general 
obligation bonds. 

(Ord. 1447-03 § 2 (Exh. C) (part)) 

190 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 126 of 311



7.08 	 rently land applied, although the city is investigating 
other methods of disposal. 

SEWER/SANITARY CAPITAL FACILITIES 

EXISTING SEWER/SANITARY SYSTEM 
The city of Sedro- Woolley sewer system current-

ly serves residents living within the city limits (Fig-
ure CF42). Facilities include the conveyance (pipe-
line) network, pump stations, the wastewater treat-
ment facility, s-lodge-biosolids disposal, and an efflu-
ent outfall to the Skagit River. The conveyance sys-
tem includes side sewers, gravity and force mains, 
and three eleven  pump stations. The city completed a  
ten year sewer plan upgrade in 2005. The next sewer 
plan upgrade is scheduled for 2016. Based on rec-
ommendations of the 2005 plan, the city completed a  
five-year, thirty-seven thousand five hundred 
(37,500)-footpipeline improvement project in 2010, 
which included capacity improvements to the trunk  
sewer system and several new pump stations. The 
city has also extended service to previously unserved 
areas on Fruitdale Road between SR20 and McGari-
gle, and on SR9/Township from Alderwood to the 
north city limits. The wastewater treatment facility, 
originally constructed in 1973, has undergone several 
modifications including a new clarifier constructed in  
1992 and a comprehensive upgrade completed in 
1998/1999. The 2005 sewer plan estimated that plan-
ning for a new plant would begin in 2010 (i.e. plant is 
nearing 85% capacity). Due to the 2008 Recession, 
growth considerably slowed in the city such that the 
point where the planning for plant upgrade is now  
estimated at 2020. Equipment upgrades and replace-
ment will thus become critical as the plant will age 
beyond the previously estimated 20 year design life.  
Biosolids continues to be land applied at the Boulder 
Park facility in eastern Washington. The city contin-
ues to investigate other methods of disposalThe city 
is currently undergoing a five year, ten thousand 
! III 	-- 	-  

wastewater treatment facility, -efi-ginally constructed 
in 1973, has ufKleFge. ne several modifications aiid a 
new clarifier has been constructed. The city recently 
began a two year sewer plan upgrade. Sludge is cur 

Some residences within the urban growth area 
(UGA) are served by septic tanks. Although the ma-
jority of septic tank systems are outside the city lim-
its, several residences in the city are still on septic 
tanks. These systems will be discontinued as the city 
sewer becomes available.  The aforementioned ser-
vice extension to Fruitdale and North Township has 
resulted in reduction of septic systems within the city 
limits.  

Pipelines 
Pipelines of various sizes ranging from eight inch-

es to thirty six inches in diameter and totaling 
229,900 lineal feet convey wastewater to the 
wastewater treatment plant. Pipelines include gravity 
lines and force mains (pressure pipes). The city's 
primary responsibility is for the main sewers (sewers 
in streets and other rights-of-way). Side sewers (the 
sewer pipes leading from individual homes to the 
main sewer) are the responsibility of the city from the 
main to the property line, and are the responsibility 
of the property owners from the right of way line to 
the homePipelines of various sizes convey 
wastewater to the wastewater treatment plant. Pipe 

pipes). The city's primary responsibility is for the 

way). Side sewers (the sewer pipes leading from in 
dividual homes to the main sewer) are the responsi 
bility-ef-prepeft-y-ewneFs. 

Pump Stations 
Pump stations are required when natural topogra-

phy does not allow for gravity flow to the treatment 
plant. A pump station receives flow from one area by 
gravity and pumps that flow over a topographic ridge 
to continue to the treatment plant. Sedro-Woolley has 
three eleven pump stations. 

Wastewater Treatment Facilities - Liquids 
Stream 

191 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 127 of 311



The liquids and solids streams of a wastewater 
treatment facility are treated separately. The liquids 
stream includes the conveyance, processing, and dis-
posal of the wastewater. Sedro-Woolley discharges 
its treated wastewater treatment facility effluent 
through a pipeline to the Skagit River. 

Wastewater Treatment Facilities - Solids 
Stream 

The solids stream of a wastewater treatment facili-
ty includes the handling, processing, and dispos-
al/reuse of solids (mostly  sludge)biosolids  removed 
from the wastewater. Sedro- Woolley currently land 
applies its sludge biosolids  and landfills other solids 
(screenings, etc.). For this plan, "solids" refers to 
sludgebiosolids. 

PROCESS FOR DEVELOPING 
ALTERNATIVES 

With only minor differences, the future sew-
er/sanitary system under both the preferred and 
benchmark alternatives will be similar. This is due, in 
part, to population forecasts, which predict identical 
growth rates. Only the geographic distribution of 
sewer demand will vary between the alternatives. 
Wastewater flows and composition will be very simi-
lar, so capital improvements at the treatment facility 
and handling of the liquids and solids waste stream 
will not differ. 

Within the existing city limits, the sewer system 
will be upgraded through an improvement program 
that takes into account demands for residential, 
commercial, and industrial sewer service. For in-
stance, under the preferred alternative, residential 
infilling and increased residential densities will be 
encouraged. Similarly, there will be new locations for 
industrial and commercial activity. Under the 
benchmark growth and development would have fol-
lowed previous patterns. Design of sewer system 
capital improvements will have to take the current 
land use changes into account. 

For both alternatives, the sewer system will only 
be extended to unsewered areas outside the current  

city limits after the city annexes the area. It is the 
city's policy (Policy S1.2) to bring sewer service to 
residents by requiring large new development to con-
nect to the city sewer. Both alternatives have mini-
mum land use densities that typically make sewer 
service extension to unsewered areas economically 
feasible. 

Both the preferred and benchmark alternatives 
allow existing septic systems to continue operation 
under certain conditions (see Policy S1.3 and S1.4). 
The Skagit County health department currently has 
jurisdiction over all septic tanks, both within and out-
side the city limits. City ordinances (Chapters 13.08 
and 13.12) require that new short plats (measured 
from the property line) and structures within two 
hundred (200) feet of a public sewer be connected to 
the public sewer, at the expense of the proper-
ty/structure owner. It is city policy that residences 
outside of the two hundred (200) foot limit with 
properly functioning septic systems may be allowed, 
however, these residences will be required to connect 
to the sewer system when it becomes available. 
Homes with deficient septic systems will be required 
to hook up to the sewer system. 

Outside the city limits but within the UGA, exist-
ing septic systems will also continue to be allowed. 
Residences with properly functioning septic systems 
in areas annexed to the city will be allowed, although 
these residences will be required to connect to the 
existing sewer system when it becomes available. 
Residences with deficient septic systems will be re-
quired to hook up to the sewer system. New subdivi-
sion developments will be required to hook up to the 
city's sewer system. 

LEVEL OF SERVICE (LOS) DEVELOPMENT 
The GMA requires that level of service (LOS) 

standards be established for services provided by lo-
cal jurisdictions as part of capital facility planning. 
Development of the city's LOS standards for sew-
er/sanitary capital facilities is described in the Level 
of Service Standards for Sewer/Sanitary and Road-
way Systems Draft Report (May 1993) and Level of 

192 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 128 of 311



Service Standards Application for Sewer/Sanitary 
and Roadway Systems Draft Report (August 1993). 
Separate LOS standards were developed to rate fa-
cilities' capacity and their condition, and a separate 
LOS standard for septic systems was developed. 

LOS standards are quantifiable measures of public 
services the city provides to the present and future 
residents and businesses within the UGA. They allow 
the city to assess deficiencies in the services it pro-
vides and define minimum threshold standards that 
must be met by existing and new service facilities to 
avoid under-served growth. 

TABLE 3-I 
PERCENT OF CAPACITY (OPERATION) LOS FOR PIPELINES, PUMP STATIONS, AND 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES 

Definition of Letter Rating (Percent of Capacity Used) 

System Element 
Parameter 

Defining LOS A B C D E F 
Pipelines Peak Flow Rate 0-20 21-40 41-60 61-80 81-100 >100 
Pump Stations Peak Pumping 

Rate 
0-20 21-40 41-60 61-80 81-100 >100 

Wastewater 
Treatment Facilities- 
Liquid Stream 

Hydraulic Load-
ing or Organic 
Loading (which-
ever is limiting) 

0-20 21-40 41-60 61-80 81-100 >100 

Wastewater 
Treatment Facilities- 
Solid Stream 

Hydraulic Load-
ing or Solids 
Loading (which- 
ever is limiting) 

0-20 21-40 41-60 61-80 81-100 >100 

LOS standards developed for Sedro-Woolley's sewer/sanitary system are based on capacity and system condi-
tion. The capacity LOS rates the unused capacity of each system component. The LOS uses an A-through-F rat-
ing system, where the A-level rating indicates a large amount of unused capacity (Table 3-1). The condition LOS 
rates system components according to the condition of the system using a 1-through-5 scale. A 1 rating is the 
lowest rating or the worst condition and a 5 rating is the highest rating or best condition (Table 3-2). Septic sys-
tem LOS is defined separately from the capacity and condition LOS for the city's sewer/sanitary system. A nu-
merical rating is used based on the minimum number of acres required by an individual septic system to safely 
handle a single equivalent residential unit (Table 3-3). A higher (worse) numerical rating indicates that the septic 
system requires a larger area. 

193 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 129 of 311



TABLE 3-2 
CONDITION LOS FOR PIPELINES, PUMP STATIONS, AND 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES 

Definition of Numerical Rating 
(Years Until Improvement is Needed) 

System 
Element Conditions Defining LOS 1 2 3 4 5 

Pipelines Infiltration/inflow; structural 

condition (cracking, settlement); 

age; material; operation and 

maintenance problems; odors; 

corrosion 

Immediately <3 >3, <6 >6, <20 >20 

Pump Stations Standby pump; standby power; 

alarms; valved overflow/bypass; 

leaks; flood protection; structural 

condition (cracking, settlement); 

age; material; operation and 

maintenance problems; odors; 

corrosion 

Immediately <3 >3, <6 >6, <20 >20 

Wastewater 

Treatment 

Facilities-Liquid 

Stream 

Physical (structural and mechani-

cal) condition; meets permit con-

ditions; meets water quality crite- 

ria; flood protection; age; opera-

tion and maintenance problems; 

odors; outfall 

Immediately <3 >3, <6 >6, <20 >20 

Wastewater 

Treatment 

Facilities-Solid 

Stream 

Physical (structural and mechani-

cal) condition; meets permit con-

ditions; flood protection; age; op- 

eration and maintenance problems; 

odors; outfall 

Immediately <3 >3, <6 :-6, <20 >20 

TABLE 3-3 
LOS FOR SEPTIC TANKS 

Numerical Rating 
Acres/Equivalent Residential 

Unit (ERU) 
5 5.0 

4 2.5 

3 1.0 

2 0.5 

1 0.25 

194 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 130 of 311



LOS APPLICATION 
Application Method 

LOS application involves defining threshold standards for new system construction and for facility upgrades. 
Applying LOS standards to the city's system results in an assessment of system deficiencies, which leads to rec-
ommendations for necessary improvements. The LOS analysis was described and presented in the Level of Ser-
vice Standards Application for Sewer/Sanitary and Roadway Systems Draft Report (August 1993). 

The sewer/sanitary percent-of-capacity and condition LOS standards were applied to the existing system and 
to each land use alternative for the years 2001 and 2015. Thresholds were established and are shown in Table 3- 
4. A facility with an LOS rating equal to or worse than the threshold is considered deficient and in need of im-
provement. 

TABLE 3-4 
THRESHOLD LOS FOR THE SEWER/SANITARY SYSTEM 

Type of Facility Percent-of-Capacity LOS Condition LOS 
Pipelines D 2 

Pump Stations D 2 

Wastewater Treatment 
Facilities-Liquids Stream 

D 

Wastewater Treatment 
Facilities-Solids Stream 

D 3 

Septic Tanks N/A 2-3* 

* The city has chosen a threshold value between a 2 and 3. i.e. 0.75 acres per equivalent residential unit. 

LOS Application Results 
Application of LOS ratings to existing city 

wastewater facilities, shown in Table 3-5, compares 
today's ratings with those projected under the pre-
ferred and benchmark alternatives for both the year 
2001  2015  and the year 2015  2035 planning hori-
zons, assuming no corrective actions are taken to up-
grade these facilities in the future. 

A comprehensive sewer plan was prepared in 2005  
to update the previous 1995 plan. The 2005 plan rec-
ommended an extensive series of collection system 
upgrades and service extensions, which were largely 
completed over the period 2004-2010. Remaining 
collection system upgrades consist of annual main 
lining or replacement projects that target concrete 
mains and services as the first priority. Treatment 
plant upgrades recommended in the 1995 plan were  

completed by 1999. The plant remains well below 
capacity, and is at year sixteen for most equipment.  
Due to the 2008 Recession, it is now projected that  
the plant capacity will not reach the 85% level until 
after 2020. Replacement of the mechanical equip-
ment installed in 1998 will be required prior to the 
next upgrade, and has been included in the 2015 Cap-
ital Improvement Plan 
facilities' deficiencies, recommended improvements  
and estimated costs are shown  in Tables  3 6 and  3 7. 
Figures  CF 5, CF 6, CF 7 and  CF 8 show the loca  
tions  of deficiencies and proposed improvements for  
the years  19952004, and  2015, respectively.  Unit 

. 	 ; 

ore presented  in Table 3 8. 
In addition, Clarifier Number 1, which was dam-

aged in the 1990 flood and temporarily repaired, may 
require additional repairs or replacements prior to the 

195 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 131 of 311



projected time of the plant upgrade. Clarifier Number 
2 was constructed in t 1992 to replace Clarifier Num-
ber 1, but operationally Clarifier Number 1 is needed 
to provide treatment during peak flow events during 
the fall and winter seasons.  

Sewer/sanitary system improvement needs to han 

prepared in 1995-te verify and refine the conclusions 
and recoFnmendations of this broad scoped CFP 
study and4e-ebtain Department of Ecology approval 
of the city plan. A new clarifier and upgrades to the 
treatment plant solids- stream process were also re 

the upgrades started in 1998. In addition, much of the 
mechanical equipment is approximately twenty (20) 
years old and approaching the end of its useful life, 
necessitating increased maintenance and some re 
placement. A replaeernent/upgrade of the State Street 
pump station will be needed and a new pump station 
and force main will have to be added to the system in 
the vicinity of I iawthorne Street at F&S Grade Road .  

Various sections of trunk line will be replaced and 
upgraded. 

two alternatives is an additional one thousand (1,000) 
feet of pipeline required-under the preferred alterna 
tive for the trunk line in 3rd Street between State 

- 	 . - 

ditional improvements add approximately one hun 

    

C C 

 

• Z . 	• I C 2 . 

 

  

    

overall cost of improvements for the preferred alter 
native. 

The city is currently working on the following sys-
tem improvements: 

• Annual Sewer Main Upgrade Project. This 
$250,000 annual project improves existing 
mains over fifty years old, primarily concrete 
and vitrified clay pipe. by a combination of re-
placement or lining with Cured in Place Pipe, 
Pipe Bursting or other trenchless methods. 
The 2015 version of this project is the Green- 

street Boulevard, Virginia and Dean Streets  
Sewer Main Upgrade. This project will re-
place failing concrete sewer mains and ser-
vices for this 1950's era subdivisionFour man 
holes on the trunk line in McGarigle east of 
Fniitdale are being rehabilitated and the tops 

work is being paid for by Northern State Hos 

• Annual Manhole Rehabilitation Project. This  
550,000 annual project lines existing manholes  
to reduce inflow and infiltrationThe city is 
renting a sludge press to reduce the volume of 
sludge for disposal when land application is 
not-feasible. 

• Annual Wastewater Treatment Plant Equip-
ment Upgrades. This $100,000 annual project 
targets mechanical equipment at or beyond its 
useful design life. Recent projects have in-
cluded replacement of the Ultraviolet Disinfec-
tion System, the Aerator Rotor tubes, one aera-
tion motor, Digest blowers and other equip-
mentThe city has constructed a new sewer in 
Reed Street. 

• Several hundred feet of force main for the 
State Street pump station were upgraded to 
eight inch diameter pipe as part of the State 
Street road improvement project. 

SPECIFIC GOALS AND POLICIES 
The following specific goals and policies have 

been developed for sewer/sanitary capital facilities. 
They guide the city's future sewer system planning 
effort. 

Policy CF1.3 Maintain a safe, efficient and cost-
effective sewage collection and treatment system. 

Policy CF1.4 Require all new subdivisions to connect 
to city sewer. 

196 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 132 of 311



Policy CF1.5 Existing septic systems shall be re-
placed with city sewer when it is available. The city 
shall seek sources of financial aid to assist low-
income residents with this cost. 

Policy CF1.6 Monitor groundwater quality in areas 
of septic service on a timely basis. 

Policy CF1.7 Update the sewer plan every six years 
on a rotating schedule with other capital facilities 
plans. 

Policy CF1.8 Eliminate any point or non-point pollu-
tion sources associated with sewage transport and 
disposal. 

Policy CF1.9 Monitor infiltration and inflow through 
routine television inspection. Conduct improvements 
to limit and reduce current infiltration and inflow. 

Policy CF1.10 The following level of service guide-
lines should be used to determine the impacts of new 
development upon existing public facilities: [See de-
scription of level of service in the text. A facility with 
a rating equal to or worse than those listed is consid-
ered deficient and planning for improvements should 
commence. 

• Pipelines-Condition Level of Service 2, Capac-
ity Level of Service D 

• Pump Stations-Condition Level of Service 2, 
Capacity Level of Service D 

• Wastewater Treatment Facility-Condition Lev-
el of Service 3, Capacity Level of Service D. 

• Septic Tanks-Condition Level of Service 3 

197 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 133 of 311



F
igure C

F
-52 

M
ain F

eatures of the Sanitary Sew
er System

 

198 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 134 of 311



iiiiinvimpui 
VifiliM 

end 

199 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 135 of 311



200 

I I 

F
igure C

F
  .6

 
' •

: 	
:
.
 
.
 
:
 	
"
:
 
' 
:
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 136 of 311



F
ig

u
re C

F
 7

 

201 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 137 of 311



F
igure  C

F
  8

 
"
;
 	

:: •
 •

 ' :: ' : 

202 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 138 of 311



TABLE 3-5 

LOS RATINGS FOR SEDRO-WOOLLEY WASTEWATER FACILITIES 
Year 2035 LOS Rating Year 2035 LOS Rating With 

Without Corrective Action Corrective Action 

TRUNK LINES 

Epe 

Diameter, 

Year 

Preferred Preferred 

2015 

LOS 

Inches Etitgi Alternative Alternative 

Northern Ave. 8 	10, 12 Fl D5 D5 

Metcalf St. 

Northern Ave. to Moore St. - 18 B5 C4 C4 

2004 

Northern Ave. to State St. - 24 B5 C4 C4 

2009 

Moore St. - 2004 18 B5 C4 C4 

Township St. 

N. of McGarigle - 2009 10 	12 	15 B4 B4 B4 

McGarigle to Wicker - 2009 24 30 B5 C4 C4 

Wicker to Railroad St. -- 2007 30 B5 C4 C4 

McGarigle 

Township to Fruitdalc - 2009 15 135 B4 B4 

Fruitdale to Northern St. 1.5 D5 D4 Di 

campus — 2009 	 I 

Sterling St. (i.e. alley parallel on 30 35 C4 C4 

the north) 	-Railroad St. to 

WWTP - 2007 

Railroad St. - E. of Township 10 B1 B1 B4 

St. 

3rd St.•State to WWTP - 2011 21 	24 CS C4 C4 

State Hwy 20 at W. end of 8 C5 84 B4 

town—United Gen. Hosp to 

State St. PS - 2008 

State Hwy 20 at E. end of 12 C5 B4 34 

town—Township to Carter 

State St.—Township to 3rd - 8, 10, 12  AS B4 B4 

2012 

PUMP STATIONS Flow 

Capacity 

West State Street PS - 1998 2(a. 700 C3 DI D4 

gpm (2.016 

mil) 

203 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 139 of 311



i 
Year 2035 LOS Rating Year 2035 LOS Rating With 

Without Corrective Action Corrective Action 

TRUNK LINES 

Pine 

Diameter, 

Year 

Preferred Preferred 

2015 

LOS 

Inches Rating Alternative Alternative 

John Liner Road PS- 1989 2 g 300 Cl Cl C4  

gpm (0.864 

mgd) 

Mountain View PS - 2002 2 (ri.,, 120 A4 Al A4 

gpin (0.346 

mgd) 

West Jones Road PS -- 2005 2 @, 250 B4 CI C4 

gpm (0.720 

mgd) 

Klinger St P S - 2005 2 al, 185 B4 B I B4 

gm (0.533 

ingd) 

Cook Road PS - 1998 2 rd,  265 C3 Cl C4 

grim (0.763 

mgd) 

Hodgin Road PS - 2003 2 (a, 510 ('4 Cl C4 

grim (1.469 

mgd) 

Holteamp Road PS - 2008 2  (it,  400 B4 B1 B4 

gpm (1.152 

mgd) 

Hospital Road PS - 2008 2 (it:  306 B4 131 B4 

gpm (0.881 

mgd) 

Fruitdalc Road PS - 2009 2  (ri,  195 B4 C1 C4 

gpm (0.562 

ingit 

Bingham Park PS - 2013 1 (ri; 45 C4 C3 C4 

Om (0.065 

mgc)1 

WASTEWATER 

TREATM ENT FACILITIES  

204 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 140 of 311



Year 2035 LOS Rating Year 2035 LOS Rating With 

Without Corrective Action Corrective Action 

TRUNK LINES 

Pipe 

Year 

Preferred Preferred 

2015 

Diameter, LOS 

Inches iLgi Alternative Alternative 

Liquid Stream L24 mgd C3 DI B4 

annual 

avg., 2.07 

mgd 

monthly 

avg„ 3.53 

max day, 

7.18 mgd 

peak hour 

Solid Stream  C4 DI C4 

44,,,_2407_hosRatin 

Without-Gor-FeetIve-Aet4ou 

4=ear-2015-644S-Ratiog 

Withaut-GeFeeetive-Aetion 

TRUNK  LINES  

Ripe 

Diffoeter 

Year 

1993  

LOS 

Ra-ting 

Preferred 

Alter-RatIve 

Bench-ma-rk 

Alternative 

Rr-efer-Fed 

Al-temative 

Renehi/lack 

Alternative 

Northern Ave. 4-2 F4 €4 F-1 F4 14 

Metcalf St. 

Northern Ave. to Moore St. -1-( B-3 E-1- L4 F-4 F-1 

—141rthern Ave. to State St. 12-, 15•, 132 F4 F4 F4 F4 

4-8L 

Moore St. ic 134 E2  P2 €4 €4 

Township St. 

N. of McGarigle 10-, 8• B4 P4 P4 D4 134 

• 45L C-1 €4 C4 P4 D4 

Wicker to Railroad St. 15•  P4 E4 E4 F4 F4 

MeGarigle 

Township to Fruit(lale  4-SL" c4 ID4 04 ID3 143 

Fruitdale to Northern St. 

campus, 

-1- F4 €4 €4 €4 F4 

- - 	•  - 	. 	• 	- . 	. 

the north) 	Railroad St. to 

WWTP 

18" D2  -E2 €2 F4 €4 

Railroad  St. 	E. of Township  

St7 

+02: 134 R4 84 44 134 

205 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 141 of 311



Year 2007 LOS Rating Year 2015 LOS Rating 

Without-Gorfeetive-Aetion Without Corrective Action 

Year 

1993  

-1.44S 

Rating 

Preferred 

Alternative 

Bench-t a

TR-I.ils;44-LINES 

Benchmark 

Al-ter-aatiw 

Preferred 

Alternative Alternative 

Pipe 

Diameter 

3rd St. 	State to WWTP 18-, 21-, 1D2 -E-i- E 	I E-1- El- 

21--  

State-Hwy 20  at W.  end of  

town United Gen. Hosp to 

State St. PS 

SL -E-3 E-1- F-[ 4 F4 

State  Hwy 20 at  E. end of 

town 	Township to-Carter 

12-  AS  4-5. 13 	5 CS  GS 

10", 12-  44 G4 G4 134 -13/4 

PUMP STATIONS -Flew 

Ca-Rae-4y 

Stale St. PS 3-044-gp4i 

(0.13 mgd) 

Ig4 P4 P-1 -F4 

John  Liner PS 300 A4 84 B4 13.2 84 gpm 

(44-3  mgd)  

Mt. View PS 300 A4 84 84 B2  8-2 gpm 

(0.43 mgd) 

lAcoSPEANAT-ER 

TREATMENT FACILITIES 

I.9 mgd 

avg., 1.6 

4)-2 -E4 -E4 -FL1 V4 Liquid StrLam 

ingd peak 

Solid StrLam €2 €4 f---1- 4 F4 

Note: 	Capacity LOS represented by alphabetic character—A=Best; F=Worst 
Condition LOS represented by numeric character-1=Worst; 5=Best 

206 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 142 of 311



TABLE 3-6 

WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS RECOMMENDED WITHIN THREE YEARS 

Preieet-TYPe • 	I . 
 

-Deseription-of 

-D-eficiencies 

Corrective 

Actions 

Involved 

Estimated 

4993-Project-Costi  Proj. tt 

Reports 47 Many facilities Rrepar-e-plan S-1407080 Comprehensive Sewer Plan, including 

(Completed) 

near capacity 

and at end of 

design life 

Wastewater 

Treatment 

Facilities 

New Clarifier Existing 

clarifier 

elatnaged-in 

1990 flood 

Build new 58431-43044 (Completed) 

clarifier 

3, at Renovate4e 

exgand 

facilities 

$900,000 Upgrade Treatment Plants Solid Stream 

(Started) 

Currently 

eapaeity-&-eloes 

not meet new 

federal 

regulations 

Project Type Proj. # Project Description/Location 

Description of 

Corrective 

Estimated Actions 

Deficiencies Involved 2015 Project Cost' 

Reports 6-30 2016 Comprehensive Sewer Plan Identify Update plan 5150,000 

Update remaining trunk 

sewer upgrades; 

Inflow & 

Infiltration 

Reduction 

Wastewater 8-13, 18 Equipment Upgrades Blowers Replace Blower $200,000 

Treatment Motors; Motors; Recoat 

Facilities Clarifier 2 and replace 

Coating; wier Clarifier 2 

8-14 Upgrade Treatment Plants Solid Stream Belt Filter Replace Belt 5250 000 

Press nearing Filter Press 

lifespan limit  

207 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 143 of 311



Project 

Type 

Proj. 

# On From To 

Length 

(ft) 

Diam. of 

Present 

Pipe (in) 

Description 

of 

Deficiencies 

Corrective 

Actions 

Involved 

Estimated 

1993 2015 

Project 

Cost' 

Trunk 

Lines 

4None Various 

locations 

III Rehabilitation S30,000 

per future sewer 

Plan 

5,  Noble} 

Am, 

Metcalf St, Alley  

W. of 

Central 

4,600 4-2 Very high 

11. structural 

problems 

Replace-in-kind 

with 	12 inch 

pipe 

S-1-201300 

6,  Township 

St, 

\Vic-Ifef 

REI: 

2,600 45 Flood  related 

damage: 

settling-and 

structural 

problems 

Replace 	with 

18  inelt-pipe'  

S270.000 Me Garigle 

Rd, 

7,  Township 

St. 

Wickei-Rtl. Jai-Thefie 

is S4. 

4300 44 glood-felated 

damage. 

nearing 

capacity 

Replace-with 

2--I 	inch pipe 

5350,000 

8.4  bane St: tiorsern St. Mete-all' 1,6004  it Nearing 

capacity 

Replace-with 

40-incb pipe 

SI-00,000 

9.' State-St, Rita Metcalf 300 6 AVill- finch 

capacity with 

State St, 

pump station 

upgrade 

New-it-  force S14.000 

main- to 

complete 

replacement 

begun in 499-3 

State St. F.-astern 3rd 600 8 W-i44 mach 

capacity-with 

State-St 

pomp-station 

u138:Fade 

Replace with 

42- 	 gravity  pip,:  

544,000 

208 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 144 of 311



Project Type Proj.  ft  ' 	: ' • 	I 	• 	": 	: 	• 	- 	: 	: - 

Description 

Deficiencies 

of 

 Corrective 

Actions 

Involved 

Estimated 

19-934-T-ej-eet 

Cost/  

P-iffep 

Stations 

4-0, State St. Pump Station Nearing New-PS and 

wet well: 

incr. capacity 

to approx. 

500 

S-3407000 

capacity, 

several 

development-s 

coming on 
line soon 

gpm. 

Add standby 

11 efWef 

-1-17 New pump station and 400 feet of 

force main in vicinity of Hawthorne at 

F&S Grade Road 

Iluntip-s•tation 

and force 

4.0-ser-ve main 

Estimate 300 

gfoll-PlimP 

station and 

400 LF 6-  of 

$.2-1-3 ,00-0 

(pump sta) 

$14,000 

subbasin 14 (force main) 

force main 

Project Tvpe Pro'. /4 Project Description/Location 

Description Corrective Estimated 

of 

Deficiencies 

Actions 2015 Project 

Involved Cost' 

Pump 6-B John Liner Pump Station Equipment Replace $60.000 

Stations beyond mechanical 

design life and control 

equipment 

6-B West State Street Pump Station E:g u inmen t Replace $60,000 

nearing mechanical 

design life and control 

equipment 

6-B Cook Road Pump Station Equipment Replace $60,000 

nearing mechanical 

design life and control 

equipment 

Total Lineal Feet of Pipe 4-1,4440 Total cost for trunk lines $4-76941,0000 

Required: (Preferred and Benchmark altcrnatives)0 Total cost for first 3 years $3,510,000 

$780,000 

Notes: 
' 	Estimated project cost includes construction cost times a 1.53 multiplier that incorporates a twenty-five (25) percent contingency, ?..2%8.5%  sales tax, 

and twenty (20) percent for engineeringflegal/administration. 
The immediate need for the trunk I.  
capacity. but the size increase needs  to be linked wi than increase in ;47.-e-of-pipe-in-the-an ey north of Sterling St. Approximately siN hundred ( 60(1) LF 
front Highway 20 to the railroad was  slipl-ined-with-o,s it e 112) inch liner within-the-last-fis, 
This impHwement-is-requinld only -as- part of  Project 440. the-State - Street Pump Station. 
Aai:ociat,:d with new pump station (Proi,:ct v11). 

209 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 145 of 311



TABLE 3-7 

WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS RECOMMENDED 
FOR ACTION IN MORE THAN THREE YEARS 

Project Type Proj. # Project Description/Location 

Description 

of 

Deficiencies 

Corrective 

Actions 

Involved 

Estimated 

1993 Project 

Cost' 

Wastewater 

Treatment 

Facilities 

1. Upgrade Treatment Plant Liquid 

Stream within  3 to  6  

yeaFsapproximately 2030 

Nearing peak 

hydraulic 

capacity 

&Estimated 

Renovate & 

expand 

S2,000,000  

$30,000 000 

design life 

8- 18. Annual Plant Equipment Upgrades Equipment at Replace  $ 1 00,000/year = 

2015-2030 or beyond Equipment as $1,500,000 

design life needed  

Project 

4)13-e 

P-r-o-jt 

# On Front To 

Length 

(f4) 

Diem: of 

Present 

Pipe-Ein) 

Description of 

Deficiencies 

C-orrective 

Aetitinc-inveiveti 

Estimated 

4993. -Project 

Cost- I  

T-PlifIR 

IAHes 

f-event- 

mended 

within -3 to -6 

years 

(-43efore-year 

14)04-) 

a-. M-e4Cii-il 644tiffil State St. 4:300 40;42,45 frotrEphysical 

condition. 

fleeting 

capacity 

Unsine 5-1-644400 pipcohy 

otte-s. iste ' 

3. north Jameson-St; Waste 

water 

Trtmnt 

Plant 

 	3X40 4-8 nearing 

capacity,  bad  

condition 

Replace-with-24- 

inck  pipe?  

S534.800 Alley 

oIL-Sieriing 

4: 34• -S4 State St. Waste 441W 24 nearing 

capacity.  had  

condition 

Replace 	24 with 54400004  

teats 

Truing

Plant 

inch-pipe 

5,440 4-8 Replace with 30 

incit-pipe 

S804100 

210 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 146 of 311



of 6400 Preferred Alternative $910,000 Total Lineal Feet 	Pipe Required: 

5A-00 Betielimaik-Altentative P7.07000 

cost $2-79107000 Total 	1995 through 2001 

S2,770,000 

Project Pro i. 

On From To 

Length 

Diam. of 

Description of Corrective 

Estimated 

Present 2015 Project 

Type # an Pipe (inl Deficiencies Actions involved Cost' 

Trunk 

Lines— 

6-40 Township Northern Waldron 296 15 Existing Cone 

Pipe beyond 

Install CIPP Liner $80,000  

recom- 

mended 

design life 

within 3 to 6 

years 

6-4 I Northern Metcalf Murdock/ 626 II 12 Under capacity Replace with 

PVC 

S285 000 

Ave. Puget  

Alley 

pipe; Cone 

pipe beyond 

design life 

6-42 Railmad 

Ave. 

Township falcon  2 079 10 fatitAing Conc 

Pipe beyond 

Install CIPP Liner S290,000 

design  file 

Total Lineal Feet of Pipe Required: 3,002 Preferred Alternative $655,000 

Project  1) pc Frei. # P-Fefeet-Descr-iption-lheention 

Description 

of 

Deficieneies 

Corrective 

Actions 

Involved 

Estimated 

4493-Prefect 

C.(' )s44  

Stations 

4-: -Romp 

 

John Liner Pump Stn at Central and 

Liner Rd. 

Nearing-end 

of design life 

Renovate S50,00.0 

recom 

mended 

beforeaf 

2015 

. - 	. 	r . 	- 	. 

Township,  St. 

Nearing end 

of-design-life 

no S50,000 

Total-Cost 

2042-through 

2015 

$-1-0.0,400 

211 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 147 of 311



Total Lineal Feet of Pipe Required: Preferred Alternative 5655,000 3,002 

Total cost 2015 through 2035 $34,065,000 

4 	Tht one-thousand 0,000) feet -of twenty one 121)  inch lint is included in the preferred alternativ e hut-not- 
The higher value is for the preferred alternative. the  low value  is for the benchmark alternative. 

Protect Type Pro'. # Project Description/Location 

Description Corrective Estimated 

of 

Deficiencies 

Actions 1993 Project 

Involved Costl  

Pump 6-B Mountain View Pump Station - 2002. Nearing end Renovate $70,000 

Stations— of design life 

recom- 2022 

mended 

before year 

2015 

6-B West Jones Rd Pump Station - 2005 Nearing end Renovate $70,000 

of design life 

2025 

6-B Klinger Pump Station -2005 Nearing end Renovate $70,000 

ot' design life 

2025 

6-B Hodgin Road Pump Station - 2003 Nearing end Renovate $70,000 

of design life 

2023 

6-B Holteamp Road Pump Station - 2008 Nearing end Renovate 570,000 

of design life 

2028 

6-B Hospital Road Pump Station -- 2008 Nearing end Renovate $7000() 

of design life 

2028 

6-B Fruitdale Road Pump Station - 2009 Nearing end Renovate $70,000 

of design life 

2029 

Total Cost 5490,000 

2015 through 

2035 

Notes: 
I 	Estimated project cost includes construction cost times a L62 multiplier that incorporates a twenty-five (25) percent contingency, 8..--24;38.5% sales tax, 

and twenty (20) percent for engineering/legal/administration. 
inch pipe. 

212 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 148 of 311



TABLE 3-8 
UNIT COSTS USED FOR ESTIMATING 

TRUNK LINE PROJECT COSTS 

Pipe Diameter, Project Unit 
inches Costa  $/LF 

Gravity 
12 $350.00 

CT-PP 
10 $30.00 
15 $50.00 

Pip-e-Di-ameter7  
inc-hes 

Profeet-Unit 
Costa, VLF 

Gravity 
4-0 $61.00 
4-2 $71.00 
4-5 887,00 
1-8 84-04410 
2-1- $4-00 
24 S-14-600 
30 $155.00 
Force  Main  
6 $34,00 
8 84-6,00 

a. 	Estimated project cost includes construction cost times a 1.53 multi- 
plier that incorporates a twenty-five (25) percent contingency, 848.5 
percent sales tax, and twenty (20) percent for engineer-
ing/legalladministration. 

(Ord. 1447-03 § 2 (Exh. C) (part)) 

213 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 149 of 311



7.12 	 B. Capital Facility Planning 

SCHOOLS 

The City of Sedro-Woolley does not own or oper-
ate school facilities. However, public facilities and 
services such as schools are vital to protect and en-
hance community and environmental quality. Defi-
ciencies in school facilities might not raise severe 
obstacles to any single new development, but over 
time could cause deterioration of community quality. 
The City of Sedro-Woolley is ultimately responsible 
for assuring that adequate facilities and services, such 
as schools and school facilities, are available or can 
be made available to support planned growth. This 
responsibility is carried out by working with the 
Sedro-Woolley School District No. 1 (District) to 
identify needs for facilities and services based on the 
planned amount and location of growth. The mecha-
nism for identifying needs is through the District cap-
ital facilities plan, which is adopted as a supplement 
of the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 

The provision of an adequate supply of kindergarten 
through twelfth grade (K-12) public schools and K-
12 public school facilities is essential to avoid over-
crowding and to enhance the educational opportuni-
ties for our children. 

A. Identifying Needs for Facilities and Services 

The Growth Management Act requires the District to 
prepare a capital facility plan which includes an in-
ventory of existing capital facilities owned by public 
entities, a forecast of the future needs for capital fa-
cilities, including the proposed locations and capaci-
ties of expanded or new facilities, and a six-year plan 
that will finance the expanded or new facilities. Fur-
thermore, Chapter 15.64 SWMC requires that, as a 
condition of collecting school impact fees, the Sedro-
Woolley School District prepare a six-year capital 
facility plan that describes the District's capacity 
needs for the six-year period of the plan and proposes 
funding to meet those needs. 

The District's six-year capital facility plan should be 
consistent with the Growth Management Act, City of 
Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan, and the Sedro-
Woolley Municipal Code. 

The full Sedro-Woolley School District Capital Fa-
cilities Plan is included in Appendix F-E of the Capi-
tal Facilities Element of the Sedro-Woolley Compre-
hensive Plan. 

214 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 150 of 311



7.14 

LL13RARIES 

The City of Sedro-Woolley owns and operates one 
public library. Located at Memorial Park, the library 
is in the same complex of city-owned buildings as the 
Community Center and Senior Center. Annually, the 
library offers hundreds of programs oriented to chil-
dren and families. According to staff estimates, the 
library hosted approximately 70,297 visitors in 2014. 

A. Existing Facility 

The Sedro-Woolley library is approximately 8,000 
square feet and serves 10,700 residents (2015 popula-
tion), as well as a high number of non-residents (with 
paid library cards). Currently the library serves, on 
average, between 100 and 350 people per day. Last 
expanded over twenty-five years ago, the library has 
vastly exceeded its maximum capacity and now 
struggles to efficiently serve its population. 

The exiting  library is in need of a meeting room  
and additional storage capabilities. The staff room  
shares limited space with 2,500 videos/dvds, a staff 
office, several workstations, the computer room, and 
Pacific NW Reference. Seating is severely limited; 
there are only four tables and sixteen chairs within  
the building. The building has reached its capacity 
for shelving, thus future expansion of the collection  
of library materials is hindered. The limited size of 
the facility also limits the library's ability to meet the 
needs of the city's growing population. In addition, 
the size has a detrimental effect on accessibility for 
persons with disabilities.  

The library lacks a quiet-study area and a space for 
teens to gather or work. The children's area is in un-
fortunate close proximity to the busy Internet sta-
tions. Many patrons wish to either access the library 
wireless Internet or to work independently on their 
laptops, however the building lacks an adequate sup-
ply of publicly available power outlets (with none 
near any of the tables).  

Depending on activities at the nearby Senior Cen-
ter, Community Center and Memorial Park,parking 
can also be problematic for library patrons.  

B. Projected Demand 

The Sedro-Woolley library currently boasts a col-
lection of some 64,000 items. Based on projected 
population estimates of 17,069 city residents by 
2036, that collection will need to expand to 130,000  
to 140,000 items. While print books are now accom-
panied by electronic books (only 10% to 15% of 
books published today are also available in an e-
format), overall circulation continues to rise. In the 
future that a mixture of physical and e-materials is 
expected to be in high demand.  

To accommodate future growth, new library space 
is needed, Recommended averages for public library 
building size vary from one square foot per resident  
to two square feet per resident. 1 square foot per res-
ident is somewhat substandard; 1.5 sf per resident 
considered is adequate/good; and 2 square feet or 
more per resident is generous. The current library 
space is 0.75 square feet per resident. The library  in 
the neighboring City of Burlington has approximate-
ly 2.6 square feet of library per resident.  

Improvements to the library's power and broad-
band infrastructure are also needed. For library pa-
trons to fully take advantage of the growing collec-
tion of e-books, online library databases and for 
online research in general, the library will need a 
faster broadband connection. Many patrons do not  
have computers at home or do not have fast Internet 
connections at home — therefore they depend on the 
library network for everything from filing income 
taxes, to job searches, to accessing health and social  
services. The current buildings electrical and broad-
band capacity has reached capacity which limits the 
library's ability to better serve emerging electronic 
media technologies.  

215 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 151 of 311



A library is no longer just about the books — the 
primary purpose of a library is to serve people. A 
library is where people can gather; where civic en-
gagement is provided; where programs are given; 
where learning is achieved; where high speed tech-
nology is accessed; where meetings are accommo-
dated. As the city's population rises, so does the 
number of patrons looking to access the library's re-
sources. Meeting spaces, class spaces, tutoring spac-
es, technology training labs and study spaces are cur-
rently not available in this community, but are fre-
quently requested.  

One mandate the library has been steadily working 
on is early learning. If children can be kindergarten 
ready by the age of 5, then education costs overall are 
greatly reduced — and better yet, a much greater per-
centage of children will continue to learn successful-
ly throughout their entire lives. A well-educated and 
highly capable work force brings economic benefits 
the community, and the library offers a gamut of ini-
tiatives towards that goal. Programs such as Baby 
Time, Toddler Story Time, Preschool Story Time, 
Play & Learns (a deeper, more extensive experience 
featuring literacy, math, and science activities) and 
Summer Reading Programs (often hosting 75 to 200 
people per event) are integral to creating a well-
educated community. The need for services offered 
to older adults will grow substantially in the future.  
There will be a rising demand for public places for 
the semi-retired and retired to engage in civic discus-
sions, to learn new tasks and activities and to stay 
healthy & mentally active.  

Future planned programs (particularly tween and 
teen activities) cannot be offered until additional re-
sources and space is available. Adult programs at the 
library have also been extremely successful (craft, 
food, discussion groups, technology, photography, 
etc.) and are in increasingly high demand. Similarly, 
resources and space limitations prevent further ex-
pansion of these services.  

A 24,000 to 32,000 square foot library building 
would offer extensive meeting spaces; tutoring  

rooms; a teen center; space to grow the book collec-
tions: a Children's/Early Learning wing; a technolo-
gy learning lab; and room for multiple crafts and 
classes. A small business center would also be a 
wonderful addition to this library site. Public libraries 
can provide excellent economic development re-
sources. The addition of more space will accommo-
date the libraries mandate to provide high quality 
materials and programs to a greater number of resi-
dents.  

D. Financing 

Projected costs will have to be carefully consid-
ered. The most cost-effective idea for providing addi-
tional space would be to retrofit an appropriate exist-
ing structure (it could potentially save anywhere from 
2/3 to 3/4 of the costs of a new build). If the space 
were one-story (a two-story structure requires at least 
one elevator, as well as sufficient staff to safely man-
age the upper floor) and of an open floor plan — this 
would greatly enhance both space flexibility, and the 
maximum utility of space. In addition, the floor 
would have to be able to support the weight of heavy 
book shelves. Automatic doors, wide pathways, flat 
walking surfaces, would also have to be considera-
tions for meeting American Disabilities Act require-
ments.  

A new concept in libraries financing is to offset 
the cost of library renovations and expansions by 
renting a portion of the property to a carefully com-
patible commercial or retail entity—thereby subsidiz-
ing the costs of the additional Library space. Such 
possible revenue sources include the addition of a 
small café for coffee or light edibles, or a library gift 
shop run by volunteers.  

To keep additional staffing costs to a minimum; 
self-checkout stations would allow increased access 
for patrons at a very cost-effective rate. Good sight 
lines within the building would also allow strategic 
placing of staff to maintain safety and efficiency.  

216 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 152 of 311



The latest advances in energy technology could  
assist in keeping potential costs down, as well. Ener-
gy efficiency in insulation, solar panels, airtight win-
dows, etc., would all be good economic strategies for 
additional space.  

In addition to general funds used for capital library 
projects — a proposition that is financially unviable —
typical funding sources include grants and bonds (for 
example voter approved bonds or councilmanic 
bonds). Funding through the Washington State Capi-
tal Budget is also available through the legislative 
appropriation process. Grant funding opportunities  
for libraries abound. However, the majority are for 
programs and materials — very few are available for 
capital/building. Those grants that do provide money 
for capital facilities improvements are highly com-
petitive. Funding sources are offered by both public  
and private sources. Private entities such as Target,  

the Gates Foundation, the Skagit Community Foun-
dation, Boeing, and other corporate entities all pro-
vide library grant opportunities. Federal grants may 
also be available, such as grants for Rural Communi-
ty Centers. In addition, there are a few low-interest, 
long term loans available.  

Other funding mechanisms include public-private 
cooperative funding and public partnerships. Using 
private funds raised through grass-roots community 
fundraising campaigns can be used as matching mon-
ey to leverage larger grants. Public support for such a 
project in a community is essential to successfully 
organizing capital fund-raising campaigns and ob-
taining grant funding. Working cooperatively with 
other libraries to regionalize library services is anoth-
er option.  

217 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 153 of 311



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

218 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 154 of 311



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

219 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 155 of 311



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

220 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 156 of 311



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

221 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 157 of 311



7.16 

FIRE PROTECTION 

Fire protection in the Sedro-Woolley UGA is 
provided by the city of Sedro-Woolley fire depart-
ment (hereinafter referred to as the "SWFD" or 
"department"). The SWFD contracted with Les Flue 
of Management Solutions to prepare its Audit and 
Analysis for Strategic Planning and Growth Man 
agement in 1991 and-with Emergency Services Ed  

. 	; 	- 
this plan. The need for new fire personnel and facil-
ities is directly related to population, response times 
and other demographic trends such as birth rate, 
housing, and employment trends. These trends are 
an important tool in predicting the fire protection 
service needs of the community, personnel and 
equipment requirements and the location, size and 
capacity of new fire facilities. 

EXISTING PERSONNEL AND FACILITIES 
The SWFD protects an area of approximately 

fifty-nine (59) square miles and services the city of 
Sedro-Woolley and areas of Skagit County Fire 
District 8. Compensation is received from the dis-
trict for services rendered to areas outside the city 
boundaries as defined by an interlocal agreement. 
The population served is approximately eight thou 
sand eight hundred five (8,805)10,700 in the city 
and more than seventeen thousand (17,000)19.000 
district-wide. The department provides fire protec-
tion services, basic life support services, annual fire 
inspections, plan review services and emergency 
management. Educational services are also provid-
ed for limited fire prevention, juvenile fire interven-
tion, CPR and first aid. 

Department personnel consists of one paid fire 
chief, one paid assistant fire chief / training officer, 
four part time firefighters, one paid part-time secre-
tary and thirty-seven (37) volunteer firefighters. The 
SWFD operates out of two fire stations which hous-
es all of the department's equipment. The newest 
station (located on the northern edge of the city)  

was paid for by a federal grant. There are twelve 
resident volunteers between the two stations who 
work staggered shifts with at least four on duty each 
night. A duty officer is on call from six p.m. to six 
a.m. each night and twenty-four (24) hours on 
weekends and holidaysDepartment-persennel-eert-
Gists of one paid fire chief, two paid firefighters, one 
paid part time secretary and thirty seven (37) vol 
unteer firefighters. The SWFD operates out of one 
fire station ("Station Itl which houses all of the 
department's equipment. A bond levy was-pa-sed in 

station who work staggered shifts with at least two 

In 2002, the department received one thousand 
four hundred forty six (1,116) calls of which sixty 
six (66) percent were for emergency medical ser 
vice. Average response time from Station fi 1 is five 
to six minutes In 2015, the department received two 
thousand one hundred twenty-two (2,122) calls of 
which seventy-five (75) percent were for emergen-
cy medical service. Average response time from 
both stations is five to six minutes. 

In 2016 the SWFD budget is approximately one 
million, two hundred and ten thousand dollars 
($1,210,000.00), paid from the general fund. Fire 
District 8 has a contract with the city to provide 
service in areas that they cannot. The city receives 
approximately two hundred sixty-seven thousand 
dollars ($267,000.00) per year from District 8 on a 
per call basis which is routed to the general fund.  
The SWFD also contracts services to the Skagit 
County Emergency Medical Service (EMS) for 
regional medical assistance and contracts with State 
of Washington to provide service to the Center for 
Innovation and Technology (formerly Northern 
State Hospital Campus)The SWFD budget is ap  
proximately five hundred sixty five thousand one 
hundred forty dollars ($565,110.00), priinefily gen 
crated through general fund expenditures. Fire Dis 

222 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 158 of 311



in areas  that they cannot.  The city receives approx  
;relyL—another ninety four thousand dollars 
(091,000.00) per year from District  8 on a per  call  
basis  which is routed to the general fund. The de-
partment has mutual aid agreements with all of 
Skagit County. 

The capital facilities inventory for the depart-
ment is listed in Appendix A set out at the end of 
this chapter. 

PROJECTED NEED 
There are several factors for evaluating the fire 

protection service needs of the community, person-
nel and equipment requirements, and the location, 
size and capacity of new fire facilities. The three 
key factors are operational (the ability to operate on 
the fireground with the sufficient number of re-
sources to manage the incident); time response (the 
ability to deploy resources within a time frame that 
will enable the department to arrive in time to be 
the most effective on a given incident); and tactical 
(the ability to deploy sufficient equipment and 
manpower in a timely manner). On an operational 
basis a minimum of crew of two firefighters is re-
quired to handle a hose stream and at least one 
back-up crew must be maintained ready when a 
crew is inside fighting a fire. The maximum dura-
tion which a crew can work a fire ranges from 
twenty (20) to sixty (60) minutes. In addition, other 
functions are carried on during a fire requiring addi-
tional personnel. In Sedro-Woolley, most responses 
to fires are being met with one and two person 
crews. The smaller the initial response, the less like-
ly the department can carry out its functions in an 
efficient and effective manner. 

On a time response basis, if the department can-
not respond in a timely manner, the fire could 
spread beyond the ability to effectively control it, or 
a patient's condition can deteriorate beyond the 
time at which intervention can be successful. With a 
fire, intervention should take place with seven 
minutes from the initial appearance of the fire. A  

response within four minutes is needed to intervene 
on behalf of a heart attack victim. Fire and emer-
gency apparatus should be placed at locations from 
which an optimum response can be achieved. The 
current placement of the fire station is within three 
to five minutes of the majority of the area being 
evaluated. Secondary to the placement of the station 
is the ability to get the apparatus out of the station 
quickly. During the day the chief and a firefighter 
four firefighters  are available and resident volun-
teers during the evening which provides a minimum 
crew around the clock. While, the SWFD is averag-
ing 4.22 minutes to fires within the city limits and 
seven minutes in the fire district, the department is 
arriving with too few people to provide an effective 
and efficient initial and sustained attack. Additional 
crews may take over seven minutes to arrive. The 
identified response time objective of the SWFD 
should be to arrive within three to five minutes. Av-
erage response time in the department's centralized 
area (where the one main station is located) is five 
to six minutes, but ten (10) to eleven (11) minute 
responses can be expected in the further reaches of 
the service area. With the construction of the When 
the department builds a second station in the prop-
erty they currently own in the in the northeast corn-
er of the city, the extended response times in those 
areas should be significantly reduced. The depart-
ment is meting this seventy-six (76) percent of the 
time. The department should establish a goal of ar-
riving within this response time with an initial at-
tack size crew of twelve (12) firefighters. The goal 
for EMS services should be a response time of 7.5 
minutes. 

On a tactical basis, standards are set in place that 
are used (either legally or operationally) as a basis 
in determining how well a department provides its 
level of service. The department must work to 
maintain an effective deployment of equipment and 
personnel in emergencies by striving to achieve 
minimum fire attack crew sizes, sufficient manpow-
er or personnel to provide adequate resources at 
medical emergencies and adequate resources to ful-
fill the tactical requirements of other situations. The 

223 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 159 of 311



recommendation for Sedro-Woolley is to work 
within the existing resources to provide adequate 
manpower and equipment for emergency situations 
and develop closer cooperation and working ar-
rangements with neighboring departments. 

Other basis used to evaluate the fire protection 
services of a community are: economic (the eco-
nomic base of the community, the ability to provide 
the appropriate facilities as needed, and the com-
munity's ability to financially support these facili-
ties); safety (the department's ability to safely oper-
ate); and per capita (the aggregate cost of personnel 
and equipment on a per capita basis). 

PROJECTED DEMAND 
Among the needs over the next twenty (20) years 

will be the recruitment and training of paid fire-
fighters and volunteers. In addition, support person-
nel and administrative capabilities must be in-
creased to meet the future demand needs. 

LOS service standards developed for the SWFD 
have been based on recognized standards adopted 
by the Insurance Services Offices and discussions 
with elected officials. Washington municipalities 
are analyzed by the Washington Survey and Rating 
Bureau using standards adopted by the 1971  2013  
Schedule and Grading Schedule for Municipal Fire 
Protection. The recommended LOS standards for 
the department are as follows: 

1. The basic fire flow requirements is three 
thousand five hundred (3,500) g.p.m. This 
basic fire flow is used to determine the effec-
tiveness and number of firefighting apparatus 
that will be provided. In order to provide this 
fire flow, the department needs sufficient first 
due pumpers whose aggregate pumping ca-
pacity meet or exceed this value and at least 
fifty (50) percent of this pumping capacity in 
reserve. 

2. All apparatus and equipment shall be proper-
ly equipped so as to effectively fulfill its 

function and in accordance with NFPA, State 
and Federal Regulations and Guidelines. Fire 
apparatus should be evaluated for replace-
ment after approximately twelve  (12)twnentv 
years service or when mileage is in excess of 
fifty thousand (50,000) miles. Currently the 
department has this capability, however, scv 
eral pieces  of equipment are scheduled for 
replacement as set forth below:  with the 
Capital Facilities Replacement Plan within 
the City's ERR fund.  

Capital Facilities Replacement  Plan (with Six 
year replacement  highlighted) (Sec Appendix  
A set out at the end of this chapter.) 

3. Adequate support apparatus and equipment 
shall be maintained to allow the department 
to effectively serve its functional needs. 

4. In order to respond in a manner and a time 
consistent with response standards, the de-
partment stations and equipment shall be po-
sitioned so that first alarm apparatus consist-
ing of two engines shall be positioned within 
5.5 miles of primary residential districts and 
3.5 miles from commercial districts. It may 
be necessary to require additional fire protec-
tion or units. Currently the department has 
this capability, however, several pieces of 
equipment are scheduled for replacement as 
set forth above for those  buildings and occu 
panties outside  of the response area. 

IMPACT FEES (Appendix A set out at the end 
of this chapter.) 

Impact Fees for Residential and Commercial 
Structures 

Fire impact fees are charges paid by new devel-
opment to reimburse the city for the capital cost of 
new capital facilities that are needed to serve new 
development and the people who occupy or use the 
new development. Fire impact fees are paid by new 

224 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 160 of 311



development (residential and non-residential) based 
on the type of land use. Impact fees are typically 
charged on the basis of size of the development (i.e. 
number of dwelling units or number of square feet 
of development) and type of development. A devel-
oper who contributes land, improvements or other 
assets may receive a "credit" which reduces the 
amount of impact fee that is due. The methodology 
and calculations for the fire impact fee rate are set 
forth in the department's Audit and Analysis for 
Strategic Planning and Growth Management (up-
dated in 2003  2016  and in Appendix A set out at the 
end of this chapter), which is available at the offices 
of either the fire chief or city planner. 

GOALS AND POLICIES 

Goal FD1.1: To assure that capital improve-
ments necessary to carry out the comprehensive 
plan are provided when they are needed. 

Policy FD.1: Maintain safe and effective fire de-
partment capital equipment. 

Policy FD.2: Provide capital facilities and equip-
ment within the Level of Service standards adopted 
by the city. 

Policy FD.3: Fire stations will be constructed in a 
cost-effective manner with maximum consideration 
for function, reasonable comfort, and optimized 
energy conservation. 

Policy FD.4: Adequate support facilities including 
fire administration, fire maintenance operations, 
warehousing facilities, self-contained breathing ap-
paratus repair, and fire training will be constructed 
and maintained to support the effective delivery of 
services. 

Policy FD.5: Require all residential and commercial 
construction outside the level of service standards 
adopted by the city to install approved automatic 
sprinkler systems, or other mitigation measures 
agreed upon by the city. 

Policy FD.6: Provide a public education program to 
inform and educate citizens in fire safety issues that 
will promote prevention of fire and promotion of 
life safety. 

Goal FD2: To manage land use change and de-
velop city facilities and services in a manner that 
directs and controls land use patterns and inten-
sities. 

Policy FD2.1: Establish the fire department service 
delivery system as an "urban service" requiring 
concurrency under the Growth Management Act. 

Policy FD2.2: The following levels of service 
guidelines should be used to determine the impacts 
of new development upon existing facilities: 

1, The basic fire flow requirement (as deter-
mined by the Insurance Services Organiza-
tion (ISO) Grading Schedule) is three thou-
sand five hundred (3,500) gallons per minute. 
In order to provide this fire flow, the depart-
ment will maintain sufficient first due 
pumpers whose aggregate pumping capacity 
meets or exceeds this value and at least fifty 
(50) percent of this pumping capacity in re-
serve. 

2. All apparatus and equipment shall be proper-
ly equipped so as to effectively fulfill its 
function and in accordance with NFPA, state 
and federal regulations and guidelines. 

3. Adequate support apparatus shall be main-
tained to allow the department to effectively 
serve its functional needs. 

4. In order to respond in a manner and time con-
sistent with response standards, the depart-
ment stations and equipment shall be posi-
tioned so that First Alarm apparatus consist-
ing of two engines will be positioned within 
5.5 miles of primary residential districts and 

225 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 161 of 311



3.5 miles from commercial districts. It may 
be necessary to require additional fire protec-
tion or mitigation for those buildings and oc-
cupancies outside of the response area. 

A copy  of the  SWFD's Audit and Analysis for  
Strategic P-lanfling and Growth Management  is 
available for review at the planning department  of  
flee or at the eff-tee  of the fire chief. 

(Ord. 1447-03 § 2 (Exh. C) (part)) 

226 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 162 of 311



7.20 	 estimated population of seven thousand five hun 
dred forty (7,540). 

POLICE PROTECTION 

EXISTING PERSONNEL AND FACILITIES 
Police protection in the Sedro-Woolley UGA is 

provided by the city of Sedro-Woolley police de-
partment (hereinafter referred to as the "SWPD" or 
"department"). The need for new police personnel 
and facilities is directly related to population, crime 
rates, response time and other demographic trends 
such as birth rate, housing and employment trends. 
These trends are an important tool in predicting the 
police protection service needs of the community, 
personnel and equipment requirements and the loca-
tion, size and capacity of new police facilities. 

The SWPD has recently been reorganized and 
operates with one chief, one patrol/administrative 
sergeant, two patrol sergeants, one detective and 
seven patrol officers, for a total sworn strength of 
twelve personnel. Four additional patrol positions 
have been authorized but not realized due to long 
waits for Academy spots and lengthy background  
checks (January 2015). The department also has 
five non-sworn employees, consisting of one code 
enforcement/animal control officer, one records  
supervisor, one records clerk, one part time recep-
tionist/records clerk and one part time transcription-
ist. The FBI recommendation is for two officers per 
one thousand persons. Utilizing this standard, the 
SWPD should have a sworn force of twenty offic-
ers, based on an estimated population of 10,700The 
SWPD currently operates with one chief, one pa 
trol/administrative sergeant, one detective sergeant, 
one detective and eight patrol officers, for a total 
sworn strength of twelve (12) personnel. The de 
paFtnient also has seven non sworn-employees, con 
listing of ene code enforcement/animal control of  
ficer, one records clerk, four dispatchers and one 
administrative secretary. The FBI recommendation 
is for two officer-s per one thousand populati-en.Uti-
lizing this standards, the SWPD should have a 
sworn force of fifteen (15) officers, based on an 

In 1994, when this plan was initially done, the 
SWPD responded to 7,484 calls for service per 
year. That was a fairly average number until we saw  
a serious upswing in numbers for 2003-2008, cul-
minating in 10,026 calls in 2008. Those call num-
bers have steadily decreased back to a total of 8,314  
calls for service by the end of 2014. Many factors 
affect these numbers, a huge difference has been  
changes in Jail population/the ability to book pris-
oners and case law (changing driving suspended to 
an infraction) that has forced some changes away 
from proactive patrol, which generates a lot of these 
numbersln 199/1, the SWPD responded to seven 
thousand four hundred eighty four (7/18/1) calls for 
service (an average of twenty six (26) calls per 
twenty four (21) hour period). Although statistics 
indicate that the number of calls per month have 
deer ased (1991 six hundred thirty one (631), 

e 	. 	 . a  

change in record keeping with the actual number of 
calls having increased. 

PD. Ser 
vice calls are more closely linked to daytime popu 
latien and traffic loads; however, the percentage of 
calls which are officer generated traffic citations 
has increased slightly. 

In addition, theThe population with which the 
SWPD interacts is not limited to residents living 
within the urban growth boundaries but also in-
cludes a large population within the county sur-
rounding the UGA and individuals traveling briefly 
within the community. 

_To maintain current levels of service, officers per 
thousand population is not an adequate indicator. 
The department strives to maintain a response time 
of less than  under five minutes to "in progress" 
calls. The-In addition, the  department is working 
with various other City Departments, Code En- 

227 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 163 of 311



e S  

 

SA 

 

   

of approximately nine thousand (9,000), the de 
partment will need a farce of eighteen (18) sworn 

- . - 

forcement and the City Supervisor to improve the 
quality of life for the citizens of the City. The 
SWDP is focusing on changing behavior from the 
smallest issues like junk vehicles and improper 
parking to undercover drug buys and neighborhood 
decay.  

creased growth which will require an increased de 
. 	. 

ipated that the commercial sector will gradually 
continue to expand. Population by the year 2.9449 is 
projected to be nine thousand one hundred thirty 

year 2015, the population is estimated to be twelve 
The SWPD hasn't been able to develop pro-

grams or provide a School Resource Officer, due to  
a lack of manpower. Instead we have broadened the 
scope of work that the general patrol officer does to  
include teaching at the Skagit Valley College, 
speaking at the schools, participating in activities at 
the Boys and Girls club and investigating crimes  
including serious felonies. Most agencies have spe-
cialized units or Detectives to handle this sort of 
work, we have more of a "jack of all trades" ap-
proach  
activities associated with juvenile crime prevention, 

- . 	• 
quire manpower levels related to school population 
(not exclusively related to growth inside the city 

PROJECTED NEED 
Assuming that calls for service are related 

somewhat to residential increases, but more dramat-
ically to daytime population and traffic loads, it is 
anticipated that the demand for sworn and non-
sworn personnel will continue to increase. 

The biggest need for the immediate future will be 
technology and personnel. First, technology needs 
come in several different areas. The SWPD's entire 
reporting system is part of a county-wide Spillman 
network that is maintained by the County and paid 
for by all users. All of the SWPD's Patrol vehicles 
have Mobile Data Terminals that access the Spill-
man system through a mobile network provided by 
the City of Mt Vernon. The SWPD's 911 call-
taking and Dispatch services are provided by a con-
solidated 911 Center in Mt Vernon. Each participat-
ing agency pays into this system for maintenance 
and upgradesThe industrial sector at both Sunset 
Industrial Park and Skagit Plant is experiencing in  

t 

urban growth area. It is anticipated that the calls for 

tion to population including retail and industrial 
development and school district growth. 

ban growth boundaries and internal residential de 
velopment will begin to stretch the in progress" 
response time beyond five minute. This will neces 
sitate the use of beat configurations with minimum 
staffing requirements. Utilizing the FBI standards 
for a population estimated at ten thousand seven 

detectives and eleven (11) patrol officers. By the 

twenty three (23) sworn officers, with a breakdown 
of one chief, one captain, one detective sergeant, 
three patrol sergeants, three detectives and fourteen 
(14) patrol officers. The department will also nee* 
adequate non sworn support personnel. It is esti 
mated that three patrol officers per shift fielded 

while by 2001 and by the year 2015, four officers 

day. 

PROJECTED-DEMAND 
Table 7.20.1 shows the current, authorized staff-

ing on the left and the ideal projected need for staff-
ing and vehicles on the right. Annotations in bold 
italics are needed but not acquired or hired. The 
needs are mainly determined by current staffing and 
what the SWPD currently needs to accomplish the 

228 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 164 of 311



Table 720.1 

-Ztirtigft- ___ PIF77- 	''-e--  pri---. A 
Chief Vehicle Chief Vehicle 

Ad minis- Vehicle Lieutenant Vehicle 

trative 

Sergeant 

Detec- Vehicle Adminis- Vehicle 

tive trative 

Sergeant 

Detec- Vehicle Detective Vehicle 

tive 

Pending 

Patrol Vehicle Detective Vehicle 

Sergeant Pending 

#1 

Officer Vehicle Patrol Ser- Vehicle 

geant #1 

Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 

Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 

Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 

Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 

Pending 

Patrol Vehicle Patrol Ser- Vehicle 

Sergeant geant #2 

#2 

Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 

Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 

Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 

Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 

Pend i ng 

Officer Vehicle Patrol Vehicle 

Pe n cl-Ei Sergeant 

#3 

Records Officer Vehicle 

Supervi- 

sor 

Records Officer Vehicle 

Clerk 

Part- Officer Vehicle 

Time 

Recep- 

tion 

Part- Officer Vehicle 

Time 

Tran- 

scription 

Code Vehicle School Vehicle 

Enforce- Resource 

force- Officer 

ment 

Records 

Supervisor 

Records 

Clerk 

Full-Time 

Records 

Clerk 

Full-Time 

Reception 

Records 

Transcrip- 

tionist 

Code 	En- Vehicle 

forcement  

An additional need is for critical infrastructure-
communications. As of 2015 the SWPD has part-
nered with the Sedro-Woolley School District to 
add a radio repeater to an existing tower. This will 
allow for complete portable radio coverage for the 
entire City. More infrastructure will be necessary to 
tie into a bigger, county-wide communications net-
work.  

With the advent of tablet computers, the SWPD 
sees the need to add these items to its inventory.  
The capability to have an entire database of people. 
vehicles and reports exists now. The only thing pre-
venting that is the cost of outfitting each officer and 

department's goals 

encompassing eighteen (IS)  sworn officers will  be 

needed by 2005 while a force  of twenty three  (23) 

GWOM officers will be needed by 2015. In addition, 

an increased number  of non sworn personnel  will 

also be required. 

229 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 165 of 311



maintaining the systems and computer memory 
needed.  

police facility, one of the major capital projects will 
be the construction of a new police facility. During 
a recent bond levy for a combined policre facili 

Another technology that is needed is body cam-
eras for each officer. Current legislation hasn't kept 
pace with this popular tool, but when it does, the 
reality of having video and audio recordings of of-
ficer interactions will be extremely valuable and 
necessary in the future. As it stands, other states  
have enacted laws requiring video evidence. Video  
surveillance options have very broad applications 
and would be extremely useful in deterring and re-
porting crime. The only bar to adopting many of 
these options is the initial cost and maintaining the 
storage of video records.  

Finally, there are several options for equipping 
patrol officers with night-vision capabilities. This 
technology is a bit expensive, but affordable. Hav-
ing this would allow a more thorough ability to lo-
cate criminals hiding in the darkCapital facilities 
planning begins with working space. The current 
police facility is inadequate in size to meet-he 

• g g 	g 

integrity of the facility is not sufficient and does not 
meet mandated ADA standards. The need for the 
new facility is immediate which should be centrally 

• 2; 

for the next six years with room for expansion to 

In 1998, the police department will be adequately 
housed with the fire department in a new facility at 
Puget and Metcalf Streets. 

Additional police cars will be necessary as the 
size of the department increases. A minimum of one 
patrol car per offi-cef-i-r.,-rectairecl, as well as adminis 

ment, which is recommended every five years. 

PROJECTED COSTS 
The projected cost increase for personnel and 

vehicles to meet the ideal staffing level for the De-
partmentDue to the inadequacy size of the current  

• 2; g 

lice facility as an addition to the fire station would 
be one hundred sixty five thousand dollars 
{$165,000.00.) The combination of the pelicaLfwe 

. 	• 

the city's public safety functions. 

Night vision units are about $4,000 each. Rotating 
in three per year would be $12,000 per year.  

Body worn cameras are about $900 each. Rotating 
in three per year would be $2,700 per year.  

Tablets compatible with our system and associated 
software are about $1,200 each. These would prob- 
ably be rotated in at 6 per year, for $7,200 per year.  

There is no way to estimate at this time what pro-
posed radio infrastructure costs would be as this is a  
shared cost amongst numerous agencies. Users of 
the system would most likely be assessed a portion 
of the cost for necessary repairs and various grants 
would be sought to assistIt is estimated that it takes 
approximately twenty five thousand dollars 

cle and two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for 
uniforms, weapons, etc. 

Turn over for equipment  CiCalff, apprendmately eve 
ry five years with an average of two vehicles turned 

officer and detective is assigned a separate vehicle. 
Based-on this rate of turn over, it is estid-tliat 
from 1995 to 2001, twelve (12)-replacement vehi  
cies will be required at a total cost of two hundred 
seventy six thousand dollars ($276,00040)4ffi-addi-
tion, the introduction of six new sworn personnel 
will- require an capital outlay of approximately 

e e e !e — 

officer at a cost of one hundred fifty thousand dol  

g 	. 2 

230 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 166 of 311



tars ($150,000.00) by the year 2001. In summary, 
total estimated capital facilities costs for capital 
purchases (not including office equipment) is four 
hundred twenty six thousand dollars (S'126,000.00) 
by 2001, and using the same cast breakdown estab 

existing capital equipment and two hundred seven 
ty five thousand dollars ($275,000.00) for new 
capital equipment for a total cost expenditure of on 
million one hundred ninety five thousand dollars 
($1,195,000.00) by the year 2015. Capital costs arc 
only a small component of the costs to operate a 

the expenditures occurring in the areas of personnel 

offsets the impacts associated with the operation of 
a police department is limited. Impact fees can only 
be assessed on new development when a SEPA is 
generated. Since the police department is part of the 
general fund, capital facilities need to he budgeted 
for under general property tax. 

Wages 	and Vehicle plus 
Benefits (Av- outfitting 
erage) 

Commissioned $100,000 $40,000 
Officer 
Commissioned $100,000 $40,000 
Officer 
Commissioned $100,000 $40,000 
Officer 
Commissioned $100,000 $40,000 
Officer 

Lieutenant 	posi- $40,000 	(Lt. 
t ion restructure-no Vehicle) 
new position 
School 	Resource $25,000 	our $10,000 	our 
Officer share share 

($75,000 SW ($30,000 SW 
School 	Dis- School 	Dis- 
trict) trict) 

Records 	Clerk- $70,000 	in- 
Part time to full crease to Full- 

time Time 
with 	wages 
and 	benefit 
increase 

Reception- 
Records- 

$70,000 	in- 
crease to Full- 

Transcription Part Time 
time to full time with 	wages 

and 	benefit 
increase 
$565,000 	es- $210,000 
timated 	in- 
crease 

GOALS AND POLICIES 

Goal FD1PDI.1: To assure that capital im- 
provements necessary to carry out the compre- 
hensive plan are provided when they are needed. 

Policy FDPD1.1: Maintain safe and effective police 
department capital equipment. 

Policy FDPD1.2: Provide capital facilities and 
equipment within the level of service standards 
adopted by the city. 

Policy F-DPD1.3: Provide the technology and sup-
porting services to accomplish the Police functionA 
police station will be constructed in a cost effective 
manner with maximum consideration for function, 
reasonable comfort, optimized energy conservation, 
and-future expansion. 

Policy FD4PD1.4: Provide current and future citi-
zens of the City of Sedro-Woolley a safe and enjoy-
able place to live, raise families and workAdequate 
support facilities including- police administration;  
police maintenance operations. warehousing facili  
ties, and law enforcement Mining will be con 
structcd and maintained to support the effective de 
livery of services. 

231 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 167 of 311



Policy F,DPD1.5: Provide a public education pro-
gram to inform and educate citizens in crime pre-
vention issues that will promote prevention of crime 
and promotion of life safety. 

Goal F-B2PD2: To manage land use change and 
develop city facilities and services in a manner 
that directs and controls land use patterns and 
intensities. 

I Policy PP-2PD2.1: Establish the police department 
service delivery system as an "urban service" re-
quiring concurrency under the Growth Management 
Act. 

(Ord. 1447-03 § 2 (Exh. C) (part)) 

232 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 168 of 311



7.24 

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT 

EXISTING FACILITIES 

The City of Sedro-Woolley stormwater system cur-
rently serves residents living within the city limits 
(Figure CF-3). The city operates and maintains the 
Municipal Storm Sewer System (MS4) under the 
requirements of the State of Washington National  
Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)  
Phase II Stormwater Permit. Facilities include the 
conveyance network consisting of pipelines, drain-
age ditches, culverts, catch basins, man-holes, pump 
stations, stormwater detention and treatment facili-
ties, Low-Impact Development facilities and out-
falls to the Skagit River. The most recent Storm-
water Management Plan was completed in 1997. 

Private storm sewer systems discharging to the 
MS4 exist throughout the city. These system fall  
under the requirements of the NPDES Permit, and 
are regulated by the City. Private systems include 
ditches, culverts, pipelines, catch basins, oil-water 
separators, detention and treatment facilities, Low  
Impact Development facilities and pump sta-
tionsThe-seope of the city's storm water system is 
limited. The city system consists of a network of 

project by project basis as development has oc 
curred. Ultimate discharge is into Brickyard Creek 
which drains into the Skagit River. The existing 
system has not been adequately mapped or docu 
mcnted. The city staff has not been able to provide 
needed assistance to developers and citizens in this 

has done minimal upkeep due to lack of dedicated 
funding sources to do the necessary improvements. 

County in fenning the Skagit Sub flood Control 

ment Plan Grant from the Centennial Clean Water 
Fund to study the drainage patterns -in the urban 
growth area and to develop a plan and strategy to 
alleviate drainage issues. The development of the 
study has been conducted with the cooperation of 
local citizens and city,-ceunty and state agencies. 

source, the city of Sedro Woolley in conjunction 
with other jurisdictions will work to alleviate drain 

Pipelines, Culverts and Ditches 
Pipelines of various sizes ranging from eight  

inches to forty-eight inches in diameter and totaling 
199,840 lineal feet, culverts totaling 7,464 lineal  
feet and open ditches totaling 58,835 lineal feet 
convey stonnwater to nine discharge points to pub-
lic or private systems and 26 outfall points to re-
ceiving waters including Brickyard Creek, Willard 
Creek, Hansen Creek and the Skagit River. The sys-
tem includes 1,920 catch basins, 14 control struc-
tures, eight drywells, one oil-water separator and 
two pump stations. Pipelines include gravity lines 
and force mains (pressure pipes). The city's primary 
responsibility is for the main storm sewers, culverts 
and ditches in streets and other rights-of-way, as 
well as for systems serving municipal properties. 
Private systems discharging to the MS4 are the re-
sponsibility of the property owners from the point 
of discharge to the MS4. 

Pump Stations  
Pump stations are required when natural topog-

raphy does not allow for gravity flow to the point of 
discharge to the gravity system. A pump station 
receives flow from one area by gravity and pumps  
that flow over a topographic ridge to continue to the 
gravity system and ultimately to the outfall. Sedro-
Woolley currently owns and maintains 2 storm-
water pump stations. There are 7 privately owned 
and maintained stonnwater pump stations within  
the city.  

233 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 169 of 311



Stormwater Detention and Treatment Facilities 
The MS4 includes 21 municipal facilities, includ-

ing 13 Stormwater Detention and Treatment ponds, 
2 Raingardens, 4 Underground Storage/detention  
systems, 1 Ecology Embankment, and 1 Rainstore 
system. The city also monitors maintenance of 72  
private facilities consisting of Stormwater Detention 
and Treatment Ponds, Raingardens, Underground 
Storage/Detention Systems. Inventory of the pri-
vate systems is under way but not complete as of 
2014.  

Brickyard Creek 
Brickyard Creek is a 24,500 lineal foot combina-

tion of natural and man-made streambed classified 
as waters of the state and fish-bearing stream. This 
water body was formerly maintained by the Skagit 
County run Sedro-Woolley Sub-Flood Control Dis-
trict, and is the discharge point for approximately 
40% of the city's drainage. 95% of Brickyard  
Creek lies within the city limits, and the remaining 
portion is in the UGA. Responsibility for Brickyard 
Creek was assumed by the city in January 2012.  
The city maintains the remaining 5% of the Creek 
under an Interlocal agreement with Skagit County. 

Flooding 
Portions of the city are subject to periodic local-

ized flooding, mainly due to backwater conditions  
on Brickyard Creek created during peak stormwater 
events. Certain locations on the Creek, including 
the North Reed/Brickyard Meadows intersection, 
portions of Lucas Drive, Independence Boulevard, 
and the Golf Course, experience short term sur-
charging during rainfall events greater than a 10-
year event (2.6 inches in 24 hours). A 2013 study 
completed of the SR20 Stormwater Conveyance 
System identified two undersized culverts on 
Brickyard Creek between Holtcamp Road outfall 
and Hodgin Road as contributing factors. Regular 
maintenance of the creek channel over the past few 
years has mitigated this condition somewhat.  
The older portion of the city south of SR20 does not 
have significant flooding issues. The ongoing Gen- 

eral Investigation study being completed under the 
auspices of the Corps of Engineers will need to be 
monitored carefully as some alternates for mitiga-
tion of Skagit River flooding may impact the 100 
year flood level within the lower portion of the city, 
as well as threatening the Wastewater Treatment 
Facility.  

PROJECTED NEED 
Like many jurisdictions in the Northwest, surface 

water management has historically been considered 
a funding priority after a major storm event. Two 
main problems exist in Sedro-Woolley: 1) Water 
quality in Brickyard Creek and the Skagit River is 
poor due to many factors including nonpoint source 
of pollution and frequent flooding; and 2) Localized 
flooding during peak stormwater eventsNo storm 

ter quality improvements. The1990 floods showed 

to solve surface water problems, however,  a  lack 	of 

Stormwater Management Plan 
The 1997 Stormwater Management Plan identi-

fied deficiencies in the MS4 system at the time the 
report was prepared_ and included a project list to 
address these deficiencies, as well as ongoing 
maintenance issues. The recommendations of the 
plan were largely unmet in subsequent years. Up-
date of the plan is needed to reassess previously 
identified deficiencies, and to address significant 
development that has occurred in the past 18 years.  

Water Quality  
The State of Washington NPDES Phase II per-

mit, first issued in 2007 and renewed in 2013, re-
quires the city to operate and maintain the MS4 sys-
tem in such a manner as to protect and improve wa-
ter quality for the identified water bodies, in this 
case the Skagit River, Brickyard Creek, Hansen 
Creek and Willard Creek. 

234 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 170 of 311



The city formed a Stonnwater Utility in 2008 to  
provide a regular source of funding for ongoing 
maintenance and for correction of deficiencies. The 
initial rate set for the utility was insufficient to deal  
with deficiencies identified in the 1997 Plan, but did 
allow for initial steps to address water quality re-
quirements of the NPDES Permit. The Public  
Works Department has dedicated Operations staff 
to maintenance, performance and documentation of 
maintenance activities, and has tracked and reported  
progress as required by the Permit. A rate increase 
effective January 1, 2015 is projected to bring 
maintenance funding up to the level required by the 
NPDES Pennit, but still does not address deficien- 

cies in the system. Funding for the correction of 
deficiencies is an ongoing discussion item, and will  
be addressed in the Stormwater Plan update.  

The GMA requires that level of service (LOS) 
service standards be established for services provid-
ed by the local jurisdiction as part of capital facili-
ties planning. LOS standards are quantifiable 
measures of public services the city provides to the 
present and future residents and businesses within 
the UGA. They allow the city to assess deficiencies 
in the services it provides and define maximum 
threshold standards that must be met by the existing 
and new facilities to avoid under-served growth. 

PERCENT OF CAPACITY LOS 
FOR STORM WATER SYSTEM 

SYSTEM 
ELEMENT A B C D E F 
Pipelines 0-20 21-40 41-60 61-80 81-100 >100 
Pump Stations 0-20 21-40 41-60 61-80 _ 	81-100 >100 

CONDITION LOS FOR THE 
STORM WATER SYSTEM 

SYSTEM 
ELEMENT 1* 2* 3* 4* 5* 
Pipelines Immediate <3 >3,<6 >6,<20 >20 
Pump Station Immediate <3 >3,<6 >6,<20 >20 

* Years until the improvements are needed 

235 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 171 of 311



Legend 

( UGA 2016 

Drainage_Network 
— Conveyance 

FUNCTION 

Forcemain 

Infiltrate 

— Detention 

— — - FR. Drain 

Streams 

	 City Limits 

	 UGA 

Figure CF-3  
Stormwater System 

LOS standards developed for Sedro-Woolley s 
storm water collection system are based on both 
capacity and system condition. The capacity LOS 
rates the unused capacity of each system compo-
nent. This LOS uses an A-through-F rating system 
where the A-level rating indicates a large amount of 
unused capacity. Meanwhile, the condition LOS 
rates the system components using 1-through-5 
scale. A 1 rating is the lowest or worst condition 
and a 5 rating is the highest rating or best condition. 

Given the magnitude of surface water flooding, 
water quality, and sensitive resource issues continu-
ing to face the city of Sedro-Woolley, additional 
funding sources dedicated to surface water man- 

agement needs to be given strong consideration. 
The Stormwater Utility has provided basic mainte-
nance level funding meetingthe requirements of the 
NPDES Permit through 2014. As additional Permit  
requirements become effective_ this need will in-
crease, most notably Low Impact Development re-
quirements effective in 2017facing the city of 
Sedro Woolley, a funding source dedicated to sur 

: - - 

consideration. The idea-ef a utility approach toward 
funding surface water programs is considered to be 
the best option by meet'-, if not most, of the cities 
and counties hi the Puget Sound Basin. 

PROJECTED DEMAND 

236 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 172 of 311



With minor differences, the future storm water 
collection system under both a preferred and 
benchmark alternative would be similar. This is due 
to population forecasts which predict similar resi-
dential growth rates and population. Only the geo-
graphic distribution of the storm water collection 
system demand will vary between the different al-
ternatives. 

Within the existing city limits, the storm water 
system will be upgraded through an improvement 
program that takes into consideration demands for 
residential, commercial and industrial storm water 
disposal systems. For instance, under the preferred 
alternative, residential infilling and increased resi-
dential densities will be encouraged. Similarly, 
there will be new locations for industrial and com-
mercial activity. Under the benchmark, growth and 
development would follow previous patterns. De-
sign of the new storm water collection system will 
take these land use changes into account. 

PROJECT COSTS 
The 1997 Stonnwater Management Plan identi-

fied system deficiencies and quantified project  
costs. Formation of the 2008 Stonnwater Utility 
further refined the cost estimates. Revenues pro-
duced by the Utility, coupled with a series of small  
management grants through the Department of 
Ecology have funded portions of the recommenda-
tions of the 1997 Plan. These includeln an effort to 
develop a storm water management plan for the city 

awarded a Stonnwater Management Plan Grant 

amount of seventy five thousand dollars 
($75,000.00) (with a twenty five thousand dollar 
($25,000.00) match on the part of the city). The 
goal of this grant was to develop a plan by meeting 
the following objectives: 

1. Development of a public education compo-
nent to make people aware of how their ac-
tions affect water quality and to allow the 

public to participate in the plan-ning pro-
cessDevelop a public education component to 
make people aware of how their actions of  
feet water quality and to allow the public to 
participate in the -pplanning process; 

2. Participation in the Ecology program to de-
termine Total Daily_ Maximum Loadings 
(TMDL) for the Skagit River and tributaries  
within the MS4. This process will eventually 
result in specific water quality limitations and 
allow for design of measures beyond existing 
permit requirements to address them if re-
quiredIdentify existing and potential water 
quality and water quantity problems and de 
vclop a sct of recommendations to solve 
thefft; 

3. Development of the stonnwater utility, 
providing ongoing revenue for management 
and maintenance operationsDevelop a 
ctorniwater utility; 

4. Updated Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.36 Stonnwater Management and 
Chapter 13.40 Storniwater Maintenance to 
comply with the NPDES Phase 11 Permit.  

5. Completed Geographic Information System 
(GIS) mapping of the existing city storm-
water system and private systems discharging 
to the city system.  

5. Developed of file systems and procedures for 
stormwater management and maintenance ac-
tivities, including public and private systems. 

6. Enhanced the existing Stonnwater Mainte-
nance program utilizing the Public Works 
Operations Department staff to inspect and 
clean catch basins, pipelines, culverts and 
ditches and to maintain detention/treatment  
systems and pump stations, along with regu-
lar street sweeping. Purchased new Factor 

237 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 173 of 311



truck (2009) and Street Sweeper (2013) to 
support maintenance operations.  

7. Developed a stormwater vactor waste disposal 
system for treatment and disposal of vactor 
waste from catch basins, and upgraded the 
existing street sweeping handling and dispos-
al according to state requirements. 

The city contracts with the Skagit Conservation 
District (SCD) to participate in a Skagit County-
wide effort to provide public education and encour-
agement to meet NPDES Permit requirements. This  
program has proven successful, and the city plans to 
continue with this arrangement for the immediate 
future. The city also maintains a dedicated Storm-
water website, containing reports to Ecology, SCD  
Annual Reports, information on programs available 
and links to other resources. Regular training of 
responsible personnel are performed to ensure that 
staff is aware of the requirements of the Permit and 
to support the efforts of the city to enhance water 
quality.  

While significant progress has been made since 
2008, challenges remai  

developed and a public information brochure pro 

analysis of pollutant loads and reduction factors, 
development of strategies to control the problem; 
identified and strategies for monitoring. In addition, 
costs estimates and schedules will be developed to 
reselve the issues. With the development of the 

system. Once developed, these recommendations, 

city's comprehensive plan during its annual update. 
These are as follows:  

1. Meeting increasing Permit requirements 
such as implementation of Low Impact De-
velopment requirements for public and pri-
vate facility construction.  

2. Funding identified system deficiencies as 
identified in the 1997 Plan, and additional 
deficiencies identified since that time.  

Deficiency Projects  
The 1997 Plan identified two major projects and  

14 minor projects for construction to address sys-
tem deficiencies. The majorprojects were: 1) con-
struction of a Regional Detention System on Cook 
Road near Brickyard Creek for regional stormwater 
detention and treatment, estimated at $4.3 million, 
and 2) upgrade of the Fruitdale Road Conveyance 
System, SR20 to Skagit River, estimated at $1 mil-
lion. The Cook Road system is likely to have been  
superseded by subsequent development in the vicin-
ity, and will need to be reassessed in the plan up-
date. The Fruitdale pipeline is in Skagit County, 
and mostly serves UGA areas not likely to be an-
nexed due to prior development issues. The minor 
projects identified in the 1997 Plan total $380,000, 
and will be assessed on a case by case basis in the 
Plan update.  

The 2008 Stonnwater Utility formation effort iden-
tified the additional need for a Regional Treatment  
Facility to serve the urban area south of SR20 to be 
located near Riverfront Park at an estimated cost of 
$2.6 million. The city purchased property west of 
River Road and Riverfront Park for this purpose.  
The need for this facility will be driven by water 
quality determinations resulting from the TMDL 
study noted earlier in this section, to be completed 
after 2018. As a result, this facility will not be 
needed for at least five years.  

The 2013 SR20 Stonnwater Conveyance System 
study completed in conjunction with the 
SR20/Cook Road Realignment and Extension Pro-
ject identified $700,000 in improvements to the pip-
ing system between the Brickyard Creek outfall and  
SR9 South, and within Brickyard Creek itself be-
tween the outfall and the Holtcamp Road crossing 
that will need to be addressed within the next 5  
years due to permitting requirements related to the 
SR20/Cook Road project. The January 5, 2015 25- 

238 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 174 of 311



agement Plan 

year storm event corroborated the need for these 
upgrades. Approximately 1,910 lineal feet of the 
system from Hodgin Road to SR9 South is planned 
for upgrade in 2016 as part of the SR20/Cascade 
Trail West Extension Project Phases I A and 1B.  
This will leave 984 lineal feet of the SR20 system  
west of Hodgin Road for future upgrade, at a cost of 
$300,000.  

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

Goal ST1.0: Update the 1997 Stormwater Man- 

Policy ST1.1: Pursue a grant and loan applications 
to secure funding for the plan updateimplementa  
Lion  of the plan.  

merits  in the city. 

Policy ST1.32: Require new developments to miti-
gate their site water run-offs into the city right-of-
way. 

Policy ST1.43: Eliminate point and non-point 
source pollution into the local drainage channels to 
include the Skagit River and Brickyard Creek. 

Goal ST2.0: Annual reassessment of Utility rev-
enue. 

Policy ST2.1: Assure that NPDES Permit require-
ments are met, reassess Utility revenue on an annual 
basis and adjust as needed.  

Goal ST-ZST3.0: To assure that capital im-
provements necessary to carry out the Storm-
water Management Plan are provided when they 
are needed 
when they arc needed. 

Policy S-T-2ST3.1: Develop funding to support or 
enhance the storm water utility for Sedro-Woolley 
to generate funding for the city capital improvement 
projectsWork to develop a storm water  utility for 
Sedro  Woolley with fair rates and connection fees 
to-generate funding for the city capital improvement 
projects. 

Policy S-T2ST3.2: Maintain a safe and efficient pub-
lic storm water collection and treatment system. 

Policy ST2.3: Adopt a storm water comprehensive 
plan for the city. 

Policy ST2ST3.4: Require all new development to 
conform with the city storm water comprehensive 
plan. 

Goal S-T-3ST4.0: To manage land use changes 
and develops city facilities and services in a 
manner that directs and controls land use pat-
terns and intensifies. 

Policy ST3ST4.1: Establish the storm water system 
as an "urban service" requiring concurrency under 
the Growth Management Act. 

Policy S-T-3ST4.2: The city will use level of service 
to determine the impact of a new development on 
the existing storm facilities. 

Goal ST5.0: Fund and construct remaining SR20 
Conveyance System Improvements. 

Policy ST5.1: Identify funding to design and build 
this $300,000 project.  

Policy ST5.2: Partner with Skagit County for use of 
Sedro-Woolley Sub-Flood Funds for Brickyard 
Creek portions of the project.  

Policy ST5.3: Construct project by 2020. 

(Ord. 1447-03 § 2 (Exh. C) (part)) 

239 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 175 of 311



7.28 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 

EXISTING FACILITIES, NEED AND 
DEMAND 

The city of Sedro-Woolley provides curbside 
solid waste disposal and recycling services within 
the Sedro-Woolley city limits. Solid waste materials 
which are picked up are taken to a county-wide 
drop spot for disposal. Recycled materials are cur-
rently handled by Waste Management, Incalso de 
livered to a county wide drop off spot. 

In 2014, there were approximately four thousand 
twenty-three (4,023) residential and commercial 
customers. An additional 159 residential and com-
mercial customers are being added in February 
2015, for a revised total of 4,182. Service is pro-
vided by a crew of four workers with capital facili-
ties of three trucks (two solid waste trucks and one 
roll-off transfer vehicle). It is estimated by the year 
2035, a crew of five workers will be needed and  
capital facilities of four trucksln 1996, there were 
approximately twe thousand four hundred fifty 
(2,150) residential and commercial customers. Ser 
vice is previ-eled by a crew of four workers with 
capital facilities of three trucks. It is estimated by 
the year 2441, a-crew of six workers will be needed 
and capital facilities of four trucks. By the year 
2015, a crew often will be needed with capital facil  
ities of six trucks. 

Trucks are replaced under the city's Equipment 
Repair and Replacement (ERR) Fund on a cycle of 
every ten years. A new truck was recently ordered 
for delivery in 2015 at the cost of $322,000. From  
2015-2017, it is anticipated that one additional re-
placement truck will be required. The Stonnwater 
Utility funds this portion of the ERR. Solid waste 
revenue was estimated at $1,259500 per year with 
the balance of the expenditures ofthe fund allocated 
for salaries, tipping fees and repair and maintenance 
of equipment. Solid Waste cur-rently funds their 
portion of the ERR with deposits of $115.000 per  

year, generated from solid waste revenuesAs the 
number of customers increase, so does the need to 
replace-the-trucks which constitute the capital facili  
ties. Trucks are replaced on a schedule of every five 

cost of one hundred eighty thousand dollars 
($180,000.00). From 1995 2001, it is anticipated 
that one additional replacement truck will be re 
quired. Given the fact that the solid waste services 
are a self sustaining enterprise fund, replacement 
funds will have to be generated through increased 

mated at seven hundred fifty thousand dollars 
($750,000.00) per year with the balance of the ex 
penditures of the fund allocated for salaries and rc 
pair and maintenance. It is estimated that approxi 
mately two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00) 

facilities given the cost of inflation, which will be 
generated from solid waste revenues. 

Solid Waste performed a pilot program in 2015 
to provide every other week pickup of residential 
solid waste. The program was successful logistical-
ly, but found to be unsustainable due to the current 
rate structure of the utility.  

Solid Waste assumed the curbside recycling pro-
gram from Waste Management after expiration of 
their contract in 2015. An additional solid waste 
vehicle to support this program was purchased for 
delivery in 2016. An additional full time worker 
was also added in 2015.  

The department is setting aside funds for con-
struction of a new Solid Waste/Equipment Mainte-
nance Facility. The estimated cost for the facility is 
$350,000. Timing is dependent on the status of the 
recycling program assumption, but could be as early 
as 2017.  

GOALS AND POLICIES 

Policy CF1.10SW1.1: Maintain a cost-effective and 
responsive solid waste collection system. 

240 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 176 of 311



Policy CF1.11SW1.2: Manage solid waste collec-
tion methods to minimize litter and neighborhood 
disruption and quality of the urban development. 

Policy CF1.12SW1.3: Promote the recycling of sol-
id waste materials through waste reduction and 
source separation. Develop educational materials on 
recycling and other waste reduction methods. 

Policy SW1.4: Explore alternative service delivery 
methods to increase efficiency and reduce costs.  

(Ord. 1447-03 § 2 (Exh. C) (part)) 

241 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 177 of 311



7.32 	 Eix percent  of the  highest ameunt levied in-the last 

CAPITAL FACILITIES FINANCING 

The six-year capital facilities plan includes im-
provements that the comprehensive plan elements 
indicates are necessary, along with potential fund-
ing sources. In order to identify these potential 
funding sources, it is important to review how capi-
tal improvements have been financed in Sedro-
Woolley in the past and could be financed in the 
future. Capital outlays tend to vary a great deal 
from year to year, depending on need and the ability 
of the city to secure grants to fund particular pro-
jects. 

REVENUE SOURCES 
This section summarizes the revenue sources 

available to the city of Sedro-Woolley and high-
lights those available for capital facilities: 

There are two types of revenue sources for capi-
tal facilities: 

1. Multi-use: taxes, fees, and grants which may 
be used for virtually any type of capital facili-
ty (but which may become restricted if and 
when adopted for a specific type of capital 
facility); 

2. Single use: taxes, fees, and grants which may 
be used only for a particular type of capital 
facility. 

These revenue sources are discussed below. 

Multi-Use Revenue 

Property Tax 

Property tax levies are most often used by local 
governments for operating and maintenance costs. 
They are not commonly used for capital improve-
ments. Under State law, local governments are pro-
hibited from raising the property tax levy more than  

tion and annexation).  This is known as the  "106  
per=mst-lisione  percent per year.  Property tax re-
ceived by the city of Sedro-Woolley has by policy, 
been allocated to pay for costs incurred for parks, 
cemetery, street, library and general fund expendi-
tures. 

Long-Term Bond Indebtedness 
There are three basic types of long-term indebt-

edness uses by municipalities to fund capital im-
provement projects: 

• General Obligation Bonds - General Obliga-
tion Bonds are backed by the value of the 
property within the jurisdiction (at its full 
faith and credit). 

• Revenue Bonds - Revenue bonds are backed 
by the revenue received from the project that 
the bonds help to fund. Such bonds are com-
monly used to fund utility improvements. A 
portion of the utility charge is set aside to 
payoff the bonds. 

• Special Assessment Bonds - (Local Im-
provement Districts, Road Improvement Dis-
tricts, and Local Improvement Districts) -
Special assessment bonds, repaid by assess-
ments against the property benefited by the 
improvements, are used to finance projects 
within a specific geographic area, as opposed 
to those that will serve the entire jurisdiction. 

General Obligation Bonds and Lease-Purchase 
(Property Tax Excess Levy) 

General Obligation Bonds are those which offer 
the greatest variety of uses. There are two types of 
General Obligation (GO) bonds: voter-approved 
and councilmanic. Voter-approved bonds increase 
the property tax rate, with increased revenues dedi-
cated to paying principal and interest on the bonds. 
Local governments are authorized in "excess lev- 

242 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 178 of 311



(S4-29,526.00). 

ies" to repay voter-approved bonds. Excess levies 
are increased in the regular property tax levy above 
statutory limits. Approval requires a sixty (60) per-
cent majority vote in favor and a turn-out of at least 
forty (40) percent of the voters from the preceding 
general election. Councilmanic bonds are author-
ized by a jurisdiction's legislative body without the 
need for voter approval. Principal and interest pay-
ments for councilmanic bonds comes from general 
government revenues, without a corresponding in-
crease in property taxes. Therefore, this method of 
bond approval does not utilize a dedicated funding 
source for repaying the bondholders. Lease-
purchase arrangements are also authorized by vote 
of the legislative body and do not require voter ap-
proval. 

The amount of local government debt allowable 
for GO bonds is restricted by law to 7.5 percent of 
the taxable value of the property within the city lim-
its. This may be divided as follows: 

General Purpose Bonds 2.5 percent 
Utility Bonds 2.5 percent 
Open Space and Park 
Facilities 

2.5 percent 

Of the 2.5 percent for General Purpose Bonds, 
the city may issue up to 0.75 percent in the form of 
councilmanic bond. State law allows cities an addi-
tional separate debt capacity of 0.75 percent of tax-
able value of property for non-voted lease obliga-
tions. 

Currently. the city has incurred councilmanic  GO 
debt for the-construction  of a fire/police  facility in 
the amount  of two  million five hundred twenty 
thousand dollars  (52,520,000.00).  Depending on the 
amount in-term of the bonds or lease-purchase ar-
rangements, the impact on the individual taxpayer 
can vary widely. 

Real Estate Excise Tax 

RCW 82.46 authorizes local governments to col-
lect a real estate excise tax levy of 0.25 percent of 
the purchase price of real estate within the city lim-
its. The Growth Management Act authorizes collec-
tion of another 0.25 percent. Both the first and sec-
ond 0.25 percents are required to be used for financ-
ing capital facilities in local governments' capital 
facilities plans. 

The first and second 1.25 may be used for the 
following capital facilities: 

a) The planning, acquisition, construction, re-
construction, repair, replacement, rehabilita-
tion, or improvements of streets, roads, high-
ways, sidewalks, streets and road lighting 
systems, traffic signals, bridges, domestic 
water systems, and storm and sanitary sewer 
systems; or 

b) The planning, construction, repair, rehabili-
tate, or improvement of parks and recreation-
al facilities. 

In addition, the first 0.25 percent may be used for 
the following: 

a) The acquisition of parks and recreational fa-
cilities; 

b) The planning, acquisition, construction, re-
pair, replacement, rehabilitation, or im-
provement of law enforcement facilities, pro-
tection of facilities, trails, libraries, adminis-
trative and judicial facilities, river and/or 
floodway/flood control projects, and housing 
projects subject to certain limitations. 

The city of Sedro-Woolley has enacted the first 
0.25 percent real estate excise tax which is allocated 
to a cumulative reserve capital expense fund. Pro 
jected revenues,  if used, from real estate tax from 

243 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 179 of 311



Business and Occupation Tax 
RCW 35.11 authorizes cities to collect this tax on 

the gross or net income of businesses, not to exceed 
a rate of 0.2 percent. Revenue may be used for capi-
tal facilities acquisition, construction, maintenance, 
and operations. Voter approval is required to initiate 
the tax or increase the tax rate. The city has utilized 
this revenue source. In 1997, five hundred thirty  
five thousand  eight hundred dollars  ($535,800.00) 
was  budgeted from  B & 0 and admission taxes. 

Local Option Sales Tax 
Local governments may collect a tax on retail 

sales of up to 1.1 percent, of which 0.1 percent may 
be used only for criminal justice purposes (public 
transportation-benefit authorities may levy up to 0.6 
percent). Voter approval is required. Sedro-Woolley 
has enacted a sales tax, of which eighty (80) percent 
goes to the city and the remainder goes to the coun-
ty. In  1997, Sedro  Woolley budgeted six hundred  
twenty four thousand dollars  ($621,000.00) in retail  
sales tax to  be expended on maintenance and oper 

cent) totaled  eighty thousand dollars  ($80,000.00), 
of which forty five  (15) percent  is budgeted for  op  

for police vehicles.  

administered  by the Department  of Licensing. Cities  
receive seventeen  (17) percent  of the total revenues 
from  this tax, distributed on a per capita basis.  In  
1997, Sedro  Woolley budgeted twenty nine thou  
sand four hundfed dollars  (S29,400.00) from  this 
tax,  which will be used for police and  fire protee  
tion. Future-reveneesffoin  this source  will be used  
for police and fire protection.  

Utility Tax 
RCW 35A.52 authorizes cities to collect a tax on 

gross receipts of electrical, gas, garbage, telephone, 
cable television, water, sanitary sewer, and storm 
water management providers. State law limits the  

utility tax to six percent of the total receipts for ca-
ble television, electricity, gas, steam, and telephone, 
unless a majority of the voters approved a higher 
rate. There are no restrictions on the tax rates for 
sewer, water, solid waste, and stormwater. Revenue 
can be used for capital facilities acquisition, con-
struction and maintenance. hi Sedro-Woolley, a tax 
is collected on cable television, natural gas, tele-
phone and electricity. No utility tax is collected on 
sanitation, sewer and water. 

Community Development Block Grants 
Approximately $8.5 million in Community De-

velopment Block Grant (CDBG) funding is availa-
ble annually state-wide through the federal Depart-
ment of Housing and Urban Development for public 
facilities, economic development, and housing pro-
jects which benefit low-and-moderate income 
households. Funds may not be used for maintenance 
and operations. Because the amount of CDBG fund-
ing varies substantially from year to year, it is not 
possible to reliably forecast revenue from these 
grant sources. 

Community Economic Revitalization Board 
Grant (CERE) 

The State Department of Trade and Economic 
Development provides low-interest loans, and occa-
sionally grants, to finance sewer, water, access 
roads, bridges, and other facilities for specific pri-
vate sector development. Funding is available only 
for projects which support specific private devel-
opments or expansion which promotes the trading 
of goods and services outside the state. The average 
requirement is to create one job per three thousand 
dollars ($3,000.00) of CERE financing. The city has 
not utilized this funding source. It is not possible to 
forecast revenues from CERE loans or grants. 

Public Works Trust Fund Grants (PWTF) 
The State Department of Community Develop-

ment provides low-interest loans for capital facili-
ties planning, emergency planning, and construction 
of bridges, roads, domestic water, sanitary sewer, 
and storm sewer. Applicants must have a capital 

244 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 180 of 311



facilities plan in place and must be levying the orig-
inal 0.25 percent real estate sales tax (see previous 
real estate excise tax discussion). Construction and 
emergency planning projects must be for recon-
struction of existing capital facilities only. Capital 
improvements planning projects are limited to plan-
ning for streets and utilities. Loans for construction 
projects require a local match generated only from 
local revenues or state-shared entitlement (gas tax) 
revenues. The required local match is ten (10) per-
cent of a three percent loan, twenty (20) percent for 
a two percent loan, and thirty (30) percent for a one 
percent loan. Emergency planning loans are at a 
five percent interest rate. If state or federal disaster 
funds are received, they must be applied to the loan 
for the life of the project (twenty (20) years). Capi-
tal improvement planning loans are at least 0 per-
cent interest, but require a twenty-five (25) percent 
local match. The city has applied for these funds for 
a sewer system design study and was awarded a 
loan. Future PWTF funding cannot be reliably fore-
casted. 

Farmer Home Administration Community Facil-
ities Program 

Farmers Home Administration provides loans to 
develop community facilities for public use in rural 
areas and towns of not more than twenty thousand 
(20,000) people. Facilities eligible for loan assis-
tance include fire stations, police stations, commu-
nity buildings, libraries, and utilities. It is not possi-
ble to forecast revenues from this program. 

Single-Purpose Revenue Sources 

Cultural Arts, Stadium/Convention Facilities 

Special Purpose Districts 

RCW 67.38.130 authorizes cultural arts, stadi-
ums/convention special purpose districts with inde-
pendent taxing authority to fmance capital facilities. 
The District requires a majority voter approval for 
formation, and has a funding limit of 0.25 cents per 
one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) of assessed valua- 

tion. Typically, such a special-purpose district 
would serve a larger geographical area than the sin-
gle city. Revenue would be based on the tax base of 
the area within the special service district. 

Police, Fire Protection and Emergency Medical 
Services 

EMS Levy 
The state authorizes a fifty cents ($0.50) per one 

thousand dollars ($1,000.00) AV property tax levy 
which may be enacted by fire and hospital districts, 
cities and towns, and counties. This levy is volun-
tary in cities and fire districts. Skagit County has 
enacted an EMS levy. 

Fire Districts 
Fire District #8 surrounds the city of Sedro-

Woolley from which a fire district tax levy is col-
lected. This revenue is used for operating and 
maintenance costs. In 1997, the city budgeted twen 
ty five thousand dollars  (S25,000.00) from  this levy  
sourceSedro-Woolley has entered into an interlocal 
agreement with District 8, Sedro-Woolley annually 
updates the amount it charges to District 8 for ser-
vices rendered under the interlocal agreement. 

Fire Impact Fees 
RCW 82.02.050-090 authorizes a charge (impact 

fee) to be paid by new development for its "fair 
share" of the cost of fire protection and emergency 
medical facilities required to serve the development. 
Impact fees must be used for capital facilities ne-
cessitated by growth, and not to correct existing 
deficiencies in levels of service. Impact fees cannot 
be used for operating expenses. gedr-e-Woolley4las 
collected voluntaFy fire impact fees for projects un 
dergoing  SEPA review. Following adoption  of the  
eefeffeberisiveplafi, Sedro-Woolley  
lects  impact fees on all new development. These 
fees will supersede any fees collected under SEPA. 

A fire impact fee for the city of Sedro-Woolley 
can be generated by multiplying the current level of 
service by the cost of the capital facilities to deter- 

245 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 181 of 311



mine the cost per capita, then multiplying that fig-
ure by the number of persons per dwelling unit to 
determine the cost per dwelling unit. Commercial 
fire impact fees are calculated with a formula using 
Equivalent Residential Units (ERUs) based on 
square footage. 

Police Impact Fees 
State law authorizes a charge (impact fee) to be 

paid by new development for its "fair share" of the 
cost of police facilities required to serve the devel-
opment. Impact fees must be used for capital facili-
ties necessitated by growth, and not to comet exist-
ing deficiencies in levels of service. Impact fees 
cannot be used for operating expenses. Sedro-
Woolley has collected voluntary police impact fees 
for projects undergoing SETA review. Police im-
pact fees cannot be collected under GMA, so fol-
lowing adoption of the comprehensive plan, Sedro-
Woolley will continue to collect voluntary  police 
impact fees on all new development only if a SEP A 
review is required. 

The primary costs associated with providing po-
lice protection to new projects are those costs re-
quired to provide protection for the two year period 
from the start of the construction until tax revenues 
from the improved project reach the General Fund. 

To calculate the impact of new development on 
police protection, the city has determined that in 
1990, each call for police service costs the city an 
average of one hundred eighteen dollars ($118.00). 
It also determined that each residential unit generat-
ed an average of .86 calls for service and commer-
cial development generated calls for police service 
at an average rate of .002 calls per square foot of 
commercial space. Therefore the costs of providing 
police service to new development during the two-
year lag-time between application filing and tax 
revenues for the improved project reaching the 
Sedro-Woolley General Fund is calculated by mul-
tiplying the number of residential units times .86 
times one hundred eighteen dollars ($118.00) times 
two years two hundred two dollars ninety-six cents  

($202.96) for residential development and by multi-
plying the square footage times .002 times one hun-
dred eighteen dollars ($118.00) times two years 
($0.472 times square footage) for commercial de-
velopment. 

Parks and Recreation 

Open Space and Park Facility General Obliga-
tion Bonds 

See General Obligation Bonds (under Multi-Use 
Revenue, above) for general discussion of the pur-
pose, requirements, and decision basis for GO 
bonds. The total amount of local government debt 
which may be committed to open space and park 
facilities is 2.5 percent. Sedro-Woolley currently 
does not have any open space and park facility gen-
eral obligation debt. 

Park Districts 
State law authorizes metropolitan parks districts 

and park and recreation districts, each with inde-
pendent taxing authority. 

Parks and Recreation Service Areas (PRSA) 
RCW 36.68.400 authorizes parks and recreation 

service areas as junior taxing districts for the pur-
pose of financing the acquisition, construction, im-
provement, maintenance, or operation of any park, 
senior citizen activity center, zoo, aquarium or rec-
reational facility. The maximum levy limit is 0.15, 
or 0.15 per one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) AV. A 
PRSA can generate revenue from either the regular 
or excess property tax levies and through general 
obligation bonds, subject to voter approval. Reve-
nue may be used for capital facilities maintenance 
and operations. Voters approve formation of a 
PRSA, and subsequently approve an excess levy for 
the purpose of constructing facilities. 

User Fees and Program Fees 
These fees are charged for using park facilities 

(such as field reservation fees) or participating in 
recreational programs (such as arts and crafts regis- 

246 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 182 of 311



tration fees). In 1997, the city has budgeted twenty 
five thousand five hundred dollars ($25,500.00) for 

Park Impact Fees 
RCW 82.02.050-090 authorizes local govern-

ment to enact impact fees to be paid by new devel-
opment for its "fair share" of system improvements 
costs of parks and recreation facilities necessary to 
serve the development. Impact fees must be used 
for capital facilities necessitated by growth, and not 
to correct existing deficiencies in levels of service. 
Impact fees cannot be used for operating expenses. 
Sedro-Woolley currently utilizes a park impact 
(mitigation) program  of one hundred fifty dollars 
($150.00) per lot for new subdivisions and short 

plan a parks impact fee will be charged of two hen 
Bred fifty-doilars ($250.00) for each new residential 
dwelling unit. It is estimated that this impact fee 
will generate approximately one hundred twenty 
three thousand seven hundred fifty dollars 

.  A complete de-
scription of that program and the specific fees is in 
the Parks  and Recreation Element of the Compre-
hensive Plan.  

A park impact fee may he calculated by multi  
plying a selected level of-service for neighborhood, 
community, and regional parks (expressed in park 
acres per thousand population) by the cost per de 

cost per capita, then multiplying cost per capita by 
the number of person per household to determine 
cost per dwelling unit. 

State Parks and Recreation Commission Grants 
These grants are for parks, capital facilities ac-

quisition, and construction, and require a fifty (50) 
percent local match. Sedro-Woolley currently has 
no state parks and recreational commission grants. 
It is not possible to reliably forecast the amount of 
revenue the city would receive over twenty (20) 
years from this source. 

Aquatic Land Enhancement Access 
This grant program is administered by the De-

partment of Natural Resources. ALEA funds are 
limited to water dependent public access/recreation 
projects or on-site interpretive projects. Twenty-five 
(25) percent local match is required. It is not possi-
ble to forecast revenues from ALEA grants. The 
city may apply for grants for future improvements 
or additions to Riverfront Park. 

Outdoor Recreation Grant-in-Aid Funding 
The Interagency Committee for Outdoor Recrea-

tion (IAC) provides grant-in-aid funding for the 
acquisition, development and renovation of outdoor 
recreation facilities. Park and boating program 
grants require a fifty (50) percent match. It is not 
possible to forecast revenues from IAC grants-in-
aid funding sources. 

Roads, Bridges, and Mass Transit 

Motor Vehicle Excise Tax 
RCW 82.36 authorizes this tax, which is admin-

istered by the State Department of Licensing and 
paid by gasoline distributors. Cities and counties 
receive 1 1.53 percent, respectively, of motor vehi-
cle fuel tax receipts. Revenues must be spent for 
"highway purposes" including the construction, 
maintenance, and operation of city streets, county 
roads, and highways. In 1997, one hundred ten 
thousand dollars ($110,000.00) in fuel tax revenue 
is budgeted in Sedro Woolley, all of which is used 
for operating, maintenance, and debt service costs. 
No additional fuel tax revenues are available for 
capital facilities. Forecasted revenue fret this 
source from 1996 to 2002, based on proposed land 
use allocations, amounts to seven hundred ninety 
six thousand four hundred twenty seven dollars 
($796,127.00). 

Local Option Fuel Tax 
RCW 82.80 authorizes this county-wide local 

option tax to ten (10 percent of the state-wide motor 
vehicle fuel tax and a special fuel tax of 2.3 cents 
per gallon. Revenues are distributed back to the 

! e 	Oa 
	

! 

247 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 183 of 311



county and its cities on a per capita basis (1.5 for 
population in unincorporated areas and 1.0 for pop-
ulation in incorporated areas). Revenues must be 
spent for "highway purposes." 

Commercial Parking Tax 
RCW 82.80 authorizes a tax for commercial 

parking businesses, but does not set rates. Revenues 
must be spent for "general transportation purposes" 
including highway purposes, public transportation, 
high-capacity transportation, transportation plan-
ning and design, and other transportation-related 
activities. Sedro-Woolley does not have a commer-
cial parking tax at this time, nor are any commercial 
parking businesses anticipated in Sedro-Woolley in 
the foreseeable future. 

Transportation Benefit District 
RCW 35.21.225 authorizes cities to create trans-

portation districts with independent taxing authority 
for the purposes of acquiring, constructing, improv-
ing, providing, and funding any city street, county 
road, or state highway improvement within the dis-
trict. Special district's tax base is used to finance 
capital facilities. The district may generate revenue 
through property tax excess levies, general obliga-
tion bonds (including councilmanic bonds), local 
improvement districts, and development fees (see 
related discussions for background on each of 
these). Voter approval is required for bonds and 
excess property tax levies. Council approval is re-
quired for councilmanic bonds, special assessments, 
and development fees. 

Transportation improvements funded with dis-
trict revenues must be consistent with state, regional 
and local transportation plans; necessitated by exist-
ing or reasonable foreseeable congestion levels at-
tributable to economic growth; and partially funded 
by local government or private developer contribu-
tions, or a combination of such contributions. To 
date, no jurisdiction in the state has formed a trans-
portation benefit district. A transportation benefit 
district would address specific transportation pro-
jects reducing congestion caused by economic de- 

velopment. Consequently, the amount  of revenue  is  
a function  of the cost  of the project, rather than a 
levy rate, assessment amount, or fee schedule.  It is, 

to  reliably forecast revenue 
from  this sourceThe  City initiated a Transportation 
Benefit District in 2014. 

Road Impact Fees 
RCW 82.02.050-090 authorizes cities and coun-

ties to exact road impact fees from new develop-
ment for its "fair share" of the system improvement 
costs of roads necessary to serve the development. 
Impact fees must be used for capital facilities ne-
cessitated by growth and not to correct existing de-
ficiencies in current level of service. Impact fees 
cannot be used for operating expenses. Under the 
GMA, the city of Sedro-Woolley will  adopted road 
impact fees per residential unit with a credited 
commercial rate.  These  fees have been forecasted to 
produce revenues ranging from one hundred seven 
ty nine thousand dollars (S179,000.00) to one hun 
dred ninety two thousand dollars ($192,000.00) per 
year from 1996 to  2002.  

Local Option Vehicle License Fee 
RCW 82.80 authorizes a county-wide local op-

tion fee of up to fifteen dollars ($15.00) maximum 
annually per vehicle registered in the county, sub-
ject to the January 1, 2000 "sunset." Revenues are 
distributed back to the county and cities within the 
county levying the tax on a weighed per capita basis 
(1.5 for the population in unincorporated areas and 
1.0 for population in incorporated areas). Revenues 
must be spent for "general transportation purposes." 
This fee is currently being used in Skagit County. 
Sedro-Woolley's receives an allocation of this fee. 

Street Utility Charge 
RCW 35.95.040 authorizes cities to charge for 

city street utilities to maintain, operate, and preserve 
city streets. Facilities which may be included in a 
street utility include street lighting, traffic control 
devices, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, parking facilities, 
and drainage facilities. Businesses and households 
may be charged a fee of up to fifty (50) percent of 

248 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 184 of 311



the actual cost of construction, maintenance, and 
operations, while cities provide the remaining fifty 
(50) percent. The fee charged to businesses is based 
on the number of employees and may not exceed 
two dollars ($2.00) per full-time employee per 
month. Owners or occupants of residential proper-
ties are charged a fee per household which may not 
exceed two dollars ($2.00) per month. The city does 
not currently have a street utility. 

National Highway Systems Grants 
The Washington State Department of Transporta-

tion (WSDOT) awards grants for construction and 
improvement of the National Highway System 
(NHS). In 1992, $18.5 million was available. In 
order to be eligible, projects must be a component 
of the NHS and be on the regional Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP). The NHS must be 
designer by law by September 30, 1995. It is to 
include all interstate routes, a large percentage of 
urban and rural principal arterials, defense strategic 
highway networks, and strategic highway connect-
ors. In this interim, the NHS will consist of high  

Funds are 
available on a 86.5 percent federal, 13.5 percent 
local match based on the highest ranking projects 
from the regional TIP list. Sedro-Woolley does cur-
rently have eligible projects. It is not possible to 
forecast how much, if any, revenue the city would 
receive from this source. 

Surface Transportation Program (STP) Grants 
Puget Sound Regional Council provides grants 

for road construction, transit, capital projects, 
bridge projects, transportation planning, and re-
search and development. Projects must be on the 
regional TIP list and must be for roads with higher 
functional classifications than local or rural minor 
collectors. Funds are available on a 86.5 percent 
federal/13.5 percent local match based on highest 
ranking projects from the regional TIP list.  Sedro 
Woolley has received money in the STP grant ac 
count in 1996 fer :,icy -nine thousand dollars 
($69,000.00) for 4.4ie SR 20 Bicycle Trail, eighty  
two thousand dollars (S82.000.00) in 1997 for the 

Ferry Street Sidewalk Improvement project and 

for the Trail Road project. Forecasted revenue from 
e  

dollars ($364,000.00) and is Awarded values are 
based on eligible projects in the city's six-year 
Transportation Improvement Program. Actual reve-
nue will be less if the city does not receive grants 
for all projects for which funding is sought. Rcve 
nue is not forecasted beyond 2002. 

Federal Aid Bridge Replacement Program 
Grants 

WSDOT provides grants on a state-wide priority 
basis for the replacement of structural deficient or 
functionally obsolete bridges. Funding is awarded 
on eighty (80) percent federal/twenty (20) percent 
local match. Sedro Woolley does not plan to sock-a 
grant to assist with the renovation or replacement of 
its ; ges between 1996 and 2002. 

Federal Aid Emergency Relief Grants 
WSDOT provides funding for restoration of 

roads and bridges on the federal aid system which 
are damaged by natural disasters or catastrophic 
failures. Funds are available on an eighty-three (83) 
percent federal/seventeen (17) percent local match-
ing basis. Sedro-Woolley does not qualify for natu-
ral disaster relief at this time. Because emergencies 
cannot be predicted, it is not possible to forecast 
revenues from this source. 

Urban Arterial Trust Account Grants (UATA) 
The Washington State Transportation Improve-

ment Board (TIB) provides funding for projects to 
alleviate and prevent traffic congestion. In order to 
be eligible, roads should be structurally deficient, 
congested by traffic, and have geometric deficien-
cies, or a high incidence of accidents. Funds are 
awarded on an eighty (80) percent federal/twenty 
(20) percent local matching basis. 

Transportation Improvement Account Grants 
(TIA) 

249 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 185 of 311



The State TEB provides funding for projects to 
alleviate and prevent traffic congestion caused by 
economic development or growth. Eligible projects 
should be multi-agency, multi-modal, congestion 
and economic development-related, and partially 
funded locally. Funds are available on an eighty 
(80) percent federal/twenty (20) percent local 
matching basis. Sedro Woolley received sixty nine 
thousand dollars (569,000.00) for the South Town 

pFejeet. Approximately-two 
million two hundred fifty one thousand dollars 
(S2,251,000.00) in TIA eligible projects are includ 

gram. There is no assurance-that any of these pro 
jects will receive funding. TIA funding has not been 
forecasted. 

Sanitary Sewer 

Sewer District 
No sewer districts presently serve the planning 

area. 

User Fees 
The state authorizes cities, counties, and special 

purpose utility districts to collect fees from 
wastewater generators. Fees may be based on the 
amount of potable water consumed, or may be flat 
fees. Revenues may be used for capital facilities or 
operating and maintenance costs. One-millienThree 
million two hundred-twenty-five thousand dollars 
($-1704070.0.04403,225,000.00) was budgeted in 
Sedro-Woolley in 1997  2015  from this source, all 
of which is for operating and maintenance costs. 

System Development Charges/Connection Fees 
The state authorizes a fee to connect to a sanitary 

sewer system based on capital costs of serving the 
new connection. For -1-99-72015, two hundred fifty 
theusattrisi xty-six thousand eight hundred fifty dol-
lars ($25-0040,0066,850.00) was budgeted from 
this revenue source in Sedro-Woolley, all of which 
is to be expended on improvements in the city's 
wastewater treatment system. 

Centennial Clean Water Fund 
The Department of Ecology (DOE) issues grants 

and loans for the design, acquisition, construction, 
and improvement of water pollution control facili-
ties and related activities to meet state and federal 
requirements to protect water quality. State grants 
and loans are available based on a twenty-five (25) 
percent to fifty (50) percent local matching share 
range. Future funding cannot be reliably forecast. 

State Revolving Fund Loans 
DOE administers low-interest guarantees for wa-

ter pollution control projects. Applicants must 
demonstrate water quality need, have a facility plan 
for water quality treatment, show ability to repay a 
loan through a dedicated source of funding, and 
conform to other state and federal requirements. 
Fund must be used for construction of water pollu-
tion control facilities (wastewater treatment plants, 
stormwater treatment facilities, etc). Revenues from 
this source are not forecast. 

Solid Waste 

Department of Ecology Grants 
The state awards grants to local government for a 

variety of programs related to solid waste, including 
a remedial action grant to assist with local hazard-
ous waste sites, moderate risk/hazardous waste im-
plementation grants, and waste composting grants. 
It is not possible to forecast revenue from this 
source. 

Flood Control 

Flood Control Special Purpose Districts 
RCW 86.15.160 authorizes flood control special 

purpose districts with independent taxing authority 
(up to a fifty cents ($0.50) cents property tax levy 
limit without voter approval) to finance flood con-
trol capital facilities. In addition, the district can, 
with voter approval, use an excess levy to pay for 
general obligation debt. Sedro-Woolley does not 
have a flood control special purpose district. 

250 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 186 of 311



Stormwater Management 

Storm Drain. Utility Fee 
The state authorizes cities and counties to charge 

a fee to support storm drain capital improvements. 
This fee is usually a flat rate per residential equiva-
lency. Residential equivalencies are based on aver-
age amounts of impervious surface. Commercial 
property is commonly assessed a rate based on a 
fixed number of residential equivalencies. Sedro-
Woolley does not currently have a storm drain utili  

distFict may need te-be considered under a storm 
water management  plan  processhas  a stormwater 
utility. Residential is billed per unit. Non-residential  
is billed per 10,000 square feet of land. For 2015, 
$365,000 was budgeted from this source for im-
provements to the city's stromwater infrastructure. 

251 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 187 of 311



CAPITAL FACILITIES PROJECTS AND FUNDING SOURCES 

Category/ 

Projects 

Sanitary 

Sewer 

Capital 

Projects 

School 

District 

Capital 

Projects 

Fire 

Department 

Capital 

Projects 

Police 

Department 

Capital 

Projects 

Storm 

Water 

Capital 

Projects 

Solid Waste 

Capital 

Projects 

Parks 

Department 

Capital 

Projects 

Property tax 

revenue 

X X X X X X 

Sales tax X X X X X X 

Motor 

vehicle 

excise tax 

X X 

Real estate 

excise tax 

revenue 

X X X 

User fees X X X X 

Utility taxes 

and fees 

X X 

School/city 

bonds & 

levies 

X X X X X X X 

State and 

federal loans 

and grants 

X X X X X 

State 

matching 

funds 

(school) 

X 

LID & 

ULID 

assessments 

X X 

Connection 

fees 

X 

Impact fee 

revenue 

X X X X 

Interest 

income 

X X X X X X 

Transfers 

from city 

sources 

X X X X X X 

Donations X X 

252 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 188 of 311



Storm Drainage Payment in Lieu of Assessment 
In accordance with state law, the city could au-

thorize storm drainage charges in lieu of assess-
ments. The city does not currently collect a storm 
drainage facility charge per acre upon issuance of a 
building permit. Revenues from this charge could 
be deposited in a special storm drainage reserve 
fund. Revenues from this fund could be used for 
capital improvements. 

PROJECTS AND FUNDING SOURCES 
The preceding table identifies the source of funds 

that will pay for the capital facilities (sanitary sew-
er, schools, fire, police, storm water, and solid 
waste) improvement projects. A table outlining road 
projects and funding sources is located in the trans-
portation element of this plan. 

(Ord. 1447-03 § 2 (Exh. C) (part)) 

253 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 189 of 311



7.36 

CAPITAL FACILITIES GOALS AND 
POLICIES 

Goal CFI.: Develop City facilities and services in 
a manner that directs and controls land use_pat-
terns and intensities consistent with the Land 
Use Element. 

Policy CF1.1: The city of Sedro-Woolley shall al-
low only -concurrent development" to occur within 
the urban growth area. Proposed developments shall 
complete a concurrency review provided by the city 
planning department.  

Policy CF1.2: "Concurrent Development" shall be 
defined as development the city of Sedro-Woolley 
is  capable of providing within six years of the date 
of development approval. If capital facilities neces-
sary to meet the concurrency requirement are not 
provided in the six-year capital facilities plan, the 
developer shall provide the facilities at his/her own 
expense to meet the concurrency requirement.  

Policy CF1.3: Ensure that future development bears 
a fair share of capital improvement costs necessitat-
ed by the development. The city shall reserve the 
right to collect mitigation impact fees from new 
development in order to achieve and maintain 
adopted level of service standards. The city will be 
responsible for its fair share of capital improvement 
costs for existing deficiencies.  

Policy CF1.4: Ensure that city planning and devel-
opment regulations identify and allow for the siting 
of "essential public facilities," as described in the 
Growth Management Act. Work cooperatively with 
Skagit County and neighboring jurisdictions in the 
siting of public facilities of regional importance.  

Goal CF2: To finance the city's needed capital 
facilities in as economic, efficient, and equitable 
a manner as possible.  

Policy CF2.1: Update the six-year capital facilities 
plan annually prior to the city budget process. All 
city departments shall review changes to the CFP 
and participate in the annual review.  

Policy CF2.2: The burden for financing capital im-
provements should be borne by the primary benefi-
ciaries of new facilities.  

Policy CF2.3: General city revenues should only be 
used for projects that provide a general benefit to 
the entire community.  

Policy CF2.4: Work with citizens at a neighborhood 
level to establish local improvement districts 
(LIDs), wherein residents assess themselves to im-
prove neighborhood facilities.  

Policy CF2.5: Long-term borrowing for capital fa-
cilities is an appropriate method to finance large 
facilities which benefit multiple generations.  

Policy CF2.6: Pursue funding from state and federal 
agencies as described in the six-year capital facili-
ties plan.  

Policy CF2.7: Fulfillment of development concur-
rency requirements shall not be based upon poten-
tial city income from state and federal agencies. 
Concurrency can only be met by existing financial 
capacity and awarded government funding.  

Policy CF2.8: Wherever possible, self-supporting 
bonds will be used instead of tax-supported general 
obligation bonds.  

Goal CFICF3: To assure that capital improve-
ments necessary to carry out the comprehensive 
plan are provided when they are needed. 

Policy C-F-1-CF3.1: Provide capital improvements to 
correct existing deficiencies, to replace worn out or 
obsolete facilities and to accommodate desired fu-
ture growth, according to the Six-Year Financing 
Plan contained in this element. 

254 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 190 of 311



Policy CFICF3.2: Coordinate land use and public 
works planning activities with an ongoing program 
of long-range financial planing, to conserve fiscal 
resources available to implement the capital facili-
ties plan. 

Sewer/Sanitary Policies 

PolicyCFlPolicyCF3.3  Maintain a safe, efficient 
and cost-effective sewage collection and treat-
ment system. 

Policy CF-1-CF3.4 Require all new subdivisions to 
connect to City sewer 

Policy CF-l-CF3.5 Existing septic systems shall be 
replaced with city sewer when it is available. The 
city shall seek sources of financial aid to assist 
low-income residents with this cost. 

Policy CF1CF3.6 Monitor groundwater quality in 
areas of septic service on a timely basis. 

Policy CF1CF3.7 Update the sewer plan every six 
years on a rotating schedule with other capital 
facilities plans. 

Policy CF1C173.8 Eliminate any point or non-
point pollution sources associated with sewage 
transport and disposal. 

Policy CF-1-CF3.9 Monitor infiltration and inflow 
through routine television inspection. Conduct 
improvements to limit and reduce current infiltra-
tion and inflow. 

Policy CF-I-CF3.10 The following level of service 
guidelines should be used to determine the im-
pacts of new development upon existing public 
facilities: [See description of level of service in 
the text. A facility with a rating equal to or worse 
than those listed is considered deficient and plan-
ning for improvements should commence.] 

• Pipelines-Condition Level of Service 2, Ca-
pacity Level of Service D 

• Pump Stations-Condition Level of Service 2, 
Capacity Level of Service D 

• Wastewater Treatment Facility-Condition 
Level of Service 3, Capacity Level of Service 
D. 

• Septic Tanks-Condition Level of Service 3 

Solid Waste Policies 

Policy CF1CF3.10: Maintain a cost-effective and 
responsive solid waste collection system. 

Policy GF-1-CF3.l 1: Manage solid waste collection 
methods to minimize litter and neighborhood dis-
ruption and quality of the urban development. 

Policy CF1CF3.12: Promote the recycling of solid 
waste materials through waste reduction and source 
separation. Develop educational materials on recy-
cling and other waste reduction methods. 

Storm and Surface Water Policies 

Policy CF1CF3.13: Maintain a safe and cost- 
effective storm and surface water collection system. 

Policy CF1CF3.14: Establish controls to protect 
surface and groundwater quality. Educate the public 
on water quality issues. 

Policy GRCF3.15: Design surface water systems to 
handle peak runoff flows and provide stormwater 
storage during high flow periods. 

Policy CF-l-CF3.16: Protect physical and biological 
integrity of wetlands, streams wildlife habitats and 
other identified sensitive and critical areas. 

Policy CF1CF3.17: Maintain water quality within 
the Skagit River and its tributaries  in accordance 
with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) and State regulations. 

255 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 191 of 311



Policy CF1CF3.18: Carefully control development 
in areas with steep slopes where surface water run-
off can create unstable conditions. Maintain natural 
vegetation for slope stabilization. 

Policy CF3.27: Provide meeting space and other 
facilities necessary for a state-of-the-art library sys-
tem. 

Policy C-F-I-CF3.19: Preserve natural stream envi-
ronments along the Skagit River and Hansen Brick-
yard Creek. Restrict development within two hun 
dred (200) 1 feet  of both streams,  in compli  
aneeComply  with the Shoreline Management Act 
(SMA)  regulations.  

Policy CF1CF3.20: 
Iwo-lit-Discharge Elimination System  (NPDES) and 
State  regulationsEncourage 	low-impact- 
development to reduce stormwater infrastructure 
and improve water quality. 

Policy CF1CF3 .21 : Ensure that the quality of water 
leaving the city is essentially the same quality as 
water entering the city. Assert influence to ensure 
neighboring jurisdictions exercise responsibility in 
promoting good water quality. 

Policy CF1CF3.22: Under no circumstances should 
hazardous wastes be allowed to contaminate the 
groundwater, surface water or sewer systems of the 
city of Sedro-Woolley. Dispose of hazardous wastes 
only in landfills designated for that purpose. 

I Policy CF1CF3.23: Coordinate basin-wide surface 
water planning with the Skagit County Surface Wa-
ter Management Department. 

Library Policies 

Policy CF3.24: Maintain a safe, efficient and cost-
effective library system.  

Policy CF3.25: Expand and improve services and 
programs to the library patrons. 

Policy CF3.26: Continue efforts to offer materials 
sharing services with other local and compatible 
library systems.  

Policy CF3 .28: Continue working toward the fund-
ing, design and construction of a new library facility 
that will better meet the needs of a growing popula-
tion. 

(Ord. 1447-03 § 2 (Exh. C) (part)) 

256 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 192 of 311



APPENDIX A terview others in the department or city. Chief 
. 	• C' 	C 

SEDRO-WOOLLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT— 
REVIEW OF 1996 STRATEGIC PLAN* 

Editor's Note: This report was originally  prepared for the city by 
Emergency Services Consulting, Inc. in March, 2003, and hay 
been reprinted in this appendix y ith minimal editorial change., was 
updated by the Sedro-Woolley Fire Department in 2015. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Purpose of This Report 

Emergency Services Consulting, inc., (ESCI) 
provides this report to the Sedro-Woolley Fire De-
partment (SWFD), in 1996. The Strategic Plan was 
then up dated in 2003. The SWFD is providing this 
update with minor changes and modificationlocated 
in Sedro Woolley, Washington, for the purpose of 

belief that a strategic plan needs periodic review 
and adjustment. Adjustments will inevitably cause 
change and modification in the 
department's SOPs and we will assist the SWFD in 
preparing for these changes. 

Methodology 

Our approach to this update included examina-
tion of documents provided to us by ESCI and an 
internal audit of the DepartmentOur approach to 
this project included examination of documents 

" 	 11: 

was then followed by a two day plann -d visit to-the 
department. Chief Klinger provided me with a 
physical tour of the service area of-the department, 
as well as additional documents as requested and 
unfettered hours of answering questions and assist 
ing with clarification. I was offered acce-s to any 
one -of anything I needed and the courtesies and 
kindnesses proffered were greatly appreciated and 
Bear acknevAedgenient. I was on site September 8, 
9 & 10, 2002 but primarily the 9th and 10th. Chief 
Klinger was able to provide me with all that 1 need 
ed and it was not necessary that I meet with or in 

tion for me while I was on site. 

The Department used the 1996 & 2003 ESCI  
document as the basis for this update. We discussed  
each of the pertinent items and provided updates as  
we proceeded. Some of the issues have become 
non-items because of changes in laws or specific 
circumstances that had a direct impact on them.  
There has been growth in and out of the SWFD  
since the last update and is reflected in population 
served going from 8,805 in the city to more than 
10,700. In the county, numbers served went from  
17,000 to more than 19,000It is not the intent of 

imate the 1996 document 
titled "Audit and Analysis for Strategic Nanning 
and Growth Mataagement" as the document is cur 
rently in a working configuration and reproduction 
would be redundant. We will, however, address the 
issues and recommendations as presented in the 
document and bring them to a current status in order 
that the reader may understand the progress that has 
been made, which is certainly notable. 

The department now has a paid fire chief and a  
paid assistant chief/training officer, whereas they 
had only 1 in 1996. They are no longer in the small  
and cramped 7,000 sq. ft. public safety facility and 
have moved, along with the police, to a modern 
13,000 sq. ft. facility. In 2011 a second station was 
added also. There are currently 12 resident fire-
fighters where there were once a total of 8. With the 
Full Time Employees (FTE, or, paid) these resi-
dents operate from both stations and their hours are 
staggered with at least four on duty at any one time, 
as well as a duty officer also on call, for a 24/7 
presence of line personnelChief Klinger and ESCi 

: 	 6  Z 

tion of this progress. We discussed each of the per 

ceeded. Some of the issues have-become non items 
because of changes in laws or specific circumstanc 
es that had a direct impact on them. We will now 
.;; ° 

• 

257 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 193 of 311



ginning with 'Tire Attack Effectiveness and Func 
tional Responsibilities". There has been growth in 
and out of the-SWFD in the last -6 years and is re 
fleeted in population ser.'ed going from 6,900 in the 
city to more than 8,805. In the county, numbers 
served went from 15,000 to more than 17,000. 

In addition to the volunteer residents the City 
also staffs each station with 2 part time employees 
during the week between 6 AM and 6 PM. With 
this change in staffing the City now provides at a 
minimum 5 line personnel 24/7/365The department 
now has two paid firefighters in addition to the fire 
chief whereas they had only 1 in 1996. They are no 
longer in the small and cramped 7,000 sq. ft. public 

currently 7 resident 

the Full Time Employees (FTE, or, paid) these resi 
: 	 . 
	

- 	 - 

staggered with at least two  on  duty at  any one time, 
as well as a duty officer also on call, for a -24/7  
presence  of line personnel. Although the 1996 re 
peft—states  the SWFD has a Rating Schedule of 
Class 6 (from a 1991 evaluation), they had been 
issued a Protection Class 5 in 1995. 

In 2014 The City was re-rated by the Washington 
Surveying and Rating Bureau (WSRB) The City 
rating remained the same that of a class SAverage  

- 	 . 

(where the one-station-  is located)  is 5 to 6 minutes,  
but  10 to  11 minute responses can be expected in 

department builds a station on the property they 
currently own in the northeast corner of the urban 

In the previous rating it was noted that the de-
partment need a ladder truck to be able to provide 
complete protection. This piece of apparatus was 
purchased in 2010 and was placed into service in 
2011Depaftment revenues derived  frem a tax strut  

ture in the city also include revenues from Skagit  

on a per call basis. 

With the addition of the ladder truck building 
restrictions were modified allowing larger buildings 
with in the city.  

The City recently enrolled the fire department  
within the City's ERR fund for capital replace-
ments. With this program as they feel the current  
equipment force can be maintained and is no longer 
an issue.  

At the last update the average response time in 
the department's centralized area (where the one 
station is located) was 5 to 6 minutes, but JO to 11  
minute responses could be expected in the further 
reaches of the service area. When the new station 
was placed into service in 2012 these times were 
significantly reduced.  

Department revenues derived from a tax struc-
ture in the city also include revenues from Skagit 
County Fire District 8. These District funds are paid 
on a per call basis.  

The SWFD has Mutual Aid agreements with the 
Skagit County Fire District 8, as well as the City of 
Burlington and are participants in the Skagit County 
Mutual Aid Agreement. Fire District 8 maintains 
equipment in the SWFD for responses to District 8 
areas. 

Like all fire departments, everywhere, the SWFD 
call volume increases each year, primarily due to 
the demand for EMS services, which typically 
comprise 80% +1-, of their responses. 

The majority of the calls for service being medical  
in nature the city also added a second ambulance to 
its fleet. The city is currently in negotiations to pro-
vide BLS (Basic Life Support) transport services for 
the City and surrounding area.  

258 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 194 of 311



When the City starts providing BLS transport ser-
vices it will need to be able to provide coverage and 
back up services 24/7/365. Currently the City can 
provide initial coverage but due to limited equip-
ment additional units will need to be purchased to 
make sure there is continuity in coverage. The City 
will also need to find a way to provide additional  
man power to insure this coverage. Depart-
ments such as Sedro-Woolley are having difficulty 
in recruitment and retention of volunteer personnel.  
We would like to take a moment to address this is-
sueFrom the 1996 report, we find notations regard 
ing the average crew deployed on initial response 
for fiFe ernefgerieies to be about 9. This remains 
about the same at this time.  The report recommends  
12 and advises the department to find ways to in 
crease the numbers from Hine to 12. This does not 

cd to the extremely slow growth of the city and de 

such as Sedro Woolley are having in recruitment 
-," 

to take a moment to address this issue. 

To quote from ESCi' s book, Recruiting, Training, 
and Maintaining Volunteer Firefighters, 

"Volunteer firefighters have been the back-
bone of the fire service for over three hun-
dred-sixty years. They have been a part of 
much change during this time period. They 
have trained only to be retrained. They 
have learned only to relearn. No volunteer 
group in the history of this country has had 
to work so hard and sacrifice so much as 
has the volunteer firefighters". 

Recruitment and retention of volunteer 
personnel has become increasingly more 
difficult in the last two decades and does 
not seem to be improving. While the Sedro-
Woolley area and its adjoining neighbors 
seem to still somewhat enjoy the spirit of 
volunteerism, it is not enough to keep the 

roster of the department at its upper limit. It 
is incumbent to recruit and retain the cali-
ber of personnel that will remain active for 
long periods of time. Extensive training 
and experience of these members makes it 
imperative to find ways to keep them as 
part of the department. Typically, if people 
fmd no personal value in their volunteer ac-
tivities, whether it is for the fire department 
or the Lion's Club, they will lose interest 
and become less active. Different areas of 
the country approach this recruitment and 
retention problem in different ways. What 
usually works is to ask the volunteers what 
they want and give it to them if it fits in 
with goals and methods, and resources of 
the department and community. 

Again, from "Recruiting, Training,  
and Maintaining Volunteer Firefighters", 
the question, 'Who is responsible for re-
cruiting?' is asked time and time again. The 
answer is simple; every member of the fire 
department. Every member from the fire 
chief down must share the responsibility 
for recruiting new members. Recruiting 
starts with the fire chief. He/She is the or-
ganization's super salesperson. The recruit-
ing of new members should be an intricate 
part of the overall goals and objectives de-
veloped by the department's management 
team. Members must see that the overall 
plan is carried out. Recruitment of volun-
teer firefighters is "sales." As a member of 
the fire department, each will be responsi-
ble for selling the product, just as a vacuum 
cleaner salesman is responsible for selling 
his or her product. The criteria for success 
are also similar to that of the vacuum 
cleaner salesman. You must first have a 
product that is sellable; one in which every 
member can honestly be proud to sell, and 
everyone must be able to express genuine 
enthusiasm towards the product being sold. 
In case of the fire department, that enthusi- 

259 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 195 of 311



asm and pride are simply feelings toward 
the fire department, as represented by every 
member. As mentioned earlier, the fire 
chief must be the super salesman. They 
must lead the way in the recruitment effort. 
If recruiting is to be taken serious by the 
department members, it must be taken seri-
ously by the fire chief. The fire chief 
should be available to support and confirm 
statements made during recruitment efforts. 
Each and every person with the organiza-
tion must believe in their fire department 
and must believe in their volunteer force." 

The SWFD has bolstered its sustained attack 
crews by utilizing neighboring department crews 
through their mutual aid agreements and requests. 
This system is utilized in multiple alarm as well as 
multiple incident situations. 

Although the local hospital and EMS system is 
no longer under one roof, the department has en-
deavored and succeeded in enhancing its Health and 
Safety Programs. 

The department has begun, and is currently 
working on, the development of competency based 
training programs as well as increasing its training 
participation with the neighboring departments. 
However, the department's serious lack of dollars 
and personnel makes it very difficult to make sig-
nificant improvements to their overall training pro-
grams. The report mentions "dive" rescue, but the 

personnel can be requested from other areas if they 
are needed in the SWFD service area 

Compet-er programs have been developed and are 
being utilized for department functions. These pro 
grams are being maintained effectively and effi  
ciently. They de net have prep-ales far a three year 
capital replacement program as they feel this is not 
an-issue: 

The department has developed and is maintain-
ing a more complete department reference library. 

Each member of the department is now trained, 
or in the process of being trained, to the EMT/FFI  
level, which is a significant increase level from that 
of First Responder 
cedure Manual development is part of the current 

ing the specifications for aerial ladder and elevated 
streams apparatus. 

The department has evaluated and would love to 
expand its resident program in order to provide a 
larger overall FF/EMS presence. As indicated earli 
er, money is a problem- and with the lack of funds 
comes the need for more volunteers that are well  
trained, as well as certified in some ar s. This 
problem was also addressed earlier in this report. 

The department has found itself unable to con 
duct the numbers and types of inspections that it 
would like as sufficient numbers of trained person-
nel-are 

Meal inspections, such as Hazardous Materials arc 
being conducted by the city's Department of 
Emergency Management. 

Each member of the department is now trained, 
or in the process of being trained, to the EMT level, 
which is a significant increase level from that of 
First Responder. 

The department continues to cooperate and work 
with the County Hazardous Materials Response 
Plan. 

The City of Sedro-Woolley has developed and 
the fire department is part of, an Emergency Opera-
tions Center, which appears to be quite sophisticat-
ed. 

260 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 196 of 311



The Center conducts annual drills that involve 
every facet of its government. 

(as amended in 2003). This plan is updated, annual-
ly. 

The department continues to cooperate with 
Skagit County's Emergency Operations Center, and 
trains on an annual basis with this Center. 

The City now has a backup EOC utilizing the 
new fire station built in 2011The department has 
developed, utilizing the Department of Natural Re 
sources, a backup to its EOC. 

The Department provides CPR and First Aid 
classed to the community as well as fire prevention 
training and inspectionsAs far as can be done, con 
sidering the lack of resources- and personnel, the 
department has developed a pro active fire preven 
Lion program, stressing strong code enforcement. 
They utilized IFSTA, NFPA and UBC and UFC 
standards and models. 
They have also developed a strong Public Education 
Program. 

capital improvement plan, which is updated annual 
ly. Currently part of its major consideration is the 
building of its Training Facility on land already ac 
quired. Lease purchase options are part of the plan 
components for their-6 year plan. 

plement cost recovery systems for issues that went 
beyond the basic scope of department functions. 
These systems, fees for services, have failed to pro 
vide even minimal revenues for the department as 
the projected growth of the area has simply not 
happened. 

The department has participated with the County 
in some group purchasing, such as Pol-S equipment 

and materials. 

"Growth Management Planning" 
The department has adopted a capital facilities 

plan similar to the one exhibited in the 1996 report 

The city has continued to install and upgrade 

preemption, 

The department has developed formal policy 
guidelines tools that address development impact on 
fire and rescue capabilities. These have been incor-
porated into the city planning process. 

"Economic" 
The department, working with the public and 

elected officials is examining and evaluating the 
services it provides to ascertain whether these con-
tinue to be efficient, cost effective, or even warrant-
ed under current conditions. Those items falling 
into questionable status may be considered for elim-
ination or modification. 

There is currently in place a Public Safety Com-
mittee which provides input and feedback of the 
public's perception and needs to the department. 

"Tactical" 
Working within existing resources, the depart-

ment is attempting to provide adequate staffing and 
equipment for emergency situations. The have de-
veloped and continue to work on cooperation and 
agreements with neighboring departments and 
agencies. The department utilizes other personnel in 
the city to support, augment and assist emergency 
service workers in times of community disasters. 
The fire department is the lead agency, except for 
issues of law enforcement. 

"Safety" 
The department continues to conduct a self-

inspection program (audit) as it relates to its safety 
policies and practices. Continued improvement in 
this area is necessary. The Department has found 
itself not as compliant as it would like to be. The 
department continues to make improvements In 
light of this, the department has been working on 

261 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 197 of 311



adopting and memorializing the accepted safety 
practices relating to it profession and trade. Person-
nel are currently being trained in these areasThc 
department had conducted a self inspection pro 

once to safety procedures and found itself not as 

department-has been working on adopting and me 
morializing the-accepted safety practices relating to 
it profession and trade. Personnel are currently be 

" • 	" ' 

mere significant when the fonnal SOP program is 
developed and-contains the actual, or referred, doc 

C 	a . " 	• 

crations. As mentioned earlier, the components of 
such-a-prograin are part of the existing contract with 
Emergency Services Consulting, inc. 

"Operational" 
The recommendation was that the department 

should work to boost its response personnel by dif-
ferent methods. We have addressed this earlier in 
the report. 

Ti..ftte_staftdeityw  

Of note in this section is the paragraph identify  
ing, the need for aerial/ladder apparatus in the de 
partment. As addressed -earlier, the department is 
currently working on the specs and design of such 
an apparatus. 

As an additional recommendation, the resident 
program should be expanded to include day time 

Sedro-Woolley, with its city population of 8,805  
then (or 17,000 considering the area protected in  
District 8) with its two (at that time) paid FR, 
should show a horrendous loss of property and fire 
deaths over that of Tumwater, which boasts a paid 
FF level of 21 (an increase over SWFD of 
1,000%)(2003) with an even smaller population!  
Examination of such statistical information would 
most certainly not show a disparity of 1,000 per 
cent, or more simply, if Tumwater had a fire death 
loss of 2 then Sedro-Woolley should have one of 
20. Carrying it further, if Tumwater had a $2 mil-
lion loss, Sedro-Woolley should be experiencing a  
$20 million loss. We simply do not see losses like 
these strictly predicated on numbers of paid person-
nein should be noted here that Level of Service 
based on per capital levels is only one of many 

truly wonderful when an agency can simply identify 
its population numbers and then hire the proper 

vide the end of the equation. Mostly, this is not, nor 

25,000 considering the area protected in District 8) 
with its two (at that time) paid FF, should show a 
horrendous loss of property and fire deaths over that 
of Tumwater, which boasts a paid FF level of 21 (an 
increase over SWFD of 1,000%) with an even 
smaller population! Examination of such statistical 
information would most certainly not show a dis 

fel 

water had a fire death loss of 2 then Sedro Woolley 
should have once-of 20. Carrying it further, if Thin 
water had a $2 million loss, Sedro Woolley should 

e 
"Per-Capita Levels" 

In 2003 it was noted that Level of Service based 
on per-capital levels is only one of many methods  
used to calculate what is acceptable. It is truly won-
derful when an agency can simply identify its popu-
lation numbers and then hire the proper number of 
paid personnel deemed necessary to provide the end 
of the equation. Mostly, this is not, nor can it be.  
done. The example in 2003 demonstrated that  

not see losses like these strictly predicated on num 
bers of paid personnel. 

This is not to say that the department is not woe-
fully lacking paid FF and the city should not be ex-
amining every avenue to increase these levels, only 
that these figures should be used as a part of the 
criteria for such considerations. 

262 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 198 of 311



Under "Functional Responsibilities", the depart-
ment has increased it on duty personal since the last 
report with the addition of part time personnel and 
the addition of the second station which increased 
its volunteer residents on duty. Even with these 
changes, the department still sees the need for more 
staffing growthUnder "Functional Responsibili  
• 3, 	

a 	6 	• 

inal changes in 2002/2003, in that there is now an 
additional paid FF and a reductien of Fesielent FFs 
from 8 to that of 7. This number has something to 
do with the housing facilities of the new fire station. 
The number of volunteer firefighters can easily 
fluctu-at from its listed level of 25. 

ESCi, wauld-easily agree that the listed functions 
: . 	Z 

• The need for additional attack crew size 
• Mininial administrative and support staff 
• The need to develop more depth in sustained at 
tack crew resources 

Health-and-Safety 
Two of the identified areas arc addressed by the 

current department as indicated. There are now two 
Safety Officers for the department and arc designat 
ed as 5508 and 5509. This is an incr se from one 
in 1996. There is an increased emphasis on physical 
fitness in the department. Exercise and weight 
equipment has been purchased and is evident in the 
station. These programs will most likely be formal 
ly addfessed in the SOP system being currently de 
veleped, 

"Training" 
This is a very critical area of any and all fire de-

partments. Successful departments are the result of 
excellent training programs. 

TRAINING IS EXPENSIVE! 

GOOD TRAINING IS VERY EXPENSIVE!! 

NO TRAINING IS THE MOST EXPENSIVE 
OF ALL!!! 

Few areas are more important to firefighter safe-
ty, performance and overall success at the fire sce-
ne, than training. Basic recruit training not only 
gives firefighters the basic skills they need on the 
job, but also provides an introduction to the de-
partment for its new personnel. Ongoing training 
beyond the recruit level keeps skills current, en-
hances teamwork among crewmembers, and allows 
new ideas and techniques to be introduced. 

The SWFD currently has an on-going training 
program. For consideration of certification, they are 
using the IFSTA and Firefighter 1 standards. 

The SWFD's evaluation forms for documentation 
of training and proficiency of the members have 
been developed in-house, in conjunction with indus-
try accepted standards. 
documentation will probably be needed to satisfy 
ISO or Rating Bureau requirements. 

In the 2003 report it was noted that the need for a 
"training ground." The department has invested 
along with Fire District 8 time and money to pro-
vide this.  

The department now has access to drill/training 
grounds, with towers. windows, stairs, standpipes, 
live fire, etc. A prescribed and documented skills-
maintenance program now in placeThey will want 
to see the actual records of individual, company, 
multi company and night drills as well as mutual 
aid and disaster drills. Having no aecess—to 
drill/training-gFeunds, with towers, windows, stairs, 
standpipes,livelire, etc., will always be a-drawback 
for smaller departments and will restrict training 
opportunities for them. Driver operators and cngi 

differing type of nozzles and appliances, as well as 
elevations for head pressures to determine friction 
loss and- pressure settings. A prescribed and docu 
mented skills maintenance program does not yet 

• 

263 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 199 of 311



seem to be in place. We would expect this will all Training facilities are currently quite limited. The 
- . 	 - - 

the Training Facility that is currently under plan 

General Training Competency 

In order to ensure quality training is provided, it 
should be based on established standards of good 
practice. There are a variety of sources for training 
standards. For the most part, the SWFD has selected 
training based on the IFSTA Training standards. 
("Combat training"). The SWFD recruit firefighters 
are required to meet some basic firefighter skills 
prior to being allowed to respond to emergencies. 
Because of the very limited numbers of volunteer 
personnel, actual extended training for recruits may 
be more OJT than academy. 

For anyone responsible for making people smart-
er faster, the time available is always too short, the 
budget unrealistic and the demands unrelenting. 

Fire Department Summary 

In summary based on the information provided in 
the 1996 and 2003 report and by the department 
self-audit and by the fire chiefs direct observations, 
it is apparent that the department has made signifi-
cant improvements in staffing, facilities and equip-
ment. It is clear that the Sedro-Woolley Fire De-
partment and the City of Sedro-Woolley have made 
great efforts and accomplished quite a bit regarding  

the previous recommendations and have only been 
limited by time and finances. The department is 
certainly in better condition than it was in 2003 and 
it is through no small effort on everyone's part. The 
City must not relax in its efforts to provide adequate 
and reliable service to the citizens. The continued 
up grading of equipment and increasing department 
staffing must be a priority.  

limited library of technical and training manuals. 
Skills training should attempt to recreate the real 
environment at an emergency scene. Unless training 

ronmenta, quality training is difficult to provide. 
The SWFD should aggressively pursue-its proposal 
Training Facility, which could also be utilized or 
joint training with its mutual aid neighbors. A draft 

the requirements for pumpers to be tested at 1 ast 
once per year in a draft mode. 

facility includes the following: 
• Exposure to heat 
♦ Exposure to smoke 
• Water application/fire-control 
• Simulate fire extension 
▪ Simulate multi story fire 
• Simulate fuel types 
• Search and rescue 
* Ventilation 
♦ Forcible entry 
• Fire behavior 
• Ladder cvolut-ions 
4 Salvage and overhaul 

Benefits from this type of training: include: 
• Increased safety 
♦ Decreased environmental impacts 

- 	 . - 	• . 

* Consistent and repeatable evo-lut-i-ens 

A quality training program should be based on 
pre established training objectives. These objectives 
are developed through a needs a-ssessment process 
that identifies skill and knowledge areas that may 
be deficient er need additional focus. It also ensures 
that new skills required to cope with new risks are 
identified and programmed into the overall training 
program. 

264 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 200 of 311



265 

• : 	. 

training needs. Given all of the refresher training 
. 	• : 

minimize skill degradation, and ensure safe and 

lowing is the minimum ISO training 
requirements: 

figeetion--5841) 

Points and uses 
1. Facilities and-Aids: 

Drill Tower 8 
- 	: 	-_ 	- 	- . 	1 	. : 8 

reem-} 
Combustible Liquid Pit 5 

a 

gide-an-d-Movie Projectors, 2 
hydrant pump and 	cutaways 

Training 	include 4-0 area, may 
streets or open areas 

2. Use: 
Half day 	hours), 8 (3 	per year 0.40 max 
Half day (3 hours), inniti g74-0-Flia* 
company-drills;  1 per year 
Night-drills 	hours), two 0.20 max (3 	per 
year 

Note: A single company drill may receive credit 
under a and c. A multi company drill- may receive 
credits a, b and c. 

As discussed earlier, the SWFD is developing a 

(Section 580) 

Subfeet-Mattef Seenen Hours 
a. Half-day (3 hours), & 580 2 24 
per year 
b. Half day (3 hours), 580 2 *12 
multi 	drills, I company 
per year 
c. Night drills (3 hours), 580 2 '16 
two per year 

Objectives-meet by 1 Wet Drill per month 

* A single company drill may receive credit under a 
or c. A multi company drill may receive credit un 
der a, b, or c 

580 B 20/ 
Month 

B. Company Training, 
ver_member 

C. Classes for Officers 580 C 16/ Year 
D. Driver and Operator 580-D 16/ Year 
Training 
E. New Driver and 580 E 40/ 

initial Operator Training 
F. Training on 580 F /II Year 
Radioactivity 
G. Recruit Training 580 G 240 

Initial (Initial Training) 

H. Pre Fire Planning 580 H 2X  
41-eaf Inspections 

; - 	 - 

and-other—similar type buildings should be made 
twice a year. Record of the inspections should in 

- 	. - 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 201 of 311



and efficiently. Under a competency based system;  
an evaluation of skill performance is conducted. 
Where an individual can demonstrate the ability to 
meet the competency, no further training is re 
quired. Where they can't, then additional training is 

professes to place a high priority on the education 
of its personnel, and ESCi cannot find any indica 

The report indicates the SWFD would rely en the 

sheuM be-based-eli the person's position and duties 

would cover all required areas of skill and ability. 

Dr-i-ver-s -shealel be tested-en driving and pump oper 
ation skills and firefighters on skills in their respec 
tive  

"*. - 	 - --; - 	 - “.• 	t - - 

rescues, but we are informed such a t am 	--s-not 

be dispatched out of Bellingham. At some point, 
SWFD members should be trained in the basics of 
specialized rescues. Because the department pro 
vides primary structural protection only and relies 

trained to a wildland fire- level of 
safety, only. 

1=1-azar-fio-us-M-aterials 
skills already well learned and more time available 
to practice skills the personnel are net proficient 

knowledge. 

The competency based evaluation must be con 

deficiencies rly. A competency based system en 
sures that all personnel can perform the required 
tasks and activities in a safe and efficient manner. 
Documentation of the program provides a valuable 
record of the department's capabilities and efforts to 

Other than for these-training -sessions required to 
comply with law, attendance standards become less 

Its the demonstration of competency that is critical 
and the learning of new skills to keep pace with a 
changing environment. 

Hazardous materials response training appears to 
be very limited. The SWFD new to recognize 

state requirements imposed 

Hiien 

these requirements. 

Federal law requires that all facilities using cer 
taro types of hazardo-as material have an emergency 
plan. The taw also requires that fire departments 
participate in emergency plan development and co 

ble for emergency response-to some of the faei-l-ities 

ment. 

Standard operating procedures (SOPs) for haz 
The den-at-tn.-lent has-eeltabhshed its Annual Train 

ing Goals and is requiring department personnel to 
meet these goals and objectives. They also have a 
formal Officer -Development program which is 
available to personnel. The current administration  

. • : • 

materials response teams. Fire and EMS depart 
ments that respond, or are subject to respond, to any 

develop written standard-operating procedures. This 

• 8*• 

266 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 202 of 311



On scene Incident Commander Assumes 
fund Amendments and Reauthorization Act 
(S-A.RA) passed in 1986. 

istration (OSHA) and the Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) promulgate regulations under SARA 
Title 1, Section 126. OSHA 29 CFR § 1910.120, 
Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency  Re 
spouse  (commonly known as HAZWOPER) and 
EPA /10 CFR § 311 are essentially identical regula 
Lions applicable to all emergency responders within 
the United States regardless of their location or sta 

tions define five training levels for emergency re 
speeders based on the functions they may be ex 
petted to perform at  a  hazardous materials incident. 

They are: 

First Responder Awareness Individuals like 
ly to witness or discover the release of a haz 
ardous material. Trained to initiate the appro 
priate response and take no further action. 

4 First Responder Operations Respond to re 
1 ases or potential releases-of hazardous sub 
stances as part of the initial response. Ex 
petted to take defensive actions without try 
ing to stop the rel ase, for the purpose of pro 

ment. This is considered the minimum as 
ceptable level of training for members of fire 
and EMS departments. 

a diszar-datis materials incident for the pur 
pose of stopping the release. These individu 
als are often members of a Hazmat team. 

Hazardous Materials Specialist Respond 
with and support hazardous materials techni 
cians. Possess specialized knowledge of 
chemical hazards or container characteristics. 

sponder awareness level. This individual 
must possess minimum training at the first re 
speeder operations level with additional 
knowledge of state, local, and federal re 
sponse plans. 

that of First Responder Operations. 

Major hazards should be identified and good 
quality pre incident plans should be developed and 

recommend the department obtain a copy of the 
Special Haz Mat issue of Fire Economics, August 
2001.0ther recommendations specifically noted in 
that report but not in this one have either not been 
acted on, or they are r ally not pertinent. 

"Emergency Response" 

Response times addressed in the 1996 report ap  
pear to -still be the-department's standards at this 
time, which would be understandable as there have 

.0: 

positioned since that report. The chief indicates that 
even though there are too few personnel arriving 

In/Two Out safety policy established by OSHA and 
reflected in Washington's codes and statutes. 

In order that everyone reading this report under 
stand this landmark policy, ESCi explains the fol  
lowing: 

Two4n-and-Two-0-ot 

The federal Occupational Safety and 14eallli A4 
ministration (OSHA) has issued a revised standard 
regarding respiratory protection. Among other 
chaffs, the regulation -now requires that interior 
structural firefighting procedures provide for at 
least two firefighters inside the structure. Two fire 
fighters inside the structure must have direct visual 

267 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 203 of 311



to • 	" 

rior structural firefighting. 

3. Which firefighters are covered by these 
structure. This section has been dubbed the fire 	regulations? 
fighters' two initwo out' regulation. The fellow 
ing questions and answers are to assist in under 

1. What is the federal-OSHA Respiratory 
Proteetion-Standarti? 

. 9. - 	 . 	. : - • 

protection standard requiring employers to establish 
and maintain a respiratory protection program for 
their respirator wearing employees. The revised 

alth standards. 

The standard specifically addrc-ses the use of 

Health (IDLII) atmospheres, including interior 

MLA atmospheres. In these atmospheres, OSHA 

apparatus (SCBA), that a +minimum of two fire 

a minimum of two firefighters be on standby out- 

federal firefighters. In 23 states and two territories, 
the state, not the federal government, has responsi 

as the programs for private sector employees. In 

not-have state OSHA plans. 

• . 	. 

county, or municipal, in any of the states or territo 

lion for all fire departments. 

fighters? 

• 

may be one of the most important-safety advances 
for-fifefighters in recent decades. Too many fife 
fighters have died because of insofficient accounta-
bility and poor communications. This standard ad  
dresses both and leaves no doubt that two-in/two 
out requirements must be fellowed for fire fighter 
safety and compliance with the law. 

Alaska 
Kentucky 
North Carolina 
Virginia 
Arizona 
Maryland 
Oregon 
Virgin Islands 
California 
N4-ichigan 

268 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 204 of 311



Puerto Rico 
Washington 
Connecticut 
Minnesota 
Utah 
Wyoming 
Hawaii 
Nevada 
Tennessee 
Indiana 
New Mexico 
South Carolina 
lowa 
New York 
Vermont 

A number of other states have adopted, by refer 
once, federal OSHA regulations for public employ 
ee firefighters. These states include Florida, Illinois 
and Oklahoma. In these states, the regulations carry 
the force of state law. 

Additionally, a  number of-states have adopted 
. - t. 

for Fire Department Occupational Safety and 
Health Program. The 1997 edition of NFPA 1500 
now includes requirements corresponding to 
OSHA's respiratory protection regulation. Since the 
NFPA is a pri-vate consensus standards organiza 
Lion, its recommendations are preempted by OSHA  
regulations that are more stringent. In ether words, 
the OSHA regulations are the minimum require 
meet where they are legally applicable. There is 
nothing in federal regulations that "deem compli 
ance" with any consensus standards, including 
NFPA standards, if the consensus standards are less 
stringent. It i-s unfortunate that all U.S. and Canadi 
an firefighters are net covered by the OSHA respir 
atory protection standard. However, we must eon 
cider the two out requirements to be the min 
imum acceptable standard for safe fire ground ()per 
aliens for all firefighters when self contained 
breathing apparatus is used. 

4. When arc Ave in/two out procedures re 

_ 

interior attack on an internal or structural fire, the 
atmosphere is assumed to be IDLH and paragraph 
29 CFR 3944.13-4(g)(4) [two in/two out] applies." 
OSHA defines interior structural firefighting "as the 
physical activity of fire suppression, rescue or both 
inside of buildings or enclosed structures which arc 
involved a fife sitiaat.ien beyond the incipient 
ctage. OSHA further defines an incipient stage fire 
irr 2-9 CF-R 1910.1 55{26) as a "fire which is in the 
initial or beginning stage and which can be con 
trolled or extinguished by portable fire extinguish 
ers, Class II standpipe or small hose systems with  
out the need for protective clothing or breading 

stage is considered to be an IDLH atmosphere-by 
OSHA. 

OSHA requires that all firefighters en _aged in 
interior structural firefighting must wear SCBAs. 
SCBAs must be NIOSH certified, positive pressure, 

• 

1910.156(f)(1)(ii)] and [29 CFR 	1910.134 
(g)(1)(iii)]. 

6. Are  all firefighters performing interior 

son el? 

Yes. OSHA clearly requires that all workers en 
gaged in interior structural firefighting operations 
beyond the incipient stage use S-CBA and work in 
teams of two or more. [29 CFR 1910.1 31 (g)(1)(i)} 

7. A-re  firefighters in the interior of  the  

one another? 

269 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 205 of 311



270 

• . . 	• • 	 • such that the work can be abandoned, without plac 

the team. [29 CFR 1910.1311(g)(1)(01 

to separate from  their "buddy" or "buddies"? 

vices, radio contact is not acceptable te-Feplace vis 
ual or voice contact between the members of the 
"buddy system" team. Also, the individual needing 
rescue may not be physically able to operate an 
electronic device to alert other members of the inte-
rior team that assistance is needed. 

- 	 -• 	- 

dividuals, operating as a team in direct vo 	i-er--vs-  
" " 	 • . 

SCBA. In addition,  a minimum of-twe-in- 

personnel must at all times account for 
. • 	• . 	. 

interior team. [29 CFR 1910.1 31(g)(1)1 

paratus 
: • 	: 

between the interior firefighter team(s) and exterior 
firefighters. They cannot, however, be the sole tools 
for accounting for-one's partner in the interior of a 

1910.131(g)(3)(ii)],  

side the structural fife prior to a team entering and 

OSHA requires at least one team of two or more 
properly equipped and trained-firefighters to be pre 

fighters enters the structural fife. This requirement 
is intended to assure that the team outside the struc 
tune has the training, clothing and equipment to pro 
tect them and, if necessary, safely and-effectively 
rescue firefighters inside the structure. For high rise 

OSIIA requires that one of the two outside fire 

initiate a rescue of the interior firefighters. Aside 
interior 

dent, 

Any task the outside-firefighters perform while in 
standby rescue status must not interfere with the 

y, or function 

IDLH annesphere. [2-9 CFR 1910.131(0(3)010} 

10. Do these regulations mean that, at a min 

individuals working as a team i-n the interior of 

1910.131(g)(1)(Note 1)} 

tors? 

- . 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 206 of 311



. 	: • : 

the 

12. If a rescue operation  is necessary, must 
OSHA regulations recognize deviations to regu 

latiens in an-emergency operation where immediate 
action is necessary to save a life. For fire depart 
- — . - 

  

" • 

  

    

beyond the incipient stage, regardless of the reason, 
must be made in teams of two or more firefighters. 
(29 CFR 1910.1 3/1(g)(4)(i)]  

13. De the regulations require two  firelight  
• 	' : 	 . 	' 	: 

ing m the interior  of a structural  fire? 

The regulations do not require a separate "two 
our team for each team operating in the structure. 

. - 
	

" . 

cannot be properly maintained from a single expo 
sure, or if fapiel  rescue becomes infeasible, addi  

the involved structure is large enough to require 
entry at -ifferent locations or levels, additional 
"two out"-  teams would be required. [29 CFR 
1910.13/1(g)(1)} 

OSHA"s respiratory protection standard is net 
about counting-heads. Rather, it dictates functions 
of firefighters -p4or to an interior attack. The entry 
team must consist of at least two individuals. Of the  

organized to ensure that adequate firefighters are at 
the emergency-scene prior to any interior-attack at-a 
structural fire. If initial attack firefighters find a 
known life hazard-situation where immediate action 
could prevent the loss of life, deviation from the 
two initwo out standard may be permitted, as an 
exception to the fire department's organizational 
plan. However, such deviations from the regulations 
must be exceptions and not de facto standard prac 
tices. In fact, 0-S-I4A may still issue "de minimis" 
citations for such deviations from the standard, 
meaning that the-citation-will not require monetary 
penalties or corrective action. The exception is for a 

practice, as-HA citations are authorized. [29 CFR 
1910.1 311(g){'I)(Note 2)1 

Yes. OSHA  requires the fire department or-the 

of firefighters operating in an IDLII atmosphere. 

ditional assistance appropriate to the emergency, 
including the notification of err -seene firefighters 
and incoming units. Additionally, any such actions 

: : • 

ability ftinctions and be immediately available for 
firefighter rescue. As explained above, the other 
may perform other tasks, as long as those tasks do 
not interfere with the accountability functions and 
can be abandoned to perform firefighter rescue. De 
pending on the operating procedures of the fire de 
part-meat, mere than four individuals may be re 
quired. [29 CFR 1910.1 3'1(g)(1)(i)]  

this-Fegulati&O 

should be thoroughly investigated- by the fire de 
partment with a written report submitted to the fire 
chief. [2-9-CFR 1-94-0.13'1{g}{3 =)] 

17. How  do the regulations affect firefighters  
" 	• ' 	 . ' 

interior structural  fire?  

Firefighters must adhere to the two initwo out 
regulations for ether emergene response operations 
in any IDLH, potential IDLH, or unknown atinos 

271 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 207 of 311



phere. OSHA permits one standby person only in 

known, well characterized, and well controlled. [29 
CFR 1910.120(q)(3)(vi)} agencies do not reveal the name of the person filing 

The revised OSHA respiratory protection stand 

Plan" states had six months from the rel se date to 
implement and enforce the new regulations. 

Fire departments must develop and implement 
standard operating procedures addressing fire 

. - 	- 
dures to demonstrate compliance. Fire department 
training programs must ensure that fircfighWs-un-
derstancl and implement appropriate two in/two out 
procedures. [29 CFR 1910.1311 

20. What can  be done  if the fire department  
does-noteampty4  

even if they arc unsigned or anonymous. For all 
other complaints (from other than a current employ 

send  a  letter to the employer describing the corn 

a federal or state OSHA complaint be in writing. 

When an OSHA inspector arrives, he or she dis 
plays official credentials and asks to see the em 
ployer. The inspector explains the nature of the vis 

pcction and applicable stand 

requested, to -conceal the employee's ident-ity is 
• 

five may accompany the inspector during the in 
. 	 . 

ployee, if any, also has the right to participate in the 

lect information and view work sites. The inspector 
- - : 

tional information. Federal law prohibits discrimi 
I m" 

Federal OSHA and approved state plan states 
must, "...assure so far as possible every working 
man and woman in the Nation safe and healthful 
working conditions." To ensure such protection, 
federal OSHA and states with approved state plans 
are authorized to enforce safety and health stand 

specific standards-are-met and that the workplace i3 
generally free from recognized hazards likely to 
cause death or serious physical harm. 

because of anything that workers say or show the 

er situations 
have top priority. An imminent danger is a hazard 

immediately, or before the danger can be eliminated 

of the hazardous and unpredictable nature of the fire 
ground, a fire department's failure to comply with 

inspectors find imminent danger conditions. they 

272 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 208 of 311



hazard by the employer or removal of endangered 
employees from the ar a. If an employer fails to do 
so, federal OSHA can go to federal district court to 
force the employer to comply. State occupational 
safety and health agencies rely on state courts for 
similar authority. 

Federal and state OSHA agencies are required by 
law to issue citations for violations of safety and 
health standards. The agencies are not pepruitted to 
issue warnings. Citations include a description of 
the violation, the proposed penalty (if any), and the 
date by which the hazard must be corrected. Cita 
tions must be posted in the workplace to inform 
employees about the violation and the corrective 
action.-{-2-9 CFR 19-03.3(a)1 

The department feels it is meeting the minimum 
of at least '1 personnel initially at the scene of a fire 
based on three personnel responding on an engine 
and two additional personnel responding on an aid 
vehicle. We would suggest they really examine this 
response to see how consistent it is and if there 
would be some way of augmentation with mutu 
allautomatic aid agreements with their neighbors. 

The department continues to provide Basic Life 
Support- services for their customers and relies on 
the EMS system in the county for Advanced Life 

jor change in how EMS interacts between the coun 
ty and the local hospitals. At the time of this report, 
no definitive agreements have been worked out. 

• 

It is important for labor and management to 
know that this regulation can also be used as evi 
dence of industry standards and feasibility in arbi  
tration and grievance hearings on firefighter safety, 
as well as in other civil or criminal legal proceed 
ints  involving injury or death when the cause can 
be attributed to-employer failure to implement two 
in/two out procedures. Regardless of OSHA's en 
forcement authority, this federal regulation links 
fire ground operations with fire fighter safety. 

Firmaments must amend any existing poli  
cies and operational procedures to address the two 
inztwe out regulations and develop clear protocols 
and reporting procedures for deviations from these 
fire department policies and procedures. Any indi  

appropriate departmental action. 

The department is currently working on setting 
its-goals and objectives to meeting the current re 
quirements of NFPA Standards.  

11 items identified as necessary to support the de 

Items 1 	7 have been done. item 8, addressing 
I t • " " 

dents, has been accomplished to the extent that this 
brochure is available to any and all residents. Item 
11 addresses specialized training such as water res 
cue and hazardous materials response. The chief 
indicates these areas have not been pursued. 

"Fire Prevention and Inspection" 

All items are reported by the chief to have been 
accomplished, with the exception that the recom 
mcndation had listed the 199'1 UFC and the depart 
merit is currently utilizing the 1997 UFC. All other 
recommendations have either been met or are cur 
rently being worked on, or, have been dispensed 
vith for one of any reasons discussed earlier in this 

r-epeft 

"Public Education" 

"" : 	f• • 

EMS council or the department. The SWFD will 
consider the Fire Safety Open House (item '1) but 
has not yet decided to pursue this particular  FeCOM 

mendation. 

273 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 209 of 311



This system for Sedro Woolley has not produced 
revenues anywhere near expectations and does not 
appear to  be able 40 do so in the foreseeable future. 
Our understanding is that -it will take another 25 

to approximately double Of: 

Item 5 is being done this year. 	 Items listed under this heading as Goal 2, Policy 
2A and Policy 2.2 have comments annotated as 

Item 6 The Water Safety course will probably 
not become part of the function of the SWFD. 

Items 7 11, done. 

Item 15 is currently being worked on and is be 
ing fine tuned as of this time. 

a joint effort with District 8. 

or being worked on. 

±Appanous22  
The department has developed a 5 year capital 

improvement program with y-arly updates, which 
includes equipment and also includes a 3 y ar corn 
pater improvement program with annual updates. 
Where applicable, the department has met the rcc 
ommendations regarding the regular maintenance 
program. 

"Cost Recovery" 
As indicated earlier in this report, the program 

has not proved to be a viable or substantial source 
for revenue generation. 

"Integration" 
The "other" integration of services recommended 

for consideration in the report have been evaluated 
and are either werk-i-pg or in the process of being 
incorporated into the department's scope of opera 
tions and administration. 

"Growth Management Planning"  

• : 

eliefTwhile-Policy 3.8 discussing General Obliga 

jcctcd by the voters. 

"Fire Department Specific Goals and Policies" 
- D 	 .-: 	9 	. 	 . 

being "done", but Policy FD1.5 is noted as not be 

whether impact is on city or on residents). 

- 	 ' 	 • A 
DEPARTMENT RESOURCES 

of 1996 report), once again indicates that a ladder 
truck is being specified by the fire chief since this 

CURRENT LEVEL OF SERVICES 
EVALUATION 

noted (and it is obvious) that the fire department has 
since moved into the new station (1998). 

appropriate manner, which includes replacing and 
additional equipment as needed. A new engine 
should be on premises as this report is being con 
eluded. The department has accepted the industFy 
standard replacement schedule and will do so if 
funding permits. 

OTHER DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION-SL 
and very critical is the relatively small size of initial 
and sustained attar-c-k crews. This is an-ongoing prob  
lern. 

"Capital Facilities Plan"  

274 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 210 of 311



its population from 8,800 to 16,000 and this will be 
plineipally residential. Impact fees vary greatly 
from community to community and can run from 

ing almost prohibitive. If 

fees will most definitely (with rare exception) stifle 

munities try to find ways of dollar incentives in or 

the future tax base. 

CONCLUSIONS BY ESCi 

Based on the information provided by the fire 
chief and by direct observations, it is apparent that 
the recommendations contained within the 1996 
edit-Analysis for Strategic Planning-  have been 
examined, discussed and pursued as extensively as 
was possible considering available resources such 
as time and money. It appears the Sedro Woolley 
Fire Department and the City of Sedro Woolley 
have made great efforts and accomplished quite a 
bit-rega-r-ding those Fecemmendations and have only 

partment is certainly in better condition than it was 
in 1996 and it is through no small effort on every 
one's part. Fire Chief Dean Klinger, members of the 
department, the community and the city are all to he 
eeinfnended, 

275 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 211 of 311



APPENDIX  to Fire Department Strategic Plan 

(The following information was provided to ESCi from the Sedro-Woolley Fire Department) 

How to Calculate Fire Impact Fees 

Sample Formula for Determining Impact Fee 

1 	Total Number 	 Square Feet 	 Fire Apparatus 

of Fire 	/ 	All Developed 	= 	per Square Foot 

Apparatus 	 Structures 	 of Development 

2 	Fire Apparatus 	 Cost per 	 Fire Capital Cost 
per Square Foot 	X 	Apparatus 	= 	per Square Foot 
of Development 	 of Development 

3 	Fire Capital Cost 	 Adjustment per 	 Fire Impact Fees 
per Square Foot 	 Square Foot 	= 	per Square Foot 
of Development 	 of Development 	 of Development 

The above is a sample formula for calculating fire impact fees. Different types of construction 
(Residential -vs- Commercial) are at a different rate due to different components within the 
formula 

276 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 212 of 311



TABLE 1 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

FIRE APPARATUS AND CAPITAL COSTS PER SQUARE FOOT OF DEVELOPMENT 

Square Feet 	Apparatus 	 Capital 

Number of 	Development 	Per 	Cost Per 	Cost Per 

,aLLIALt 
Component 	Apparatus 	Served 	Square Foot Apparatus 	Foci 

Pumporc 2 5,126,638 13.000000695 321,000 0.113015313 
Aid Units 1 5,126,838 0.000300185 95,000 0.018591 
Aerial Units 0 5,126,618 0.000000000 750,003 D.000000 

Speciatty Units 1 5,126,639 0.030000195 36,000 0.007022 

Command Vehicles 2 5,126,638 0.000000390 27,000 0.010533 
Training facilities 1 5,126,538 0,000000195 75,000 0.0146,29 

0.2403134 

TABLE 2 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
PREVIOUS EXPENDITURES FOR FIRE PROTECTION 

APPARATUS 

YEAR EXPENDITURES 

1996 35,141 

1997 29,989 
1998 35,897 

1999 25,181 

2003 71.327 
2001 54,754 
2002 24,601 

7-Year Total 276,870 

Annual Average 

Annual Average I Square Foot of Development 

Six year 

39,553 

0.00772 

0.0462910 

Fire Impact Fees — Residential 

277 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 213 of 311



TABLE 1 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

FIRE APPARATUS AND CAPITAL COSTS PER SQUARE FOOT OF DEVELOPMENT 

Square Feet 	Apparatus 	 Capital 

Number of 	Development 	Per 	Cost Per 	Cost Per 

Component 	Apparatus 	Served 	Square Foot 	Apparatus Square Foot 

Aerial Units 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 525,000 0.102406 

Ambulances 2 5,126,638 0.000000390 150,000 0.058518 

Fire Station 2 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 619,326 0.120805 

0.2817297 

TABLE 2 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

PREVIOUS PAYMENTS MADE BY NEW DEVEOPMENT 
AVAILABLE TO FUND FUTURE NEEDS 

YEAR 	 AVAILABLE FUNDS 

2008 0 

2009 0 

2010 0 

2011 0 

2012 2,735 

2013 4,348 

2014 2,965 

7-Year Total 10,048 

Annual Average 1,435 

Annual Average / Square Foot of Development 0.00028 

Six year 0.0016799 

278 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 214 of 311



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
PROPOSED IMPACT FEE RATE 

Impact Fee 
Lana 	 par 

FuU Cost 
	

Adjustment 	Square Foot 

$0.24 
	

$0.05 	 $0.19 

Home 
	

Impact Fee 111MBEIBB04301313511 

903 0 -227.00 
1203 0 -227.00 
1503 -227.00 
1E103 -227.00 
2003 0 -227.00 
2203 0 -227.00 

City of Sedro-Woolley Proposed Fire Impact Fee Rate - Residential 

Full Cost per sqft Less Adjustment Fire Impact Fee Per sqft 

$0.28 $0.00 $0.28 

279 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 215 of 311



TABLE 1 

CITY OF SED RO-1NOOL LEY 

FIRE APPARATUS AND CAPITAL COSTS PER SQUARE FOOT OF DEVELOPMENT 

Component  
Number of 

Apparatus  

Square Feet 

Development 

Served  

Apparatus 

Per 

Square Foot  
Coat Per 

Apparatus  

Capital 

Cc 	Per 

Square Foot 

Pumpers 3 5,126,635 0.000000585 324,000 0.1695979 

Aid Unite 1 5,126,635 0.000000195 95,000 0.0185307 

Aerial Unita 1 5,126,614 0.000000195 750,000 0.1462947 

Specialty Units 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 36,000 0.0070221 
Commend Vehicles 2 5,126.638 0.000000390 27,000 0.0105332 

Training tell tee 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 75,000 0.0146295 

0.366 6061 

TABLE 2 

CITY OF SEOR 0-WOOLLEY 

PREVIOUS EXPENDITURES FOR FIRE PROTECTION APPARATUS 

YEAR EXPENDITURES 

1 996 35,141 

1 997 29,989 

1998  35,897 

1 999 25,161 

2000 71,327 

2001 54,754 

2002 24,601 

7-Year Taut 276,870 

Annual Average 

Annual Average / Square Foot of 133vebpmen1 

Six year Average / Square Foot of Development 

39,553 

0.00772 

0.0462910 

Fire Impact Fees — Commercial 

280 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 216 of 311



TABLE 1 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

FIRE APPARATUS AND CAPITAL COSTS PER SQUARE FOOT OF DEVELOPMENT 

Square Feet 	Apparatus 	 Capital 
Number of 	Development 	Per 	Cost Per 	Cost Per 

Component 	Apparatus 	Served 	Square Foot 	Apparatus Square Foot 

Aerial Units 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 525,000 0.102406 
Ambulances 2 5,126,638 0.000000390 150,000 0.058518 
Fire Station 2 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 619,326 0.120805 

0.2817297 

TABLE 2 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

PREVIOUS PAYMENTS MADE BY NEW DEVEOPMENT 
AVAILABLE TO FUND FUTURE NEEDS 

YEAR 	 AVAILABLE FUNDS 

2008 0 
2009 0 
2010 0 
2011 0 
2012 2,735 
2013 4,348 
2014 2,965 

7-Year Total 10,048 

Annual Average 1,435 
Annual Average / Square Foot of Development 0.00028 
Six year 0.0016799 

281 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 217 of 311



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

PROPOSED IMPACT FEE RATE 

Less 

Impact Fee 

per 

Full Cr4, 

$0.39 

11IIIiat 	 SquareErat 

V0.05 	 50.34 

(40% adjustment for sprinkled buildings) 

Building 	 Impact Fee Increase/Decrease 

700 0 -227.00 Apt 

3030 

20000 

0 

0 

-340.50 

-454.00 

340.5 MamaIde 

454 Safeway 

City of Sedro-Woolley Proposed Fire Impact Fee Rate - Commercial 

Full Cost per sqft Less Adjustment Fire Impact Fee Per soft 

$0.28 $0.00 $0.28 

Nonresidential Credits 

Sprinkler Systems = 40% 
Alarm System = 10% 

Sprinkler & Alarm Systems = 50% 

282 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 218 of 311



Six-Year Capital Facilities Replacement Plan 

Capital Item 	 Make / Type Purchase year Est. Cost Est. Replacement Date 

Command Vehicle 5510 	Ford Pickup 1994 35,000.00 2004 

Engine 5513 	 Dailey Pumper 1991 350,000.00 2011 

Engine 5512 	 H&W Pumper 1996 350,000.00 2016 

Engine 5511 	 H&W Pumper 2003 350,000.00 2024 

Tender 5516 (Dist 8) 	 Freightliner 1999 N/A 2019 

Rescue 5517 (Dist 8) 	 Chevy 2 Ton 1985 N/A 2005 

Utility 5518 	 Ford F450 2001 36,000.00 2016 

Aid 5519 	 Ford Ambulance 1995 95,000.00 2010 

Chiefs Vehicle 5501 	 Ford Taurs 1991 27,000.00 2001" 

• 	II 	...••;, 	I 	I. 111. $ III 11 

Total Equipment Costs 1,993,000.00 

Head Quarters Station 1999 3,000,000.00 2024 

(station upgrade to quarters for EMS) '2004 25,000.00 

Station 2 *2004 150,000.00 

Air Station for SCEA 2000 35,000.00 2010 

Training Facilities '2003 75,000.00 

Thermal Imaging Camera 2000 25,000.00 2010 

Rotational replacement schedule for all apparatus and vehicles 

Engines 	20 years 

Staff Vehicles 	10 years Note: ( ) Items to be purchased 

Specially Vehicles 15 years 	 (") Items which are past due 

283 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 219 of 311



APPENDIX B 

           

   

■ 

       

      

mg policies were  produced by  Skagit  

      

            

 

pendix with minimal  editorial changes 

    

the interpretation which most clearly achieves 

: . 	: . ; 	• 	• 	' 	: 	; • 	' 

vii Skagit County shall pursue methods of col 
g statistics, maps and 

other information necessary for government. 

the foundation for the Skagit County Conn 
prehensive Plan. 

with these policies. Amendments to the other 
components of the comprehensive plan shall 

and zoning regulations, shall be consistent 
with and implement these policies. Amend 

enting regulations shall 
conform to these policies. 

iv As required by RC\V 36.70A.120, all plan 
ning, land use pennitting actions and capital 

forinity with the adopted comprehensive 

134-afh 

adopts by reference the following-functional 
plans: Shoreline, Drainage, Floodplain, 
Schools, Special Districts, Parks and Recrea 
tion, Transportation, Watershed, the Coordi 

em Plan and any other furie- 

and communities. 

ix A definition section will be incorporated into 
the final Comprehensive Plan document. 

state statutes and local government imple 

he-clarified through the element development 

284 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 220 of 311



lalte-msidential-ptiptrlation-bas-been-plae-ed-in 
aesenunodmecl-in 
of the designated commzrcial ! industrial 

of th e gare.iew-Ridgef,u13areaplan.  At that  time.  it will either hL 
-conibinatien-theFeo ;54  acrt.. 

- theBaywewRdge-UctiVby 

-alloonted4R  Big Lake (2.100)  
rete's. and LaCon 

   

within any non municipal urban growth areas 
4,URB-AN-GROALT-14 

  

   

  

fiedin4he-Gounty Comprehensive  Plan with a 
Capital Facilities Plan meeting urban stand 
ards. P-epulation and commercial/industrial 
land allocations for each  UGA shad be  con 
sistent  with those allocations shown  in the fol-
lowing table:  

OR CAN BE PROVIDED IN AN EFFICIENT 
MANNER. 

  

   

1.1 Urban growth  shall be allowed only within  
cities and towns, their designated  UGAs  and 

URBAN-GROWTH-AREAS 
 RESIDENTIAL  

a' 	• 	I 1 	 ! — 

COMMERCIAL/ 
INDUSTRIAL  LAND 

ALLOCATIONS-ENEW) 
Anacortes 48,300 548- 
Bayview Ridge}  3,120 740 
Burlington 7,065  212 
Concrete 1,561 28  
Hamilton 3-14 60 
La Conner 934 2 
Lyman 370 0 
Mount Vernon 41,725 869 
Woolley -I-24-30  213 
SvAnemisti 2,720 G 
Reserve;  909 0 
• 	e 	• 	t 	' 	• 	' 	e 	• 	 • - 	- 	 - 	 - 

Other Unincorporated County 48,355 58e  
TOTAL COUNTY 3-c3a6 137,700 

Burlingtemen-April  1, 1999. Police and Fire services shall.,-at-a  minimum. meet the requirements of CPP 1.7. 

ban growth areas  in 2002 as a part (lithe Comprehensive  Plan updates r=equired in RCW 36.70A.1311 

285 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 221 of 311



286 

■ - 2. 	 . 	. 

- 	 . - 

and-nen-munie-ipal urban growth areas desig  

projection. 

areas shall provide for urban 
idensities-ef-nd-xed-u-ses and shall direct devel- 

ly delivered by cities, and includes storm and 

1.4 Urban growth- areas shall include greenbelt, 
open space, and-encourage the preservation of 
wildlife habitat areas. 

greenbelt and open space areas, on existing 
vaeant-l-and and in fill properties before ex 

d urban growth areas are 
prohibited. 

1.7 Development within established urban growth 
boundaries shall, as a minimum, conform to 

within the respective municipality as of April, 

on April 1, 1999. UGAs with populations of 

location (new) over 100 acres shall have, as a 

Law-Enforeement4 

is the higher number. 

Fire:  

--Urban fire level of service standard for-g-r-ben 
Growth Areas are as follows: 

1. For Cities and their adjacent Urban Growth 

per minute fire flow in an offensive (inter-i-eF) 

hters, for 

Within 10 minutes of being dispatched, the 

team, a s rch 8„ 
rescue team, a team for a backup line, and 

firefighters on scene. The Fire Department 
of providing Heavy Res 

Motor Vehicle Accidents. 

Within 20 minutes of being dispatched, the 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 222 of 311



fa-hied-defensive attack mode for structural fire 

    

-l et e anent, and when such services are financially 

 

; z 

  

   

     

squer-e-feet, the Fire Department shall be capa 

urban development. 

ity. 

incidents. 

Mutual aid requested under the Mutual Aid 
Contract may be used to provide relief to the 
initial operating crews, but shall not be used to 
pr-e*iele-ihitial-attack capability, support funs 

. : 

not preclude automatic aid agreements under 
• ; 	. 

pabilitics or functions from other agencies. 

Times are considered to be "Response Time," 
which shall be m surcd by the sum of turneut 
time (the time from dispatch until the first ar 

- - 
travel time. Dispatch time shall be allocated a 
maximum of 1 additional minute which is 
measured from the time the 9 1 call is re 
eeived-until-the-fire department is dispatched: 
All operations shall be conducted in compli 

ing training requirements for firefighters, and 
maintenance requirements for equipment and 

the Uniform Fire Code at least annually. Water 
systems shall be installed in accordance with 

Supply Plan, with a fire flow meeting the re 
quireinents of the Uniform Fire Code. 

1.8 A-14 grew-I-I-I-outside the urban growth boundary 
shall be rural in nature as wed in the Rural 
Element, not requiring urban governmental 

shown to be necessary to the satisfaction of 

287 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 223 of 311



288 

agency agreements. 

able parcels are available within an urban 
growth area; or 

inodate public transit. Strip commercial dcw-l-
opment shall be prohibited. 

3. Buffers are provided between the major indus 
• Z - • - C 	" 

• Z: - and provided 

• S • 	• " 	" 

vision f urban -services to such development 

13i-4W-utility services are available. 

The process to consider siting of specific ma 

mg Policies. Major industri 
quired. 

manufacturing, industrial, 
or commercial business 

access through suitable county roads, have 

verse impacts to surrounding areas. 

2.5 Commercial areas should be aggregated in 2. Transit oriented site planning and traffic de 
. - 	 . 

as; 

cnt on local agriculture;  forestry, mining, 

contained in RCW 	 should be re 

4. Environmental protection including—air—and 

for; 

2. REDUCE SPRAWL 

CONVERSION OF UNDEVELOPED LAND 

INTO SPRAWLING, LOW DENSITY 

DEVELOPMENT. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 224 of 311



jacent non urban areas; 

critical areas; and 

hensive  Plan for the purposes  of RCW 

time.  

289 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 225 of 311



3. TRANSPORTATION 

ENCOURACE EFFICIENT MULTIMODAL 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS THAT ARE 
; e e ' • t 

..,istent with 
the goals, policies and land use map of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

private enterprises. 

3.7 The Senior Citizen and Handicapped transpor 

themselves. 

3.8 Level of service (LOS) st-andards and safety 

and future traffic volumes. 

3.2 Primary arterial access points shall be de 

mining traffic flow disruptions. 

e 

• - 	"'- 	 - - . 

mental impacts and costs. 

enditure decisions and bal 

flow—of-people, goods and services so as to 

tion and improvement of existing and future 

ments. 

modes, reducing vehicular traffic, maintaining 
" • • : 	• 	• 	. • : 

minimize noise levels. 

• 

290 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 226 of 311



densities. 

incentives for innovative and environmentally 

special needs populations. 

(I.  HOUSING 

ENCOURAGE  THE AVAILABILITY OE 
AFFORDABLE HO-USING TO ALL 

EC-ONOMIC-SEGMENTS  OF THE 

9 I -  • 	. 

AND-HOUSTiNG-TYPES, AND  ENCOURAGE 

STOCK.  

vative land use management techniques, in 

ited to, density bonuses, 
cluster housing, planned unit developments 
and the transfer of development rights. 

een-s-ietent—Nvith comprehensive plan policies, 
should be encouraged. 

novativc, energy efficient and less expensive 

,istent with protecting natural 
resource lands, aquatic resources, and critical 
areas. 

/1.7 Manufactured home parks shall be allowed 
an growth boundary 

291 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 227 of 311



5. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
ENCOURAGE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
THROUGHOUT THE STATE THAT IS 

• 9.• 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANS, PROMOTE 
ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR ALL 
CITIZENS OF THIS STATE, ESPECIALLY 

9' 	r 	A 	I.• 	• 9• 

DISADVANTAGED PERSONS, AND 
ENCOURAGE GROWTH IN AREAS 
EXPERIENCIN-C INSUFFICIENT  
ECONOMIC GROWTH, ALL WITHIN THE 
CAPACITIES OF THE STATE'S NA-TURAL 
RESOURCES, P-UBLIC SERVICES, AND 
PUBLIC FACILITIES. 

lands. 

resource lands shall be commercial forestry: 

lands. 

5.1 The development of environmentally sensitive 
industries shall be encouraged. 

      

I 

     

   

• " 	- ' 

 

     

      

areas should remain in large parcels and own 

5.2 Home occupations that- do net significantly 
change or impact neighborhood character shall 
be-perinitted-.- 

5.3 Economic diversity should be encouraged in 

and services can be provided. 

5.4 Commercial and industrial activities directly 
related to local natural resource produetien 
may be allowed in designated natural resource 
areas provided they can demonstrate their le 

uaculturc, forest and mineral resources for 
productive use by designating natural resource 

principal and preferred land uses will be long 
term commercial resource management: 

be encouraged. 

dependent businesses. 

5.5 A diversified economic base shall be el-teat:if 

economy to economic fluctuations. 

5.6 Commercial, industrial and residential acreage 

out afl-verse4y affectingnatural resource lands, 

renewable resources and encourage the maxi - 

and/or related. 

292 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 228 of 311



3.15 The Comprehensive P-lan  shall support and 

293 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 229 of 311



6. PROPERTY RICHTS 

PRIVATE PROPERTY SHALL NOT BE 

COMPENSATION HAVINC BEEN MADE. 
THE PROPERTY RICHTS OF 

PROM-ARB-I-T-R.414-Y—AND 
e • 

6.1 Preposed Fegudatery or a-dministrative ac-t-ieffs 
shall not result in an unconstitutional taking of 
private property. 

6.2 The rights of property owners operating under 

purpose is served by more restrictive regula 
tion. 

6.3 Surface water runoff and drainage facilities 
shall be designed and utilized in a manner 
which protects against the destruction of pri 

quality. 

294 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 230 of 311



7. PERMITS 

APPLICATIONS FOR BOTH STATE AND 

BE PROCESS-ED IN A  TIMELY AND FA-IR 
MANNER-TO-ENSURE 

PREDICTABILITY.  

facilitate multi agency permits shall be pur 
sued-to better serve the public. 

1-y.--reviewed and decisions mad 
• 

mitted. 

and applicants. 

$.. 

lished ordinances, proceduFes and criteria so 

fees-or-duplicative fees for the same impact. 

7.6 Special purpose districts permitted by statute 
to request impact fees shall to the extent possi 

of new development. 

295 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 231 of 311



S. NATURAL RESOURCE INDUSTRIES 

MAINTAIN AND ENHANCE NATURAL 

RESOURCE BASED INDUSTRIES, 

INCLUDING PRODUCTIVE TIMBER, 

ACR-ICULTURAL, AND FISHERIES 

INDUSTRIES. ENCOURAGE THE  

CONSERVATION OF PRODUCTIVE FOREST 

LANDS AND PRODUCTIVE 

AGRICULTURAL LANDS, AND 

DISCOURAGE INCOMPATIBLE USES_ 

8 	Identified critical areas, shorelands, aquatic 
resource areas and-nahiral-resource lands shall 
be protected by restricting conversion. En 
croachment by incompatible uses shall be pre 
vented by maintenance of adequate buffering 
between conflicting activities.  

8.2 Land uses adjacent to agricultural, forest, or 
mineral resource lands and designated aquatic 
resource areas sbaIl-net interfere with-the-eon 
tinued use of these designated lands for the 
production of food, agricultural and aquatic 
based products, or timber, or for the extraction 
of minerals. 

8.3 Forest and agricultural lands located within 
urban growth areas shall not be designated as 
forest Of agricultural land of long term com 
mercial significance unless a program author 
i-zing transfer or purchase of development 
rights is established. 

81 Mining sites er portions of mining sites shall 
be reclanded when they are abandoned, de 
pleted, or w-lion-eporations are discontinued for 

ieng-peFie-4s, 

8.5 Long term commercially significant natural 
resource lands and designated aquatic resource 
areas shall be protected and censei-ved. Skagit 
County shell adopt policies and regulations 
that encourage and facilitate the retention and 

enhancement of natural resource areas in per 
pctuity. 

development permits are issued for develop 
merit activities on or adjacent to natural rc 
source lands and aquatic resource areas, notice 

• 	41 ' 	'4 	" 

provals that certain activities may occur that 
are not compatible with residences. 

8.7 Fishery reseure-es, inelading-tbe county's-river 
systems inclusive of their tributaries, as well as 

rine waters, shall be protected and enhanced 
fof .ee-litimied productivity.  

of the natural resources of the County, includ 
ing- but net limited to a*icult-u-re forestry, and 
aquatic resources. 

8.9 Skagit County  shall conserve agricultural, 
aquatic based, forest and mineral resources for 
productive use by designating natural resource 
. 	. 	C 	. 	. 

principal and preferred land uses will be long 
term commercial resource management. 

296 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 232 of 311



297 

.": 

s portions of the Sauk, Suiattle, 
„) is a resource that 

tial conflicts with the values (fisheries, wild  

9.S Incompatible adjacent uses including industrial 

fish and wildlife habitat, trails, and connection 
of critical areas. 

• • 
cd which is integrated with existing and 
planned land use patterns. 

and incentives such as but not limited-to;-
chase ofof development rights, transfer of devel 

. t 

control and resource preservation. 

9.1 Expansion and enhancement of parks, recrea 
tion and scenic areas and viewing points shall 
be identified, planned for and improved in 

ens. 

and design new construction to minimize dis- 
ruption of visual amenities and solar resources 

• : 	" 

parks, lakes, waterways and beaches. 

this Comprehensive Plan document. 

be designed to provide a wide range of oppor 

using these facilities. 

9.11 School districts, public agencies and private 
elop joint 

Lion for our youth, but also provide for public 

-•• 

County. 

• C: 

tionship to population characteristics, types of 

ards of access including travel time. 

. 1 9. OPEN SPACE AND RECREATION 

ENCOURAGE THE RETENTION OF OPEN 

CONSERVE FISH AND WILDLIFE HABITAT, 
INCREASE ACCESS TO NATURAL  

- • 	- • 

DEVELOP PARKS. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 233 of 311



10. ENVIRONMENT 
• . 

  

• e Lill . 

  

     

ENHANCE THE STATE'S HICH QUALITY 

QUALITY, AND THE AVAILAB-ILITY OF 
WAT-gR, 

10.1 Natural resource lands, including aquatic 
resource- areas and critical areas shall be 
classified and designated, and regulations 
adopted to-assure their long term conserva 
tion. Land uses and developments which 

prohibited except when impacts from such 
uses and developments can be mitigated. 

10.2 Land use decisions shall take into account 
the immediate and long range cumulative 
effects of proposed uses on the environ 
ment, both on and off site. 

10.3 The County shall reduce the loss of critical 
aquatic and terrestrial habitat by ritinimiz 
ing habitat fragmentation. 

10A Wetlands, woodlands, watersheds and aqui  
fors are essential components of the hydro 
logic system and shall be managed to pro 
tect surface and groundwater quality. 

10.5 Skagit County shall recognize the river sys 
tems within the-C'ennty as pivotal freshwa 
ter resources and shall manage develop 

manner consistent with planning practices 
that enhance the integrity of the aquatic re 
source, fish and wildlife habitat, and rec 
reotional and aesthetic qualities. 

opment can occur with minimal environ 
mental impact. 

10.7 Development shall be directed away from 

means of diking, drainage and filling shall 
be prohibited, except when carried-out by a 

Plan for flood plain management or to ro-
sp-end to a natural- disaster threatening life 
and property. 

10.9 Septic systems, disposal of dredge spoils 
and land excavation, filling and clearing 
activities shall not have an adverse signifi- 

respect to public health, fisheries, aquifers, 
water quality, wetlands, wildlife habitat, 
natural marine ecology and aquatic based 

10.10 Usual and accustomed activities on natural 

shall be protect-ed from interference when 
they are conducted in accordance with best 
management practices and environmental 
law'. 

10.11 When evaluating and conditioning corn 
mercial, industrial or residential develop-
ment, Skagit County shall consider threat 
ened or endangered wildlife. 

10.12 -Skagit County shall enter into inter agency 
agreements with appropriate state-and local 
agencies and Native American Tribes for 
compliance with watershed protection, in 
eluding but not limited to, the cumulative 
effects of construction, logging and non 
point pollution in water-sheds. 

10.13 Skagit County and Cities and Towns, in 
cooperation- with appropriate local, state 
and Federal agencies, shall develop- and 

298 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 234 of 311



grams, consistent with and supportive of 
the Corps Feasibility Study. 

10.11 The Skagit River Floodway and the Skagit 
River Floodplain shall be regulated to pro 
tect human life, property and the public 
health and safety of the citizens of Skagit 
County; minimize the expenditure of public 
money; and maintain flood insurance cligi  
bility while avoiding regulations which arc 
unnecessary restrictive or difficult to ad  
minister. 

10.15 Skagit County and Cities and Towns shall 
work together to provide ongoing public 

and consistent program, and shall adopt a 
flood hazard reduction plan, that works to 
gether with the natural and beneficial func 
tions of floodplains. 

299 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 235 of 311



 

environmental, land usc, and development 
permits. II.  CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

ENCOURAGE THE INVOLVEMENT OF  

CITIZENS IN THE PLANNINC PROCESS 

AND ENSURE COORDINATION BETWEEN 
COMMUNITIES AND JURISDICTIONS  TO 

RECONCILE CONFLICTS. 

11.6 Skagit County shall utilize broad based Cit 

and functional plans. 

Skagit County shall maintain procedures to 
provide for the broad dissemination of pro 
posals and alternatives for public inspec 
tion; opportunities for written comments; 
public hearings after effective notice; open 
discu-ssions; communication programs and 

. . 

response-to public comments; and the noti 
flea-lien of the public for the adoption, im 
plernentation and evaluation of the Corn 
prehensive Plan. 

11.2 Skagit County shall continue to encourage 

Plan by providing for public participation 
opportunities and public education pro 
grams designed to promote a widespr ad 
understanding of the Plan's purpose and in 
tent. 

cants shall bear the costs for public notifi 
cation, by mail, and by posting of signs. 
Affected neighbors and surrounding shore 
line owners shall be notified as prescribed 
by ordinance. 

ongoing opportunities for public review 
and comment throughout the Conifirehen 
sive Plan development process. 

ticipation throughout the planning process 
as mandated by Nate statute and codes for 

300 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 236 of 311



12.-PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES  

ENSURE THAT THOSE PUBLIC FACILITIES 

AND SERVICES NECESSARY TO SUPPORT 

DEVELOPMENT SHALL BE ADEQUATE TO 

SERVE THE DEVELOPMENT AT THE  TIME  
_a •1-1 	• 

  

- 	f. • 

  

OCCUPANCY AND USE WITHOUT 

DECREASINC CURRENT SERVICE LEVELS 
• . 

 

a 	_ 

  

MINIMUM STANDARDS. 

12.1 Public facilities and services shall be irate 
grated and consistent with locally adopted 
comprehensive plans and implementing 
regulations. 

12.2 All communities within a region shall fairly 
share the burden of regional public facili-
ties. (The GMA defines-regional public fa 
cilitics as streets, roads, highways, side 
walks, street and -road lighting systems, 
traffic signals, domestic water systems, 
storm and sanitary sewer systems, parks, 
recreational facilities and schools.) 

12.3 A process shall be developed for identify  
ing and siting essential public facilities. 
The Corn: - - e Plan in-ay net precltide 
the siting of essential public facilities. (The 
GMA defines essential public facilities as 
those facilities that are typically difficult to 
site, such as airports, state education facili  
ties and state or regional transportation fa 
cilitics, state and local corrections facilities, 
solid waste handling facilities, and in 
patient facilities including substanc-e abuse 
facilities, mental health facilities and group 
homes.) 

es, such as: utility corridors, transportation 
corridors, landfill, sewage treatment facili  
tics, recreation, schools, and other public 

uses. The County shall work with the state, 
cities, communities and utility providers to 
identify areas of shared need for public fa 
cilitics. 

12.5 Lands designated for urban growth by this 
Comprehensive Plan shall have an urban 

concurrent with development. 

and-where all public facilities arc adequate, 
and-alily-when-and where such develop 
ment can be adequately served by regional 
public services without reducing levels of 
se vice elsewhere. 

12.7 Public facilities and services needed to 
support development shall be available 
concurrent with the impacts of develop 
ment. 

12.8 The financing for system improvements to 
public facilities to serve new development 
must provide for a balance between impact 

".; 	 ": 	 • • C 

cannot rely solely on impact fees. 

12.9 New development shall pay for or provide 
for its share of new infrastructure through 
impact fees or as conditions of develop 
ment through the environmental review 
process. 

12.10 Public water supply fer new development 
shall conform to or exceed the Coordinated 
Water System Plan for public water sys 
teens. 

isting and proposed schools and other pub 
lie facilities shall be compatible with such 

301 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 237 of 311



vice; and (e) that ALL cities and special 
pnrposedistricts have in place adopted "in 
terlocal agreements" that discuss arrange 

C " 

that may be affected by transfonnance of 
governance or annexation of the service ar 
ea consistent with the requirements of ap 
plicable RCWs. 

12.12 Library service within the county should be 
developed and coordinated to assure the de 
livery of comprehensive services through 
out the County, with the county, cities and 
towns fairly sharing the burden. 

12.13 A county wide recycling program shall be 
developed. 

A  
D ; 

to control both stormwater quantity and 
quality impacts. 

12.15 Skagit County shall provide results of the 
required--six-year capital facilities plan, in 
eluding a financing plan, and these shall be 
e-onsistent with land use designations. 

12.16 Citizens -shall have the opportunity to par 

tal facilities financing. 

12.17 The Washington State Boundary Review 
Board for Skagit County should be dis 
banded pursuant to RCW 36.93.230 pro 
vided that the following tasks arc accom 
plished: (a) that ALL cities and the County 
have adopted comprehensive plans and dc 
velopment regulations consistent with the 
• *. 

Policies and RCW 36.70A, including ap 
propriate urban levels of service for all 
public facilities and services; (b) that ALL 
cities and the County have adopted a con 
currency ordinance that requires the adopt 
cid urban levels of service addressed in (a) 
above be accomplished in time frames that 
are consistent with RCW 36.70A.; (c) that 
special purpose districts that serve UGAs 

aids appropriate for their service areas; (d) 
that ALL cities and the County have an 
adopted capital facility plan for urban ley 
els of service that indicates sources of rev 
enae and a timeline far inecting such ser 

302 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 238 of 311



IDENTIFY AND ENCOURAGE THE 
PRESERVATION OF LANDS, SITES, AND 
STRUCTURES, THAT HAVE HISTORICAL 
OR ARCHAEOLOGICAL SIGNIFICANCE. 

111 Skagit County  shall cooperate  with local  
. C • 	. 

ordination  of plans and policies  by the 
Ertate—Office  of  Archeology and Historic 
Preservation. 

303 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 239 of 311



Six  Year  Capital Facilities  Replacment  Plan  
2005 UP DATE  TO  CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN 

U
)
 

U a) 

C
 

co 

is 
CI3 

Cr_ 
La 
=

 
C

 
:5 	

a) 
o

 
a) 	

p
 P

 
D

 	
u) u) 

a)
co co 

_c 

	

...,2 ,_u) ,_ (/) 	
.0

 
u) 	

a
l a)  a

)  

	

a) a) 	
o

 , 
G
 	

>
, >

. >
. 	

o- 
o
 	

a) -c 
a) 	

o
 L

o
 

cv 
	

,_ 
	

0
 

a) 	
u) 

o
 

o
 	

.2
 

 
co 	

T) 	
(0 

CO 
-a

 	
u) :E

 	
E

 E
 

2
 	

C
D

 ci) 	
C

O
 0

 

	

1
7
) >

 	
CO

 
-
 

Ta
--"'  

C
 	

ID
 C

D
 

.E
 	
,
 	

.
 
* •11.- 

..."  
O

 
a)  7

 T
o
 	

.........---, 
=

  
a; 

(a 	
-a

 	
w 

75 	
c 

tu
 a

 	
o

 
a
 	

in
 to

 u.) 	
Z

 

A
PPE

N
D

IX
 €13 

F
IR

E
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 

a) 

..-. 
C

 L
() 

a
) ,- 

E
 2

 
0.) —

 

as 	
'
 

-a
 

.
 

0
.4.

0
0

0
 Lo 
N

 
,-- co .4 o

 
,-

 
	
N

 
 

N
N

N
 

IS 
N

 
u
p
 co

 o
 

0
0
0
 

N
N

N
 

:
 

-a- 
0
 

N
 

0
 

0
 

N
 

C
D

 

E
) 

N
 

0
 

6
 

0
 

0
 

Lr5 
CO

 

O
0

0
0

 	
0
0
0
0
0
 
0
 
0
0
0
0
0
 

	

0
0

0
0

 	
0
0
0
0
0
 
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
 

to 6
 6

 6
 0

 	
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 

0
 o

 0
 o

 0
 	

0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
o
 
0
 
0
 0

 0
 0

 o
 

O
 

C
D

 0
 0

 0
 <

 <
c
p
0
0
0
c
)
 
o
 
o
c
0
0
0
 

_
. u

5
 6

 6
 6

 z
 z

 c
e
 ir

i r
-- 6

 c
e
; o

 
0

 1
0

 V
) V

) 0
 

ii) 
C

O
 if) L

C
 L

O
 	

C
n cr) N

 tr>
 a) 	

0
 N

 4
0
 C

0
 I,- N

 C
D

 
a j 	

c
., c

l c
9
 	

h
- 0

) 	
0
 
	

e-- 

	

.-
 	

(-0-  
'-

 

CO  • o
f 	

o
i 

	0
1

 
 

0
 1

.0
 	

LO
 	

,1-  

v
) N

 c
n

c
r)o

N
c
o

c
o

m
c
N

/c
) 	

0
, D

 
C:
' 
0

 
0

  0
 
0

 

_
c 	

.4-
 
.

4-
  C

S
4
 	

1
-
  E

N
 "4

-  C
..)

 ,C,N1  
f? 
CO 
	

ci) 
C

7
)
0
§
0
,
0
0
)
,
-
 

0
 

,
-
 
0

 	
0

)
C

0
0

0
0

0
 

.- iN
i ..,N. I N

 ,C
,N

 N
 N

 

m
 	

a) 
---- 

	

,-
 	

L
o .4 	

c
 o

 
 

	

u-) 	
...--. 	

u-) 0) 	
o

 
cr- 

<
 	

,0:..! E
 

	

E
 

r) 	
0
3
 C

° 	
,-- ..., 0

 	
47-• 

	

0
 
,
 
u
 	

C
O

 0
 	

CO 	
..-, D

 
w

. 

 

_
 U

 

	

0
 —

C1) 	
177 T

ip'
L

°
 =

 ... 	
C17

0
 	

0
 	

<
 

t
 
0
)
 

e5 C5 	
c
 

to
 ,_

  

	

0
  1

- ci, 	
u
) P

 	
cf)  F- .,-_-, co 

T
o' E

 

	

N
 .1

- C
D

 h
- 	

(7) 
"
 E

 	
'c 

2 	
8
 '7

) 6
 u

 
-a

 >
 _c"  

	—
 ,,„-- co 	

..E
 _a), a 

-t R
 4

-  cu
 E

 w
 

	

co -1::3 
Lo 

u-) in 
in

 i h."'  
	

0
 -o

 '5
 	̀

a
 - 	

CO
 

i-L
  -
 c

"
 

	

(_.) c L
O

 L
o u-) u-) - in

 c
h
 >

 
co cr 	

,2
 D

 0
4
 . 

LT  -
x

 
_x 

	

co 	
,_

 a) u
-) ,- 	

_
J L

B
 	

l-2
 C

 C
 1:6

 C
 -

 °
 

2 2 2  
n

  
-a

 0
  ..›.-.. Lo 	

,
 
-
 	

ro
 .- 

	co
•c .._

 E
L  

o
 

0
  ...- - E

 c
o

 
E

 E
n

 z
c
a
 c

 u
) . 	

--.0  -- 4
1

.3 	
ra -a

l to 	
-@

 cu 
n_ 

	

o
c
c
c
e

)
=

-0
_

E
0

 	
c
r,.=

-.-_
c
.- 

	

0
 L

ij in
 Lt! I-

 
O

f D
 Z

 0
 a

 i- 	
I •-_

, C
f) <

 F
- F

- <
 

a) 
a) 	

'a5 .._ ,.. 	
.
 

C
 

›, 	
a
 0

 
0.) 
	

o
 	

CO 
F.-

 
sa- E

 o
. c. ,... 

 
----.N

c
n

E
E

2
1-

  E
-0

 5
 

ci)
0
 
a
. m

 
M

=
N

-
4

-
 

E
 ro

 
f, 	

--. 
 >

. L
I- EL :8 	

ii-
 <

 1
- 

to
 

a) 	
co 

2
 1 3- 

à 
 

o
 

c
a
 0

6
 c

'6
 2

 -c
 o

 o
 o

 

	

U
. 0

 1
 I L

i
-
 
0

 U
-
 Li-

 u_ 	
8
 

2
 

o
 

(O
rd

. 1
5

5
7

-0
6

 §
 1

 (E
x

h
. A

)) 

3
0
4
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 240 of 311



APPENDIX DC 

POLICE STAFF ESTIMATES AND CAPITAL OUTLAY COSTS 

This table shows the current, authorized staffing on the left and the ideal projected need for staffing and vehicles 
on the right. Annotations in bold italics are needed but not acquired or hired. The needs are mainly determined 
by current staffing and what we need right now to do the things would like to accomplish.  

'-.-il-EIEM11.11111111111111111111 
Vehicle 

, 	4warifIL......_ 
Chief 

....46.44r—s-.A.A.vaiiiikok 
Vehicle Chief 

Administrative Sergeant Vehicle Lieutenant Vehicle 
Detective Vehicle Administrative Sergeant Vehicle 
Detective Pending Vehicle Detective Vehicle 
Patrol Sergeant #1 Vehicle Detective Pending Vehicle 
Officer Vehicle Patrol Sergeant #1 Vehicle 
Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 
Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 
Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 
Officer Pending Vehicle Officer Vehicle 
Patrol Sergeant #2 Vehicle Patrol Sergeant #2 Vehicle 
Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 
Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 
Officer Vehicle Officer Vehicle 
Officer Pending Vehicle Officer Vehicle 
Officer Pending Vehicle Patrol Sergeant #3 Vehicle 
Records Supervisor Officer Vehicle 

Records Clerk Officer Vehicle 

Part-Time Reception Officer Vehicle 

Part-Time Transcription Officer Vehicle 

Code Enforcement Vehicle School Resource Officer Vehicle 
Records Supervisor 
Records Clerk 
Full-Thne Records Clerk 
Full-Time Reception Rec- 
ords Transcriptionist 
Code Enforcement Vehicle 

305 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 241 of 311



Wages and Benefits (Average) Vehicle plus outfitting 
Commissioned Officer $100,000 $40,000 
Commissioned Officer $100 000 $40 000 
Commissioned Officer $100,000 $40,000 
Commissioned Officer $100,000 $40,000 

errant 	s.tiOn restructure-no.' $40,000 (Lt. Vehicle) 
a_pcyv 	 ki I 
School Resource Officer $25,000 our share ($75,000 SW $10,000 our share ($30,000 SW 

School District) School District) 
Records Clerk-Part time to full $70,000 increase to Full-Time 
time with wages and benefit increase 
Reception-Records-Transcription $70,000 increase to Full-Time 
Part time to full time with wages and benefit increase 

$565,000 estimated increase $210,000 

Night vision units are about $4,000 each. Rotating in three per year would be $12,000 per year.  

Body worn cameras are about $900 each. Rotating in three per year would be $2,700 per year.  

Tablets compatible with our system and associated software are about $1,200 each. These would probably 
be rotated in at 6 per year, for 57,200 per year.  

306 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 242 of 311



STAFFING ESTIMATES: 

CURRENT 2010 2025 
CHIEF 1 1 1 
LT. 1 1 1 
DET. SGT. 1 1 2 
DET. SGT. 1 1 2 
PAT. SGT. 1 2 3 
PAT. OFF. 9 16 21 
TOTAL SWORN 14 22 30 

CODE 1 1 1 
RECORDS 2 3 4 
ADM1N 1 1 1 
TOTAL NON-SWORN 4 5 6 

PER SHIFT PATROL OFFICERS: 
YEAR POP. PER SHIFT 

2001 9,135 3 
2015 12,030 4 

2025 15.000 5 

FACILITY EXPANSION COSTS: 

ASSUMPTIONS 3,400 SQUARE FOOT AT $160,000 EST. COSTS 

EQUATES TO $48.50/SQUARE FOOT 

EQUATES TO $188/SQUARE FOOT/EMPLOYEE 

9 ADDITIONAL EMPLOYEES 2010 AND 9 ADDITIONAL 2025 

NEW 	 18 ADDITIONAL @ 100 SQUARE FOOT @ $50/50. FOOT 
EQUATES TO $90,000 

REMODEL 	 $ 	25,000 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 243 of 311



308 

C
C

 
C

O
 

C
O

 

ti 
C
O
 

o
n
m
 
c
o
 
m
m
 

N
 N

 	
-
 

c
o

 c
o

 c
o

 c
o

 c
o

 
ca co 

t
h
o
m
,
 

M
M
O
O
 	

r
i
 	

e
i
 
4
 
4
 
u
5
 

New  Officer  Vehlcle/EquIpment:  

CAPITAL OUTLAY COSTING:  

Replacement  Vehicles,  2 every  year:  

.2
( 

N
 

m
S

 

c
o

 

F- 
0
 a M

 

.0
 

0
 

F- 
4

0
. 

0
 

F- 

O
 
0

4
 N

 m
 

' 

0
 
.
 Or

.0
 

 

1
A

 	
' 	

C
I

csi 	
cc) 

c
o

 
C

O
 

0
5
 

6
,
 	

6
,
 
6
5
 
6
,
 
6
4
 
6
,
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
.
 

6
6

. 

n
:
 

O
 
0
 

g
 
"
 	"
 

.
.
.
.
N

0
1
,
,

0
0
0
o
c
o
m

,
  

N
 0 .0

 	
N

 
h

i 
 

a
 g

 
to 

N
 h

i
 N

 	
a a 

6.4
 
V
;
 
N
 
N
 
C
i
 
N
 
N
 
N
 
N
 1-4 

0
1
 

in
 

4
9
 
6
9
 
0
 
6
,
 
I
n
 
0
9
 
6
9
 
V
S
 
0
9
 
G
9
 
b
e
 
6
1
 	

4
9
 

c
0

 	
,
 	

C
V

 	
•
 
0
 	

C
O

 
	

. 	
,
 	

•
 c

i7
 

.
 	

.
 	

im
 	

h
i 	

,
 	

co
i 	

e
l 	

0
2

 
o
o
 

U
)
 

m
 

,
 

.
 	

,
 	

.
 	

,
 	

.
 	

,
 	

0
 	

.
 

o
n.  

0
2
 

-2-
  

C
V

 	
C

V
 	

IN
 	

IN
 	

C
V

 	
C

V
 	

IN
 	

C
V

 
S-r 

6
9
 6

9
 6

9
 6

9
 w

 w
 

A
P
V
 

.
 
6
6
 
6
1
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
4
 
1
1
1
 
6
6
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
6
 
6
9
 
6
9
 4
9
 

1
.9

 

•q
• .n.  c

v
 c

0
 
o
 
o
 
m

 
m

 
,
 
,
 
1

.-
 
,
 
.
 

M
 
.
 
C

9
 
0

1
 
0

 
0

 
.1

-
,

-,
M

0
3

..0
.0

 
0

1
 0

 0
1

 m
 0

 0
 0

1
 0

1
 , .0

 a
u

 o
n

 in
 m

 0
 

. c
0
 C

., 
C

V
  O

n
 M

 
.0

 
. 0

 
.
 
C

l
 
,
 
,
 
0

 
0

 
M

 
w

 
a
 
0
1
 
,
 
,
 
c

.0
 
,
 

N
 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
.21 	

Irc
 
U

i 
Ili V

i 1
0
 1

.1
3
 to u5 F: F: .5

 .5
 
.5

 
n

. 
r
u
 c

v
 r

ig
 N

 N
 N

 r
y
 0

1
 c

v
 c

v
 C

V
 C

V
 0

.1
 C

V
 

>
 
0
 
 6
9
 	

6
9
 	

6
,
 

O
 N

I
 

IN
 

M
 N

 .0
1
 
C
O
 

6
9
 
4
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
0
9
 
6
9
 
w
 
0

 	
6

.2
. In

 
6
9
 en .n 

6
6
 

r
0
r
.
•
 
O
r
0
r
0
r
.
r
0
r
1
 
W
 

R
I
 

0
 

cc 

0
 

1
0
1
0
 
6
9
1
0
 
6
9
6
9
 

.
 

.
 
.
 

0
 

C
. 
0
 0
 

 
.
 
M
I
 

N
 
N
 
0
 

,
 
,
 
0
 
C
9
 
G
I
 
G
r
 

1 

,
 

.
.
-
,
 
0
4
 
N
 
0
4
 
N
 
N
 
N
 

G., 

6
9

 v
., v

.. 6
9

1
9

 6
9

 le
, v

, 6
9

 6
9

 
6

9
 

ID
 
W
 

1
0
 
 
d
 
N
 
0
1
 
0
 
1
9
 
m
 
O
S
.
 

4
 
x
i
 	

ui ui uS u5 to to F: Iti co up 
c
v
 

,
 	

iv
  

w
 c9

 
6
9
 
W
 
W
 
l
9
 

6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
1
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
6
9
 
4
9
 

N
 
N

 
N

 C
9
 

0
4
 

C
9

 
N

 N
 

N
 C

9
 
N

 N
 N

 
N

N
N

N
 

101 

M
 
M
 
0
 

1
n
 m

 
O
 
.
 
6
 
.
 
6
r
 

C
C
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 

0
 
.
.
.
.
.
 

0
 
0
 

 
r
 
r
 
r
 

0
 
r
 
.
 

1
11)
 

N
 
N

 
0
 
0
 	
.
 

N
 

 
C
6
1
 
M
N
N
 

N
 
N
 
 
M
 

V
S
 

N
 

N
 	

N
 c

V
 

(O
rd. 1557-06 § 2 (E

xh. B
)) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 244 of 311



APPENDIX ED 

POLICE MITIGATION FEE ANALYSIS 
AND PROPOSAL* 

* Editor's Note: This analysis and proposal was prepared for the city 
by Emergency Services Consulting, Inc. in October, 2005, and has 
been reprinted in this appendix with minimal editorial changes in 
2015. 

Overview 

The city of Sedro-Woolley, Washington estab-
lished a Police Mitigation Fee in 1990. The means 
of calculating and applying the fee has not changed 
since its establishment. City staff have applied the 
fee, following city code, during certain State Envi-
ronmental Policy Act (SEPA) analysis of land use 
activities. Fees have been collected from develop-
ers, and projects and services have been funded uti-
lizing the dedicated funds. 

Sedro-Woolley determined that the Police Miti-
gation Fee required updating to coincide with the 
evaluation of its police department capital facility 
needs. Capital facilities have been studied by ESCi 
as part of the City's city-wide comprehensive plan 
update. ESCi assisted the police department in vali-
dating its capital facility analysis and by developing 
the information needed to calculate a new mitiga-
tion fee. 

A review of the Police Mitigation Fee would 
provide the information needed for the City to plan 
for and collect revenue from specific development 
that will have an impact on police service delivery. 
To develop a fee mechanism that is reasonable in 
20052016, and be sustainable in the future, the City 
needed to develop documentation of development 
activity, as well as determine the City's need. From 
this review, a new basis for fee collection was iden-
tified. In addition, the City's present means of cal-
culating fees also required review. 

From City sources, ESCi gathered all available 
data that City staff and external consultants have 
developed and maintained since the fee collection 
began. Based on this somewhat limited database, 
ESCi is proposing modifications to the present fee, 
as well as creation of improved data gathering tech-
niques. This will enable the City to be in a better 
position to update the fee in the future, and on a 
more regular basis. By so doing, the City will be 
able to avoid what may be considered as large in-
creases in the future. The modified approach calls 
for changing the rates used in calculating the fees. 
ESCi reviewed and considered the basis for deter-
mining commercial fees. In addition, the project 
team reviewed the possibility of switching from a 
commercial square footage basis to the projected 
number of new employees to be generated by new 
development. ESCi also looked at the possibility of 
establishing a fee for industrial development. 

Background - City Legal Authority 

The present Police Mitigation Fee was estab-
lished in 1990 as a voluntary fee, paid to the City by 
developers of new residential and commercial de-
velopments, which would have been required to go 
through a SEPA review. The premise behind the 
need for a voluntary contribution is that when a 
building permit is issued for a new residential or 
commercial project, the new construction does not 
appear on the City tax rolls for two years, while the 
new construction project, and ultimate building and 
occupancy, may require police services during the 
period of non-payment of taxes. Thus, the City has 
taken the position that while taxes are not paid until 
two years after building permit issuance; the de-
mand for police services begins at the time of pro-
ject development. 

The City did not include the Police Mitigation 
Fee in Chapter 15.60 of the Sedro-Woolley Munici-
pal Code, the chapter which spells out the findings 
and authority for impact fees for planned facilities. 
Police facilities are also not identified in Chapter 
82.02 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 

309 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 245 of 311



as public services for which impact fees may be 
charged for new development activity. It is im-
portant to note that the City has not attempted to 
create a police impact fee. The City has not required 
new development to pay a proportionate share of 
the cost of planned police facilities needed to serve 
the growth and development activities of the com-
munity. 

Washington State Law does not authorize cities 
to collect impact fees related to police. The City, 
through adoption of Ord. 1097 in 1990, adopted a 
municipal code provision called "Development Im-
pact Mitigation." This code provision, codified as 
Chapter 15.48, provided alternatives for potential 
developers of land in Sedro-Woolley to mitigate the 
direct impacts caused by their proposed develop-
ment activity. The premise was to allow developers 
the opportunity to mitigate the direct impact on the 
public health, safety, and general welfare of the 
community, 

The code chapter (15.48.030) obligates the offi-
cial, board, or body charged with deciding whether 
to give an approval, to determine all impacts that 
are a direct consequence of a proposed develop-
ment. Section 15.48.020 Al specifically mentions 
"police services" among the pre-development de-
mands upon service that the City is concerned 
about. 

Section 15.48.040 of the Sedro-Woolley Munici-
pal code states that the City may approve a volun-
tary payment agreement with a developer, but the 
agreement cannot be a condition of approval. If a 
voluntary payment is made, restrictions regarding 
the use of the funds, as described in this section, 
apply. Voluntary payments are placed in a reserve 
account and are only expended to fund capital im-
provements used to mitigate identified direct im-
pacts. 

Chapter 2.88 of the Municipal Code, Environ-
mental Policy, references the City's State Environ-
mental Policy Act (SEPA) procedures and policies. 

The City adopted sections of Chapter 197-11 of the 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC). The 
planning director for the City, or other person des-
ignated in writing by the director, is the responsible 
official. The director is guided by categorical ex-
emptions and threshold determinations spelled out 
in the code. These exemptions apply, in the case of 
police facilities, for residential dwelling units of 
four units or less, and for commercial buildings of 
4,000 square feet and 20 parking spaces or lower. 

Methodology Used To Collect the Police Miti- 
gation Fee Since 1990 

The City has collected a Police Mitigation Fee 
following the formula applied to new development 
since the 1990's. 

According to former Sedro-Woolley Planning 
Director Lacy Lahr and Clerk-Treasurer Patsy Nel  
sea, the fee has been applied consistently since the 
1990's. The process used is described in the draft 
comprehensive plan update, Chapter 7 Capital Fa-
cilities. It reads: 

"The primary costs associated with provid-
ing police protection to new projects are 
those costs required to provide protection 
for the two year period from the start of the 
construction until tax revenues from the 
improved project reach the General Fund." 

To calculate the impact of new development on 
police protection, the City determined, in 1990, that 
each call for police service costs an average of 
$118.00. It also determined that each residential 
unit generated an average of .86 calls for service. 
Commercial development generated police service 
calls at an average rate of .002 calls per square foot 
of commercial space. 

Therefore, the cost of providing police service to 
new development during the two-year lag-time be-
tween application filing and tax revenues for the 
improved project reaching the Sedro-Woolley gen-
eral fund, is calculated by multiplying the number 

310 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 246 of 311



of residential units by .86, $118.00, and two years, 
equaling $202.96 for residential development, and 
by multiplying the square footage by .002, $118.00, 
and two years yielding ($0.472 times square foot-
age) for commercial development. The $202.96 is 
stated in the City's present impact fee schedule. 

The residential unit fee calculation can be shown as: 

.86' ($118.00)2  (2)3 = $202.964  

Calls for service per residential unit per year 
2  The average cost of a police call for service 

Years the City provides service to new develop-
ment before tax revenue 
4  Revenue from each unit of residential develop-
ment 

The commercial development obligation to pay 
impact fee is calculated based upon square footage 
as follows: 

X sq.ft.' (.002)2  ($118.00)3  (2)4 = Y5  

The total square footage of the new development 
2  Calls for police service per square foot 

Years the City provides service to new develop-
ment before tax revenue 
4  Revenue from each unit of residential develop-
ment 

Historically the City has not applied the fee to 
industrial property or to public uses such as schools, 
public buildings, etc. 

Funds Raised By Applying the Fee 

The funds received since 1990 have been mod-
est, due to the use of the 1990 estimate of the cost 
of providing police service. While the true cost of 
providing service has steadily increased since 1990, 
the $118.00 estimate has remained the same for fif-
teen years. 

The  City Clerk-Treasurer Patsy Nelson provided 
a worksheet to ESCi which detailed Police Mitiga-
tion Fee receipts and expenditures for the past elev-
en years, from 1994 through 2004. These receipts 
were all placed in the dedicated Police Mitigation 
Fund. The information provided by the Clerk-
Treasurer Nelson follows. 

Fund 310 - Mitigation for Police 

Descrip- 

tion 

1994 

Actual 

1995 

Actual 

1996 

Actual 

1997 

Actual 

1998 

Actual 

1999 

Actual 

2000 

Actual 

2001 

Actual 

2002 

Actual 

2003 

Actual 

2004 

Actual Total 

310 total 

Revenue 9,352 2,448 4,457 3,256 6,944 7,006 6,867 30,076 21,203 18,202 18,085 127,896 

310 

Tota I 

Expendi-

tures 19,465 7,958 2,400 2,000 3,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0  78,823 

Thus, on average, the City generated approxi-
mately $11,500 per year. From 2001 through 2004, 
significantly higher revenue was generated as 
$87,566, or 68.5% of the total revenue, was re- 

ceived during the four year period, an average of 
$21,891.50. 

The trend of receiving a larger contribution of 
mitigation fees peaked in 2001, and then dropped 

311 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 247 of 311



by almost $9,000 in 2002, before leveling off at 
$3,000 less in both 2003 and 2004. Revenue in 
2005 was trending below prior years. Through May 
of 2005, less than $1,000 was collected as a result 
of limited new development, caused by sewer sys-
tem inadequacies, according to Planner Lahr. The 
2005 budget projected $15,000 would be collected 
during the year. By late summer, revenue had in-
creased as building activity was generating more 
fees. 

Expended Police Mitigation Fee 
Generated Funds 

At the beginning of 2005, the City had $65,059 
within the dedicated Police Mitigation Fee Fund. 
Expenditures for prior years are shown on the 
worksheet above (1994 through 2004). In 1994, the 
City expended $19,465, but has not expended over 
$10,000 in any other year. In the years 2001,2002, 
and 2003 actual expenditures was $10,000 per year. 

Monies from the fund were expended for police 
purposes, the majority being applied to pay a por-
tion of the cost of police automobiles purchased 
each year. Information provided by the  City Clerk-
Treasurer Nelson indicated that monies generated 
for the fund were not sufficient in any year to cover 
the full cost of a police vehicle. 

Issues in 2005 

As part of the City's comprehensive plan update, 
the police department was required to update its 
public facility plan element. Police Chief Doug 
Wood worked with ESCi to evaluate the capital 
needs of the department. Chief Wood concluded the 
department needed to acquire additional office 
space to accommodate growth. He displayed a plan 
prepared for the City, showing how a new munici-
pal court courtroom could be built next to the police 
offices. If this is pursued, Chief Wood expects the 
department would be able to utilize some of the of-
fice and meeting space, as it should be available 
when the new courtroom is not in use for municipal  

court. Chief Wood reported that municipal court is 
not in session every day, nor is the courtroom pres-
ently used throughout an entire business day. 

Chief Wood has identified other capital needs 
. 	C 
	

" C Z 

employee works in the fire department office and a 
transcriptionist performs her work in a-...,t-erageelo-s 
et. A long-term need exists ferin 2009 the city ad-
dressed the need for a storage facility to house large 
evidence items, as well as a need for an impound 
area for at least two vehicles  by building a storage 
building across the street from city hall. The de 
partment has some space at city hall that is-carrot-y 
being-rodi-fied to-meet department needs, but the 
department could be better served by building or 
acquiring a facility that is specifically available for 
police department needs. A new building would 
require land ac-quisition, as Chief Wood reports 
there is no room for construction on the present site, 

ble. 

Other capital needs include annual replacement 
or purchase of additional police vehicles and the 
technological equipment needed by police officers, 
in vehicles, to perform their jobs. With the on-going 
rapid change in technology, public safety personnel 
regularly require updated radios, computers, and 
video equipment. It is likely that annual funds will 
be needed to carry out routine change over of 
equipment to keep up with technological advances, 
and while the City outfits new and replacement ve-
hicles due to department personnel and fleet in-
creases. 

City issues and Needs Related to the 
Mitigation Fee Structure 

The city of Sedro-Woolley has operated success-
fully, since 1990, with the Police Mitigation Fee in 
its present form. While the City entered 2005 with a 
carry-over in excess of $65,000 in the dedicated 
account, the City recognized the need to update the 
fee and generate sufficient funds to address the rise 

312 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 248 of 311



in cost of police facilities and capital needs. To 
date, the police department has not established a 
complete cost estimate to address its capital needs. 

Another issue is the application of the Police 
Mitigation Fee to only residential and commercial 
developments, not industrial or other development 
which could generate a need for police services. 

The City has the ability to set a potential revenue 
collection level that will generate funds to either 
fund a small or large percentage of the police de-
partment's needs. Historically, the decision to uti-
lize funds from the dedicated account has been con-
servative to allow for creation of a fund that repre-
sents approximately three to four times the annual 
revenue, or six times the annual expenditure. The 
City has the ability to adjust this practice. 

Formula Issue 

The formula established in 1990 has served the 
City relatively well, but, it has not been adjusted to 
take into account the rising cost of delivering police 
services. In addition, the City has not adjusted the 
rate to account for either potential growth or actual 
development activity. 

When the City initiated the fee analysis in 2005, 
the intent was to simply bring the fee into compli-
ance with 2005 costs and growth trends. However, 
the City's base of available information changed, 
causing the City to give ESCi direction to consider 
how the Police Mitigation Fee basis can be convert-
ed to a new formula. In order to establish and main-
tain a sustainable fee, the City would like to utilize 
a fee based upon verifiable base data that can be 
updated on a regular basis by city staff or consult-
ants. 

Limited Resource Information Has 
Been Available 

In the years prior to 2005, the City calculated the 
mitigation fee for residential units by applying the  

formula to the actual number of units to be devel-
oped. This formula has worked well for the City, 
and the formula is justified for future use with other 
factors updated to consider present costs. The City 
has suggested that it would like to change the meth-
od of calculating fees for commercial development. 

Police Mitigation Fees for commercial develop-
ment have been calculated by multiplying the 
square footage of proposed commercial develop-
ment by the established formula. The formula did 
not differentiate between the variety of uses that 
come under the land use category of commercial -
retail, offices, high traffic generators, restaurants, 
wholesale, etc. The City plans to continue this prac-
tice. However, it has suggested that rather than ap-
ply the 1990 formula basing fees on square footage, 
the City would like to introduce a fee based upon 
the number of employees that will be employed at 
the new commercial development. 

This method may be problematic, however, since 
mitigation fees are collected at the time of applica-
tion processing for the new development, a time 
when the number of employees may not be known 
by the developer, as the end user of the commercial 
structure may not be known. 

Given the difficulty in determining the number of 
employees, and the fact that available information 
generated through Sedro-Woolley's transportation 
model only reports the available acreage in the 
community, with no connection to the potential 
number of new employees, it is ESCi's recommen-
dation that, at this time, the City consider increasing 
the commercial Police Mitigation Fee rate at the 
same level of increase as that proposed for residen-
tial uses. It is also recommended that the City con-
sider applying the adjusted commercial rate to new 
industrial development. 

To date, the police department has not main-
tained records which differentiate between com-
mercial and industrial business calls for service. 
The Chief of Police reports, based on his opinion, 

313 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 249 of 311



that the calls for service over the past year by indus-
trial users are very low. 

Development/Justification for a 
Proposed New Fee 

service each year. In 2005, the Chief of Police esti-
mates that the cost of each service call is $193.00. 
The cost was determined by dividing the police de-
partment's 2004 budget of $1,714,319 by a total 
call volume of 8,864. 

The fee for residential units is based upon a cost 
of service, from the 1990's, of $118.00, and a histo-
ry of each residential unit generating .86 calls for 

Call volume has steadily increased as illustrated 
below. 

Sedro-Woolley Police Calls for Service 

Year Calls for Service Percentage Increase over Prior Year 
2000 7,058 Not known 
2001 7,139 1.147 
2002  8,061 12.915 
2003 8,393 4.118 
2004 8,864 5.611 

2005 est. 9,427 est. 6.351 (based upon 4,520 calls for service 
as of June 24, 2005, or 25.828571 calls per 

day.) 

The table shows that since 2000, call volume has 
steadily increased. The difference between 2000 
and the 2005 projected total is 2,369 calls, a 33.56% 
increase with an average of 6.71 % per year. 

The 2004 data provided by the Chief of Police 
also shows that residential calls for service repre-
sented approximately 67.58% of all calls. Thus, 
commercial and industrial calls for service repre-
sented the remaining 32.42%.  Further analysis of 
the Police Mitigation Fee by the Department in  
2015 showed that the following Police Impact Fee 
calculations are still relevant.  

New Residential Fee Calculation 

Earlier in 2005, the former planning director 
provided information showing that there are 4,550 
residential units in the City, occupied or vacant. As 
stated above, approximately 67.6% of all police 
calls for service in 2004 were generated by residen- 

fat units. Police Chief Wood has calculated that 
each call for service costs $193.00. 

Since there were an estimated 5,992 calls for ser-
vice to residential units (67.6% of 8,864 calls in 
2004), each of the 4,550 residential units averaged 
1.31 calls during the year. 

Assuming City estimates are correct, including 
the concept that once a development is approved it 
does not generate real estate taxes paid to the City 
for two years; the new fee calculation is as follows: 
Emergency Services Consulting inc. 

1.311  ($193.002  (2)3 = $505.764  

Calls for service per residential unit per year 
The cost per call for service 
The years that taxes are not generated from new development 

4 
	

The new fee that should be charged for each new residential unit 

314 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 250 of 311



New Commercial Fee Calculation 

Available data for commercial activity shows 
that approximately 32.4% of all calls for service 
were generated by businesses in 2004, both com-
mercial and industrial. 

The present formula calculated each square foot 
of built commercial space generated .002 calls for 
service. Assuming that a commercial space is 
10,000 square feet in size, the space would generate 
twenty calls for service in a calendar year. There is 
no data that has been provided by the police de-
partment to indicate that this formula should be ad-
justed, either up or down. In fact, the department's 
call records do not differentiate between commer-
cial or industrial calls. Nor do police records show 
whether commercial or industrial properties gener-
ated more or less activity in the years before 2004. 
The best available data is the 2004 information that 
shows 32.4% of all police calls were "business" 
calls. There is no information available to distin-
guish the breakdown by square footage of any 
commercial property. 

Continuing the use of the formula that the City 
has used historically, a new formula with the new 
cost per call for service would look like this: 

.002' (X sq.ft.) ($193.002  (2)3  = Y 

Calls per square foot of commercial space 

Cost per call of service in 2004 

Years before a new development is on the tax rolls 

The new formula can be applied to a hypothetical 
commercial development in 2005 as follows: 

Existing Formula 

.002 calls for service per 
year 

X 10,000 square feet of 
development 

X $118.00 cost per call for 
service 

X 2 years before property 
is taxed 

$4,720 Total Police 
Mitigation Fee due 

Potential New Formula 

.002 calls for service per 
year 

X 10,000 square feet of 
development 

X $193.00 cost per call for 
service 

X 2 years before property 
is taxed 

$7,720 Total Police 
Mitigation Fee due 

The percentage increase would be 63.5% for 
commercial development and a 149% residential 
fee increase. While these percentage increases are 
high, the City should consider that the rates have 
not been increased in 15 years. It is proposed that 
the City consider adjusting the rates on an annual 
basis. This will avoid a higher increase rate in the 
future and avoid a loss of revenue needed to equip 
the police department with the capital facilities it 
requires to continue to deliver quality service to a 
growing community. 

The City also expressed an interest in applying a 
fee for industrial use. Since the police department 
has not differentiated its call history by commercial 
or industrial use, it is recommended that the City 
consider adding industrial uses to the categories of 
development activity that will be assessed a Police 
Mitigation Fee. 

There is no local evidence to show that industrial 
uses generate the same volume of calls as commer-
cial. In fact,  Chief Wood has opined that industrial  
uses generate a low  call volume. Perhaps, the City 

315 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 251 of 311



should consider establishing an industrial fee that is 
one-quarter of the rate applied to commercial uses, 
and begin to specifically track service call data. If 
the department gathers information from actual 
calls and finds that industrial uses generate more or 
less than 25% of the call volume for commercial 
uses, the fee formula can be adjusted after a period 
of time. 

It is also recommended that the City consider the 
development community's history of accepting or 
challenging the Police Mitigation Fee when deter-
mining whether the proposed rate is sufficient, or 
needs to be adjusted further, considering the pro-
posed rates are based solely on a change in the cost 
of service. 

In addition, if the police department develops 
and maintains better data to differentiate where calls 
for service are generated, it may be able to justify a 
new formula based on trends and patterns. Present-
ly, data is not available to differentiate by type of 
business, size of business, or number of employees. 

City Proposal That ESCi Develop a 
Commercial Fee based upon Number of 

Employees 

The City had proposed basing the fee on em-
ployment because it has received employment pro-
jections, from its transportation planning consult-
ants, showing expected community growth and po-
tential new employment opportunities. This type of 
projection, showing employment potential by trans-
portation zones, is very useful for land use and 
transportation analysis. Employment information is 
also useful for establishing traffic impact fees and 
other related fees. The City hoped to tie its Police 
Mitigation Fee to the same database for the sake of 
consistency; however, doing so at this time without 
a proper foundation, could subject the City to chal-
lenge and delay in adopting a revised fee. 

The City asked ESCi to develop a formula based 
on the number of employees to be generated by new  

commercial development. ESCi researched this op-
tion and was not able to develop a justifiable formu-
la. There are a number of issues that need to be re-
solved before a rate can be developed, not the least 
of which is the lack of data now available from the 
City to justify a new employee-based fee. 

ESCi researched various police departments and 
conducted an on-line search of crime statistics' pub-
lications of the U.S. Department of Justice and the 
Federal Bureau of Investigation. We were not able 
to find evidence that there is any credible data to 
show that the number of employees at a commercial 
establishment has a correlation to the number of 
calls generated for police services. Documents re-
searched included: 

• Crime in the U.S. - preliminary report for 
2004 

• Uniform Crime Reporting - National Incident 
Based Reporting System 

• Uniform Crime Report Handbook (revised 
2004) 

• National Incident Based Reporting System, 
August 2000 

• Criminal Victimization in the United States, 
2003 Statistical Tables 

• Bridging Gaps in Police Crime Data, 1999 

Without a foundation established either through 
Sedro-Woolley historical records or credible na-
tional publications, ESCi does not recommend the 
City base its fee on employment. 

(Ord. 1557-06 § 2 (Exh. C)) 

316 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 252 of 311



APPENDIX FE 
	

1 
SEDRO-WOOLLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN 

317 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 253 of 311



Sedro-Woolley 
School District #101 

Capital Facilities Plan 
2014 

Sedro-Woolley School District 
801 Trail Road 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
(360) 855-3500 

Adopted December 8, 2014 
By the Board of Directors 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 254 of 311



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

	

I. 	INTRODUCTION 	 1 

	

II. 	STANDARD OF SERVICE 	 2 

	

III. 	INVENTORY 	 3 

	

IV. 	CAPITAL FACILITIES NEEDS 	 6 

A. Enrollment Projections 	 6 

B. Forecast of Future Needs 	 8 

C. School Capacity Summary 	 9 

	

V. 	FINANCING PLAN 	 1 I 

	

VI. 	IMPACT FEES 	 12 

APPENDIX A — OSPI Enrollment Data 
APPENDIX B — Student Generation Rates 
APPENDIX C — Impact Fee Calculations 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 255 of 311



I. 	INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this Capital Facilities Plan is to provide a verifiable estimate of the 
present and future construction and capital facilities needs for the Sedro-Woolley School District 
No. 101 ("District"), and the basis for requesting the imposition of school impact fees by Skagit 
County, the City of Sedro-Woolley, the City of Mount Vernon, and the towns of Lyman and 
Hamilton. This Capital Facilities Plan contains all elements required under Washington's 
Growth Management Act (the "GMA"). 

Documenting the statutory and District requirements are essential for the planning of 
capital facility improvements, expansions, and new construction. Such criteria can provide 
information needed in making major decisions. The information can be used to accomplish the 
following: 

1. Demonstrate the need for capital facilities and the costs required to administer, 
plan, and construct them in the most cost effective manner; 

2. Identify the annual budget necessary for District operations; 

3. Identify available sources of revenue; and 

4. Demonstrate the District's financial position in order to obtain better ratings on 
bond issues. 

State law requires school districts to document their long-range construction and 
modernization needs within strict guidelines for State assistance in funding capital 
improvements. Moreover, the GMA requires counties of a certain size and the cities in these 
counties to prepare comprehensive plans. Such jurisdictions are required to develop a capital 
facilities plan as a component of these comprehensive plans. While the GMA does not 
specifically require school districts to adopt capital facilities plans, a district must prepare a 
capital facilities plan that is adopted as part of a city's or county's comprehensive plan in order to 
receive school impact fees under the GMA. This Capital Facilities Plan will be used to 
coordinate the District's long-range facility needs with the comprehensive planning process 
under the GMA for the City of Sedro-Woolley, the City of Mount Vernon, the Town of Lyman, 
the Town of Hamilton, and Skagit County. 

It is expected that this Capital Facilities Plan will be amended on a regular basis to take 
into account changes in the capital needs of the District and changing enrollment projections. 
The fee schedules will also be adjusted accordingly. 

The District's 2014 permanent capacity was 4,282, and the head count (HC) enrollment 
on October 1, 2014, was 4,282 (HC). Enrollment projections indicate that there will be 4,631 
students enrolled in the District in the 2019-20 school year (see Section IV.A). 

1 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 256 of 311



II. STANDARD OF SERVICE 

The District uses the following ratios of teachers-to-students to meet their education 
objectives for program planning: 

Elementary (Preschool - grades 6th) 21 
Middle School (grades 7th - 8th) 25 
High School (grades 9th - 12th) 26 

These ratios are used for determining educational program capacity in existing schools 
and for the planning of new school facilities. Future updates to this CFP will include any 
changes resulting from implementation of reduced class size requirements. 

At the elementary level, the educational program capacity can generally be determined by 
taking the number of elementary classrooms available District-wide and multiplying by the 
teacher-to-student ratio (21) for a total count of elementary student capacity. 

At the middle school level, different variables are considered in order to calculate the 
practical capacity of the facility. These factors include the following: students move between 
classes four periods per day, teachers use their classes one period per day as teacher preparation 
time, and six core subjects are required each semester, including math, language arts, reading, 
science/health, social studies, and physical education. 

The facility capacity for the high school takes into consideration that both teachers and 
students move between classes and that the course structure for the high school students has 
many variables. Required course work must be completed prior to graduation, but there is a great 
deal of flexibility as to when classes may be taken. The base requirements are as follows: 

Credits 	 Subject 
0 	Cumulating Project 
4 	English 
3 	Mathematics 
3 	Social Studies 
3 	Science 
1 	Occupational Education 
2 	Physical Education 
1 	Health 
1 	Fine Arts 
1 	Communications 
1 	Digitools 

11 	Electives 
31 	 Total 

Space needs in all school buildings, particularly at the middle and high school levels, 
include libraries, gymnasiums, areas for special programs and classes, teacher planning space, 
and other core facilities. 

2 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 257 of 311



III. INVENTORY OF EXISTING FACILITIES 

The following chart summarizes the District's inventory of instructional facilities. The 
District currently has permanent capacity for 4,282 students. Additional capacity is available in 
portable facilities that are designated for regular classroom use. 

Instructional Facilities 

Facility Square Footage Location Classrooms' Student 
Capacity2  

Sedro-Woolley 187,612 sq. ft 1235 Third Street 52(1) 1,325 
High School Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Cascade Middle School 113,697 sq. ft. 201 North Township 34 735 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Central Elementary 44,100 sq. ft. 601 Talcott 19(1) 399 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Evergreen Elementary 58,110 sq. ft. 1111 McGarigile Road 26(1) 546 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Mary Purcell Elementary 40,450 sq. ft. 700 Bennett 15(5) 315 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Clear Lake Elementary 31,510 sq. ft. 2167 Lake Avenue 9(4) 189 
Clear Lake, WA 98235 

Big Lake Elementary 20,780 sq. ft. 1676 Highway 9 8(2) 168 
Mount Vernon, WA 98273 

Samish Elementary 23,775 sq. ft. 2195 Highway 9 I i 231 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Lyman Elementary 19,219 sq. ft. Lyman Avenue 80) 168 
Lyman, WA 98263 

State Street High School 7,000 sq. ft. 800 State Street 4(1) 100 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

TOTAL 546,253 sq. ft. 4,176 

1  Portable facilities (regular classroom only) indicated in parenthesis. 
2  Capacity calculations are based on District Standards as identified in Section II above and do not include 
temporary capacity provided by portable facilities. Furthermore, the student capacity figures incorporate space 
needs at each school. 

3 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 258 of 311



Administrative Facilities 

Sedro-Woolley School 
Administrative Office 

Sedro-Woolley School District 
Office 

Support Services Building 

801 Trail Road 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

2079 Cook Road 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

317 Yellow Lane 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 259 of 311



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 260 of 311



IV. CAPITAL FACILITIES NEEDS 

A. 	Enrollment Projections 

The need for new school facilities is directly related to population and other demographic 
trends such as birth rate, housing, and employment trends. These demographic trends are an 
important tool in predicting the educational service needs of this community, and the location, 
size, and capacity of new school facilities. 

Demographic information gathered by Skagit County in the GMA planning process 
indicates that population in the County is expected to increase in the future. There has been and 
will continue to be an increase in the total number of households county-wide. Development 
data from Skagit County, the City of Sedro-Woolley, the City of Mount Vernon, and the towns of 
Lyman and Hamilton indicates that there are currently numerous housing development projects 
either under construction, approved for building, or in the planning stages. Additional school 
facilities will be needed to serve this increase in population. 

The District has examined the six-year enrollment projections based upon enrollment data 
from the Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI). See Appendix A for the 
OSPI projections. The OSPI projections (considered a lagging indicator) are based upon a 
modified "cohort survival method" which uses historical enrollment data from the 5 previous 
years to forecast the number of students who will be attending school the following year. 
Notably, the cohort survival method does not consider enrollment increases based upon new 
development. As such, the enrollment projections should be considered highly conservative. 
However, the 2014 cohort projection of 4,292 students closely matches the October 2014 student 
count of 4,282 students. The District will continue to closely monitor actual enrollment and 
development within the District. Future updates to the Capital Facilities Plan will include 
updated enrollment data. 

Summary - District FTE Enrollment Projections: 2014-2014 

Year 20143  2015-16 2016=17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

District Demographic 4,282 4,354 4,428 4,484 4,563 4,631 
Projections 

3  Actual FTE enrollment (Source: OSPI. October 2014). 

6 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 261 of 311



Sedro-Woolley School District 
Enrollment Projections by Grade Level4  

20145  2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
Kindergarten 327 335 344 352 361 369 
Grade 1 334 337 345 354 362 372 
Grade 2 312 345 351 359 368 377 
Grade 3 329 326 352 358 366 375 
Grade 4 346 337 324 350 356 364 
Grades 295 334 343 330 357 363 
Grade 6 298 300 332 341 328 355 
K-6 Head count 2,241 2,314 2,391 2,444 2,498 2,575 
Grade 7 287 298 300 332 341 328 
Grade 8 326 296 295 297 329 337 
Grades 7-8 
Head count 

613 594 595 629 670 665 

Grade 9 332 328 302 301 303 336 
Grade 10 330 332 338 311 310 312 
Grade 11 341 328 322 328 302 301 
Grade 12 425 458 480 471 480 442 
Grades 9-12 
Head count 

1,428 1,446 1,442 1,411 1,395 1,391 

K-12 Head count 4,282 4,354 4,428 4,484 4,563 4,631 

Based upon this information, over the next six years, the District's enrollment is expected to 
increase at the elementary and middle school levels and to slightly decline at the high school 
level. 

4  Source: OSP! Cohort Projection (October 2014). See Appendix A 
5  Actual Headcount enrollment on October 1.2014 (Source: OSPI). 

7 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 262 of 311



B. 	Forecast of Future Needs 

The District recently completed modernization (with additional capacity) of Cascade 
Middle School. The following is a summary of the District's capital facilities needs over the 
next six years. To adequately serve future student population, the District anticipates adding new 
classrooms at Central Elementary School, adding new classrooms and core facilities at Big Lake 
Elementary School, and adding portable classroom facilities at several elementary schools. All 
projects are needed to serve anticipated growth. The Board will make final decisions regarding 
these capital projects over the next six years. 

Name of Facility: 
Project Description: 
Added Capacity 
Year Needed (projected): 
Estimated Costs: 

Name of Facility: 
Project Description: 
Added Capacity: 
Year Needed (projected): 
Estimated Costs: 

Name of Facility: 
Project Description: 

Added Capacity: 
Year Needed (projected): 
Estimated Costs: 

Name of Facility: 
Project Description: 

Added Capacity 
Year Needed (projected): 
Estimated Costs: 

Central Elementary 
Addition of two new classrooms 
42 
2019-20 
$400,000 

Big Lake Elementary 
Addition of four new classrooms 
84 
2019-20 
$1,200,000 

Big Lake Elementary 
Cafeteria Expansion (core facility 
improvement necessary to serve new 
classroom addition) 
84 
2019-20 
$450,000 

Elementary Portable Additions 
Add six portable classrooms (specific 
locations tbd) 
126 
2017-20 
$900,000 

8 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 263 of 311



C. 	School Capacity Summary (includes new capacity projects planned for 2014-2014) 

Based upon the District's enrollment forecast, standard of service, current inventory and 
capacity, and future planned classroom spaces6, the District's capacity summary over the six year 
planning horizon is as follows: 

Elementary School Surplus/Deficiency 

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Existing Permanent 
Capacity 

2,016 2,016 2,016 2,016 2,016 2,016 

Added Permanent 
Capacity 

126 

Total Permanent 
Capacity 

2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2,142 

Enrollment? 2,241 2,314 2,391 2,444 2,498 2,575 

Surplus (Deficiency) 
Permanent Capacity 

(225) (298) (375) (428) (482) (433) 

Temporary 

Capacity8  

315 315 315 357 399 441 

Total Capacity 
(Permanent & 
Temporary) 

2,331 2,331 2,331 2,373 2,415 2,583 

Surplus (Deficiency) 
Total Capacity 

90 17 (60) (71) (83) 8 

Middle School Surplus/Deficiency 

2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Existing Capacity 735 735 735 735 735 735 

Added Permanent 
Capacity 

Enrollment 613 594 595 629 670 665 

Surplus (Deficiency) 
Permanent Capacity 

122 141 140 106 65 70 

Temporary Capacity 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Capacity 
(Permanent & 
Temporary) 

735 735 735 735 735 735 

Surplus (Deficiency) 
Total Capacity 

122 141 140 106 65 70 

6  These projects have not been fully funded. 
7  Based upon FTE enrollment — see Section IV. 

8  Including planned portable additions. 

9 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 264 of 311



High School Surplus/Deficiency 

2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Existing Capacity 1,425 1,425 1,425 1,425 1,425 1,425 

Added Permanent 
Capacity 

Enrollment 1,428 1,446 1,442 1,411 1,395 1,391 

Surplus (Deficiency) 
Permanent Capacity 

(3) (21) (37) 14 30 34 

Temporary Capacity 25 25 25 25 25 25 

Total Capacity 
(Permanent & 
Temporary) 

1,450 1,450 1,450 1,450 1,450 1,450 

Surplus (Deficiency) 
Total Capacity 

22 4 8 39 55 59 

10 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 265 of 311



V. FINANCING PLAN 

The funding sources for the District's capital facilities needs, as identified above, include: 

1. General obligation bonds; 
2. GMA impact fees and mitigation payments; and 
3. State funding assistance on eligible projects.9  

The District has not yet determined a date to submit a bond issue to the voters for 
approval to help fund the capital facilities projects identified above. These projects will be 
funded by bond proceeds when approved or potentially with other non-voted funds. 

The following chart identifies the funding sources for the capital improvements described 
in this Capital Facilities Plan and identifies system improvements that are reasonably related to 
new development. It also identifies projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan that will serve 
new growth. 

9  The District is not currently eligible for State Funding Assistance for unhoused students at the elementary school 
level but is eligible for State Funding Assistance at the middle school level. 

11 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 266 of 311



Estimated  
Timeline  

2019-2020 

2019-20 

c:D 
CV 
...1

 
'-'_ 
C

) 
cs1 

r.L
'

,—
 

0
 

e
l 

C
) 

rq
 

,—
, 

C
D

 
(-",1 

Capacity  to  
Serve  New  

Growth 

X
 

X
 

X
 

X
 

Other  Mitigation  
and/or  
Impact  
Feesio 

X
 

X
 

X
 

X
 

Bond Funds  

X
 

X
 

X
 

X
 

State  
Funding  

Assistance  

Estimated  
Costs  

000`00t7S  

CD 
CD 
cD

 
C

)- 
 

C
) 

C.‘1,. 
,--, 
kla 

CD 
cD

 

c
5
 

Ls") 
-,1- 
Ge3 

$150,000  per  
classroom  

New  Construction/ 
Additions  Increasing  

Capacity  

Central Elementary  
Classroom  Addition  

Big  Lake  Elementary  
Classroom  Addition  

Big  Lake  Elementary  
Cafeteria  Expansion  

5Ect  

0
 

P
. 

Six-Year  Financin.  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 267 of 311



VI. IMPACT FEES 

New developments built within the District will generate additional students, who will 
create the need for new school facilities. The District, with the help of a consultant, developed 
student generation rates for single family and multi-family dwelling units. These student 
generation rates were developed by a detailed survey of new housing. See Appendix B. 

The impact fee formula takes into account the cost of the capital improvements identified 
in this Capital Facilities Plan that are necessary as a result of new growth. It calculates the fiscal 
impact of each single-family or multi-family development in the District based on the District's 
student generation rates. The formula also takes into account the taxes that will be paid by these 
developments and the funds that could be provided at the local and state levels for the capital 
improvements. See Appendix C. 

School impact fees are authorized by the GMA, but must be adopted by the Skagit 
County Board of Commissioners for the District in order to apply to that portion of the District 
located in unincorporated Skagit County. The fees must be separately adopted by the 
Sedro-Woolley City Council, the Mount Vernon City Council, the Hamilton Town Council, and 
the Lyman Town Council in order to apply to developments located with those jurisdictions. 

2014 SCHOOL IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE 

Impact Fee per Single Family Dwelling Unit: 	$1,678 
Impact Fee per Multi-Family Dwelling Unit: 	$847 

12 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 268 of 311



APPENDIX A 
OSPI ENROLLMENT DATA 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 269 of 311



$
 N

 	
nM 

-
4
.1

 in
 

N
 

N
 N

 
rn 

rn 
M

 M
 

In
 M

 
In

 

In
 	

N
 

N
 

N
 

rn 
0

 
N
 

N
 	

ip
 	

e-•
N

 

	

0
 
0

 
I
D

 N
 	

;1'1 
N

 
F

M
 In

 in
 t

n
 M

 f
r
t
 

.7
.1

A
g

g
, 	

1  
m

in
 in

 I .70n
 

*
 

01 	
N

 
.17.,

M
 M

 ID 
8
 1

 N
 

N
 

1
1
1
.* 

N
 

171I 	
g

 
loll 

N

M
In

 
I
V

 
M

 
M

rn
 

4 N
 

A
l

r 

ih
 	

N
 	

0
 

Ian
 

g
1

.
 
	

M
,W

 

frl 
M

  
M

  e
l
 
r
n

 
N

 	
In

 
r 	

In
 n

1
 	

K
t 

N
N

W
'  

t
a

n
1

0
.
0

 
N

 
M

 
N

 
IV

 	
rn

 	
M

 

N
N

O
N

I
O

N
I
O

 
N

 
T

 
N

 
M

 
N

 
0

 
N

 
17 

rn
 

rn
 

.1
 	

A
l 4

1
  

SUPERINTENDENT  OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION 

SCHOOL  YEAR 2013-2014  

F a
 

LIJ 

2 

4
 

;
G

 
O
 

w
  

cc a 
a
 

g
 

Z
 

z
 

I?" 

0
 

2 O
 

o 5
 5

 17, 

g
 

O
ft 

0
 0

 

L
A

 C
C

 

e 
DI N

 N
 

N
 

O
 	

N
 S

O
 In

 In
 

N
 	

N
 M

 .1
 In

 
N

 
M

I
N

N
*
 

y x 

a 
a 

N
  
N
 

* 
N

4 
 

" 
0

0
0
 

 

:ft 	
Cl

N
 

rY 	
N 

rn
 

N
 

8
 ri 

N
0
  

N
 	

S
 

0
 	

a
, 

O
 	

N
 tr.1

 
N

 	
.1

 in
 

0
 
0
 
r
r
t
 

N
  O

N
  
0

 
N

 
ID

 	
In 	

rill 	
.1

 	
.1/ 

A
 g

 *
 8

 t 
M

I
N

M
 
N

 

N
 N

 8
 &

 
M

I
M

M
 
M

I
N

N
 
A

l
 

M
 0

1
 

N
 

A
l 	

Fri 
N

t 

In 	
0

 4
 

.
1
 

6.1 	
ig

 
A 

N
 

In
 

N
 

N
 M

 
N

 

In
 	

I
I
 
f
t
 

N
 4

.1
 

M
 

N
 

O
 	

oto 

rn 
en 

N
 

N 	
N

 	
1.2 

N
M

 
N

 
t
I
 

tl 	
N

 

N
 	

74'44.7,W
 

N
 A

 P
A

 N
tl 

In
 	

"W
I 

A 
IP, N 

tl 

O
 

N
 

N N V
I 

7. 

r
i"

..IN
 In

 
	

i
l
i
t
r
e
.
 

.1
9
 
9
 

T. 	
13 	

1,
 	

O
r
 A

 A
 

V
 
u

7
 

1
3
 '1

3
n

 1
:1

 	
N

I 
_

2
2

2
2

E
2

/
 
C

C
,
 
2

2
2

2
 

.1
c

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 t
e

 	
W

 
pi. 	

0
 0

 0
 0

 D
I 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 270 of 311



APPENDIX B 
STUDENT GENERATION RATES 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 271 of 311



Michael J. McCormick FAICP 
Piannirg Consulting Semites • Growth Management 	Intergovernmental Relations 

)etolter 	')■ni 

lemorat alum 

Brrtt GrVenlVO4(1 I 
Sedro-11 tiollev School 1)istri•t 

From: 	\lik• Id :onnick 

Be: 	U.01 i tie(1r)-11 )(MIT SC11114 ► 1 District S111411'10.  Generation Rates Sq. -al, 

This int•m ►randum contains the ../.01 1 Student Generation Rates SGft for both single family and 

multiple. family residential deN-elopm•nt. •III• rates were 14A-elop•d on a comprehensive basis using. 

data frc an Skagit ( :minty and the SPI in I. \\ u111/eV  Srli(101 DiSniet. 

The inet114 )4 14 Oh Pgy lltiriI tl Caleulat• S( ;Ws uses Skagit ( :minty Assess( ws data fin' 414•-(•1"1"n•nt 

activity and sel It a 41 district address data filr student addresses. The student gel leration rates have 

le•n calculate11 tilt- 	igle fainik and multi ►le tinnily residential devellii anent.' Tla. survey area 

nullities all ()•thic territory rvithin tl ►e I tomularies t if the tiro Iro-11 culler- School I)istriet. Tile 

analysis is I lased °it projects col istrneted for calendar War ...too!) through rah-whir rear ../.4)13. The 

troress usrel here is veiy similar to that used ill previous aiialysis Altaic for :ad tool districts ill Skai.fit 

(:mints- as w-ell as a 11111111 HT ofelistricts tlnv tright nit 11 ashillgttu I state. 

Tile process of anah-sis ilivolt-cd comparing the at I+ tresses of all studeitts with the addresses If Vail 1 

rt•Sit lel 	deVe14)1 ►111•llt. Tla 'Se w'hic'h matched IN-ere aggregated to slimy the mind ler of students in 
each of the grade gr.( mph igs for earl' fl1 - of residential development. A total of :499 sii Tie family 

n.sidential units were counted between "Alio!) and 2oi3 within the school district hounda•v, There 

' Single lunrih includes single lumih, deiarl►ed stick-Link] units and iinumfacturril Ilnnlr5 are included in the single 

lawih categin7,. I nits in Iniildin•s milli into 4W 1110re fills are CIeluiNr1I aS.111111111,11" 	mulls. 	 rmisist.-111 milli 
Skagii (: 	h differentiates hew, eel' single riunil% and multiple 

2420 Columbia SW 
Olympia, WA 98501 
360-754-2916 
inikenormi•,Faccag.net  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 272 of 311



2014 Sedro-\\oolleY  Sellout District St;11.'s 
ictolier 2,. 201i 

Page 2. 

are a total of iol students from these units. A total )1-'12 limit-4'1e family units were vomited. Tliere 
are two students associatol with these units.' 

A S11111111Eirr of tlic results are pn.svi 	 table. 

Single Famil, 	Multiple Famil, 

Elemental•► 	K-6 0.174 0.083 
Middle 7-8 0.054 0.000 
High 9-12 0.110 0.083 

0.338 0.167 

The S(7'11 were val•ultit141 WI a 	gam] de (fall single anti iiiiihi-familyv4instructed I ,I.ttvevii 21109 
and 

Attaehn iel its: 	Tahle--:).011 Bet io-1\ unllev School DiStrirt 	GrliVration 

This is an rxirelnel■ small mindirp Id Units. 1 Slliall Change in rifillitT ILrre studeffis 	ur the 1111.111liel'oi units Pali 

hit\ t,  a drainalic effect nit Ilir rrsnliilir 1•111.1eilt gem-I-v.61w rates. 

Tnials ma. ma balance dm- In 11,11ildilig. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 273 of 311



2014 Sedro-Woolley School District Student Generation Rates 

October 22, 2014 

SINGLE FAMILY 
# of students 	SGR 

Elementary -- K through 6 	 52 	 0.174 

Middle School -- 7 and 8 	 16 	 0.054 

High School -- 9 through 12 	 33 	 0.110 

Total 	 101 	 0.338 

MULTIPLE FAMILY 

# of students 	SGR 

Elementary -- K through 6 	 1 	 0.083 

Middle School -- 7 and 8 	 0 	 0.000 
High School -- 9 through 12 	 1 	 0.083 

Total 
	

2 	 0.167 

\ 11);A■ not111.11111g. 

Grade 
K 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 
Total 

Total 
Units 

SF 	MF 
Combined Combined 

# 
8 

7 

12 	1 

8 

4 

6 

7 

6 

10 

8 

7 

5 

13 	1 
101 	2 

299 	12 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 274 of 311



APPENDIX C 
SCHOOL IMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 275 of 311



SCHOOL INSPACT FEE CALCULATIONS 

1 
DISTRICT Sedro-Vticoltley 3 hod Distric 

YEAR 2014 

SC7i001 SI% ACquIE11105 COlg: 

Student Student 

Facility Cost/ Facifty Factor Factor Cost/ Cost/ 

Acreage 

DM 

D.00 

0.00 

Acre 

$ 	 - 

4 	 - 

4 	 - 

I 

Capacity 

500 

700 

1,325 

SFR 

0.174 

0.054 

0.110 

Pol.FR 

ozea 
0_000 

0.083 

SFR MFR 

Elementary_ $0 $0 

Middle $0 $0 
Nigh $0 $0 

I $0 6  $0 

School ConstrucOon Cost 
)(Facility Codifocifrhy C-opiacity)x.Sluclent Gene-nol:6n Faciar)x(permanent/Total So Ft) 

Student Student 

%Perrni Facility Facifty Factor Factor Cost/ Cod/ 

Elementary 

Middle 

Total Sq _Ft- 

97_52% 

97,52% 

97_53% 

1 

Cosi 

$ 	2,050,000 

$ 	 - 

$ 	 - 

Capod-rty 

126 

216 

625 

SFR MFR SFR MFR 

0.174 o_osa $2,761 $1,317 
0.054 0.000 SO $0 

high 0.110 axon. So $0 
$2,761 41317 

IIFITipOitaly FS/entity Cost 

I lice cil ity Cost Foci Iii-4 CopacitylitStudent Generation Factorlx(TernporaryfTallal Square Feet) 

Student Shnden+ 

%Temp/ Foclity Fadiffy Factor Factor Cost/ Cost/ 

Tot& Sc .Ft, 

24796 

2_47% 

247% 

I 

Coe 

$150,000.00 

40.00 

$0.00 I 

Sinn 

21.00 

25.00 

30.00 I 

SFR MFR SFR MFR 

Elementary_ 0.174 0.053 $31 $15 

Middle 0.054 0.000 SO $0 
High 0.110 0.062  

TOTAL 	--1 
So 

$31 

$0 
$15 

State Middling Crecit: 
floecich Index X SPI Square Footage X Di-strict Match % X Student Factor 

Student Student 

13oeckh SPI District Factor Factor Cost/ Cost/ 
index 

20040 

20040 

200.40 

Footage 

90.00 

117.00 

120.00 

Match % 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.0096 

SFR MFR SFR MFR 

Elementary_ 0.174 0_082 

Middle 0-054 0_000 $0 $0 

Sr_ High 0_110 0_052 SO $0 

TOTAL 

Tax Part)** treat= SFR MFR 

Average Assessed Valve $206,247 475,297 
Capital Bond interest Rafe 2.90 

$804,362 

10.00 

0.69 

2.90 

$292-655 

10.00 

0.69 

-let Present Valve of Avera 	Dwelling 

year Amortized 

Property Tax Levy Rate 

Pre-sent Value of Revenue Stream $555 $203 
Fes SUIIWI1S 	. Single Multi 

Family Family 

Site Adasoiation Costs $0 $0 

Permanent Facility Cost $2„761 41317 

Temporary Faclity Cost $31 4 1 5 
State Match Credit $0 $0 

Tax Payment Credit ($5551 ($203) 

FEE (AS CALCULATED) $2.237 $1,129 
FEE PMCOUrrr -2.5%) 31,678 $847 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 276 of 311



Exhibit 3 
Amendments to Chapter 15.60 SWMC regarding Fire Impact Fee values 

15.60.090 Fire department impact fee and establishment of service area. 

A. Subject to the provisions of SWMC Section 15.60.100, the fire department facilities impact fee 
assessed pursuant to this chapter shall be calculated as set forth on attachment C. 

B. The impact fee set out in subsection A of this section shall be updated annually at a rate adjusted in 
accordance with the engineering news record (ENR) Construction Cost Index for the Seattle area, using a 
June-June annual measure to establish revised fee schedules effective July 1st of the current year. 

C. For the purpose of this chapter, the entire city shall be considered one service area. (Ord. 1555-06 § 1 
(part), 2006) 

Attachment C—Schedule of Fire 
Department Impact Fees 

Fire Impact Fee Calculations. 

A. Residential structures, including single-family and multifamily structures: ffifteleen-twenty-eight  

cents per square foot of structure, including garage, outbuildings and attached porches. 

B. Nonresidential structures: twenty-twenty-eight  cents per square foot of structure, including garage, 
outbuildings and attached porches; provided that the fee for nonresidential structures shall receive an 
adjustment, in an amount determined by the responsible official, equal to forty percent reduction for 
buildings equipped with an approved sprinkler system, and ten percent reduction for buildings equipped 
with an alarm system. 

C. Nonresidential construction and development activity which requires fire protection but is not a 
traditional structure, such as a bulk fuel storage facility or a fuel pipeline, shall be assessed an impact fee 
in an amount determined by the responsible official pursuant to Section 15.60.140. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 277 of 311



TABLE 1 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

FIRE APPARATUS AND CAPITAL COSTS PER SQUARE FOOT OF DEVELOPMENT 

Square Feet 	Apparatus 	 Capital 
Number of 	Development 	Per 	Cost Per 	Cost Per 

Component 	Apparatus 	Served 	Square Foot 	Apparatus Square Foot 

Aerial Units 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 525,000 0.102406 
Ambulances 2 5,126,638 0.000000390 150,000 0.058518 
Fire Station 2 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 619,326 0.120805 

0.2817297 

TABLE 2 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

PREVIOUS PAYMENTS MADE BY NEW DEVEOPMENT 
AVAILABLE TO FUND FUTURE NEEDS 

YEAR 	 AVAILABLE FUNDS 

2008 0 
2009 0 
2010 0 
2011 0 
2012 2,735 
2013 4,348 
2014 2,965 

7-Year Total 10,048 

Annual Average 1,435 

Annual Average / Square Foot of Development 0.00028 
Six year 0.0016799 

Nonresidential Credits 

Sprinkler System 40% 
Alarm System 10% 
Sprinker & Alarm Systems 50% 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
PROPOSED IMPACT FEE RATE 

Impact Fee 
Less 	 per 

Full Cost 	Adjustment 	Square Foot 

$0.28 
	

$0.00 	$0.28 

Attachment C (new tables. Will not appear in text of Chapter 15.60) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 278 of 311



Exhibit 4 
Amendments to Chapter 15.64 SWMC regarding School Impact Fee values 

Appendix A (Chapter 15.64) 

A. Single-Family Units: Two thousand eix hundred forty nine One thousand six hundred seventy-eight  dollars 

per single-family residential unit or mobile or manufactured home (whether on a single lot, condominium unit or 

mobile park). 

B. Multifamily Units: 	 Indy cighteight hundred forty-seven  dollars per residential 

unit in a multifamily structure. 

Note: detached, single housing units shall be considered single-family residential units, without regard to the 

form of ownership, including condominium ownership. (Ord. 1672-10 § 2, 2010: Ord. 1630-08 § 2 (Exh. B), 

2008) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 279 of 311



Ordinance No. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON ADOPTING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE SEDRO-WOOLLEY MUNICIPAL CODE AS REVIEWED AS 

PART OF THE 2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DOCKET TO REVISE AND 
INCORPORATE UPDATED IMPACT FEES IN CHAPTERS 15.60 AND 15.64. 

WHEREAS, applications for amendments to the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan 
were received by the published deadline of January 17, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley established an on-going public participation 
process in 2016 in accordance with RCW 36.70A.130(2) including the regular Planning 
Commission meetings, joint City Council and Planning Commission workshop(s), and Public 
Meetings to discuss proposed changes to the Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, public hearings were conducted before the Sedro-Woolley Planning 
Commission on various dates; and 

WHEREAS, environmental review of the updated Comprehensive Plan has been 
completed and a Determination of Non-Significance was issued February 26, 2015, and that 
document is adopted by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan have been submitted 
to the Washington State Department of Community, Trade and Economic Development (CTED) 
and the required 60-day review period has passed; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the proposed amendments to 
Chapters 15.60 and 15.64 Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code contained in this ordinance associated 
with updates to the Comprehensive Plan and made a recommendation to adopt said amendments 
to the Comprehensive Plan and municipal code; 

WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act gives authority to Sedro-Woolley to update its 
Comprehensive Plan once per year in such a manner that all proposed amendments are 
considered by the governing body concurrently such that the governing body may evaluate their 
cumulative effect; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has, on this date, approved an ordinance adopting the 
amendments to the Comprehensive Plan; 

WHEREAS, the City Council further desires to modify the Sedro-Woolley Municipal 
Code to enact the changes to the Comprehensive Plan affecting Chapters 15.60 and 15.64 of the 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code; 

EXHIBIT To Ceuta et t_ENA,Eir,kb, 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 280 of 311



NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-
WOOLLEY DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The City Council hereby adopts the Planning Commission's Findings of Fact, 
Conclusions and Recommendations, which were certified by the Planning Commission Chair on 
April 7, 2016 as the City Council's Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendations. 

Section 2.  Chapter 15.60 of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, Impact Fees for Planned 
Facilities, is hereby altered to read as shown in the attached Exhibit A, which is adopted by 
reference. 

Section 3.  Chapter 15.64 of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, Impact Fees for School 
Facilities, is hereby altered to read as shown in the attached Exhibit B, which is adopted by 
reference. 

Section 4.  This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after the approval by the City Council 
and publication as provided by law. 

Section 5.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should be held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council this 
th day of April, 2016, and signed in authentication of its passage this 

of April, 2016. 

By: 
KEITH L. WAGONER, Mayor 

Attest: 
PATSY NELSON, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

ERON BERG, City Attorney 

Published: 

to day 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 281 of 311



Exhibit A 
To Ordinance No. 2016- 

15.60.090 Fire department impact fee and establishment of service area. 
A. Subject to the provisions of SWMC Section 15.60.100, the fire department facilities impact 
fee assessed pursuant to this chapter shall be calculated as set forth on attachment C. 
B. The impact fee set out in subsection A of this section shall be updated annually at a rate 
adjusted in accordance with the engineering news record (ENR) Construction Cost Index for the 
Seattle area, using a June-June annual measure to establish revised fee schedules effective July 
1st of the current year. 
C. For the purpose of this chapter, the entire city shall be considered one service area. (Ord. 
1555-06 § 1 (part), 2006) 

Attachment C—Schedule of Fire Department Impact Fees 

Fire Impact Fee Calculations. 
A. Residential structures, including single-family and multifamily structures: nineteen twenty-
eight cents per square foot of structure, including garage, outbuildings and attached porches. 
B. Nonresidential structures: twenty twenty-eight cents per square foot of structure, including 
garage, outbuildings and attached porches; provided that the fee for nonresidential structures 
shall receive an adjustment, in an amount determined by the responsible official, equal to forty 
percent reduction for buildings equipped with an approved sprinkler system, and ten percent 
reduction for buildings equipped with an alarm system. 
C. Nonresidential construction and development activity which requires fire protection but is 
not a traditional structure, such as a bulk fuel storage facility or a fuel pipeline, shall be assessed 
an impact fee in an amount determined by the responsible official pursuant to Section 15.60.140. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 282 of 311



TABLE 1 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
FIRE APPARATUS AND CAPITAL COSTS PER SQUARE FOOT OF DEVELOPMENT 

Square Feet 	Apparatus 	 Capital 
Number of 	Development 	Per 	Cost Per 	Cost Per 

Component 	Apparatus 	Served 	Square Foot 	Apparatus Square Foot 

Aerial Units 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 525,000 0.102406 

Ambulances 2 5,126,638 0.000000390 150,000 0.058518 
Fire Station 2 1 5,126,638 0.000000195 619,326 0.120805 

0.2817297 

TABLE 2 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

PREVIOUS PAYMENTS MADE BY NEW DEVEOPMENT 
AVAILABLE TO FUND FUTURE NEEDS 

YEAR 	 AVAILABLE FUNDS 

2008 0 
2009 0 
2010 0 
2011 0 
2012 2,735 
2013 4,348 
2014 2,965 

7-Year Total 10,048 

Annual Average 1,435 
Annual Average / Square Foot of Development 0.00028 
Six year 0.0016799 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
PROPOSED IMPACT FEE RATE 

Impact Fee 
Less 	 per 

Full Cost 	Adjustment 	Square Foot 

Nonresidential Credits 

Sprinkler System 40% 
Alarm System 10% 
Sprinker & Alarm Systems 50% 

$0.28 	 $0.00 	$0.28 

 

NOTE: Attachment C contains new tables-, those tables will not appear in text of Chapter 15.60 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 283 of 311



Exhibit B 
To Ordinance No. 2016- 

Appendix A —  Schedule of School Impact Fees (Chapter 15.64)  

A. Single-Family Units: Two thousand six hundred ninety  eight One thousand six hundred  

seventy-eight  dollars per single-family residential unit or mobile or manufactured home (whether 

on a single lot, condominium unit or mobile park). 

B. Multifamily Units: 	 . • Eight hundred forty-seven 

dollars per residential unit in a multifamily structure. 

Note: detached, single housing units shall be considered single-family residential units, without 

regard to the form of ownership, including condominium ownership. (Ord. 1672-10 § 2, 2010: 

Ord. 1630-08 § 2 (Exh. B), 2008) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 284 of 311



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY PLANNING COMMISSION 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

File #s — Requested by: 

CPA-1-14  — City Sponsored 

2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT REQUESTS 

- 2014 DOCKET - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
FINDINGS OF FACT, 
CONCLUSIONS AND 
RECOMMENDATION 

Description of proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan & Land-Use Map 

Per the Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW), changes to the Sedro-Woolley 
Comprehensive Plan may be considered no more than once per year. Amendments may be 
suggested by citizens, staff or elected officials. All proposed amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan must be considered at one time. The list of proposed amendments is 
termed the "Docket." Two proposals for Comprehensive Plan, Zoning/Land Use Maps and 
development regulation changes were requested for inclusion on the 2014 Comprehensive 
Plan Docket; both proposed by the City of Sedro-Woolley. The proposals were docketed and 
reviewed by the Planning Commission in accordance with Growth Management Act and 
Chapters 2.88 and 2.90 of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code (SWMC). The two items on 
the 2014 Docket are described below. 

CPA-1-14 — Capital Facilities Element Update and Associated Zoning Code Amendments 

The Planning Commission completed a review of the Capital Facilities Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan during the 2014 Docket cycle and has recommended updates to the 
Element. The updates recommended by the Planning Commission will require amendments 
to the Capital Facilities Element and amendments to the zoning code. The Sedro-Woolley 
Planning Department (Planning) requested that the Capital Facilities Element of the Sedro-
Woolley Comprehensive Plan be updated in anticipation of the required 2016 deadline to 
update each of the elements of the Comprehensive Plan. The Capital Facilities Element has 
been updated to include updated current data, updated plans for the anticipated development 
in the city over the next 20 years and updated goals and policies. The updates are 
coordinated with the 2015 Docket updates that include an expanded urban growth area 
(UGA) that is proposed by the city and under review by Skagit County. 

The Sedro-Woolley Fire and Police Departments updated their departmental sections of the 
Capital Facilities Element. The Fire Department's update included amendments to the 
calculations that determine the impact fee amounts the city charges when new buildings are 

Findings of Fact. Conclusions and Recommendation 
2014 Comprehensive Plan Docket 	 Page 1 of 4 ERHIBI i......4,....m.,A,A4. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 285 of 311



constructed or any additions are added to existing structures. Updating the fire impact fee 
amount requires amendments to Chapter 15.60 SWMC. 

As part of the Capital Facilities Element update, the Sedro-Woolley School District 
requested that their 2014 adopted School Capital Facility Plan (CFP) be included in updated 
Capital Facilities Element. The School CFP proposed changes to the school impact fees that 
the city collects when permits are issued for new residential units in the city limits. Updating 
the school impact fee amount requires amendments to Chapter 15.64 SWMC. 

CPA-2-14 — Potential zoning changes to accommodate additional Industrial land (rescinded) 

At the request of the City Council, the Planning Commission held a public hearing to 
determine if any property owners in the northwest portion of the city and the UGA were 
interested in rezoning their property north of E. Jones Road from Residential-5 (R-5) to 
Industrial. The majority of property owners in the area were opposed to the concept. The 
City Council reviewed the results of the Planning Commission hearing and tabled the 
concept of an upzone in the area. File CPA-2-14 was closed. 

Planning Commission Finding of Fact 

Conformance with Growth Management Act 

I. Per the GMA, the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan must be updated by June 30, 
2016. Individual elements of the Plan may be adopted prior to the 2016 deadline. 

2. On December 6, 2013 and January 3, 2014, the City of Sedro-Woolley advertised in the 
Skagit Valley Herald that the deadline for accepting applications and proposals for Land 
Use Plan and Zoning Map Amendments or text amendments to the City's development 
regulations will be January 17, 2014. 

3. No requests for Land Use Map, Zoning Map or Comprehensive Plan amendments were 
received from the public at-large. 

4. On February 5, 2014 the City Council reviewed two proposed items for inclusion on the 
2014 Comprehensive Plan Docket. Both items were city-sponsored. The City Council 
placed both items, the Capital Facilities Element Update and the Jones Road area zoning 
review, on the 2014 Docket. The Council directed the Planning Commission to hold 
public hearings on the Docket items and recommend amendments for the Council to 
consider. 

5. Per RCW 36.70A.106, notice of the proposed zoning and Comprehensive Plan 
amendments were sent to the Washington State Department of Commerce for 60-day 
review on January 21, 2015. The review period expired in March, 2015 and no 
Department of Commerce comments were received. 

6. A SEPA DNS for the 2014 Docket was issued on February 26, 2015. 

CPA-1-14 — Update of the Capital Facilities Element of the Comprehensive Plan 

7. At its February 5, 2014 worksession, the City Council placed the update of the Capital 
Facilities Element on the 2014 Docket. 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendation 
2014 Comprehensive Plan Docket 	 Page 2 of 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 286 of 311



8. The Planning Commission reviewed the existing Capital Facilities Element at the 
February 18, 2014 PC meeting. 

9. The Planning Commission further reviewed the Capital Facilities Element at its April 15, 
2014 meeting. 

10. The Sedro-Woolley School District #101 submitted an adopted CFP and requested that it 
be incorporated in the city Capital Facilities Element. The CFP suggested revised school 
impact fees that would be incorporated into Chapter 15.60 SWMC. The proposed impact 
fees are lower than the existing fees — dropping from $2,649 for lots with less than five 
units per lot to $1,678. The proposed school impact fee for multi-family units is reduced 
from $1,398 to $847 per unit. 

11. Further review of the Capital Facilities Element was performed by the Planning 
Commission at its May 20, 2014 meeting. 

12. The Planning Commission further reviewed the Capital Facilities Element at its June 17, 
2014 meeting. 

13. The Planning Commission reviewed the School CFP for incorporation into the Capital 
Facilities Element at the December 16, 2014 PC meeting. 

14. On January 10, 2015, in compliance with Chapters 17.60 and 2.90 SWMC, notice of a 
January 20, 2015 Public Hearing in front of the Planning Commission and opportunity to 
comment on the proposed amendments to the Capital Facilities Element was published in 
the Skagit Valley Herald. 

15. On January 20, 2015 the Planning Commission held an open record public hearing to 
receive testimony from City Staff and the public. A staff report dated 20, 2015 was 
submitted to and reviewed by the Planning Commission prior to the public hearing. The 
staff report was also available to the public ahead of the hearing date. At the hearing, 
staff reviewed the existing Capital Facilities Element and proposed development 
regulation updates related to impact fees, made a recommendation that the Planning 
Commission review the existing element, hold public meetings to receive public input 
and propose amendments for the City Council to consider later in the year. No members 
of the public spoke at the hearing and no written comments were received. 

16. The Planning Commission did not discuss the proposed amount of the school or fire 
impact fees as part of their discussion; the City Council is better suited to address that 
issue. Updates to the police section of the Capital Facilities element are also proposed, 
no impact fees per Chapter 82.02 RCW are associated with police services. 

17. The Planning Commission continued review the Capital Facilities Element at its 
February 17, 2015 meeting. 

18. On March 4, 2016, in compliance with Chapters 17.60 and 2.90 SWMC, notice of a 
March 15, 2016 Public Hearing in front of the Planning Commission and opportunity to 
comment on the proposed amendments to the Capital Facilities Element was published in 
the Skagit Valley Herald. 

19. Since the Planning Commission's last review of the Capital Facilities Element in early 
2015, the City has worked with the Skagit County Planning Department and the Skagit 
Council of Governments Growth Management Act Steering Committee to determine 
what the city's likely population and employment growth will be between 2015 and 
2036. The Capital Facilities Element was updated in early 2016 to incorporate the new 
projected growth for the next 20 years (including an expanded city urban growth area 
boundary) and thus needed further review by the Planning Commission. 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendation 
2014 Comprehensive Plan Docket 	 Page 3 of 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 287 of 311



20. On March 15, 2016 the Planning Commission held a second public hearing on updates to 
the Capital Facilities Element. After closing the public hearing, the Planning 
Commission made a motion to recommend council adopt the proposed updates to the 
Capital Facilities Element. The Planning Commission also made a motion to recommend 
council adopt the proposed updates to Chapter 15.60 SWMC regarding fire impact fees 
and Chapter 15.64 SWMC regarding school impact fees; both motions passed 7-0. The 
Planning Commission's recommended amendments to the Capital Facilities Element of 
the Comprehensive Plan are shown in Attachment A and the recommended amendments 
to the development regulations are shown in Attachment B of these Findings. 

CPA-2-14 — Potential zoning changes to accommodate additional Industrial land 

21. At a February 5, 2014 worksession, the City Council placed the proposal to rezone land 
north of E. Jones Road on the 2014 Docket. 

22. On March 7, 2014, in compliance with Chapters 17.60 and 2.90 SWMC, notice of a 
March 18, 2014 Public Hearing in front of the Planning Commission and opportunity to 
comment on the proposal to rezone land north of E. Jones Road was published in the 
Skagit Valley Herald and Notice was mailed to potentially affected property owners. 

23. Two property owners commented on the proposal in writing. Four neighbors also 
submitted comments in opposition to the potential rezone. 

24. 25 citizens attended the March 18, 2014 Public Hearing, the majority were not in favor 
of zoning changes. 

25. Staff presented the results of the hearing to the City Council at the March 26, 2014 
meeting. Council discussed the results and tabled the idea of a rezone north of E. Jones 
Road. CPA-2-14 was subsequently closed. 

Planning Commission Recommendations 

CPA-1-14 — Update of the Capital Facilities Element of the Comprehensive Plan 

Based on the findings of fact and testimonies received by the Planning Commission, the 
Planning Commission recommends that the City Council approve amendments to the 
Capital Facilities Element of the Comprehensive Plan as shown in Attachment A and the 
amendments to the zoning code as shown in Attachment B. 

ATTACHMENTS 

• Attachment A — Recommended amendments to the Housing Element of the Sedro-
Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 

• Attachment B — Recommended amendments to Chapter 15.60 SWMC — Impact Fees for 
Planned Facilities and Chapter 15.64 — Impact Fees for School Facilities. 

CERTIFICATION 

7:4- 	 - Q 
Patrick Huggins, Planning mmission Chairman 	 Date 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendation 
2014 Comprehensive Plan Docket 	 Page 4 of 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 288 of 311



1111(51111 
Central Skagit Library 

onrich.:;mpor,:cr.engage 

Mayor Keith Wagoner 
City of Sedro-Woolley 
325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

April 5, 2016 

100 VI Ste„te Street ",3u.i.e C 
Secleo-')7:oolley, WA 3828e.', 
330.755.3C85 

centr alskagitlibr azy. 0 3: 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL cAj.AMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Dear Mayor Wagoner. 

Thank you for sharing your proposed "Library Partnership Concept" dated January 21, 
2016 (the "Proposal") with the Board of Trustees (the "Board") of the Central Skagit 
Library District (the "Library District''). As you know, the Board has reviewed the proposal 
and, through counsel, made preliminary inquiries as to some of its provisions. Following 
consideration of those responses, the Board authorized a team consisting of Board 
member Lynn Torset, Dan Gottlieb, counsel, and myself to meet with the appropriate City 
representatives to discuss a library services agreement between the Library District and 
the City using the Proposal as a starting point for those discussions. To further that 
process, the Board would like to present to you the following summary of its views 
pertaining to the core tenets of the Proposal: 

• The Library District will operate the library pursuant to a multi-year agreement. 
The Board would prefer an initial term of no more than 5 years or less, with an 
automatic renewals unless terminated by either party with at least a year's 
advance notice. 

• The City will issue councilmanic bonds to acquire and renovate or purpose-build a 
new facility for the library. 

• The size of the new library facility will be dependent upon needs of the community 
served and cost, to be agreed upon by both parties, 

• Parity in annual economic commitment: each year, the City will pay the Library 
District an amount equal to the Library District's actual millage rate multiplied by 
the City's assessed valuation, subject to a credit for the City's annual debt service 
payment on the library facility bonds. The Board will have full authority to use such 
funds for any Library District purposes. 

• The Library District will maintain the major repair reserve fund of approximately 
$200,000. 

• The City will provide routine maintenance on the facility above and beyond the 
economic commitment. 

• Existing City staff will be retained by the Library District with the understanding that 
all Library District staff will be subject to periodic performance reviews. 

• Viable furniture, fixtures, equipment and collection materials will be transferred to 
the Library District for use in the new facility. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 289 of 311



• The new library facility will be branded as the Sedro-Woolley Central Skagit 
Libra 

• The Board has amended its bylaws to include trustees who live anywhere in the 
Sedro-Woolley School District, including the municipalities therein. This paves the 
way for City citizen representation on the Board. 

• The Board will meet with the City Council at least annually to report on the 
activities of the library, to discuss plans for the following year, and review the 
contract terms if necessary. The Director of the Library District will be expected to 
keep open communication with City officials on an ongoing basis. 

• The contract shall include detailed provisions to address events such as: 
annexation, termination of contract (mutual or breach) and dissolution of the 
Library District. 

The Library District team looks forward to discussing these matters with the City. Please 
contact me at your earliest convenience to set up a meeting. 

Thank you, 

--22-771  

Jeanne Williams 
Director 
Central Skagit Library 
jeanne@centralskagitlibranforg 
360.755.3985 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 290 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

Memorandum 
APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL rIBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

To: 	City Council 

From: Patsy Nelson  ICO.j \ 
Date: 03-29-16 

Re: 	Financial reports 

Attached is the February 29, 2016 summary financial report for your review. As 
expenditures and revenues vary from month to month; the without fund balances 
report reflects monthly cash flows, highlighting the importance of maintaining 
adequate cash balances. 

February interest rates on investments are noted below. Please let me know if you 
have any questions or comments. 

Washington State Treasurer's Office Local Government Investment Pool 0.4200% 
Opus Bank 12 month Certificate of Deposit maturing 04/04/16 0.3500% 
Opus Bank 12 month Certificate of Deposit maturing 06/29/16 0.4500% 
Opus Bank 12 month Certificate of Deposit maturing 10/05/16 0.4000% 

1 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 291 of 311



L
A
 

C
D
 

i
n
 

C
 

a • 
a

 
0
 

C
 

C
 

O
 
0
 

a
 

a
 

cr
 

CO
 

O
 

O
 

0
 

O
 

0
 

0
 

g
 

0
- 

Sc[IlN:IMl! 

'T
O 

CO
 

pl
 

C
 

CO
 

C
 

 00
 

'
0
 

Cn
 

-6
 a cr
 

C
 

O
 •
 

0
 

a
 

c
r
 

to
 

a
 

 CO
 

a
 

cr
 

EL
 

to
 

O
.
 

ao
 a 

a
 

Sr3211 aiaN IdX::1 

0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
•
-
•
 
0
 

0
' 
L
A

 4
. 
C

4
 i
7
-4
0
  

a
 

-
 	

6
 

74
 

	

 

o
 	

'A
l g

 
• 

P
.

a

0
  
t
0

0
  

0
 
C
I
 

0
 

	

0
-
 	

'A
l 

	

C
 	

C
 
0

. 

0
. 

„ 
L
a
 
I
D

 
A

 
C

O
 N

J
 0

4
6

0
0
-
  

Q
s 	

-
 

ra
 

D
O
 
0
 
4,
 
 
0
0
 
0
 

C
A
 
0
 
A
 
N
J
 
L
A
 
O
a
 
N

I 
6

 
C

D
C

D
 Q

o
 C

D
 >

0 
>

4
 >

4
 

C
D

 C
D

 
-4

 C
D

 
L6

4 A
 0

0
 

0
0
 

	

O
 k

J
 L

A
 	

4
>

 
G
A
 

C
D
 
C
D
 
W
 6

 4
>

 00
0 

0
 
D

O
  
„
 
A

 tn
 

14
 

4
,
 
0
4
 
4
) 

0
,
  O

n
 k

J
 

	

7L
a 

C
D

 -
4

 4
>

 2
 	

0
6

 

--
 C

D
 	

in
 i
n
 	

0
0
 L

n
 

0
0

 C
D

 L
a

 -
4

 t
4

 4
>

 .
o

 k
. 

P
R

P
P

P
P

P
P

 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 
C

D
 C

D
 O

 C
>

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 

C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 

6
 
c
a

 
0

 
6

 
6

 
6

 
c
a

 0
 0

 0
 .

0
 0

 0
 0

 

0
 C

D
 C

) 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 5
> 

0
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 
6
 

C
D

 0
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 

O
 O

 5
p 
5p
 5

>
 O

?
 a
 

c
)
 5

>
 5

>
 8
 
g
 5

>
 5

>
 5

>
 

0
 
0

 
0

 

0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 0

  
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 	

0
 

0
 5

>
 0

 0
 C

D
 C
A 
0
 
0
 

8
 

CD 0
0

 
C

7 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 

0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 

9
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

 

C
  • 

D
 0

  
7

 0
 C

  
D

  
C

 

C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 
C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 

C
 D

 D
  
D

 
 

7
   
D

 
 
 
C

 

C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
a

 
0

 0
 6

 6
 6

 6
 6

 6
 

C
D

 C
D 

C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 	
C

D
 

c
'c

'P
P

P
P

9
9

 
0
0
 8

 8
 8

 8
 8

 8
 

-
4
 

G
.
 
k
J
 
O
D
 
„
 
C
A
 
>
3
 

.0
 L

a
 0

 C
a

 4
>

 
1
4
 C

D
 I
n
 6
4
 4
,
 

 

0
 
6
4
 	

N
J
 

 
+
4
 	

B
O

A
 .

4
 

.-
 C

D
 A

 L
A

 :
a 

5
A
 

P
a

 4
7

 C
D

 -
4
 G

A
 v

D
 L

4
 

ln
 

L
a
 
C

O
 
-
4

-0
0
 

L
a

 V
D

 0
3

 L
A

 G
4

 -
- 

0
 	

W
 

•-
•
 6

 1
..
.A

 i
n
 6

 
• 

4
L

 4
- 
4
o
 
-
4

 1
4

 0
 

0
0

  „
 D

o
 C

D
 L

n
 L

A
  

6 C
   

D C
   
C

D
 

  
CD
  0

 
 
0
0
 
 
0
0
 
 
C
 

L
A

 
C

D
 F

L 
e

 e
 e

 a
 o

 4
 4

= 
o 

N
N

 C
D

 1
0
 k

a
 	

O
^
 	

-
 	

0
,..

.,
0

0
-
 	

-
0
0
0
 
0
 
0
 
C

.̀
 
0

 
0

 
• 

-
.
0
v
e
t
o
+

t
v
.
-
-
0
-
4
1
■

1.
-
•
•
•
4

1
\)

-
•
0

4
.1

.4
1,

7
0
0
.
t
.
n
t
it
4
.
.
W

W
0
e
0

-
.1

C
A

L
n
4
+

W
N

-
•
-
 

K 
'''' 

r'l 
=6  "

''''
' T

 7
; V

2 
z;

 V
 rel

?
 N
1
  :n

 ;?
 2

r ;
1  ,w

 g 
.; '

Z.
 ,"

:5'
 e?

 g
 2

? .
g.:

,,,  E
7 

a' 
;?

 =
71

 2
; :

IP
 ;?

 2
 

= 
5 

-2
 g

" .) 
6

 a
. 	

.4
) 	

...0
 
	 !

r 
a

' 
;-

 	
. .

..c
o 

...
0 

0 
cD

.7
: 	

5-
 o

. n
 4

11.
 j
g
-
 	

g
: 

'a
 
6
  
a
 -i4

' 
5
. 
7
.J .
, 

4
 '
 3

 g
 5

. 
E

. 
0
° 

2
 "

t'
 e

L
9

 
6, 

F
.,.
.-

-A
 p

 5
 o

.a
.a

`w
,.

.)
.
, ,

. c
r.,

  2
.02

1
.0

 g
..
 7

2
9
e ,a

 to
 'n

' 
fal
.  V

, 
R

 ,
1

i3
5
-
-r,
l'
a
Q

0
b
>

g
l-
a
m

rb
?

2.,L
al

c7
,  

P
 0

  6
,  P

.,
  
- 
	*

 .=
, 

*.
 T

ia
-  e

L
P

, 
- 

p
..

" 
"0

  :
5

 
	c

 F
e 

' -
, F

 _
al

",
 ‘-

 
-,1

=n
 c

  '
. 
a
l 
rr,

  
.7

1
 .

..
. 

0
 

; ?
..1

 -'.
..' 
a

 -9
 C

D 
2.

 a
. ,

I,  2
..,

 L
-..

...
 .1

. K
..3

 	
0

'-',
g,

 g
 
c'

.̀  ..
ct

 <
 c

.,.
 
	
..
,,
 =

 	
E

-0
x
 

r-
l
c
n

„
..
0
0
-
.
.
.
.
-
-
.
 =

. 
a

 	
. 
0
, 
-.

. 
T

.,
. 
g
o
 t 6

  )1
  : 0

  .
..
 r ,

 7
i, e

-,
 n

 )
1 	

.0 
E

 2
 	

a
=

n
' 2

-I
 

0
0
,,
 7Z

; .
,_

, p
u 

0 
7)

 E
L 

X
I r

....
 •

-•
, 	

74
3 	

,.t.4
. g

 5
. ,

, =
 ,
,g

,,
5

.e
>

.t
 	

r.
 C

2
. 	

:.-4
 

	
. 

j .
 
a

7
 a

 1
3D

 ,
.D
 .
0
 
	

- 
, , 

.,'
 E

n 
g 

f,
...

. ,
 5

-  c
o
 F

A
' a

 
Q

.  o
t,  
0
.
 c
r 

2
 a

 O
p

  . 
X

 -
r:

 9
 	

--
-1

 f
l.
 ;
i.

,e,
 

,......
 

, t 8
 z

 j
a

 1
  . .
 . n , g

o=
 K a

 a
 1

 
 5

, m
zi

 ›, _
, §

  C
O

  
;t AX

  
,
 

nr c
' 
x
i

cl
 F

D .
 
: I
 
; i1
 3

.1
! 5-

  - 
0

 .
2
 1

-
  .
 "
 
:
 
' 
- -
 (2

  
in

n
-.

s
i 	

n
p
..
-z

ir
=

0
w

w
w

- ,1
.,.

.... 
-
, 
5
 

.a
g

:s
 	
;
 	
.
 

z4
 	

R
-`

-',
Z

I:
1-

.=
 
	

0.
 	

-r
 

-r
 -

 
z
 5

 
0

6
a

0
=

r
+

2
.
a

.
,
  
n
 
a
 0
-
 
-
n
 	

E.
 0.

  
-1
1
 

'
.
1
 0
-
 	
-
 , 
2
 	

.D1
 	

0
 .

.:
-
 

E
 
	

0,_ 
7-

 
	FA

5  g
 a

 	
.,i

 n
  a

 a
  
	

-
.
 
,i
 
a

  ,
..

/ 
....

, ' 
	

s 	
=

 -
 	

-Ti
 `a

 S..
.'
c
g

c
 	

't
:e

' 	
6
. 	

c
 

6
 

6
. 

5
 

6
. 	

0
. 

6
.•

 	
L

n
 6

  .
 	

c L
  . 
ci

  .
 .

z
 g

 g
 a-

 • 
A  
E

.  ..,
., 
E

 c
i  

6
 c

o
 =

 	
0
- 

0
- 	

C
 

C
L
 	

(0
.,
 	

= C.
 

L
a

 W
 1

.7
. 

A
 D

o
 	

.
-
 
k
J
 
„
 

+
4
 
4

. 	
-4

 
.4

 0
0
 L

A
 4

. 
L
n
 	

-4
 	

D
a
 C

T
 	

'+
+

'.
A

 D
. 

0
0

 	
4
.
 G
.
 	

0
 
G
.
 
v
D
t
a
„
 

 
0
 
-
4
 

A
m
 
N
O
D
 
.
4
 
C
A
 

.C
., 4

 0
 C

O
 0

3
 	

0
0

 0
3

..
6

4
 k

J
 G

J
 4

, 
0

0
 k

J
 K

. 
+

. 	
c
o
 ,
o
 4

, 
c
o
 4

, 
_
. 

.
1
 
0
 
0
 

- D
O
 
1
4
 
0
 	
„
 

in
 	

-
 6

 6
 1

0
 a

n
 

-4
).

 	
o
a
 -

 	
""

0.
. 

A
 0

4
 

-
 
0

 
0

.
 	

0
* 

o
o

 
,
4
 0

 L
a

 .
0

 0
0

 1
0

 A
 A

 A
 0

 
0

 6
.1

 0
 C

o
 0

' 
N

D
 0

 	
1,
4
 

3
0

 
0

 L
A

 0
 

O
A

 •
-•

 0
 1

0
 1

.4
 	

ia
 -

4
 0

 I
n

 0
0

 4
, 

1.
4

 „
 N

A
 N

A
 O

o
 0

 -
4

 N
-
0

0
 A

0
 C

D
 
0
 
„
 	

6.
1.

 
. 	

. 	
. 	

. 
	

. 
	

. 	
. 	

. 	
.
 	

.
 	

. 	
. 	

. 
	

. 	
. 	

. 	
. 

0
 
0
0
 0

0
 -
4

 V
IP

 N
O

 0
 0

 h
4

 
0

 
1
0
 A

 C
P

 0
3
 0

 k
J
 '
.4
 	

L
A

 0
 0

 0
3

 	
3
. 
V

i 
0
 

0
 
0

 ▪ 	

4
1

. 
„
 0

 c
D

 C
. ,
  .
0

 C
D

 0
 0

 C
A

 0
 „

 	
0
 4

. 
iv

 t
a
 	

2
.
1

 
4

.
 .
-
 
-
•
 
L
a
 
 
A

,
 

.
.
 
	

N
J
 	

N
J
 	

k
J
 

-
4
 
A
 
	

0
 
.
-
 	

4
 

 
.
4
 
4
>
 
G
.
 1

4
0
 

0
 
L

A
 
A

 
C

D
 -

. 	
-
-
 	

0
2
 4

>
 4

D
 -

 V
. 
0
 

:1
,.

. 
0

0
 	

'y
r,

 "
k
J
 1

..
. 	

'
0
.
0
 I
.,

 "
0

 "
..

4
 1

-.
. 	

Id
 t

A
 '0'

.-
 1

0
 	

in
 'a

 ;
!1;
 
.J

 	
N

J 
-A

 -
-
 G

. 
-.4

. 
la

 0
 4

0
 --

-3
 L

A
 

C
s
 0

 G
. 
0
 0

 G
N

 t
4
 4

+
 C

D
 0

 0
 C

. 
-
. 
0
 1

4
 0

0
 0

 0
 1

0
. 
O

n
 „

 G
. 
4
+

 C
D

 C
D

 
k
J
 4

>
 .

. 
0

 -
-
 -

4
 

C
D

 C
D

 L
a

 L
A

 0
 0

 0
 0

 .
0

 C
D

 0
 N

A
 0

 „
 D

a
 k

J
 4

>
 .

0
 C

D
 '
0

  C
D

 C
T

 7
+

 A
t 
 
.
 
.

0
- 

+
+

 k
4

 
C

D
 C

D
 .

0
 N

. 
'0

 „
 0

 0
. 

6
 -

. 
i.
..
, 
0
 ,
..
.,
 L

. ,  
.0

 0
0
0
 :
a
. 
"-

.1
 ..
.0

 0
.-
 a

 6
 6

 6
 '
a
 a

 6
 6

 .
,.
, 
.0

 .
..
, 
6
 -

-.
1
 6

 6
 6

 L
A

 6
 6

 6
 -

.3
 ,
..
 

O
0
•
 L

a
 
V

D
 i
v
 J

A
 O

0
 -

4
 4

. 
0
0
 4
,
 .
4

 L
n

 .
4

 C
D

 .
..

4
 C

' 
.7

0
0

  
L

a
 N

J
 .

.0
 L

a
 .

4
 C

D
 -

4
 C

D
 0

0
.0

  
A

 L
a

 -
I 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

  
              

C
D

 0
 o

 p
 o

 o
 p

 05
>

  
o

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 C0 D
  
0
 
0
 
p

Co
p

 
p

6
 

6
 0

•
 
0
  
6
 
60
  D

D
 0

  
DC

 0
 D

D
  
D

 0
  
DD

 0
0
 

0
0
 0

 C
D

D
6
a
6
6
>

 
 

D
 00

 
0
 00

 5 0
  
50

 
0

 
D

 C C
 0

 0
 p

 C
0
  
0
 

0
 6

 0
 5

>
 o

 5
>

 C
D

 5
7

 C
D

 C
D

 C
) 

C
D

 C
>

 0
 5

, 
0

 0
 6

 5
>

 C
A

 C
D

 C
7

 C
D

 C
7

 C
I 

C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 5

>
 C

D
 C

D
 C

A
 

CD
 

C
D

 C
D

 6
. 
6
 6

 6
 c

o
 6

 6
 p

 g
p 
5>
 6
 5
> 
6 
6 
5>
 5
> 
g 
5>
 C

D
 C
D 
CD
 C
A
 
C

D
 5
> 
5>
 5
> 
5>
 5
> 

5
>

 C
7
 C

D
 C
D 

0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 0

0
.
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

 
6▪  

6
 
6

 
oa
  
6

 
a

 
0

 
0

 
6

 
6D

  
6

 
00
  
00
  
60
  
60
  
6

 
6

0 D
  
6
 
6
 
6
 
00
 
06
 
0

0
  
0
 0
  
6
 
00

6
 
6
 
0 0
  
6
 
60
  
0

 
0

 

0
0
0
6
0
6
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 0

 
6
0
0
 
0
0
 
0
0
0
 
0
0
0
 
0
0
  

                       
   

6
 
0
0
 
 
0
 
0
 

D
D

 0
 CC

  
0

 
6

 6 0
 
0

 
0

 
00
  D

 D
 0

0
  
70
 C

 
D C
 0

 D
D

   
 6

 >
D

 0
  
>D

  
6

D
 C

 D
D

  o
 6

0
 0

 D
 

D
 
p
 0
 
0
 

o
0
0
0
6
.
0

,
0

5
6

(
6

0
.0

 0
 
0
 
O

 6
.
0
0
0
6
6
*
c
0
 0

 
0

 
6

 
C

.
 	

0
 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
C

D
 g

p
 g

p
 0

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 6

 5
>

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 6
 5

>
 g

p
 5

>
 5

>
 6

 C
7
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

  C
D

 g
o
 

a
 0
 A 

Is .
o
c
o
g
n
c
o
a
o
c
o
a
a
 	

o
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 0

 
0

0
0

 

0
 0

 0
 C

D
 C

7
 C

D
 C

) 
C

D
 C

>
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 c
>

 0
 0

 0
 6

 C
) 

C
D

 C
) 

C
D

 c
D

 0
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 0

 0
 0

 C
D

 0
 

0
  

0
  

D
  
0
 
0
 

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
 
0
 

 0
  

0
  

0
 
 
0
 

 0
 0

  
0

 C
0
 
 

	
D

 C
 D

 D
 D

 D
 D

 D
 6

 6
 6

 n
 6

 6
 C

 D
 0

 
0

 
c
 

 
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
C

,  
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

0
 C

D
 0

 C
A

 5
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D 

CD
 5

> 
CD

 0
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 5
>

 5
>

 5
>

 5
>

 C
D

 C
D

 C
7
 C

D
 C

7
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 
C

D
 C

D
 8

 1
3
  C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 g

p
 C

D
 C

D
 6

 5
>

 5
>

 6
 6

 5
>

 5
>

 5
>

 5
>

 6
 5

>
 5

>
 6

 C
D

 6
 5

>
 5

>
 5

>
 5

>
 

o
 

p
o
 C

7
 C

) 
C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 c
o
 0

 C
D 

C
D

 C
D

 V
P

 C
P

 C
P

 C
D

 0
 0

 C
D

 C
2

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
A

 0
 

C
D

 C
D 

CP
 

C
A

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C
D 
CD
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D 
C

D
 5

>
 5

>
 5

>
 a

 5
>

 6
 5

>
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C
D 

C
D

 C
D

 C
7

 C
D

 5
7

 5
D

 5
>

 6
 5

>
 C
D 

C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 5
>

 
5

>
 b

 5
>

 5
>

 5
>

 C
D

 C
D

 i
n

 C
y
 i
n

 g
p

 a
 6

 6
 5

>
 6

 5
>

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 6
 5

>
 g

p
 g

p
 g

p
 6

 a
 6

 g
o

 g
o

 g
o

 g
o

 
co

 c
o 

c
o
 c

o
 a

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

O
 0

 0
- 

C
D

 0
 C

D
 0

 a
p

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 0

 G
A

 v
o

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

A
 C

D
 C

D
 

N
 

k
J
 	

L
A

 '
44

 "
..

.I
 A

 0
11

 	
1■

• t
a.

.1
 	

■
■

• 	
■-

• 
4

>
 4

>
 +

4
 

■
4

 4
4

 -
4

 L
A

 C
a

 4
>

 
	

.
4
 
N

D
 0

 
tJ

 L
a
 	

.0
 
	

0
 L

a
 

	
h

4
 

0
0

 
C

e
 
0

 
N

D
 	

C
O

 C
a
 0

 .
0
 O

D
 

C
. 

C
D

 L
A

 0
 C

o
 G

. 	
.
4
 c
o
 
(
.
4
 
,
0
 
,
4
 
c
.
 	

0
,
 

J
A

  I
A

 6
 	

-
 
in

 1
.4

 -0
1

4
 6

 0
 i
n
 

I
V

 
0

 
0

1 ,
 .
1
 
	

-0
0

0
 	

In
 l
a
 	

-a
 

• 
„
 
(
5

)
 
L

a
 
0

 
L

a
 
„
 
C

4
 
‘n

 
0

 
C

D
 0

4
 i
v
 .

4
 k

J
 

C
D

 L
a
 -

. 
A

 0
 0

0
 G

, 
Q

D
 t
4
 a

o
 1

.4
 V

D
 -

I 
-
4
 

•
 
4

>
 L

A
 L

A
 k

J
 0
0
 	

c
o
 0

0
 .
4
 k

J
 ,
4
 %

A
 %

A
 t
a
 N

J
 C

O
 4

>
 	

0
.
 A
 
	

C
T
 
0
 
4
>
 

C
7

 C
7

 0
 C

a
 

. 	
. 	

. 	
.
 	

.
 	

. 
	

.
 	

. 
	

. 	
.
 	

. 	
. 	

. 	
.
 	

.
 	

. 	
.
 	

. 
0
0
0
0
 

  
 i
n
 i
m

 L
A

 O
 5

g
 6

 5
>

 I
N

, 
4
D

 4
,
  4

. 
4
D

 O
a
 G

A
 .
4
 L

a
 i
n
 	

a
 4

>
 C

T
 4

D
 0

 k
J
 

0
0

0
4

 
L

n
 
.4

 -
a
 

O
 

0
0
 4

>
 I
A

 0
0
0
4
4
, 
N

e
w

 %
A

 O
a
 W

I 
0
 4

>
 t
o
 C

A
 O

D
 .
0
 -

-
 „

 C
D

 h
.,
 4

. 
■
1
 

N
 	

L
a

 	
,.
.,
 	

-
..

 	
L

n
 

.
.
 0

 
■

■
 

G
,
  1

4
 ■

■
 

%
A

 -
C

O
 
D
O
 
-
4
 '
0

5
 -

 	
.
.
 	

,.
, 

--
 N

. 
,.

.,
 .

. 
,,

, 
..

 4
, 	

.
.
.
a
.
P
O
O
.
.
.
 N
I
 
0
3
 

0
 .
..
.1

 4
1
. 
ta

 4
-6

 .
4
 0

 7
. 
k
4
 0

 .
. 
ln

 -
4
 N

J
 
4
>

 G
N

 D
O

 
,m

4 
,
0
 0

 0
 k

4
 4

. 
0
 t
4
 L

a
 O

w
 .

5
 D

a
 0

 .
..
. 
..
 

C
D

 0
 O

o
 +

4
 4

>
 -

+
 C
,
  %

A
 0

 4
>

 4
>

 C
D 

LA
 
c
o

 .
. 
1,
4 
4,
 e
q 

.0
 ,
z
:,
 ,

,,
, 

t.
, 

I,
 ,

..
.,

 ,
..

1
 .

..
. 

..
1

 	
0
0
 .
4
 g

y
 .

..
. 

6
, 

4
-v

 
.
4
 

6
 6

 
6

 la
 )

. 
;c

l 
4

..
4

 0
 
0

 O
 
6
 
6
 
6
0
 4

>
. 
tA

 0
 0

 A
 0

0
0
  0
0

 '
a

:.
 6

 0
. 

4
..

 -
 O

 ,
..

. 
..

0
 ,.

.n
 6

 
0

4
 
t.

.)
 
in

 G
.,
  C

l 
G

A
 
O

a
 c

o
 I■

J
 o

o
 C
h
 0
 
1
4
 
0
 
k
J
 
C
A
 
0
0
 
0
 C

D
 o

 s
o
 0

 0
 y

o
 c

o
 6

4
 k

4
 -

4
 4

, 
A

 .
0

 a
  .
.4

 k
J
 A

D
 

cD
 .
. 

..
 4

, 
-
a

 -
4

 C
D 

k
4
 -

4
 L

A
 C

D
 -

4
 

CD
 -

4
 .

-.
 „

 0
 4

>
 t

a
 0

 0
 k

4
 C

7
 0

 k
J
 i
a

 O
a

 
C

D
 O

a 
lA

 .
r
. 

0
, 
O

4
,
  
,
,
 
0

 

0
  

0
  
0

 
0

 
 

6
  

> 
 

D
  

D
  
 C

   
D

  0
  

C
  

C
 

D
  
 
0

 
0

 
 

C
   
0
   
6
 
>

 
 
a

 
 

D
  
 C

   
0
 D

 
 D

  
D

  
D

  C
  
 6

  
 0

  
C

 
 
0
 

 D
 D

  
0
 

o
 

0
 C

D
 C

7
 c
> 

5
>

 5
> 

C
D

 0
 
0
 0
 5
> 
O 
5>
 6
 5
> 
5>
 C
)
 
C
)
 C

D 
CD
 C
D
 

C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
A

 
CD

 5
D

 6
 0

 	
c
a

 c
a

 c
a

 
b

 
C

a
 
0

 5
> 

a 
5>

 5
> 

5>
 

5
>

 5
>

 0
 6

 6
 6

 6
 6

, 
6
 5

>
 6

 5
>

 5
>

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 c
o
 0

 5
>

 6
 5

>
 5

>
 5

>
 

a
 C

D
 C

) 
C

3
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 	

CD
 C

D
 C

D
 

C
D

 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

. 
C

>
 C

D
 C

D
 C

>
 C

D
 C

D
 

O
 

C
D

 0
 C

>
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 5
>

 5
>

 a
 6

 5
>

 c
>

 a
 c

>
 c

, 
5
>

 5
>

 O
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
  

                     
pD

  5
 
5
 
>
 
 
>
 
 
> 6
 

  
> 
 6
 
 
o
 
 

D
  
C

  
C

  
p
 

7
 C

 

O
 

D
 D

 C
D

 0
  6

 6
 D

 D
 C

 0
 C

  
D

 
 

C
D

  D
 D

 D
 D

 C
 C

  
D

 
>

 
>

 
>

 
 
6

C6 Z
  >

 C
C

  
D

D
 D

  
6

 

-
4
 	

.
.
 
	

.
.
 
	

.
.
 
.
.
 	

-
.
 

4
>
 	

6
4
 C

D
 t
4
 k

J
 k

4
 0

 L
A

 L
A

 -
-
 N

-
 0

 4
,
  4

>
 4

>
 C

D
 „

 -
 C

D
 v

. 
0
,
  -
-
 0

 0
 0

3
 k

4
 0

 O
-
 L

a
-
-
 t
J
 N

J
 ,
J
 

C
D

 O
P

 0
 0

0
0

 o
4

- 
C

D
 .
4
 0

D
 -

4
 0

 C
P

 0
 0

 0
 0

 „
 +

-
 L

A
 O

A
 c

o
 .
4
 c

o
 o

0
 ,
, 
..
.)

 4
z
. 

t.
, 
J
a
 ,
0
 c

D
 t,

a,
 ,
,,
 

e
o
 	

a 
6
. 
a
. 
1
).

 a
+

 6
 a

. 
c
, 
c
- 

0
+

 4
. 
a
. 
a
+

 a
- 

0
.
 
a

 
o

 
a

 
o
,
 
 
o
 
6
.
 
6.

 
 
1
1
,
.
 
6
 
d
 
6
 
e
 
6
+
 
•
 
6
.
 
6
 
a
 
6
 
d
.
 
6
 
0
.
.
 	

,I
..

. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 292 of 311



n
4

 
P i,

 
4k

 C
n 

-P
 

-4
 

0
 

0
 

F
 

S:111(11IGNROCH 

C
 a 0
 

P
D
 laquioldos  isanv  0
 

0
 

3 0
 

a F
 

0
 

CO
 

O
. 

0
0
 

C
 

c
, 
L
A

 4
, 
A

  A
 4

, 
4
, 
A

 4
, 
4
, 
4
, 
U

4
 L

W
 L

4
 L

O
 L

. 
L
4
 L

4
 N

N
  
t
J
 P
J
 	

 
N
J
 
C
D
 
>
7
 
t
.
)
 
N
o
 
N
o
 
-
•
 
4
7
 
4
7
 
4
7
 	

4
7
 
4
7
 
L
O
 
4
7
 
=
.
 	

0
 

	

L
n

 U
. 

>
J
 -

J
 C

D
 N

J
 N
J 
	

N
J
 
4
)
 
4,
 

 
C
o
 
N
.
)
 
0
0
.
 
t
r
p
L
A
 
4
,
 
L
4
 
t
J
 
.
9
 
0
0
 

.0
 4

=
 0

 o
 .

0
0
 .
0
0
 
C
I
 
C
 	

0
) 	

o
 	

s
. 	

1
.4

..
 F

e
. 

C
C

R
 0

 
C

 	
*
 	

a
. 	

1̂2
  
a

.' C
.--
) 	

C
L

  
a
 

E
 43

-  a
 

-6'
 F

j"
 	

./D
  F

3
 

	 i
f
 o
;
 
 

	

143
.
 	

a
 	

le
?
 
1
2
.
 

	

*
 	

= 

	

„ 
	 1.6 "

. 
..

 
 

. 
0

0  0
 0

 0
 

2  
_

Ip
, 

	

IT
  
	

. 

	

;... . 

i
r
7

a
g

a
,
g

 	
-
 
f
o

a
C

0
=

 

	

w
 	

P
c
iw

n
 	

a
.7

4
,3

7
D

-n
5

R
-t

o
.5

3
. 

g
 	

7.
 r5

 	
gicv 	

ciP1
 	

L. 
- 
	

6
- 5

 
 

a
 	

g
 -

0
 a

 
0
. 	

,,,
„?

 	
o

 
■+"

 	
.c

 	
1:'

• 	
'7

.1
 

.a
g

 	
5

m
p

u
o

a
 	

r
b

2
U

?
/
r
D

'i
5

r,
, 	

0
-
c
  

-.
1

 
 

0.
711

  
c
 

	

C-
 
	

F.1 

	

C
L
 

G.
 G

C
 	

Pi
 §

 
e
l 
C

P
. 
C

L
 e

l 
0

 0
 o

 	
Q
.
 O

. 
O
p
 
0
.
 

0
. 

N
J
 
-
3
 
1
 	
-

■ 

i
n
 
i
n
 
o
 

-.
3
 	

N
I 	

Z.
. 

6
 
6
 
6
 

o
 
o
 

o
 

L
a

 L
a

 	
0

5
 

0
0
 	

0
0

 	
iN

D 
L
A

 	
L
A

 	
N

.,  

I'  
A

 
	

0
0

 

0
0
 4

>
 	

-4
 

4p
. 	

IA
 	

'...
0
 

O
  
2

 
g

 
".

..,
 

	..
..

 	
L

..
 

L
A

 
00

 	
N

J 

.7
.3

 
,0

 
0

0
 

0
0

 
4

, 
0

 
0
4
 C

>
 

p
 

N
 
b
 
o
 

0
 	

-
 

L
..

 	
a

 
"-

-)
 	

6
 	

.3
 	

O
 	

•-
• 

-
 	

N
J
 
C
P
 	

C
.
 
0
 	

0
0
 

O
N

O
 

 
 

N
I 
0
 0

3
 0

 C
N

 C
P

 P
. 
6
,
0
0
0
0
6
0
0
0
o
.
 

C
 C

D
 0

 
C

7
 4

. 
CD

 %
A 

CD
 L

n
 0

 L
A

  
C

 0
 0

-
 C

 0
0

 0
  0
 C

 C
D

D
  
- 

 0
 C C 
 

 C
C

D
  

C
 

 C
CD 

 C 0
7

 0C
7 

 0
  6

 6
 C

 D
 0 0

  C
7D

 6
 

N
'
 

N
P
 	

t
o
 	

>
a
 	

•-
• 	

C
D
 	

G
o
 

J
I
 
0

0
 
L

o
 
N

I
 	

0
0
0
 

C
o

 	
0

 	
A

 A
 N

P
 	

4
*
 N

J 
I
n
 
-
 
"
-
-
3
 
a
 	

"
5

. 
a

 '
0

 	
'L

A 	
_

 _
 -

, 
 

-
.
 In

 
.
.
.
 	

A
 	

.
-
 	

N
I 

0
. 	

I
J
 	

C
D

 	
0
 0

. 
0
0
 	

0
0

 
p

.
o

.
o

*
p

a
p

p
.
o

p
-
.
4

.
6

0
0

0
0

0
o

0
c
,
c
D

u
o
c
)
0
5
. 

0
 6

. 
a

>
 0

 0
 .

0
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 0
0

 C
A

 
Op

 6
 .

.4
 6

 6
 6

 6
 6

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 6
 j
 -

• 
P1.
7
 L

. 
C

D
 0

0
 
0
 L

a
 
C

D
 0

 0
 0

 D
O

 V
P

 C
D

 0
 C

P
 0

 0
 0

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 L

o
 C

D
 c

a
. 
4
, 
.4

 

o
p
o
p
o
0
6
6
0
0
6
6
6
6
0
 0

0
0
 0

0
6
0
0
9
6
6
0
 

6
0

o
9

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

0
0

0
o

6
 

5>
 	

o
 00

 0
 0

 C
7

 0
 C

P
 0

0
 

00
 
0

 00
 0

0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 

00
 00

 
C

D
 	

co
 

0
 

0
0

 
CO

 

C
o
 
C
D
 

6
 

L
A

 
0

 

0
0

 
0
0
 

A.
 

0
 

0
 

ia
 
6
 

o
 

O
 

 0
0

 
0
0
 

O
 

P
A
P
 
0
 

I
.
>

 
0
 

L
A

 
C

D
 

0
0

 
4

, 
C

D
 

'
-
4
 
C
D
 

N
J
 
C
7
 

t
o
 
0
 

0
 

0
0
 

0
0
 

i.
 

N
J
 
C0
 

L
A

  

0
 

0
0
 

o
o
 

C
P
 

L
A
 
0
0
 

'N
D 

0
0
 

0
0
 

C
D
 

N
J
 
0
 

L
A
 
0
 

0
 

0
0
 

0
0
 

O
 

G
a
 	

5.
) 

6
 

L
A

 
CD

 

N
J
 
O
 

0
0
 

i
.
 

0
0
 

O
 

S
 

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
9
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

*
2
 *
p

p
p

 
0
 

C
 

C
  

C
D

 C
C

  
0
7
  
 
D D

   
D

  
0
0
  

D
  
,

D
   
C C

  
 C

D
  C

 
C

 
 
C

O
   
D

  0
7
  
0
0
  
C

  
D

  
0

 
 
0

 
 CC
  
D C
  

0
7

 
 
0
0
 

0
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
9
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 
C
D
 
0
0
0
 
 

6 0
6

00
 

6 0
 6 o

6 o
6 o

6 0
6 0

 0
 o

c
o

 
00

 0
o
 0

b
 
 
6
0
  
06
 00

 

 
 
 

C
 C

 C
o

  
0
 
0
 
C

D
 
0
0
 
 
oC
  
6

 
C
  
C
 D

 

0
 

0
 
0

6
0

0
5

6
.
0

0
o

p
p

o
p

p
p

o
p

p
o

p
p

5
6

6
6

5
6

5
D

o
o

 

0 
C

D
 C

D
 C

7 
C

D
 
C

D
 C

D
 	

0
 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
P

 	
G

P
 C

7
 I

D
 C

P
 C

D
 C

7
 0

 C
7
 

0
6
6
6
6
6
6
0
.
8
8
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
8
8
9
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
 

0
0
0
0
6
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 
0
 
o
 
o
 
o
 
c
a
 
0
 
o
 
0
 
0
 
o
 

O
 

a
>

 a
) 

6
 c

) 
o
>

 c
o
 o

p
 6

 o
p
 

0
  6
 6

 0
6

 O
P

 6
 6

 C
a

 6
 o

p
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 

0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 
C
D
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
O
 
0
 
C
D
 
c
7
 
C
D
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 
0
 C

D
 

0
 
0
 

0
 
6
0
=

 
6
 0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
C

 
0

0
 
0

 
0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 o0

 
6 6

8
 g

 0 0
 0

 
> 0

D
 
D

O
D

 
00

 00
 0

 
D 0
7
  
0
 7 0
 
0
 00

 0
 00

 6 0
 00

 6 0
  
6
 
60
6
 0

 

0
 

o
p

o
0

0
6

0
0

0
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

6
0

o
 

C
 G

p
 

 
 
0
 0

0
  
0
7
  D
  
00

   
7 0
   
C C 
 
00

   
D C 
  

0 0
   
C

D
 0 7
 

 
 

D C
   
0 C

   C
C

   
D

  0
0  
 C C

  
07

  
C

  
C

  
0
a
  
6

 
 
 
6
 

•   

0
0
 

0
 

0
 o

>
 .
6
 6

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

7
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 o

>
 c

p
 o

p
 6

 

7
  

P
  
0

 
  

D
   0

0
 
 
6 0

   
6 0

   
D

 
 
0 0
   0

 C
D
 
 

 
C
C
 
 
00

  
0
0
 
 

D C
 
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
  
7
0
 
  
D
 
 

C
D

  
0

   
D

  
 0

  
CC

   
D

  
D

 

O
 5

) 
c
) 

o
 c

) 
C

D
 C

7
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
7
 C

a
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 p

 4
7
 5

0
 p

 o
 

O
 

6
0

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
0

0
o

o
b

o
b

b
 

C
P

 G
P

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

A
 00

 0
0

 0
 

0
 
C

) 
C

D
 0

 
00
 0

0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 
0
 
C
D
 
0
 c
9
 
C
D
 
0
 
C
D
 0

 

O
 

C
>

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

I 
C

D
 C

D
 C

>
 C

D
 5

a
 O p

  
Op

  5
>

 p
 5

>
 o

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 o

 
6
6
6
6
6
b
6
6
6
6
 a

a
a
.a

g
g

g
 

o
b
b
b
6
6
6
 

C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
7 
0
 

C
> 

C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 	
c
 0

7
 0

 0
 0

 
C

D
 C

) 

0
 

J
 
0

 
L

a
 	

.0
 .

--
 	

L
a 

-
.
 	

0
0

 	
Le

. 	
L

A
 	

0
0

 N
I
 	

L
o
 	

0
., 	

.p
0
 0

0
 t

a
 	

7
_ 

...
...

, 

Iv
  
0
 
 
-N

a 
0

0
 	

O
 O

. 
'0

 	
in

 	
0

 I
L

, 
*.0

. 	
-
.
 .
4
 

N
J
 
4
, 	

C
D
 
	

L
o
 L

a
 0

0
 	

C
o

 O
D

 
0
 :
4
 C

>
 4
,
 

 
C
D
 
0
5
 
C
D
 
>
J
 5

>
 o

 2
 8

 0
 0

 0
 C

›
 C

 8
 C

D
 0

 >
a

 t
J
 3

0
0

0
 G

a
 C

. 
6

6
-
6

6
6

6
6

6
 4

 0
 0

 i
a

. 
0

 6
6

6
6

0
6

6
6

6
6

 :
-.

3
 .
0
 

0
 L

a
 o

r
 •

0
 
0
 t

.0
 0

 0
 o

 0
 .
.0

 0
 0

 O
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 L

a
 0

 0
 .
r
..
. 
o

 

,4
 

	

0
. 

ID
 0

0
 N

J
 .
3.
 •
-•
 	

4
.
 	

N
J
 	

N
J
 
N
4
 

%
A

N
, 	

C
O

 -
-
I 
L
A

 A
 C

N
■

 
N
J
 
N
P
 
A
 
0
0
0
 %
4
 

%.
0 
0

 	
0
 
J
P
,
 

0
,
0

0
J
 
A

 -
.0

 L
A

 L
o

 	
a
 
0
,
 
0
,
.
.
.
,
0
 

	

O
 *0

 "
0

 l
a
, 	

"0
. 
0
1
0
 O

 	
O

 	
O

 	
o

 .L
n

 
a

. 
6

 
r..

) 
A

 	
L
a
 0

0
 0

0
 3

4
 

C
O

 
to

 
G

P
 V

.,  
•D

 3
.3

 C
D

 0
0

 .
0

 g
 O

. 
0

 C
>

 0
 0

0
 C

D
 >

a
 N

J
 

	

N
I 

N
J 

C
D

 
,
J
 L

A
 

C
D

 
N

I 
C

D
 -

4
 	

0
 
A

 
>

a
 
C

O
 

 
N

 
C

D
 C

D
 V

.4
 W

. C
O

 C
D

 

00
 
 

00
  

00
 

 
 
0

0
 
 7 0
 
  
0

0
  
0
  00

  
00

  
6 0

  
O

 
 00
 
 

06
 
 
6 0
  
0
0
 

 
 6 0
 00
 
 

6 0
   
6 0

  
0

  00
 
 00
 
 00
 
 00
 
 7 0
   
C

D
 o

D
 

N
J
 	

N
-
 

0
 -

4
 C

S
 N

J
 C

D
 0

0
 
C

D
 C

D
 0

-
0
0
  
t.
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 N

J
 C

D
 0

 C
. 

0
0
 
C

D
 0

 0
 C

D
 

e?
 
 
5
 
e
 
eP
  6

 e
 e

 e
 4

 e
 4

 4
 .

 4
 e

 i
r
 4

 i
r
 e

 i
r
 e

 e
 4

 e
 e

 .
 D

r
 

-.
) 

O
 

 

N
J
 

1
3>

 
Cp

.1
 

.5
) 

 
 

 

 
 

"C
D
 

C
D
 

C
D
 

C
P
 

0
0

 

 
 

 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 293 of 311



D
4
4
+

 
OD

 N
 N

J
 p

. 
a
 5

..
 

ON
O 	

in
 
-
 

0
0

0
-
o

 
).

2
 L

A
 P

O
 .

4
 O

D
 

0
0
0
 
 
 

P
  

C
  
 
o
 6

  
6
 t

> n
 0
O

0
  
.
0
 

is
 

-
-
 	

0
0

L
O

 
9

 
>

4
 C

D
 A

 00
0

 
--

 t
o

e
 	

O
D

 -
■

 
	

IA
 

0
0
 0

 %
. 
i-

 3
4
 G

o
 0

0
N

 
C

D
 0

 %
a

 C
A

 
■
J
 
J
A

 
G

o
 C

h
 O

D
 

C
D

 
6

 
tn

 t
o

 L
A

 
co

 L
A

 
0
0
 A▪  0

0
 9

 -
3

 D
J

 4
D

 L
n

 D
4 

o
 

c>
 5

>
 5

> 	
c>

 C
D
 
C
D
 

g
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

 

6
0

0
9

70
2
.6

  
0
0

6
0
 

b
o

o
 
o

 O
o
 
n
o
o
 
o
 
o
 

c>
 5

>
 c

>
 	

C
D

 C
D

 C
D
 

G
D

 G
7

 C
D

 C
D

 
0
0
 o

 0
0
0
0
 
 
6
,
 0

0
 

0
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 
C

D
 C

I 
C

D
 

C
D

 C
D

 

C
D

 
C

a 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
] 

D D
   
0

•
 
0
   0
0
  

70
 
 
 
D

D
   
D

 
 
0
 
 
7
 
 Q

 g
 

o
 
o

 
°
o

p
=

 
0

0
 

0
6
0
0
0
0
0
=

0
0
0
 

• 
C

D
 
CD

 
0
 C
D 

CD
 C

D 
0

 C
P

 
CD

 

C
D

 C
D

 
0
 C

D
 
o

 0
 0

 0
 0
 
C
P
 
C
D
 

8
8

8
8

8
8

8
8

8
8

8
 

O
 

4
>
 
 0C

  
DP

  C
 
C
 
 
0
 
C
 
0
 

P
 0

 0
 G

 G
 C

 D
 0

 0
 C

  
0
 

C
D

 C
D

 
CD

 C
D

 C
D
 C
a
 C
D 

0
 C

O
 C

D
 0

 
0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
) 

C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 0

 C
D

 
C

a 
C

D
 C

A
 0

 0
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 0

 0
 

C
D

 0
 C

) 
C

D
 C

D
 C
D 

0
 C

D
 
C
D
 C
A
 
C
s
 

D
 0

 C
 C

  

• 

C
D D

  D
 C

D
  
0 D

  
 
D

 D
 0

D
 

• 
D

 
c
 c

 c
 
C

 D
 C

 D
 0

 0
 

0
6
0
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
0
 

C
D

 0
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 0

 

D
A

D
 3 +4

 
C

. 
0

0
 	

+
.1

 
A 	

:0
C

. 
 

- - N
 1

.,
 6

 
co

 0
0

 %
a

 	
A

 
c

o
 
t
,
 

C
D

 
0
 
C

.
 
N

D
 
C

o
 
A

 
5>

 A
 .

4
 

C
D

 C
D

 
6
 

A
 t

o
 A

 	
c

a
 

C
D

 
0
 A

 O
D

 P
O

 C
D

 
-]

 C
s
a
 

4
3
 

-
•
 

C
A

 
C
a
 	

a
-
 

N
.
 I
V

 
-
 %
.
 	

l
a
 

0
,

oc
.  
A
 0
.
 
 
L
A
 

A
 C

o
 A

 V
. 

p
 G

O
 D

J
 
t
o

 
A

 

-t
4
 

C
D

 	
C

A
 	

.
)
 

C
A

 
C

D
 	

o
 c

>
 C

D
 
C

o
 o

p
 0

 c
n

 
C

D
 C

7
 D

O
 0

 C
D

 L
A

 C
D

 O
D

 O
D

 
S

D
 

m
6

0
6

0
 
0

 0
 0

 
6

6
0

 
C

7
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 	

0
 c

o
 

C
D

 C
D

 P
O

 :
: 	

3
.a

 =
 	

71,
7: 

CD
 

0
" 	

C
a
 

O
 

O
 

• 
56

  8
 

• 
°
 

• 
8

 

)>
 

c 00
 	

0
. 

E 	
0
. 

0
. 

0
 

F7
.; gr
  

5>
 

0
 

rs
 

3
 

F
r 

>
 

*
 

0
 

0
0.
 

 

0
 

SR I  11■KIA:111 

0
 

3)
 

9
 

(-7
 co 0.
 

N
 

o
. 

0
 

W
 

-
 

O
 C

D
 O

 
F
D
 

C
D

 5
>

 5
>

 5
>

 5
>

 o
 c

>
 c

>
 C

D
 C
D 

CO
 o

 5
>

 c
>

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 
o

 5
>

 c
>

 c
>

 c
>

 c
>

 
O

 
0
0
0
0
0
 
8
8
8
 
o
b
6
0
6
0
6
0
.
0
0
6
6
6
6
0
6
6
6
0
0
0
6
6
6
6
 

o
 o

 C
D

 C
P

 9
 	

C
P

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
Y

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 0

 C
P

 0
 

a
 

to
 0
 SHIM.LICINIIcIXH 

C
h

 L
A

 4
o

 4
o

 A
 4

>
 4

o
 4

o
 4

o
 i
s
 l
a
 L

. 
L

. 
t
a
w
 t

4
 t
a
 
t
.
 
h
.
 	

C
D
 

t
4
.4
-7
t
4
1
.
4
.
-
.
)
-
.
.
-
.
0
0
0
.
-
-

■-
■
-
0
0
0
0
0
.
-
.
-
)
.
-
,
-
.
0

.0
0
^
0
0
0
0
.
0
.
0
 

•-
•
 ^

. 
7
. 

v,
 .

..
.,

 1
4

 0
 .

4
 1

6
 .

-
-
. 

..
.)

 1
6

 -
•
 0

 A
 L

..
)
 t

. 
0

 t
o

 u
l 
4

. 
e

.,
 N

.0
0

0
 -

.4
 Z

S
 t
o
 .

r.
 1

..
, 

1.4
 
.
-
.
.
-
 

0
 
7
1
 
C
O
 
V
)
 
r
i
)
 
C
O
 
C
O
 - 

cn
 v

).-
0 

 
	-I

 to
 (-

) -
 i
n

) 
n

 r
,  •

s
t 
r"

,v
) 

;-
--

o
 )

 r
" 
D

an
n

-o
n

 
z
m

,-
.0

0
4
..
0

,Q
0
 n

 c
 
c

. n
o 

0
  B

 0
 0

 
 .
0
 o

 -
•
 c

 a
 o

g
 0

 w
e

b
 -

.=
=

r,
c
.,

 5
..

 c
 

6
' 
=

 .4
  
E

:
 
rs
,:
g
 r.

..*-
 	

2:
6 
i
s
 -
 
7
 
-
:
?
.
.
.
e
s
 
g).
..
"7
,.

 
 
=
 

C
L
 
 
0
 
e
r
 .
1
 
 
3
 F.
 0

 p
, 

5
 7

i-
1-1

 
a
 -
5

- 	
.
=

=
 
-
-
.
n
o
 
I
a
.
-
.
 	

.
 
n

 
-
•
 
.
4

,  
0

 
=

 .7
1.
 .
-.
 
CD
 C
S)
 

 
4
2
 

a
 3
 
 
*
 
	

e2
5.
.V
;i

"8
:
3
3
g
 
 
q-
.
°
T3
 3
' 

91
9.

C
)

.
.
,
,
2
g1
)
.
1
"
l
a
 
5
 
 
W
F
D.
 

 
E
l
.
.
I
I
F
;
 
R0
7.
 

n
 
g

 P
. 

F
lt
 i
g

 ;
' 
0

 '
' 
w

 a
 .

 L
S

 -
7

,1
Z

- 7
°  7

, 
4

) 
o

 §
 O

'''
 .

=
,E

n.'
 2

 `
. 

"r
ic

n
g

 
	

:7
1 

"r
l
-

g
q
r
,%

"
?
..
. 
E

L
=

 3
'9

.=
 ,
=

•
ft
g
 
	

e
l 
8
 '
 3

 <
 ',

T
a
tI

n
ig

q
5
..

.r
.8

'x
 

; 
7

 7
  
.
 

7
 v*

 .
-..,0

 <
H

;;
  

'a
_

 :
 ,D-r

i ,
, P
, 

! 
a

 :7
. 

: 
.,g
l 
: 

4
: 4' 

n.
 xrg

 :
 

..,
%

= 
ch

.,12
 c

: :
. 

7,n
  

c
a
, 
. 
	E

i. -
 
	

.. 
a

• ,
,,

n
v,

...
= 

5
 2

0
 0

 t
..
.,
 T

2
.2

 .
..
..i

n 
,c

- 	
.--

. 	
c
,„

=
=

 

r 
 

C
D

 .
=

 :
■
" 	

,.
.,
 7

,'
 

 

R
 
	
E

, "'
 3

r.
,,,
  5
 'A

 c
 -

1
'8

 2
 V

' ,
 .-1

•I
c'
 
	

c
l 
7.1
L
V
F
•
6
1
1
5
 
 
Z.
'
3
 	

C
L
"
.
'
 
 
 
 

1
9
 '
-.

1
  a
 "

L
I 

7
 c

o
t 

c
o

  z
 g

.  p
,

d
a
m

 
 
.
-
.
=

 
	

5
 	

Z7
)-
  C

L
 =

 
■
P

I
• 	

7
 
7

 
7
 ..

 
a
g
 	
.
.
,
,
.
.
 	

--, 
it
. 
.
.
2
 	

7
:,
,
,
-
,
 	

7
* 
	

ic
.5

. 	
-1

.1
 	

m
. 

C
. 

3
  
'1
 
 
0
 

 
=
 
"
 

-T
1
 
 
.-n

 ,
D

 =
 -

. 
a

 -
r:

 :
, 

a 
-i 	

.
 

'X
 
	

..
 
;
 
 

 
Ft

•
 	

c
l.
  e
l 
g
 O

. 
-
 f
a
. 
=

 0
 	

r ,
 c

t.
..
ri
  

,,
, 

c 
c 

c*
 ra
.
 

7
.
 	

7.
. 

o.
 	

c
 

	

0-
 	

n
.
 

.-
. 	

.-
. 	

t
.
 	

I
s
 

..
1 	

C
s
 
	
4
-
 ,
 
	

C
o
 	

■
■

• 
..
..
..
 	

-
. 
..
.4

 
A

. 	
D

J
 D

4
 
00
00

..
..

a
, 	

L
A

 C
O

 	
•
-■

 A
. 

A
 U

s
 
Cs
a 
h
a
 

-.P
. 
- .
1
 
L
a
 -0
 
"
C,
 -
h
.
 

5,
 1
.,
. 	

G
. 
1,

..
, 

I.
, 

"A
 _

. 
t.

.,
 )

„,,
 
l
c
>
 	

.-
- 

)
:
 
A

 
L.
' 	

?
..

'-
. 

..
..

, 
.!

..
4

."
'  

O
D

 -
-.

2
 l
a
s
 t

. 
L

A
 ,
 .
..
..
..
 A

 .
-•

 
O

D
 
■

■
 

'a
s

 +
4

 C
D

 t
J

 
C

D
 +

. 
D

J
 .
..
. 

	
k
4
 p

p
 c

o
 L

A
 t

J
 t

o
 g

o
 
c

o
 
.-

- 
-.

..
, 
C

s
 	

-
■

 C
D

 
C

A
 G

O
 0

 U
. 

7
. 
7
4
 N

O
 -

 -
.4

 C
I 
C

A
 C

s
 C

,
  0

0
 C

O
 0

 ■
-
 •

••■
■

 
■

-
•
 
%

. 
Iv

 .
.-

.1
 .

4
 

-,
 L

A
 

C
D

 C
S

 h
a 

...
.)

 C
D

 G
D

 
L

A
 o

p
 c

p
 0

 C
D

 9
 

N
 5

>
C

1
0

6
.:

0
6

.0
L

A
6

6
t.

4
6

6
..
.
.
.
0

-
 
4
 
0

,.
.
.
.
0
0
4
,
4
,
i,
0
0
 .

0
 t
o
s
-.

4
0

.-
»

 
c
o
 6

 »
 -

 0
,  c

•
 O

D
 1

.4
 C

a
 .
- 

0
 D

O
 C

o
 r

..
) 

0
 C

>
 %

A
 G

O
 0

 C
o

 
L

a
 
L

P
 D

O
 C

o
 -

-.
 c

o
 0

 A
..

, 
A

. 
. 

..
. 

_
4

 

.-
: 	

t:
4
 	

I
,
 	

h
. 

.4
 	

4
>

 	
IA

 C
o

 L
a

 	
V

D
 
,-

-.
 	

"
"
 	

D
J
 	

..
..
 +

. 
a
. 	

■
■

 
9
 
■
-
 
-
-
 
4

>
 

,4
 A

 	
%

. 
h

a
 L

A
 .

0
 L

A
 	

4
.
 
0

 
7

.
 	

4
>

 4
>

 :
4

 .
--

 
.0

 L
A

 
■

■
 

	
..

..
 	

C
O

 A
 •

 •
--

 %
) 

.0
 

A
 
c
o

 I
A

 1
..

..
 I
,
 
C

.7
 (

..
.,

 0
 ■

1
 
■

 
	

-.
..
 1

,4
 	

0
 1

.h
 0

 -
1,
4
 
■

 
	

t■
P

 -
4

. 
:
-
. 

'4
4

 l
. 
I.

>
 0

 6
 --

4
 I
n

 
C

D
 L

A
 
L

H
 
.
0
0
0
 

 
 
 
I
 
0
 
l■

 0
 
0
 
t
o

 
0
-
 
0

3
3
 O

P
 L

A
 0

 -
. 
C

h
 0

 .
-
. 
c
o

s
 A

 0
0
 t

3
 4

)
. 
.-

. 
0
 .
-
-
 
-a

 
O

 t
o

 t
o

 
0
 C

. 
.0

 0
 0

 ,
 A

l 
0
 -

-
 O

D
 C

V
 .
0
. 
.0

 0
 0

 c
s
 A

 A
 L

n
 A

 -
1.
..
.p

o
  .
0

 -
-.

 .
.0

 .-
. 

..
0

 0
. 

--
 i
..
. 
b
. 

ta
 
ta

 
..

0
 C

o
 .
4

. 
,I

 .
.0

 7
. 

-
-
 0

0
0
 

 
 
 
C

o
 4
, 

o
p

 P
o

 t
. 

•O
L

D
 L

. 
0o

 .
..
 0

0
0
0
 

  
 L

A
 b

o
 0

 6
 ..

..1
 L.

.)
 

G
.0

 .
0

 %
. 

..
. 

A
 C

h
 -

4
 4

O
 G

O
 L

n
 .

.1
 L

A
 -

3
 0

 .
..

1
 C

, 
0

 
C

D
 t

o
 h

. 
1
0
0
 -

. 
0
.0

0
 0

0
.
0
 4

>
 .

..
. 

-4
 

C
D

 C
I 
0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

a
 C

D
 C

D
 5

>
 5

>
 0

 C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 
0
 
0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
>

 C
7

 0
 C

D
 5

7
 )

7
 

0
 0

 C
D

 0
 0

 0
 0

 Q
. 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 k

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 6

 
6

 
0

 
6

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 

0
 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

0
 
0

 
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 
0
0
0
0
 
0
0
0
0
0
  

              
   

.o
 o

 c
 o

 0
  

p
p
  
o

 
p

 
0

6
 6

 6
 0

 
g

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
6

 • b
 6 0
 
 
60
 
 
60
 
 
6

 6
 0 0
 
 
bC 
 
bD

 
C

  
bC 

D
 b C
  
cD

  
6

6 0
 
 
0
 
 
0
 
0
 0

C0 D
D

 
0

 0
 C

 0
 

 

p
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
p
0
0
0
p
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
  

o
  
  
  
  
  
  

	

o
p
0p

0
0

0
0

 

0
0

1
00

)
0
0
 
0
0
0
0
0
0
b
0
 6

o
6
6
6
o
6
0
0
6
6
6
6
6
6
0
0
6
0
0
6
 

C
a

 C
) 

C
D

 C
a

 0
 
C

D
 C

A
 0

 
C

D
 0

 C
I 

0
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 0

 
C

D
 C

A
 0

 ,'
0)

 C
D

 
CD

 0
 0

 g>
 > o

  0
 >

 o
 >

 c
 >

 
6
0
0
0
9
0
0
0
6 0
0

0
00
00

00
 6 0
 6 0

0 0
0 0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
 0
 00

0
0
 6

 6
o

6
 

5
>

 c
>

 C
D

 9
 o

 5
>

 5
> 

5>
 C

D
 
5>

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 
0
 C
D 

0
 0

 0
 0

 9
 0
 

 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 C

D
 0

 0
 C
D 

0 
CD

 C
D 

C
D

 
C 

C
 
 0
 
 
D
 
00 

 
C
 
 

D
  0

 
 C

   
C

  
C

  
0 0
  
 

D
  
C

 C
 C

  
0
  
0
 
 

D
  
-
  
o

 o
  
C
 
0
 

 
 
0
 
 
C
 
 
0
 

 
0
0
 
 
C
 
 

D0
  

C D
  
 C

  
0
 

0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 
C

a 
C
D
 0
 
0
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
)
 C

D
 
0

 e
D

 C
D

 0
 0

 C
D 
C
D
 
0
 C
D 
CD
 0
 
0
 
0
 
C
)
 C

D
 
0

 0
 0

 0
 C

a
 

0
6
6
6
0
0
6
0
0
0
0
6
0
0
0
 5

6
 0

 8
 g

 0
 0

 e
=

 6
 6

 6
 6

 6
 6

 b
 6

 6
  

0
 
0
 

0
0

0
0

0
 
c
>

 
0

0
0

0
 
o

 
0
 
	

0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 

c
o

o
c
c
0

0
0

0
0

0
m

o
n

o
p

a
0

0
0

 C
a
 0

 0
 0

 0
 C

D
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 C
I 

0
 o

 
6

6
,
6

6
0

6
6

6
6

0
0

6
6

0
0

6
0

6
6

0
0

0
0

6
0

0
6

6
0

6
6

6
6

 
C

D
 .
0
 C

D
 o

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 c
D
 
0
 C

D
 C
D
 
0
 
G
P
 
C
P
 
0
 C

D
 G

D
 

C
D

 
C

D
 C

D
 0

 G
D

 0
 0

 0
 

C
D

 C
D

 C
A

 

)
7

 
0

 
0
0
0
t
o
p
o
o
n
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
c
c
o
o
t
c
0
0
0
c
c
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

6
6

6
6

6
0

0
0

'0
0

0
0

6
6

6
b

b
b

6
0

6
6

0
6

0
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
 

0
0

0
c
s
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
o

0
0

0
0

0
5

>
0

0
0

0
0

o
0

o
0

o
0

0
0

0
 

5>
 C

D
 
CD

 5
>

 5
>

 5
>

 p
 5

>
 5

>
 5

>
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 

C
D

 C
D

 
CD

 	
C

D
 C

O
 
CD

 	
C

D
 
CD

 C
D

 
C

D
 0

,  
.
0
 C
D
 
0
 C

D
 5

> 
5>

 5
> 

8
-8

.8
8

8
8

 8
8

8
8

b
b
b
in

6
C

:D
O

6
6
0
6
:6

0
6
.0

0
0
6
6
0
0
0
0
 

• 
c>

 5
>

 C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 
C
7
 0

 0
 0
 C
D
 
C
O
 
CD

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 
C

. 

	

IN
D

 	
-
,
 	

L
. 
■

 
	

L
A

 	
h

a
 	

+
4
 

	

A
 	

0
 
C

D
 
-

■
 -
4

 	
D

o
 
-
 	

3
4

 	
4

>
 	

L
. 

-
. 

-
4

 	
D

J
 .
.)

 .
- 

D
4
 g

o
 

.-
.I

 0
 

 
G

O
A

L
. 
A

N
 	

Q
.0

 -
■

 
	

00
0

0
 V

D
 .

.-
. 
A

:
4

 .
, 	

n...
. 	

.0
 o

o 
,...

. 0
 .

.:-
.1

 :
-:

 

0
 
.■
'
'
 
1

.4
 .

,:
h

 .
.0

* 
.0

 0
 J

.:
 
A
 
to

 
 
-
,
 
C
o
 
.
-
 --
4
 V

. 
0

 l
o

 0
 -

a
 N

. 
to

 0
 -

- 
to

 l
o

 6
 t
o

 6
 t

o
 '
c
o

 
OD

 -
4
 -

4
 .
..
I 
, 
0
 L

. 
L

A
 C

4
 )

.)
 0

 .
..
..
 4

. 
	
C

s
 .
- 

h
a
 o

o
 4

o
 0

 
	

C
D

 
CO

>
 C

A
 

	
L

a
 

+
4

 C
D

 
,
0

 
C

D
 >

4
 
./

7
 
tA

 C
,
  
0
 C
D

 -
4
 
C

D
 0

 c
o

 L
ft

 h
. 
t.

..
) 

.1
 .
0
 L

n
 .
0
 L

A
 .
--

 4
>

 5
>

 C
D

 C
O

 u
n

 0
 4

4
 
.-

. 
0
 0

 

	

. 	
. 	

. 	
.
 	

. 	
.
 
 

4
o

 L
. 

L
. 

L
. 

.1
0

 N
O

 .
..

 4
,
  
N

.0
 

...
0
 I
n

 0
. 

1
, 

.0
 C

O
 .

. 
P

o
 C

h
 o

p
 -

4
 t

a
 h

a
 
0

-
  9

 A
-
 0

0
-
 0

0
N

 
4

:•
 t

4
 -

4
 A

..
. 

C
D

 A
O

 4
>

 V
D
 
C

.I
. 
th

 
■

■
 

0
 0

 L
.4

 
■

■
 

.
4

 
0

 
0
 
C
n
 
t
.
 ■
-
 C

D
 .
--

 L
A

 P
P

 J
o

..
 >

a
 1

. 4
 
J

A
 

9
 	

++
 	

.0
. 

9
1
4
 -
4

,-
,  
C
s
 
7
.
 

..
..

..
 -

a 

	

-,
 .
..
.)

 	
1

.1
 	

ID
 L

a
 4

>
 	

'.
..

.)
 n

n
 	

••
• 	

-
N

N
 

 
 
 
-
A

 
 
 

	

tn
 

.4
4

 	
.C

. 
N

S
 L

n
 +

4
 0

 	
%

a
 -

- 
t4

 -
4
 .
--

 -
4
 	

>
4

 c
p

 1
4

 
L

.  h
..
. 	

h
4
 	

0
 
t
a
 
0
 
A
 
t
.
 
t
.
 

O
N

 
1

:
4

 L
A

 .
..

. 
t
. 

%
a

 L
A

 9
 
C

D
 C

D
 1

.0
, 

h
. 
p

 s..
..4 

0
 -

3
 O

N
 
to

 L
n

 
1..

3:
_,

 ..
0 

4
>

 .
.4

 o
p

 %
a
 
0
 A

 c
h

 
0

 )
s

p
 .

..
..

. 
a

s
 1

.4
 l

a
t 

.4
 1

.4
 t

o
 .

4
.0

. 0
0

1
A

 C
r
 .

+
 l
a
s
 I
. 
la

 I
s
a
 

C
D

 
h

. 
%

A
 4

,1
 0

 
C

O
 C

D
 0

0
 0

 .
. 
-C

h
 0

 l
o

) 
0

 t
o

) 
A

 
C
D
 0

0
 C

D
 h

. 
l4

 l
it

 t
o

 C
A

 .
--

 t
a
 .
- 

0
 -

4
 4

0
 C

a
 C

C
 -
4
 
C
D
 
t
.
 
%
a
 
I
.
 
t
.
 
C
D
 
0
 
C
a
 
P
i
 t

J
 L

A
 
.4

  C
a
 

0
 C

O
 0

7
 ,

 )
4

1
 C
D
 0
 C

D
 
C

7
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 
L

A
 
ca
l 
0
 4

h
 

G
D

 
L
A
 
0
 
U
s
 C

D
 
c
. 
C
A
 
0
 C

D
 
c
o

 0
 0

 9
 IA

 
C

D
 
V

. 
c

o
 

C
D

 C
D

 
0
  C

D
 C

D
 0
 6

 6
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

O
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 0

 0
 0

 0
 C

D
 0

 6
 0

 6
 0

. 
0

 6
 6

 
c>

 c
>

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 0

 C
a

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

) 
C

) 
0

 C
D

 0
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 
CD

 c
D
 
C

D
 C

D
 C

) 
0
 C

D
 C
D 

CC
 C

D 
C

D
 C

) 
C

) 

A
 

.
-
-
 
0
 
h
A
 
-
-
 
-
 
-
 	

h
a
 	

.
.
.
.
 
-
.
 
.
.
.
 

...
A

 
!i

f.
 t

. 
7.
;
 =

3 
O

r',  o
p

 =
.1

' '
:=

 7
.1

 c
a-
 
 
C
o
 C
D 

--
.1

 -
. 

-.
. 

0 
--

. 
LA

 ,
 -

.2
 
L.

4 
--

• 
A

 
...

? 
C
D
 C
o
 
,
 
o
p
 
0
 
t
J
 
4
.
 
.
7
 

D
'
o
d
.
 
c
o
 
D
O
 
d
.
 
D
.
 
c
t
.
 
o
.
 
o
.
 
D.

 
 
.
2-

 
 
D
.
 
D
o
 
o
.
 
o
‘
s
o
c
i
o
d
u
a
o
'
w
o
,
 
 
o
'
c
o
c,
 

 c
."

- 
.i■

 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 294 of 311



:SSOTNIV9  

:INK)111S0d1HINIUN114 

t.
.3

 	
C
o
 

6
 

o
 

6
 
6
 
6
 

OD
 

 
1
4
 

S
O
 

1
4
 
 

C
O
 
A
 

V
.
 
C
A
 

6
 
C

D
 

S
.
 
I
n
 

C
4
0
 

N
D

 
N

O
 

t
J
 

L
a 

A
 

 

O
P
 

N
 

1
9
 

O
 

O
 

0
0
 

N
J
 

S
o
 

6
 
C
a
 

S:1/1111,10N:400 nuy  palo5pLi9  

Cash Flow Statement Without Fund Balances 

Aniuqoa  a,L  kienuer  

0
 

0
0
 

1
6
 

0
0
 

'
0
 

-J
 

.6
 

C
T
 

0
0
 

i
y
 

r
J
 

8
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

0
0
 

t
o
 

0
 

1
4
 

O
 

O
 

0
0
 

t
J
 

S
.
 

1
4
 
0
 

0
 

O
 

O
 
O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

0
0
 

t
o
 

N
 

14
4
 
O
 

A
i
 

CD
 

C
O
 
S
D
 

1
4
 

CD
 

O
 

O
 

C
O
 

I
.
 

C
a
 

S
o
 
6
 

1
6
 
C
D
 

O
 
0
 

O
 

0
0
 

O
 

C
o
 

6
 

CD
 

S
o
 
0
 

6
 
0
 

8
 

0
0
 

r
J
 

0.
7 

0
0
 

V
a
 

L.
 

N
J
 

O
 
0
 

0
 

8
 

65'4E0`Z96'1  

✓
1
 A

 A
 A

 A
 A
 
A
 
A
 A
 
t
A
l
 L
.
 
L
4
 
L
.
 
L
W
 
C
O
 
D
J
 
6
 
s
o
 ■

-•
 

T
J
 
T
4
 
6
 
s
o
 
s
-
 
s
s
 

 
 
 
0
 
D
 
 
L
s
s
s
 
 

C
  
G
,
 

 
D
 
0
 
s
s
 

∎
.
 
G
T
L
f
l
 
c

4
 	

1
4
s
.
 
1
6
 
o
a

n
 	

L
A
 
 
L
A
 
A
 

C
A
M
 .

..
/7
 t
i)
 cf
0 
C
4
D
 
—
•
C
a
0
0.
2
.6
 
'
S
i
 
'
6
 	

to
n—

 6
(
7
^
 

 
C
 
.
0
8
 	

s
  .
1

 
3
0
0
C
D
 
A
D
I
V
 
g
 a

- 
C
D
C
 
W
 
2
 
1
7
 

..
Z
 
6
0
=
0
 

C
•-
• 	

D
 

 
74

. 6
 a

  
	

- 
• 	

fa
. 
7
4
 	

C
.;

  ,
•
•■

 
> 

3
 

 
rn

. 	
'I

I 	
cn

 
C
O
g
0
 

st
e 	

- 0
 
C
a
 
9

.0
—

,n
g

- :
m

oo
 

c
 ,

r)  
=

 
;3

  0"
  P
:J.6

.  O
 e

; 
R

• 
-4

 	
7,

  "
 
gi :1

7  
6
.6

g
':
'
.7
.
6

.-J
a

V
E

I'
V

g
i
c
T

)•
*

a
m

.0
-6

0
 

co
, 

cr
 	

<
 	

0
 

g
 	

g
 C

a 
76,-

; 
k" 	

,0
,

7 
3 

2 n
 r

o°
  7
°,

 
12

 26
  •
 6 :4

  
c
o

C
 N

-r
1

 
AI
 	

Ca
 	

9 	
0
  T

. 

6
ro

 
—

6
 
6

5
 
"
r
'I

n
c

(3
 
c
c
x

 
C

. 	
c̀

"
 
e
"
 
0
-
 
S

 5
 

	

n
 	

6
. 
6
_
 	

a
 EL
 

+
.
1
 
'
0
0
 
6
 
6
 	

'4
a
 

•-
• 	

s
o
 	

C
A
 	

1
4
 0

 
C

D
 1

6
 C

D
 
	

0
0

 0
,  C

D
 C

D
 N
J
 
0
 
C
7
 
C
7
 
C
)
 
0
 
C
7
 
g
 
g
 
C
D
 

S
D
 
S
n
 
S
D
 
S
A
 
C
D
 
U
 
e
7
 
6
 S

D
 T

O
 S

D
 S

D
 S

D
 C

D
 S

D
 C

D
 0

 0
 0

 S
D

 
0

0
0

 .
4

- 
C

D
 C

O
 C

D
 0

 0
 
0
 C

7
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 —

 C
a
 0

 0
0
 

N
 

.
 

1.
.1

 	
0
0

t
4
 ■

 
	

0
 	

4.
0 

-
4

, 	
t
o
 
6
 	

0
,
 

 
0
0
 	

c
o
 	

C
L
 	

A
 
A

 0
.,
 

a
 	

0
0
 

•-
• 	

--
-I

 .
0

 	
0

,  
.
0
 	

..
..

, 	
In

 	
,.

..
. 

	.
..
. 

..
. 	
6
 	

i
a
 -

4.
 	

-
1
0
 	

N
.
 	

0
 	

C
.
 
C
.
 
0
0
 

C
D

 i
s

 C
D

 C
h

 0
 
L
D
 
0
 
C
D
 
0
 
6
 
0
 
0
 
C
D
 c

>
 C

a
 
C
P
 
C
D
 
C
A
 
G
T
 
V
I
 

C
P
 
S
T
 
S
D
 
S
A
 
0
 
6
 
0
 
0
 
S
D
 
i
n
 
6
 
S
D
 
i
.
 C

D
 S

D
 0

 
CD

 b
 6

 6
 

o
..
..
.c

>
0
0
6
..
..
..
1
6
6
4
6
0
c
o
o
a
•
c
6
0
6
.0

0
0
..
..
..
 

O
 
o
p
p
o
p
o
p
p
o
o
p
p
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

6
 8
 
8
 
0
  
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

0
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

o
 

Ca
 	

0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 C

P
 q

v
 0

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

7
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 

0
 
O
 

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

 
0

 0
 0

 o
 0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
=

 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 

 
 

C
D

 C
i 

C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 O

 0
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 0

 C
D

  
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

	C 6
 
  
8)
 p

 p 8
6

 0
 00
0
0
0
0
0
 
00
 0

0
 
0
0
 
D C
 
00
DD
 
D D
 
D
 	

8
 

0
 0

 0
 P

 0
 0

 0
 0

 P
 0
 
 
P
 
P
 
2
 5
>

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 
C
D
 C

D
 0

 0
 0

 0
 C

a
 C

D
 0

 
CD

 C
D

 C
>

 0
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
a

 0
 C

D
 0

 
C

a 
C

D
 C

D
 O

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 0
 C

o
 C

D
 0

 
C
a
 
0
 
0
 
C
P
 
C
D
 

0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 

6
0

6
6

0
6

6
6

0
6

6
6

6
0

6
6

0
6

6
0

 
O

 O
 O

 o
 O

 o
 6

 O
 o

 O
 0

0
0

0
6

6
0

0
0

0
 

0
0

0
6

0
6

6
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 
;
6
 6

 6
 6

 6
 6

 6
 0

 8
 
8
 
8
 0

 6
 6

 o
 o

 6
 6

 6
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
6

o
 	

-6
0

 a
 o

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

O
 c

>
c
>

 o
 p

 6
 
o
 0
 S
P
 
0
 
0
 
C
D
 	

C
7
 C
7
 

C
D
 

8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 

s 
0 .
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 

C
D
 
O
 0p

 0p
 
O
 
0 6
 60
 60
 60
 60
 60
 60
 
0 6
 60
 60
 60
 60
 60
 
C
 

6
 

6
0
 
	

6
 6

 
0
 
0
 0

 
0
 0

 
C
D
 
C
a
 
0
 0

 
0
 

o
o
p
p
0
6
6
6
6
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
c
r
o
0
 

6 0
 

  
6
 8
 

 
 
 
0 0
 
  
S C
   
6
0
 
 

0
 
 
DC
  
 
0
0
 

 
 
S D
 

 
 
0
7
 
 0
  
6
 0 0
 

 
 
D D
 
 
 
D D
 
 0
0
 
  
S
 
 
D C
  

e
o

 0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 p

o
o
p
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
p
 

O
 6 0
 
  
6

 0
 
 
D
 

 
 
6
0
 

 
 

DD
  0
0
 
  
D D
 
  
6
0
 
  

D C
  
 
D
D
 
 

00
   

D6
  

D C
  
 
D D

   
 

6 0
 
  
6 0

  
>

 

0
 
J

 
0

 L
a 
 
L

.
,
 

.—
 

 
0

0
 	

l
,
 ,.
.0

 	
C
O
 
6
 	

C
a
 	

G
T
 	

C
O
 
D
O
 
6
 

1.
4 	

b
 	

1
1
4
 b

o
 	

.R
. -

.. 	
,....

. 	
1...

., 	
L

., 
1.

., 
A

 
6
 	

•-
• 	

C
D

 4
4
 	

tO
 	

C
D

 	
C

. 
A

l 
0

0
 

0
 6

 0
 A

 C
D

 C
O

 6
 C

D
 C

D
 
a

 8
 0

>
 5
,
 0

 5
6

 0
 C

D
 1

6
 6

 L
A

 

6
.
-
6
.
-
.
6
6
6
6
6
6
w

6
o
0
6
6
0
6
 

6
 •.
..
. 
c
. 
o
 o

 4
1
 
0
 0

 0
 .
0
 0

 0
 C

T
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 t

o
,  

C
; 	

1,
4

 

.
6
 
.
-
 
t
o
 
0
9
3
A
 

-t
o
s
s
 	

L
A
J
 
T
4
 
A
 

O-4
 
L
A
 
6
 
4
s
 
0
0
 
C
A
 
6
 
6
 
C
a
 
a
,
 

 
-
J
 
s
s
 
N
J
 
c
o
 
L
A
 

0
 
C
A
 

o
 G
T
 .
0
 
L
A
 
L
A
 
s
.
 
L
A
 
C
>
 
6
 
C
P
 

-4
 L
4
 
N
O
 

C
D
 
L
A
 

"N
D
 

"0
 
L
a
 
0
 
0
 
0
 ..0
0
 

-J
a
 
0
 -L
A
 
0
 
0
 I
n
 6

 o
 i

n
 

. 0
 b

 
A
 
C
D
 
6
 
C
D
 
6
 
G
N
 
G
N
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
6
 
 

0
 0
 
C
D
 
C
A
 
8
 
8
 

rr
".
 

 
O
 

S
D
 
C
D
 
6
 6

 6
 6

 6
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
S
D
 
6
 
S
D
 
C
D
 
S
D
 
0
 
0
 
C
D
 
S
D
 C

D
 

0
 
0
 
d
)
 
0
 0

 
C

.
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
.
 

.
s
 	

6
 
-
-
 

O
 

C
g

 C
.2

 C
D

 L
O

 0
 C

O
 L

o
 C

D
 C

D
 t

J
 6

 C
g

 i
t 

O
 O

 C
A

 9
 i

t
 1

 C
o

 

0
 	

o
 
e
 
a
!
 
d°
 

 e
l!

 e
! 

O°
 d

! 
a!

 a
! 

e!
 

 6
,  
6
-
 6

?
 e

 e
 e

 0
 e

 e
 e

 

0
 
0
1„

. 0
 
-
4
 	

0
0
 	

A
 
A
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 295 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 3 2016 

Memorandum 7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	(:1 

To: 	City Council 

From: Patsy Nelson 

Date: 04-05-16 

Re: 	Financial reports 

Attached is the March 31, 2016 summary financial report for your review. As 
expenditures and revenues vary from month to month; the without fund balances 
report reflects monthly cash flows, highlighting the importance of maintaining 
adequate cash balances. 

February interest rates on investments are noted below. Please let me know if you 
have any questions or comments. 

Washington State Treasurer's Office Local Government Investment Pool 0.4487% 
Opus Bank 12 month Certificate of Deposit maturing 04/04/17 0.5500% 
Opus Bank 12 month Certificate of Deposit maturing 06/29/16 0.4500% 
Opus Bank 12 month Certificate of Deposit maturing 10/05/16 0.4000% 

1 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 296 of 311



A
A

A
 

I
s
J
o
b
4
1
,
-
-
-
0
c
.
0
-
-
-
-
0
,
0
,
,
,
0
-
-
-
-
0
=

-
0
0
-
0
0
0
8
 

U
U

A
W

N
.0

 '
A

 V
O

A
 V

IA
 

 
,
,
,
m
m
;
f
l
.
u
,
c
A
-

-
0
-
0
-
l
o
n
-
w
n
r
-
n
w
r
-
o
n
t
-
>
c
n
n
-
u
n
 

,
-
-
0

,
,
0
0
.
0
,
0
-
.
.
s
8
.
0.
-
.
0
N
0
.
.
.
.
.
s
.
 

.
0
0
0
-
_

,
R
-
.
.
..,

,,
, 

2
,a
g
g
a
.
0
:
0
-
 
	
-
 
	

,.
-m

.-
.-

mo
o

n
g
t
e..,
3
@
.
“
1
n
*
q
 

.
g
-
,
,
,
,
,
i
a
a
 

 
3
7
.
)
i
c
;
,-
,c

-g
a
-
C1
Q
a
o
)
.
M
-
g
W
r,
-
E
-n
o
p
a
 

	

o
m
 	

E
-
-
.
 
c
>
,
_
.
,
.
.
o
 

l
l
n
a
o
m
-
 

 
a
"
g
P
°
w
o
 

0
'
 
-
,
4
g
r
u
R
g
-
n
,
V
a
c
,
b
i
Z
3
0
5
;
m
6
.
,
0
_
4
.
 
,
 

e>
W
M
0
E
p
>

"̂.
7J
'
Z

-,
1
2
,
7
2
g
P
.
R
T
g
L
g
-
i
7
4
W

t
r
!
S
g
E
m
0
'
4
 

 

i
t
"
°
2
1
5
g
.
0
;
>
I
F
3
5
.
M
E
R
t
n
9
°
1
-
g
=
n
1
0
E
.
C
"
'
 
g
'
q
 

c
a
m
;
:
5
4
:
:
:
:
:
7
:
5
:
7
;
:
:
1
:
:
:
:
5
1
 

-
4
 
1
2
-
7
'
c
3
 

 

B
F
,
,
,
F
g
g
f
C
1
.
4
.
?
?
W
i
i
i
i
l
W
j
a
l
l
 
i
 
g
 

,-.
 	

5
 C

I. 

a
  
-
:
 
	

n
o
 

M
 	

C
 

 
:
°
 
g
 
W
O
G
 

;
 
	

-
"
=
'
:
 
g
•
T
1
M
i
a
n
g
a
 

c
s
,1

 
0.

,1
11

.v
. 	

C
e
L
g
6
F
 	

CI
. 

C
.
 

0
5
"
.
 
	

=
 

CD
 

•T
I
 
0

 
O

. 
. 	

0
 

7
 

CL
. 

„
 	

..
..
 	

t.
> 	

..A
. 

A
c
,
 
.
r
.
.
.
.
p
.
.
.
.
4
 
c
o
 
-
 
t
.
.
.
.■

 
-
 
,
.
.
.
,
 
-
.
.
.
.
.
,
 
-
-
.
.
.
.
.
 

4
.
.
 
1
4
1
.
.
,
c
c
s
,
.
.
c
,
 
,
0
:
1
 
.
,
4
1
.
-
 
L

A
-

,
A

.
1
.
 
-
 
-
4
.
.
e
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
,
.
r
.
,
 

.
,..

0
 '
0

,1
..

..
,I

,..
..

'.
r.

..
-e

4
-.

1
5,

,  >
>

..
.C

L
4

t
o

t
A

l
..

."
-
"
A

>
.-

 '
•
-
. 

..
..

..
.0

..
..

.b
-c

..
1
.4

 
c
o

 -
 .

..
..

. 
-
4

 C
, 

1
4

 0
 
■

 
D

J 
W

 %
, 	

N
-
 
1

-4
 0

0
 

C
O

 L
A

 
1
4
 t

n
 0

0
 C

D
 .-

-•
 -

4 
C

. 	
-
, 

C
D

 
,
 o

o 
0

 4
4
 

00
7 
0 
,-
, 
Y 
0 
..
. 
0 
C.
 C
O 
DO
 0
 .
- 
'-
, 
,-
. 
W 
NJ
 -

4
 4

.1
 ■

■
 

L
A

 C
D

 0
 0

. 
-
J

 0
 C

A
 L

ft
 

C
o 
0
 5

> 
5>

 %
., 

0
 D

J
 0

 ,
 c

7
 0

 C
D

 ,
..
0
 .
,.
..
 b

 
	
7

 ',
4
 
C

D
 L

Q
 4

, 
A

 
1

..
 0

 0
1

 0
 4

. 
Y

 
	
e
p

 
N

0
W

-
6

0
0

0
N

0
.
-
O

W
C

A
N

0
0

,
M

0
0

W
U

4
0
0

,4
4

..
..

0
2

0
4

.A
.1

4
0

.W
.U

.-
.1

 

.4
 	

4
, 	

L
4
 0

 W
 	

0
 .
-
-
 	

,
-
 	

NJ
 	

..
 .
..
 
A
.
 	

•-
• 
W
 

	,
,
 

-4
 4

=
 	

,..
7

 
1
.
4
 
L

.
 
0
 
L

.
 
a
 C
A 
.-
. 	

A
 A

 -
7

 .
-
 .

0
 L

. 
,-

 	
-
,
 	

C
o

 A
 .

0
 
■

 
L

a
 ,

0
 

-0
 '
D

e
 1

, 
i.

.D
.1

.4
 .0

. 
.0

 I
N

 .0
 .-

.4
 
-
 	

..
, 
L

A
 -

- 
7
 V

. 
..

.0
 1

4
 -

--
 	

NJ
 ...
O.

 -
 4

, 
-A

 -1
,7

 -
0
 
0
O

l
i
n
 

,
,
W

.
0

0
0

N
A

C
D

0
t
.
.
0

.
-
.
 
0

1
4

0
2

,
0

Q
.
C

D
-
W

4
,

0
.
.
.,
N

A
0

■
--

1
 

0
..
.
.
.
4

,
0

0
.
0

0
0

W
N

.
0
■

0
0
N

4
,

0
0
0
0
A

A
,
U
.
-
N
0
0
0
.
-
-
.
0
.
-
0
0
-
 

.
 
.
 
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
 
.
.
,
.
.
 

0
N

0
W

W
0
0
0
4

,.
N

0
0

-
0

0
0

0
0

A
0

0
0

W
0

W
0

0
N

0
0

0
0

,
0

0
0

0
0

t
o

 
-
W

.
O

w
-
4

A
0
-
4
A

W
,
-
-
1
,
.
.
.
1
0

,
4

0
0

0
W

W
0

W
.
.
.
1

0
,
1
0
0
0
0
A

W
N

 

..
..

 	
N

 	
La

 	
N

 
- :-

o 

	

Y
1
i

G
N ..

.

W
 

00
 W

 	

.
.
 

-

W
 	

7
 

-
 
-
 
	

W
W

W
W

J
I0 YA0

  
O

.
-
 

W
N

Y
A

,
 
.
4

0
0

1
9

0
 

T
-
4
y
,4

>
. 	

-
 

0
a
 	

,
1

0
W

..
 	

0
A

,
0
0
0
0
W

W
0
-
D

b
  
0

,
0

^
0

0
,

4
,
,
0

W
W

W
 	

0
 

A
-
o
c
w

o
o
A

-
D

o
o
-
0
.
.
>

 N
 A

.
t
h

-
.
 	

0
0
0
L

w
A

 

0
-
0
0
 	

a ,
5

,
-
p

,
a
u

o
y

0
0

,,
.

Y
a
>

c
0
6

y
A
,
c
.
A

 

0
 C

D
 
CD
 0

 C
D

 
C

D
 C

D
 0

 
0

 o
 0

 0
 0

 c
>

 o
 0

 >
 5
g

   
>

 5
  
>

 
 
>

 
>

 
 

Co *
   
C

  
0

 0
 D

 D
  

D
  
C

  
0
 

C
 C

 7
 
D
 0
 
 
C
 7

 
D
 
C
 

D
 C

 C
 

D
 0

00
 
	

0
 6

6
6

0
6

0
0

b
0
0
0

6
6

6
  

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
7
0
0
7
0
0
0
 

 

•<
 	

c>
 

c
>
 
5
>
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
5
>
 
5
>
 
0
 
a
 
5
>
 0
 C

D
 
C
P
 
C
A
 
C
D
 

CD
 
C
D
 

C
D

 C
A

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 
0
 C

D
 

CD
. 
0
 C

D 
0
 

C
P
 
C
D
 
7
 0
 
 
C
 
 8
 0
 
 
a 0
 
 
DD

  
00
 
 
0
 00
 
 

00
 
 
00
 
 
0
 0 0
 
 

D
 
0
 7 0
 

 
 

D
 D

D   
7 0
 
  
a C
 
 07
 
 
7
 
 
C
 
 
CC
   

D C
   

D
 

D
   

D
  D
D
 

  
C
 

0
 D

 O
 C

 

 

 
p
 

D
0
 0
 
 
0
 

70
 00

0
7

  
0

 0
  
0
 
0
 
00
  D
c
  
00
 O

 o
 0 0

0
0

 00
  
 o

 C
)
  
00
  
C

 
00
  
0
 C
 
8

0
0

0
  

0
 
o
 
>
 
o
p
o
 
o
 
0
 
0
 0 .
 
.0
0
 
0 .
0
 
0 .  
0
 

.0
0
 
o .  
o

.
p
 .o
o
p
o
 
o
p
 
o
 .o
 
o .  
o

.  
p
 

.o
 

 

S311fIl1UM:IdX1.1 

A
 

,
 

CD
 

 0
-
 

 

0
' 

C
D

 
4
.
 

CO
 	

J
 

N
 

0
 

0
 

• <
 

0
 

O
 

 

o
 

a
 
8
 

co
, 

CD
 

ro
 

0
 

0
 

19
 

8"
 
0
 

z
 

0
 

3
 
-
 
0
 

CD 3
 

O
 

';3
3  a
 

O
 

 
 

(*
) 

0'
 

O
 

0
'
 

ci
f)

 

B
 

00
 	

0
 

j K
 
6
.t
 

0
 
=
 

0
. 

b
d
 

co
> 

-
3. 

CD 

2wV PaPaPnEl 

,
-
.
 

W
 
W

A
 

,-
. 	

O
c
t4

1
.4

9
0

,0
N
 

N
 	

N
W

.0
.
1--
m
-
.
 

OD
 	

*
0  
0

 4
-
 w

 0
,, 

...
., 

CD
 C

D
 
■

. 
C

D
 

CD
 4

*
 0

. 
L

. 
0
0
 .
4
 c

o
 

0
 C

D
 0

0
 C

D
 C

D
 D

O
 
CD
 :

0
 .D

.D
 N
 
)4

 
C
7
 0
 
N
J
 0

 C
D

 .
4
 0

-
 t
ft

 0
0 

.0
 

I
f
 V

. 
N

 	
S

J
 

O
D

 0
 L

a
 A

 1
4

 0
 
C
A
 
0
0
 D
J 

C
D

 1
.4

 U
 y

 F
> 

.1
 A

 *
0

 .
■

 
0
0
 

A
 

C
V 

C
. 

CD
 

L
. 

I
.
 
L

, 	
•-
.1

 

■
■

 
N

P
 
•
 
NJ
 .
0 

A
N

 

LE
I 
8
 A

D
 
%

, 
0

 
0

,
 
N

 
w
0
,
,
N
0
 

8 
8  C

o
.
 C

D 
a

•
4
 	

C
D

 
2
0
0
0
0

N
C

A
C

N
0

 

0
 0

 0
 0

 o
 C

D
 C

D
 7

 C
A

 0
 0

 
o
b
o
b
b
a
b
b
a
b
b
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
 C

D
 0

 
C

D
 C

A
 C

A
 0

 C
D

 
C

D
 C

D
 

7
 
 C
   D

 7
 D

  7
  

C
  
a
  
b
 
 
a
 
 

D
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

b
 a

 a
 b

 a
 b

 ro
 b

 a
 b

 b
 

ID
 C

D
 

C
A

 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

0
 

C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 
C

D
 0

 0
 C

A
 C

D
 C

D
 
c
7
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 

CA
 a
 
a
 C

D 
0

 C
D

 0
 

C
D

 
C
D
 
0
 
0
 C

D
 

C
D

 C
D

 C
A
 
0
 
C
D
 
0
 

C
D

 C
D

  
. 

 .
 
 
0

 
C 

. >
 

C
 

0
  

0
  

. 
0

  
0
 

 
 

0
 

0
 
c
 
C

 
0

 
0

 
D

 e
 
a
0
 
 
70
 

 

o
 0

 0
 c
> 
5>
 5
> 
5>
 5

>
 5

>
 0

 0
 

8
g
S
g
8

,D
o

o
b

b
b

  
o
o
0
0
0
0
 

o
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
a
a
a
 

5>
 

8
8
8
8
8

o t>
 o

b5
>

 60
  
60
  
0
 

C
  

C
 C

  
0

 C
 C

D
 0

 C
 C

 D
 

0
 a
 
a
 7

 C
 C

 
D

  
C

  
D

 7
0

 

1
.0

 W
 
NJ
 1

-4
 C

AD
 

	

w
■

 
A

 
.
4

 	
4
1

0
0

 W
 

 
I
n

t
o

-
0

4
T

%
,
  

o
w
h
a

s-
l
o
,
c
o
,
:.
a
o
 

%.
1 

LA
 
b
 L

A
 -

 
C

D
 4

5
. 

A
4

 0
0

 C
D

 A
D

 4
. 
.
4
 	

L
A
 

-A
l 

L
n
 

W
 -1

.4
 
0
0
 U

 0
•
 :

$
4

 

0'
  .

■
 L

o)
 	

0
 

	
4,
  

A
 
a
 

C
D

 C
D

 0
ha

 .
-

a
 CO

 
 

00 
0
 C

D
 C

D
 
L

A
 0

 
G

.
 
o

 C
A
 

C
D

 C
) 

0
 C

D
 0

 C
D 
I
n
 
C

D
 c

o
 0

0
 
4
.
 

00
 
 

00
 
 
0
 
 
C
 
 
C C

  
 
0 0
  
 0

 
D D

   
D D

  
0
 00
 

0
0

0
 A

 
0
D

4
 
-

y
-
,
 

e
e
,
n
e
,
e
,
o
v
.
e
e
e
 

C
D
 

C
D

 C
D

 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
)
 
C
)
 
O
 
C
D
 
0
 
0
 5
>
 0
>
 

 
5
>
 
>
 
>
 
5
 
>
 
>
 
a
 
>
 
>
 
o
 
5
>
 	

o
 0

 
D

 
D

 C
 

a D
  
aC 

0
  
aC
  
aC
  
a
 
b
g
 
a
 a D

 
 
a
 
a
 
0
0

8
8
8
8
0
 
0
 b

 
a
b

 0
0
8
0
  
b
 
a
 
a
 0
 
 
b
 b
 

C
 C

 C
 C

 
C

 C
 D

 D
 
D
 
0
 
C
 
0
 
D
 
C
 

D
 0

 8C 
7
 8

7 8
 

 D
 C

 D
 C

 C
 
0
 C

 
C

 C
 

D
 C

 C
 

8
 
'
 
'
8
8
8
8
 0
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
 
C
 
C
 
0
 '
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
 

W
 
.
.
.
 	

A
 
-
 
.
,
 
D

O
 	

-
 	

t
4

 
.
.
-
.
 
4

.
 
0

 
.
-
 
-
 

 
A

 
.
4

 
D

O
 
0

 
C

.
 
1

4
 	

A
 
.
•
 
-
-
1
 
U

-
 C

D 	
C

O
 ,

 .
. 

.-
 0

 c
. 

C
O

 
C

A
 	

L
4
 C

A
 

C
D

 0
0

 C
O

 	
O

D
 .
4
 W

 0
 ■
, 

4,
  D

4
 O

A
 1
.4

 .
-.

. 
0

0
 b

4
 	

..
.,

 	
0
1
.
4
,
4
0
1
,
.
,
 

N
N

■
7
..
0
0
Y

i
n
7
C

O
J
A

0
0
-
7
W

4
A

A
C

I
A

.0
1.
..

A
-
.-

4
W

 1
..

.0
 -

..
-
4

1
.-

1
A

e
-
.0

0
1

n
W

 
■
.
 

4
D

. 
--

 D
.4

  C
D

 1
..

1  
0
 -

. 
L

A
 C

S
 
t4

 
	
C

D
 A

V
 0

 
	

4
. 

C
D

 L
n

 
C

D
 0

 0
 

	
-4

 C
A

 C
O

 
4,

 ,
--

 t
a.

 0
 
N
J
 
L
.
 
0
 L
A
 
s
)
 0
.2

 
-4
 ,
 .
0 
00
 .
0 
.4

 0
0
 .
0
 

4,
  4

. 
.-

+
 .

-+
 A

4
 W

 N
A

 C
D

 C
D

 L
n

 L
A

 •
-•

 C
A

 A
I 

L
A

 
_ 

. 	
. 
	

. 	
.
 	
.
 	

. 
	

. 	
.
 
 
 
	

. 	
.
 	

.
 	

.
 	

.
 	

. 	
. 	

.
 	

.
 

4
. 
'0

 -
- 

i.
..
..
, 
5
>

 L
A

 -
 1

7
. 
, 
0
.
 
-
 0

 1
4

 4
. 

..
. 

t.
7
 

41
. 

L4
 U

-
 

4,
  W

 A
.
 t

d.
 1

,1
 0

 Y
 C

A
 A

O
 A

 0
.0

 
C

D
 L

A
 C

o
 U

4
 0

,  A
A

 0
 ..

.4
 
0

 L
A

 .
0
 0

 ,
 .
..
)
 0

 O
-
 -

4
 L

A
 0

 C
O

 
A
.
 ,
 C

.,
  L

A
 4

u
 O

- 
0
 p

p
 p

p
 .
.-

 .
.,
0
 

A
 

:-
..

.1
 	

, 
%

.0
1
.1

4
. 	

.
.
.
-
■

 
	

-
,
 	

■
.
O

4
N

4
.
 	

W
.N

.A
4
,0

%
,
  

,
A

 
■

2
1
,4

,
.
.
1
W

 
U

o
.-

N
Y

.-
Y

 
Y

O
N

W
N

 	
0
4
 	

0
,
0
4
.

14
,
 

p
.
-
 

,..
.0

.4
1

.1
,■
1

,
 

U
4
0
1
)
,
N

O
N

O
Y

0
,
,
.
-
N

y
0
 
.
.
.
.
)
.
4
p

,
0
)
-
.
 

0
1
.,
-
4

.4
..

,,
b
a
b
i
t
.
b

..
1
.

0
t
h
l
,C

0
»

..
, 

o
w

4
..
.0

0
m

o
n
.I

L
A

,L
A

0
-
..
..
.-

o
y
o
m

e
y
0
(
4
w

w
n
.,
o
y
 

o
u
.
o

,.
.A

.,
0

0
0

o
0

0
0

.-
A

L
A

0
L

A
o

L
A

o
6

A
0

0
,A

0
0

0
0

L
A

tA
A

o
L

A
m

 
a
a
a
0
0
6
a
6
0
0
6
0
0
0
6
6
0
0
6
a
6
a
b
a
b
o
6
0
0
0
6
6
6
 

5
>

 5
>

 5
>

 -
 5

>
 c

>
 0

 5
>

 a
 c

p
 C

D
 ,

. 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 0
 C

7
 0

 0
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
A

 C
P

 0
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C
D
 

LA
 

N
-
A

W
N

,N
,W
.
0

.
4

,
N

Y
N

,
N

-C
,
 
-
-
1
0
1
 
W

W
4

W
N

W
  
N

-
4

,
-
o

0
 
0

-
N

-
N

0
N

 
.
0
 
0
.
0
e
e
e
e
e
c
e
,
 
.
0
e
0
.
0
 
e
 
.
e
.
e
 
,
e
 
a
 
e
,
e
e
-
e
s
e
e
e
 	

e
0
.
0
 
o
 

e
w
e
.
0
4
'
e
e

.
s
e
e

0
0
0
0
'
w
o
c

e
e
e
e
.
6
0
6

.
e
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
7
0
 

. 	
. 

0
0

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

6
0

0
0

6
0

6
6

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

0
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
o
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
=
0
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

0
6

0
0

0
6

6
0

0
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
0

0
6

0
6

0
6

0
6

 0
8

8
8

0
 
0

 
0

 
5
 
>
 
0
 
c
 
o
 
c
 
>
 
o
 
o
 
c
 
c
 	

D
 0
 
C
 
C
 
0
 
C
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
D
 0
 
D
 0
 

C
A

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 C

>
 7

 C
D

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 
C

D
 0

 C
D

 0
 0

 0
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 
C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 
C

D
 C

D
 C

D
 

6
6

a
6

6
6

6
6

5
,
6

0
6

0
0

6
6

6
.0

6
6
0
a
a
0
a
0
0
0
6
6
0
6
0
.
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

C
D

 0
 0

 C
D

 C
D

 C
D

 0
 0

 0
 C

D
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 C
A

 C
A

 C
D

 C
A

 C
D 

CD
 C

D 
C

D
 C

D
 C

a
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 
0

 C
D

 C
7 

C
D

 

0
0

  
0

0
   
0
 
 C

 
D D

  
0
7

  
00

  
7

  
 00

  D
 
 
 
7

0
 
 0 0
   

D D
   

D D
   

D D
  C

  
00
  

D
  
P

 
 

7
 D

 C
 C

 7
  
7
  D

 D C
  

C
 
00

 
 7
  C

D
   7

 D
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 297 of 311



1101.11S0diaNUNfla 

SSOTNIVO 01■111A 

O
 
0
 

7
,
 

 

D
O
 
A
 

t
A
 
O
N
 

O
 

0
'
 
I
n
 

t
O
 

6
 

.4
 

L
A

 
a
 

a
 

C
O
 

-
4
 
a
 

-
4
 

O
A
 
0
 
0
 

L
A
 
a
 

0
0
 

O
 

-
 
a
 

0
0
 

-
4
 

a
 

0
0
 

0
 

-
4
 
0
 

C
 

.
4
 
0
 

1
4
 
a
 

00
 

0
 

L
A
 

0
 

o
o
 

-
J
 
0
 

b
 

8
 

-
J
 
0
 

C
O
 

a
 

-
.
I
 
0

 

0
0
 

a
 

O
 

-.
3 

9
 

L
n
 

0
'
 

0
0
 

0
 

N
4
 

S:1111111(1NgdX:i a z Jag=Was  

0
 

O
 

F;
 

z
 

  a
 

-C
 a 9
 

FR
 

4
n
 

n
 O a

. 
4
,0

 

0
 

0
 

t
C
 

617:80:g 

0
 

4
 

0
 

I
n
 

Cash  Flow Statement Without Fund  Balances 

gale  IN  al  kienuut  

 a 0:
1 . 0_
 

a
 

o.
 

9
 

A
 

a
 ZS'Ito'888'1  LA7996'168  
a
 

O
 

a
 

a
 

t
o
 

C
D
 
O
 

C
A
 

C
A
 00'519'903'61 

C
L

A
A

A
A

A
A

A
A

A
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
 

W
C
P
W
W
-
-
^

.0
0
0

,-
1
-
C
O
W
0
*
 

.4
4
*
C

O
J
I
W

A
J
O

J
N

^
W

N
^
C

O
W

N
O

L
A

U
A

A
W

 

0
7
M
0
0
3
 
V
3
 
:
5
7
 r
.
n
 
^
 	

'
Z
1
 -0

-o
w

n—
no

n 

g
?

?
m

0
m

0
E

1
7

-1
4

—
g
0
0
-
0
,  

W
.S

.C
lo

x
n

-2
dr

°=
gp

u
-n

i3
=

7
  

a
-
q
W

E
R

ra
c
Y

g
 

=
a

m
 -

9
=0  

g
a
T

R
L
'

n
r,
 	

9 	
2

' 

q
1 i
1

P
 
c

rl
 

a
 	

0
=

 	
F

-n
 

0
 

z; 
a
-.

 
,.,

 	
..., 	

....
.., 	

-0
. 	

.0.-
0- 

-
 	

..
 	

.....
. _ 	

t
o
 
0
 	

C
 
7
 
 
G...
7  

0
 A
4
 
0
 
-
4
 
0
 
0
0
 
C
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
A
D
 
0
 
0
 0
 
p
 
p
 
0
 0
 
C
A
 
C
N
 
0
 
C
7
 

a
 i

n
 0

 i
n
 0

 L
o
 0

 0
 0

-
 C

a
 C

a
 0

 0
 0

 0
 C

P
 0

 0
 0

 0
 

0
 
0
 O
-
 0
 
P
.
 
0
 
0
 
O
—
 
0
 0
 
0
 
0
 
o
P
 
0
 
a
 C
P 

::
:,

 a
 a

 

.
 	

N
 

N
 	

t
a
 	

A.
5 

,-
-•

 	
0
 
	

W
 

	

■
.
1
 
W
 
L
4
,
1
 	

C
O
O
 
W
 	

C
A
 
A
A
W
 

1
.
,
 
1
.
-
 	

-'
,
1
0
 	

C
I
O
 	

1
4
4
 	

-
.
 	

,
-
-
,
-
J
A
 

n
-
 

 

	

a
 

4
n
 4

4
 	

.
4
3
 
0
 
N
 	

0
 

C
A
 O
.
 
0
0
 

0
 A
 
0
 
O
.
 
C
D
 
N
D
 
C
A
 
C
D
 
0
 
-
-
I
 
C
D
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
P
 
0
 
0
 
C
A
 
C
A
 
V
.
 
0
 

6
b
.
0
b
.
6

.0
6
6
0
1
4
0
6
1
,
4
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
 

0
,4
4
0
0
0
0
.
4
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
.
-
.
,
0
 

,_
_,
 .
..
..
.,
 

1
4
 

A
 	

L.
A 
,.
..
 	

_
,
 	

1.
1 	

.P
. 

	

C
o
 
L
4
 
t
7
 
-
4
 	

J
0
0
 
i
n
 	

.
"
'
 
A
A
A
 

.
4
-,
 

 
-
.
1
 	

'
0
0
 

	

0
0
 
0
0
 
n
-
L
 	

t
J
 
L
A
 
t
o
 	

a
 

G
N
 
C
 
14
 

 
0
 
n
.
.
 
C
D
 
.
-
.
1
 
C
D
 
N
J
 
C
A
 
C
D
 
c
p
 
c
p
 
c
p
 
c
p
 
A

l 
c
p
 
c
p
 
L
n
 
C
D
 
C
A
 
O
A
 
.
r
.
.
 
0
 

to
 O

0 
OD

 
ia•

 C
D
 
C
a
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
s
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
a
 
O
D
 
O
D
 
O
D
 
0
 
O
D
 
0
 
0
 
O
D
 

0
.
0
0
,
0
0
-
-
3
0
0
0
t
4
5
0
0
W
O
O
W
O
O
O
N
O
 

p
p
o
p
p
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
p
p
o
p
p
p
 

a
g
p
a
p
p
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
0
8
8
8
8
8
 

0
0
6
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

C
D

 p
 p

 p
^
 P

 p
 p

 p
 p

 O
 c
,
 
p
 
O
 
P
 
O
 
o
 
p
 
p
 
c
,
5
)
 

9
 
9
 
9
 
 
9
 9
 
9
 

 
9
 
9
 
9
 
9
 
9
 
e
,
 
9
 
e
,
 
9
 
9
 
_
 9
 
9
 
9
 
9
 

 
0
 a
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 
0
 
C
D
 
O
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 

a
 
0
0
0
0
0
=
0
0
Q
0
0
0
0
0
=
0
0
0
0
0
=
 

6
6
6
6
6
0
6
6
6
0
6
6
0
6
0
0
6
0
0
6
6
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

0
0
0
0
0
9
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
6
0
0
 

0
0
0
0
6
g
6
6
6
0
6
6
0
6
6
0
0
0
0
6
6
 

0
0
0
6
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

10
0
0
0
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

0
 
O
D
 
0
 
0
 
O
D
 
0
 
0
 
O
D
 
O
D
 
0
 
O
D
 
O
D
 
0
 
O
D
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 6
 O
D
 
0
 

0
 0
 
C
D
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
C
D
 
0
 
0
 
0
 

C
D
 
C
D
 
O
 
O
 
0
 
p
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
C
)
 
C
D
 
0
 
c
p
 

6
6
6
6
0
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

0
p
p
p
0
6
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
p
0
p
p
p
0
 

e
p
 
e
p
 
c
p
 
g
p
 
6
 
e
p
 
g
p
 6
 
6
 0
 
O
D
 
C
5
 
C
5
 
C
5
 
0
p
 
g
p
 
q
p
 
O
p
 
C
5
 

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

e
p
 
c
p
 
e
p
 
e
p
 
e
p
 p
 
o
 
p
 0
 5
)
 
p
 
5
)
 O p
 
 
c
p
 
c
p
 
g
p
 
e
p
 
e
p
 
p
 
p
 

g
8
8
8
8
8
g
g
g
8
g
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
 

N
 

	

0
 
N
 
N
t
A
 	

,-
•
N
 
-
-
.
 	

N
 
.
-
.
-
-
.
3
 

	

a
 
N
 
A
W
 	

L
A
C
 
9
0
 	

.
.
0
 
N
N
W
 

--
1 	
0
 
	

P
. -

..1
 	

to
 -

,,
, 	

_
 	

1.
.■

 	
:D

. :
a.

 --
4
 

	

6
 
.
O
A
 	

N
 
%
A
 
-
-
I
 	

A
 
.
O
-
 
A
 

c
7
 
t
0
 C
a
-
-
 
0
 C

..
 
W
 
C
,
 
C
.
 0
 
0
 
0
 A
 
 
0
0
 

C
A
 
 
0
0
0
0
0
 
 

0
0
 
.
.
.
0
 
c
,
 

,
 
.
 
,
 
.
 
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
.
 
,
 

4
 C
D
 
C
D
 
0
0
 
C
D
 
t
A
 
C
3
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
A
 
C
D
 
C
0
 
t4
 

 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
0
 
C
D
 
C
D
 
.
7
 
C
D
 

c
5
 
w
o
 
0
 
0
0
 
C
D
 
A
J
 
0
 
C
,
 
0
 
'
.
 
0
 
0
 
4
N
 
0
 
0
 
.
.
+
.
 
C
.
 
C
.
 
0
 
,
,
,
 
C
.
 

A
 
C
O
 t
n
 6
 lo

4 
b.
.)
 
N
J
 
n
4
 
0
 
1
4
.
/
 
4
4
 
W
 ,
4
 
0
U
N
N
 

C
D

 C
O

 C
. 
O

N
 a

 a
 C

I 
%

A
 %

A
 L

4
 t

A
 0

 4
D

 C
D

 t
A

 0
 .
0
 0

 C
D

 %
A

 A
 

P
P
P
P
P
l
o
P
4
1
,
P
P
P
P
I
A
P
P
I
P
1
A

-L
o
P
P
I
A
 

C
D

 N
4
 C

D
 C

D
 G

N
 G

N
 4

7
5
 W

 C
D

 C
D

 w
 C

D
 0

 C
D

 1
41
. 
C

D
 t

A
 

	

C
5
 
O
D
 
C
D
 

14
15
 
C
D
 
4
n
 
C
D
 
p
 
5
)
 
e
a
 
5
)
 
5
)
 p
 	

p
 	

0
 

6
 
0
 
6
 
6
 
6
 0
 
C
,
 
0
 
4
 
0
 
0
 
0
 
C
,
 

 
0
 
C
.
 
0
 
0
 a

 C
a 

Ca
 o

 
0
0
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
 

n
.
 	

4
-
 
1
4
 	

A
D
 	

A
D
 	

0
4
 
'
-
 

0
 
	
"
 
"
 
	

0
0
0
1
.
1
0
W
C
5
0
-
4
0
 

8
 

0
 

0
 
0
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 298 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Building and Planning Departments 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

MEMO: 

To: 	City Council 
Mayor Wagoner 

From: 	John Coleman, AICP — 
Planning Director 

Date: 	April 13, 2016 

Subject: Building Permit and Planning Permit Review Status 

This status sheet is being provided for your review. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

John 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 299 of 311



APPLIED  PLANNING/ ENGINEERING PERMITS  

R = REVISIONS  RECEIVED  W = WAITING FOR  RESPONSE  NO ENTRY =  INTIAL  REVIEW NOT COMPLETE 

COMMENTS 

Received 4 copies  of a  revised site  lot  plan  4-2-10.  
Sent review  letter  May  5,  2010.  
Sent  Planning  review  letter  10-20-09.  Sent  email  
1/12/2010.$93.73  Publication  fees  owed.  
Sent  Planning  review  letter  10-20-09  Requested  
Rec  Dwgs  11/10/09.  Sent  email 1/12/2010.  

Sent  Planning  and Eng  review  letters  and Admin  
Prelim  Plat  approval 9-28-10.$82.50 FEES OWED 
ON PUBLICATION  
Four-lot  short  plat.  Fees  Paid.  Notice  of complte  
application  sent  4-11-13.  Commment  period 
complete,  planning  and  Engineering  review  letter  
sent  6-7-13.  DEPOSIT TAKEN 
Engineering  associated  with 4 lot  short  plat.  Fees  
Paid.  
!OLD FILE-EG-5-OB.  Council resolution  #900-14 on  
6-25-14.  Notice  of Decision  issued 7-7-14.  ALL 
FEES PAID 12-11-14.  Received final plans  for  
construction.  Emailed Bob  to  set up  pre- 
construction  meeting  3-25-15.  

CUP.Deposit taken  in  for  mailings  and sign  5-20- 

15. 

Planning  sent  request  letter  8-10-15.  Received  
revised parking  plan.  Planning  to  set  up  HEX 
Hearing  
BLA  for  two  buildable  lots.  Sent  review  letter  9-21-
15  -  need to  address  the  parking/garage  issue.  
Short  Plat-4  lots.  Administrative  Preliminary  Plat  
approved 1-13-16.  .New  addresses  assigned 2-17  

16. 

 
OHL)! L r Idl.  LNC1c1LUL-1 LV LI)-  I  U  k  %Audi a UI doe  
Permit).  Review  letter  sent  3-15-16.Receiveci 
Wetland Reconnaissance  4-4-16.  

Waiver  for  side  setback and parking  reg.  

Waiver  for  side  setback and parking  reg.  

Clear  and Grade  Permit.  Related  file  2015-246.  
Review  letter  sent  3-15-16.  

if 

°
 

W 
x
 

ILI 
re >

 
_, 
Q

. 
re 

re 

ADDRESS/ 

PARCEL #  

P90024  

CO 
C

 
CO 
--I 
>

, 

Z
 

0
 

r-- 
O

 
O

 
is

i 
O

 
up 
cf-i 
o

 
CO

 

604,606,  608  Dolly  Lane   

[
503  Marshall St  

1318 Talcott  St   

1318  Talcott  St   

755 Cook Rd  

639 Sunset  Park Drive  #101 
608 Sterling  St 

213 N.  Murdock  St   

665  Cook Rd   

174  & 176 N.  Township  St  

178 & 180 N.  Township  St   

665 Cook Rd 

L
I/ 

2
 

<
 

Z
 

IRimmer  Industrial Park 	

Ed  Knorr/Bayview  Survey   

, Ed Knorr/Bayview  Survey   

Larry/Marilyn  Nalbach   

Eric  Chandler/Marianne  Manville-Ailles   

Eric  Chandler/Marianne  Manville-Ailles   

Bob Ruby/Rubicon  Development   

Calvery  Chapel 	  

FSC Enterprises   

Bob  Hayden-Short  Plat   

Granite  Holdings  LLC-Short  Plat   

Grandview  Homes/Josephine  Decker   

Grandview  Homes/Josephine  Decker   

Granite  Holdings  LLC-Clear  and Grade  
Permit   

PERMIT  # 

1
1
 

o) 
C

O
 

LCS 
CD 

0
) 

9
 

C \ I 
fi 
Cr) 

a> 
9

 
C

?
  

0
 

G
O

 

o
 

—
 

r
 

U
y
 

2013-15 Planning   

2013-18 Engineering   

co 
.,- 
4

 
0

 
N

 

(1'1  
 o

 

C
O

 
C

. 

2015-102  

2015-173   

2015-174   

2015-246  

2016-002  

2016-003  

2016-10  

APPL.  

COMPLETE  

6/12/2009  

6/12/2009  

0
 

r
 

0
 

N
 

C
N

 

0
 

.- r
 

NA  

11-27-13 
(amended 

application)   

7/24/2015  

(0
 

r
 

 
0

 
C

V
 

C
O

 
N

 
r
 

APPL.  

RECEIVED   

U
) 

0
 

0
 

N
 

r
 

,-
-
-
 

5/26/2009  

. 5/26/2009  

7/27/2010  

C
D

 
N

 
C

O
 

N
 

2/26/2013  

10/9/2013  

5/20/2015  

7/24/2015   

7/24/2015   

10/19/2015   

C
D

 	
C

O
 

r
 
r
 

 
C

o
 

\ 
C

 I 	
N

 
co 	

co 
,-

 	
v-- 

 CO
 

0
 

N
 

r
 

-,- 
.,- 

RAPermit  TrackFrig.xlsx  Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 300 of 311



CUP-Commerical.Fees  paid.  HEX Hearing  4-6-16.  
Land Use  sign  out  3-25-16.  

PW revising  SEPA 
SEPA.Related file  BP#2016-59.  FEES PAID.  
SEPA Comment  periond begins  4-4-16,  ends  4-18-
16.  
Waiver.Related File-2016-64.Email sent  to  pay  fee  
3-23-16.  

4
 

z
 

CC 
-^
,
 
X

 

1342  Moore  St   
1400 Rhodes  Rd-Winnie  
Houser  Fields  

1476E  Moore  St   

1549 E Gateway  Heights  Loop  

Dr.  Larry  Campbell   

City  of SW  

Janicki Industries   

Cordate  Grn/Grandview  North LLC  

0
 

co 
6
 

0
 

N
 

-t—
 

6
  

.,-
 

C
) 

N
 to 

 

2016-58  

to
 

6
  

N-
 

N
 

3/ 18/2016  2/18/2016   

C
D

 

O
 

C \ I 
•k— 
..., 
CO

 

C
D

 
.,-- 
0

 
N

 
N

- 
.._

 

C
D

 

0
 

C
V 

CO
 

CsJ 
,_

, 

RAPermit  Tracking.xlsx  Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 301 of 311



APPLIED BUILDING PERMITS  

X =  COMPLETE R =  REVISIONS RECEIVED W =  WAITING  FOR RESPONSE NO ENTRY =  INITIAL REVIEW NOT COMPLETE 

COMMENTS 

Carport  and garage.  Building  review  letter  sent 8-19-
15.  Review  letter  mailed to  Mr  McGinnis  10-6-15.  6 
MONTH EXTENSION GRANTED.  EXPIRES 4-15-16.  
Carport.  EXPIRES 1-6-16.Needs  CUP.  

Waiting  for  plans  from  Alpine  Fire.  Inspection  pending.  
Fees  paid.  [Received 12/ 10/15)  

Sign.E-mailed contractor  to  pu  permit  2-16-16.  

Addition  to  existing  house.  contractor  to  get  SW 
Business  License.  Driveway  turnaround  condition  on  
site  plan.  Sent  letter  to  homeowner  on  status  of permit  
3-30-16.  
Tenant  Improvement.  Paid and applicant advised to  pu  
permit  3-3-16.  

( Spray  booth-Fire  Permit.Paid and applicant advised to  
pu  permit 3-3-16.  
Related File:  2016-58-SEPA.  SEPA Comment  periond 
begins  4-4-16,  ends  4-18-16.  Waiting  for  Building  Eng  
books  3-17-16.   
Advised contractor  on  fees  and to  pu  permit  3-31-16 

Advised  contractor  on  fees  and to  pu  permit  4-4-16  

Advised contractor  on  fees  and to  pu  permit 3-31-16 

new  storage  building.  Permit  issued 3-6-16.  

new  sign.Advised contractor  to  pu  permit 4-5-16.  

Bank to  Dentist  office.  Existing  building.  Plan  review  
paid 3-31-16.  Waiting  for  site  plan.All FEES PAID.  

SW Library  repairs.  

ENGR  

N
 

ca 
>., 

yes   

<
 

z 
<

 
z 

X
 

<
 

--- 
z 

N/A  

cA &
 

<
 

z 
<

 
z
 

<
 

-2
 

cu t. 
<

 
1-  

N
. 

>
 

11( 
z
 

REVIEW  

PLNG  

'A 
Z

 
x
 

x
 

'A 
z 

.1- 
z 

re N.--- > 
x 

x 
x 

x 
x 

cc 
a -±- 

BLDG  

x 
x 

x 
x 

) . c 
x 

x 
x 

x 
x 

ADDRESS  

/ PARCEL #  

405 Burrows  Lane   

290  W Moore  St  

702 Metcalf St  #B  

707 Metcalf St   

413 N.  Township  St  

605 Sunset Park #1  

605 Sunset Park #0  

1476 E Moore  St   

1553 E Gateway  Heights  
Loop  Lot  #3  
1555  E Gateway  Heights  
Loop  Lot  #4 	  

1622 Gateway  Heights  PI 
Lot  #5 	 

1218 N.  Township  St   

108 N.  Township  St #E  

333 State  St   

802 Ball Street   
w

 
2

 
<

 
z
 

C/) 
C

 

6
 

o
 

T
o'  

C
L 

Frank  Bresnan   

Thai Restaurant  

Liberty  Bistro/Skagit  Valley  Signs  

Gabrielle  & Elijah Clay  	 

Andrew  Mork 

Andrew  Mork  

Janicki Industries/Chad Fisher  Const   

Cordata  Gm  LLC/Grandview  North 
LLC  

Cordata  Gm  LLC/Grandview  North 
LLC 

Cordata  Gm  LLC/Grandview  North 
LLC 

City  of SW/Alvord  Richardson  

Perfect  Nails  

Dr.  Justin  Yeates  DDS/Constantine  
Builders  

City  of SW/JM Construction  & 
Drywall  

PERMIT # 

2015-65 

2015-152 

2015-270 

2016-25 

0
 

4:1-  
co 
O

 
C \J 

2016-41 

2016-42 

2016-59 

N
. 

C
D

 
CO 
O

 
N

 

CO
 

CO
 

th 
r
 

C
V 

C
) 

C
D

 

co 
r
 

C
V

 

2016-75 

't N
- 

c.6 
,
 

co 
CN1 

r■
 

N
. 

c) 
,-- 
o
 

N
 

2016-82  

—
i 

0
. 

0
. 

<
 

DATE  

[3/26/15 

(7/6/15 

12/1/15 

CO
 

-C-5‘—
  

Z+.1-  

2/29/16 

C
D

 
..... 
1-- 
;--3 

C
D

 

C‘..1 
C

) 

3/17/16 

___ 
 

3/25/16 

3/26/16 

C
D

 
,--. 
C-•-:
 

CNI 
O

D 

C
D

 
N—

 
"C-c5 
C \I 
C

;) 

3/23/16 

3/28/16 

CO
 

co 
d
-- 

.Termit  Tracking.xlsx  Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 302 of 311



  

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL TMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building, 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley. WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-9922 
Fax (360) 855-9923 

 

   

Keith L. Wagoner 

 

       

       

     

Mayor 

 

  

April 1, 2016 

    

Skagit County Commissioners 
Lisa Janicki, Chair 
1800 Continental Place, Suite 100 
Mount Vernon, WA 98283 

RE: EMS Delivery Model Advisory Group 

Dear Lisa: 

The City of Sedro-Woolley is pleased to participate in your EMS Delivery Model 
Advisory Group. The city will be represented by Eron Berg and Judith Dunn Lee. 

EMS is an essential service in Skagit County and as we move forward with 
consideration of service delivery models, I hope the group will consider a few key 
elements with any possible changes: 

1. Any model must seamlessly serve rural and urban citizens (both 
Anacortes and Sedro-Woolley/FD#8 provide good current examples); 

2. Any changes to the model that would reduce the number of medics in 
the system would do so through attrition with no lay-offs of current medics; and 

3. Any system redesign should be based solely on facts and verifiable 
data to achieve the desired level of service countywide and not based upon the 
politics of the day. 

On behalf of the city, I appreciate the opportunity to participate in this process. I 
believe it is one of the important issues of our time and look forward to seeing the 
results of this effort. 

Sincerely, 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

Keith L. Wagoner, Zyo1727  

cc: 	Judith Dunn Lee, Councilmember 
Eron Berg, City Supervisor/Attorney 

€(/ 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 303 of 311



Sincerely, 
BOARD OF SKAGIT COUNT? CO ISSIONERS 

Lisa Janicki, Chai 

n Wesen, Co miss 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RON WESEN, First District 

KENNETH A. DAHLSTEDT, Second District 

LISA JANICKI, Third District 

March 28, 2016 

Mayor Keith Wagoner, City of Sedro-Woolley 
And Members of the Council 

We are requesting your City's participation on the Skagit County Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
Delivery Model Advisory Group and we would like to have two (2) representatives from your City 
participate in this process, one (I) of which we would appreciate being a member of your City Council. The 
Advisory Group will discuss and analyze both the current and potential service delivery models, and make 
recommendations on the model that will most effectively achieve the stakeholders' mutual interests in the 
future. 

Through facilitator Jim Reid's twenty interviews of community leaders, we heard that the Advisory Group 
should be comprised of representatives of rural and urban communities, providers, the county, cities, 
towns, fire districts, volunteers, consumers, labor, and hospitals. We are working to ensure that all these 
important parties are represented on the Advisory Group. Your participation will help achieve our goals. 
We respectfully request that two representatives commit to serving on the Advisory Group and attend the 
scheduled meetings, beginning on Monday, April 25, 2016. The group will meet once every three weeks 
thereafter through September in the Commissioners Hearing Room, 1800 Continental Place, Mount 
Vernon. 

Thank you very much for your consideration in joining the Advisory Group. We are confident the process 
will benefit from your participation. Please call Jim Reid at (206) 324-2061 or email 
jim@)falconergroup.net  to confirm your participation. 

Kenneth A. Dahlstedt, Commissioner 

Meeting schedule — Please mark your calendar: 

Monday, April 25, 9:30am — noon 
Monday, May 16, 9:3oam — noon 
Monday, June 6, 9:3oam — noon 
Monday, June 27, 9:30am — noon 

cc: Jim Reid, Facilitator 

Monday, July 18, 9:30am — noon 
Monday, August 8, 9:3oam — noon 
Monday, August 29, 9:3oam — noon 
Monday, September 19, 9:30am — noon 

SKAGIT COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING 
1800 CONTINENTAL PLACE, SUITE 100, MOUNT VERNON, WA 96273 PHONE (360) 416-1300 FAX (360)336-9307 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 304 of 311



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

APR 13 2016 

7:00 EM. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	r"D  

   

3c), ,Acf)/ 

771cc-eio,,  

Co  

cc_ 	 cz1  

7 	
■%-40er-G 

6ce-e-e 

-1-e-yzee 	 cz-t Cel,acetel6 -7W--6e6d-Z6 

-2-Ax4-e 

,tec).L.e 	 ea_a-ef. 

2-62e zzA- 	 cz_6Du-t 

-eZetior 

Skagit Community Foundation 
	

360.419.3181 

PO Box 1763 Mount Vernon, WA 98273 
	

directorcaskagitcforg 

1204 Cleveland Avenue Mount Vernon, WA 98273 
	

www.skagitcforg Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 305 of 311



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 306 of 311



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 307 of 311



FY15* CLIENT IMPACT REPORT 

INFO SHEET: 
SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Community Action of Skagit County is a community-based, 

501(c)(3) private nonprofit. We serve in Skagit County and 
partner with a nationwide network of Community Action 

agencies established under the Economic Opportunity Act of 

1964 to move local families and communities from poverty 

to prosperity. 

21% are homeless. 

38% are employed. 

39% are age 17 and under. 

0  Community 

Action 
of Skagit County 
Helping People. Changing Lives. 

Currently, we support over 20 inter-related core 

services that stabilize lives and equip people for 

success. We also work in collaboration with the 

community to create ongoing pathways to prosperity. 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

» Who we serve in Sedro-Woolley: 

Community Action served 2,678 Sedro-Woolley residents in 

APR 1 3 2016 

.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
DA NO. 

74% are at 100% 

or below poverty. 

27% are social 

security/pension 

recipients. 

Of individuals 25 years old and under, 42% have not graduated from high 

school-18% had an 8th grade or less. 

*FY15 reflects October 2, 2014 through September 10, 2015 

Percents reflect individuals in our Client Social Service Tracking database {17,040 individuals) 

located within the Sedro-Woolley & Clear Lake zip code area. 

>> Community Action Services: 

Adult Education Program 

AmeriCorps/VISTA 

Basic Food Outreach 

Community Resource Center 

Dental Care Access 

East County Services 

Energy Assistance 

Family Development Center 

Health Coverage Access 

Housing Resource Center 

Long-Term Care Ombudman 

Maternity Support Services 

Media Production 

Mental Health Ombuds 

Skagit Food Distribution Center 

Skagit Volunteer Center 

Veterans Assistance 

Volunteer Lawyer Program 

Senior & Disabled Volunteer Services 

Women, Infants and Children 

Nutrition Program 

WorkFirst Employment Services 

www.CommunityActionSkagitorg 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 308 of 311



» How we impact Sedro-Woolley residents: 	•  Community 

STABILIZING LIVES 	 Action 
of Skagit County 

Lives.ng 
• Critical Needs (331 SW individuals; 1,870 overall) 	 Hatpi People Cininging 

 

• Homeless prevention and Housing Support (57 SW households; 288 overall) 

• Basic Food (29 SW households; 245 overall) 

• Energy and home heating (438 SW householdsl; 2,112 overall) 

• Legal assistance (73 SW households; 460 overall) 

• Community Voice Mail (13 SW households; 108 overall) 

• Senior & Disabled Services (40 SW individuals; 222 overall) 

• Also: 4,482 households representing 14,080 individuals (12,822 households 

representing 42,842 individuals) were served by local food banks—supported by the 

Skagit Food Distribution Center located in Sedro-Woolley. 

EQUIPPING FAMILIES FOR SUCCESS 
• 21 Community Jobs participants from SW gained job training and essential skills coaching 

(93 overall). 

• 1 young person from SW attended workshops to complete applications for Deferred 

Action for Childhood Arrivals (DACA), which provides work authorization and protection 

from deportation (78 overall). 

• 284 moms, infants, and children from SW received WIC and breastfeeding support 

promoting healthy food habits (5,668 overall). 

• 11 students from SW who were enrolled in the Adult Education class obtained skills and 

competencies required for employment (32 overall). 

• 26 pregnant women from SW received nursing and psych-social services during their 

pregnancy promoting healthy birth outcomes (220 overall). 

• Service to Employment coached 65 lower-income volunteers how to gain skills and 

experience and use community service to build their resumes. 

STRENGTHENING COMMUNITY 
• Coordinated large-scale collaborations, such as Project Homeless Connect, 

• Mobilized 4,540 volunteers from all over Skagit County, donating 166,243 service hours 

valued at $4,746,319. 

• Established 731 partnering and collaborating relationships with 463 organizations. 

• Increased disaster preparedness among low-income community members, and 

strengthened collaborations through Community Organizations Active in Disaster (COAD). 

• Financial coaching and helping people establish a relationship with a financial institution to 

decrease predatory lending and increase savings. 

• Leaders in community-wide approaches to vital issues, such as homeless prevention, 

affordable housing, access to appropriate health and dental care, and finanical coaching. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 309 of 311



OBJECTIVE: Stabilizing. Lives 

sann  Jauag  WO)  

0
3

 

0
3

 

 

3
  

	

0
 
	

c
 
a
  

n
 

_
. 
	

5
 
	

• 

a
 

• 
o

 =
 

,,
,..
 3

 a
z
) 	

. 
=

 
c
n

 C
 0

) 
,-

+
 

4.,
 

c
  

7
 -

r
i 

r  D
  
.

• 

"-7-
1%.
  I
D

 	
..

.,
. 

C
D

 Z
 

O
 

0
.)

 .
=

. 

	

-
‹
 

3
 	

m
 -

‹ 
(t

) 	
a

) 
rt

. 
>

 
	

a.
 ):

z.
 

,
 

-I
 
n
 

 
<

 
o

-. 
..
. 	

n
 • 

0
 0

7
. 

r
t
 0

 '
''
 	

c
 
0
 
o
 

D
 

0
:1 	

c
n
 0

_
 
7
 

0
 

..
,_

. 
* 

a
ll
 	

0
 
(
,
 

•
 
C

  )
 
*
 

s.J
_ 

-
.
 

	

 
=

 F;
 	

"
0
 =

 
CD

  
5
 
X

/
 	

Z
 

M
 .
..
. 
a

l 	
=

 
1:

5  
=

 
C

I 
0

 
	

■-1
- 
	

CD
 

	

-1
 

f.
, 	

-
.5

 
-
1
 
,
-
 

e-
'1

. 
-0

 

	

A
--

  
'.
.
 
	

a-:
 

	

. 
	

....,
 	

(7.
 

0
-
 5

 
74 	

0
 

O
J 	

n
 

(r
.  
n

i
 

	

,-1
- 

(1
:1 	

0
_

 
c
ri
. 

-0
 

12
0 	

rt
, 

4
 

• 

a)
 

0
  

-5
 

;r'
 9

0
 	

_0
 

-
h

 
rD

 
c
o

 =
 	

a
  

ci
l 	

a
) 

.7_1
 

u
 E

 
r
t 

x
l 

O
 

-,
 r

o
 	

,=
1

: 
3

 
r,

 
c
 
in

 0
 

-
I 

=
 =

i 	
4'5

 	
w

 
n
 

to
 5

 r
i 	

C
D

 —
 

-
-
h

 
D

-
 

ci
l 	

PI
 	

0
 c

 
,-t

- 	
n
 

O
 

:=
1:

 "
( 	

C
 c

ttl
  

=
 =

 	
cr

, 
ft

 
r
t 

.-
, 	

o
 

7
 

=
 

0
 2

-  

uogplriN  ig  pool  
3

 

	

C
I 	

.71
1 	

1-
11

 

	

IT
I 	

iT
1 

>
 

Ct
- 

u,
 

	

C
O

 -
5
 

r"
) 

0
 	

in
 c

r 
-h

 ,
7
 	

-t
, 

-a
 c

---
) 

	

=
 i

m
 a

 
f.:.D

. , 	
n

 c
 C

O
 
0
 2

 g
 

r-
) 	

0.
1 

 
--

 
C

C
D

 0
 

-17
5  

	

0
_
 -

0
  
3
 co

 	
5

' 
3

 a
. 	

r
+

 0
 D

. 
0
 

	

CU
 	

0
  0

_
 	

=
 -
0

 -
• 

.<
 

	

n"
: _

7.
 	

,=
; 

m
 	

3
 
c
 	

—
 5

 a
)
 -

.,
 ]

°
 	

rt
  c

'T
 3

 t
)
 

	

E-4
 c

 
—

 	
D

J
 M

I 
F

t)
 D

J(1
) 
	

.,-
s 	

C
 
7
 

	

M
 C

i.
 	

D
. 

-h
 	

D
 	

.-1
- 	

D
 

	

D
J
 a

) 	
r
i- 

Vs
 

	

C7
_ 

,4
  
5

 	
o

_
 c

o
 ,
 

rD
 .

=
1

: 	
C

D
 7

- " •
 

•7
1:

 

	

M
`:

. 
-.

 -
<

 	
.<

 	
co
.  

_
 v

i 

	

,r
+

 	
011

 
	3

 a
)
 

r+
 	

—5
 

C
D

 >
 

	

>
 	

n
 m

.-
 >

 
''
 3

 

	

. 	
C

D
 .

.<
 

c
r)

 v
s
 a:
 =r

°  
a
 

	

-N
. 

	
--

) 
O

 
<

 
C

 C
D

 

	

n
 0

) 
0
 	

■--
r-

 0
 	

0
 	

0
 

0
 

	

F.
)*

 ?
) 

	
=

 
O

ri 

	

<
 	

_
. 

co
 

o
 

<
 	

0
- 

 
F

4
: 

5
 
o
 -

. 
,.

..
 f

p
 =

 
- 

=
 	

....,
 
	

—
 

-_, 
 

D
 

D
- 

	

<
 	

o.
, 

 
C

 
-ID

 

	

ft
) 

C
D

. 	
0

 
0

 

	

0
 	

E
n
 M

 ,7
-7,

 

	

...
. 	

W
 0

 0
 

	

-s
 -

s
 	

■ -•
- 

..
.+

 =
..

 
<

 
n
 
-0

 
-1

 
 

	

0
- 	

D
- 

r 
V

) 	
_

. 	
7

—  

	

rt
 o

_
 	

cu,
 
n
 

c
 
s
 

	

,
 	

a
) 

rt
. 	

m
 a

) 
r-

F
 	

v
) 

C
D

 
n
 

	

C
T

4
 .

r:
 	

r-
F

 
	

a
) 

.:
;,‘
 

-
 -

a
 

O
 

0
- 	

-,
 

	

c
o
 D

- 	
m

- 
o
 	

a)
 	

c
o
 a

l 
,
,
 

	

, „
, 	

-4
, 	

rt
.. 

_
 

0—
 	

V
s,

 	
—0

 
—1

 
—I

. 

	

,
.
.
-
 

a)
 	

--
, 
c
l)

 c
'' 

4-
)-' 	

co
 -

 0
 

r4
 

	

3
 	

n
 

--1
 =

 

	

.<
 ,
 

CD
 	

r-
F

 

	

=
 	

7
- 	

cr
ai. 

	

w
 	

0
_

 
	

FA
 

w
 ,
!.
" 

o
- 

	

n
 r

i'
 	

=
 
(
t
)
 
=

 
C

 
C

L
 

0_
 

	

VI
 	

CD
 

n
 	

"<
 

-
h

 	
-
S

 C
 

-
1

 c
i.)

 	
CD

 
-0-
  

0
 

	

5
 	

C
D

 r
y
 	

M
 

-
s 	

=
 C

O
 

5
' 
d

.. 	
o

_
 

✓
-l

• 
o
- 	

n
 d

'.
 
n
 
0
 

	

c
. 	

a
)
 0

 0
 
	

0
-  
'
'
.
 

	

rt
, 	

m
 z

 3
 

-h
  

O
 

CD
 

CM
! 	

,-
t.  

	

R
 F

r
_

 	
e-

F 	
SD

 
	
a

- 

	

-J
.,

 a
) 	

0
-
  
5
 

.--
.. 	

M
 

rD
  

	

a)
 	

,. 

	

C
 k

il 	
-S

. 
D
-
  a
) 

s
o
_
 

	

,-
.-

 v
) 	

0
 

	

 C
C

D
 	

<
 =

 m
 ,
 

--
, 

	

..
,.

„
 ,

 	
fD

 C
D

 0
_
 	

-s
 

 

3
 	

r-
I-

 
0

-1
 

i ncrease their resil iency and meet thei r l ife goals. 

OBJECTIVE: Equipping Families for Success   

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 310 of 311



	

Fo
 	

>
 

	

rn
 	

n
 

c
 

	

CU
n
 a

s
 	

-"
, 

n
 

V
I 

n
 
	

e
D

 0
 

61
. 

v
, 

3 
3
 	

-c3
 

1
 
	

3
 =

 

	

'6
 3

 0
. 	

o
 

n
 

-0
 

a,
 

O
 

c
 

E
 	

w
i 

c 
-,

 
Z

' 
M

 -
.1

1
 

C
 

	

0
 	

r
D

 7
4

: 
0

 
-
<

 r
t
 

• 
X

' 	
.-

r 

	

>
 -

-1
, 	

0
 
>

 
F, 

	

0
 	

co
  
r,
 

rD
  

r°
 o

 a
) 	

o
 o
n

  

,,
 

o
 

0
=

 
X

"
 =

 

-- 

	

0
 -

-
`
 	

(D
  

-
h

 

	

-
-
, 
0
 	

CD
 

3
 

n
 

	

 r
+

 
v)

 	
0
- 

L
S

 
P

 
ra

 
-)

 	
e

r 
=

 
..

<
 C

U
 

	

"
0
 	

V
 

r
t
 

o
 

o
- 

hi
  

(1
1  

	

V
I 	

CD
  

<
 

<
 
7

 
cr7

:1 

	

a)
 	

o
 

 

	

n
 	

F-3
.  
T

 

	

a)
 	

ro
 _

o
 

	

T13 
	

--
h

 Q
) 

0
 
C

 

	

CD
 	

0
 -

-:
: 

m
 

N
 

O
 

l
V
 

CD
 3
 

l
V
 

e
t.

 

'8  CD
  

O
 3
 3
 a z CD
 

0
 

m
 

• •
 

>
 

	

rn
 	

n
 

	

= 	
o 

rD
 
 n

 m
a 

n
 
5
 

0
 

	

CO
 
	

n 
o
 
o
 
,
 

• 
o

 
Cl.
)  

	

CO
 
	

ai
l 	

3
 

G 
3
 c

':=
  

3
 c

5
) 

3
 

E 
an

 

	

co
 
2 

BrD 	
C

 
a
  
c

 
:
3

 
=

 
D

  
0
 
0
 

n
  

	

- 
	

-
.
 	

-.
 =

 
.<

 .
.,
 

o
 
.<

 

co
 =

 0
 

• 
D

 

	

tf
l 
	

z
 "

4  

	

.-1 
ag5

 	
vi

 

	

3
 	

.-p
 

CO
—

  "
s

"
 

• 
=

 	
=

 
-

0
 

=
 7

3
 

0
- 

3
m

 
=

 
r-

l• 

	

--5
 	

a
) 

	

C
D

 <
, 	

C
O

 C
U

 =
 

	

X
 0

-
 	

e-
1-

 
▪
 

—
 C

M
 

	

CU
 	

01
1.

  
a

))
 M

 

	

03
 	

F
3

 0
- 

0
. 

-0
 
n

 
rt

 -
<

 

	

0
-  
0

 
	

cu
 

CF
Q 

-3
 

	

C
D

 0
1

 	
3
-t

 -
%

 

	

---
---

,. 3
 	

=
 o

 
co

 
rT

, 

	

-o
 

-F
,' 	

.-
, 

O
N

&
I 

..
..

-.
 

v,
 
-o

 
7
 o

 
a

.
 
F

li
.
 
-
t
5

 
"
 

7
 
v
.
 c

s 

	

m
,
 	

e
l-
 f
t,  

	

0
 

	
a

) 

	

3
-1

 	
0

)  

	

0.
, 
o
 	

Fa
-
 

 
n
 
3

 
 c

...
 

c
o
 =

 

	

,-,
- 	

cm
  

o
 

3
 

O
 

C
 	

0
 
-E

3)  
D

 

	

V
I 	

. 	
IA

.  
-
,
 

6
5

 d
-- 

a
)
 
<

 
0

 
0

. 
cr

a 
 

,-=
' 
3
 

(-) 

	

cD
 

	-
2 

c»
 

	

0
 
3
 	

0
 -

_
-•

.
`-'

- 

	

C
 
Ft
, 	

,--
p 

0
 

.-
+

 -
S

 
-.<

v'
 

rt
. 

O
 

	

0
 	

p
 

e
l 

	

-1
1

 
	

0
 

	

3
 	

c
fl

 .
e

 
s
t 

,--
1

- 
n

 =
 

O
 

2
 

n
 a

) 	
c
 <

 	
a
l 

o
 
a
 

6,3
  ..

..
_.,

 
v,

 	
r,
 o

 r
D

 
n

 	
=

 
a)

 	
.•

- 
--

, 

	

o
 
(9

. 	
n
 "

"
 

A
- 

	
-
, 
C

 
(D

 
O

 
3

 
0
  
0
-

n)
  a

)
 	

v,
 .

•1
. 
0
 x

. 
=

 0
 

r...,-
. 

c
o

 3
 	

c
.n

o
m

n
o
c
c
 

. 
-<

 =
 0

 
5
.  n

o
 	

,-  •
•
•
•
 

	

...
1.

 	
C

O
 V

I 

	

d
.' 

-4
-  -

-
%

 0
 M

fa
) 	

=
 

r
+

 =
 •

=
.  
-
  

,.
.,

 C
U

 
C

 =
-
3 

■-1
-  

O
 

CO
 

to
 

	

=
 -

5
 r

a
 r

t.
 

X
 	

'-
'
,
 

Q
7

-,.
7 

	
T

3 
—

 
0,

..
 _

 

	

,-
+

 Z
0
 

m
- 	

w
 —

 -
 k

 ,
 
n
 

-
s 

v
i 	

-
1

 
N3

 
(1
,  
0
)
 
d

-
 
0

 
=

 
.
 
c
 
0

0
 

	

,..
-- 	

co
 c

o
 
	

re
-) 
	

<
 

m
 r

o
 

(7
) 

(1
1

 	
--

: 
3

 -
, 

=
 a

) 
D.

C1
  
Z

 
"
0

 
V

3
 
,
 
3 

   
no 

T.
 a

 ' 	̀
-1-- - -, D-
 z

  „r . _ 
-i. - .

 . _
. ,c: 

) =
. ,

 t  ,z  
crg 	

s: 
O

 
 

3
 o

- 	
=

 
c
o
 r

o
 u

.1
 

,..
.. 	

n
 
.o

 3
 

 
a

l 
7,

;
r)

' 
3
 _

o
 

c
 c

 	
o

 
c
. 

ro
 r
, 

<
 

0
-  
0

 c
u

 	
3

 -
E

n
 r

r)
 r

D
 

c
o
 a

 
-,,
.7 	

3
 -

.,
 r

f  (
1

1
  
0

 
1

1
) 

^
.-

. 
..

<
C

  
0

1
 
 
0
 
	

"
0
 

 
-
-
I
 

—
 —

 a
a
 n

 
O

 
0

 	
.-

+
 _

• 
0

-. 
---

h 	
''
:‹

 
T

, 
	

ca
  
C

- 
O

O
  

c
 	

o
 

--,
 	

-1
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 311 of 311


	AGENDA
	Committeee Assignments
	1.  Call to Order
	2.  Pledge of Allegiance
	3.  Consent
	  a. Approval of Agenda
	  b. Minutes from March 23, 2016
	  b. Minutes from April 6, 2016 Worksession
	  c. Finance
	  d. Ordinance - Speed Limit Revision SR9 South
	  e. PW Agreement 2016-PW-17 - 2016 On-Call Plumbing Services
	  f. PW Agreement 2016-PW-18 - 2016-2017 Annual Fire Extinguisher and Kitchen Hood Service
	  g. Land Pride 14' Mower Award
	  h. Utility Relocation Agreement - PSE - Jameson to SR9 Project
	  i. Sole Source Resolution (939-16) for WWTP Plant Rotor #4 Replacement Parts - Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC - Purchase Order 2016-PO-13
	  j. Interlocal Agreement with Skagit County for Possible Drainage Projects
	  k. Contract 2016-PW-01 (Res. 940-16) Jameson Arterial Extension to SR9 Project - SRV Construction, Inc.
	4.  Public Comment
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	5.  Retreat Follow-Up - Downtown Liquor Establishments
	6.  Spray Park Update
	NEW BUSINESS
	7.  2014 Comp Plan Docket (1st Reading)
	COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS
	8.  Central Skagit Library letter dated April 5, 2016
	9.  Written Reports to Council
	10.  Informational Items

